
 

For requests for further information 
Contact: Sam Jones 
Tel:               01270 686643 
E-Mail:          samuel.jones@cheshireeast.gov.uk 
 

 
 

Strategic Planning Board 
 

Agenda 
 

Date: Wednesday, 25th October, 2023 

Time: 10.00 am 

Venue: Council Chamber, Municipal Buildings, Earle Street, Crewe 
CW1 2BJ 

 

Please note that members of the public are requested to check the Council's 
website the week the Strategic Planning Board meeting is due to take place as 
Officers produce updates for some or all of the applications prior to the 
commencement of the meeting and after the agenda has been published 
 

 

The agenda is divided into 2 parts. Part 1 is taken in the presence of the public and press. 
Part 2 items will be considered in the absence of the public and press for the reasons 
indicated on the agenda and at the top of each report. 
 
It should be noted that Part 1 items of Cheshire East Council decision making meetings 
are audio recorded and the recordings will be uploaded to the Council’s website 
 
 
PART 1 – MATTERS TO BE CONSIDERED WITH THE PUBLIC AND PRESS PRESENT 
 
1. Apologies for Absence   
 
2. Declarations of Interest/Pre Determination   
 
 To provide an opportunity for Members and Officers to declare any disclosable 

pecuniary and non-pecuniary interests and for Members to declare if they have a pre-
determination in respect of any item on the agenda. 
 

3. Minutes of the Previous Meeting  (Pages 3 - 12) 
 
 To approve the minutes of the meeting held on 20 September 2023 as a correct 

record. 
 

Public Document Pack



 

 

4. Public Speaking   
 
 A total period of 5 minutes is allocated for each of the planning applications for the 

following: 
 

 Ward Councillors who are not members of the Strategic Planning Board 

 The relevant Town/Parish Council 
 
A period of 3 minutes is allocated for each of the planning applications for the 
following individuals/groups: 
 

 Members who are not members of the Strategic Planning Board and are not 
the Ward Member 

 Objectors 

 Supporters 

 Applicants 
 

5. 22/0872M - LAND BETWEEN JUNCTIONS 7 AND 8 OF THE M56: Erection of a 
Motorway Service Area (MSA), demolition of all existing buildings except for the 
retention and conversion of one residential building (existing farmhouse) and 
the part retention and conversion of the Eastern Barn for MSA operational 
purposes, including associated access and buildings (Amenity Building, MSA 
Hotel and Fuel Filling Station including photovoltaics and ancillary structures), 
Service Yard, parking for all categories of vehicle (including electric vehicle 
charging), open space, landscaping and planting, drainage, vehicular 
circulation, pedestrian and cycle links (including diversion of cycle track) and 
earthworks/enabling works.  (Pages 13 - 130) 

 
 To consider the above planning application.  

 
6. 23 2225N - BENTLEY MOTORS LIMITED, PYMS LANE, CREWE, CW1 3PL: 

Construction of a new paint shop on the site of an existing colleague carpark 
including a four story office annex. Work includes the construction of two 
bridge links over Sunnybank Road, plant annexes and a roof terrace.  (Pages 
131 - 158) 

 
 To consider the above planning application.  

 
7. 23 2349N - BENTLEY MOTORS LIMITED, PYMS LANE, CREWE, CW1 3PL: 

Demolition of an existing temporary industrial warehouse and construction of 
an Integrated Logistics Centre including a covered logistics route, internal 
amenity and office annex.  (Pages 159 - 178) 

 
 To consider the above application.  

 
 
Membership:  Councillors M Brooks, A Critchley, S Edgar, D Edwardes, K Edwards, 
S Gardiner (Vice-Chair), T Jackson, G Marshall, H Moss, B Puddicombe (Chair), 
H Seddon and L Smetham 
 



CHESHIRE EAST COUNCIL 
 

Minutes of a meeting of the Strategic Planning Board 
held on Wednesday, 20th September, 2023 in The Capesthorne Room - 

Town Hall, Macclesfield SK10 1EA 
 

PRESENT 
 
Councillor B Puddicombe (Chair) 
Councillor S Gardiner (Vice-Chair) 
 
Councillors M Brooks, S Edgar, D Edwardes, G Marshall, H Moss, H Seddon, 
L Smetham, J Place (substitute for K Edwards), F Wilson (substitute for A 
Critchley) and T Dean (substitute for T Jackson) 
 
OFFICERS IN ATTENDANCE 
 
Adrian Crowther, Senior Planner  
Jane Gowing, Interim Director of Planning  
Nicky Folan, Lawyer 
Paul Griffiths, Highways Development Manager 
Jennifer Ashley, Democratic Services Officer  

 
7 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  

 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillor A Critchley, 
Councillor K Edwards and Councillor T Jackson.  
 

8 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST/PRE DETERMINATION  
 
In the interest of openness the following declarations were made: 
 
Councillor Wilson declared that in relation to application 19/0623M she 
was a member of the Economy and Growth Service Committee that had 
recently made a decision on the same application. Councillor Wilson 
stepped down from the meeting and did not take part in any discussions or 
decision on the application.  
 
Councillor Gardiner declared that in relation to application 19/0623M he 
was a former Planning Agent for part of the site. As this was a number of 
years ago, he remained in the meeting and took part in the discussion and 
vote.  
 

9 MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING  
 
That the minutes of the meeting held on 26 July 2023 be approved as a 
correct record subject to clarification that Councillor D Edwardes declared 
an interest in application 21/4113M.  
 
 

Page 3 Agenda Item 3



10 PUBLIC SPEAKING  
 
The public speaking procedure was noted.  
 

11 23/2054C - UNIT 1, VIKING WAY, CONGLETON, CW12 1TT - 
RESERVED MATTERS APPROVAL FOR 19/5596C: OUTLINE 
PLANNING APPLICATION WITH ALL MATTERS RESERVED EXCEPT 
FOR THE PRINCIPAL MEANS OF ACCESS FOR THE ERECTION OF A 
RESIDENTIAL DEVELOPMENT (USE CLASS C3), EMPLOYMENT AND 
COMMERCIAL FLOORSPACE (USE CLASSES B1/B2/B8/C1/D2) AND 
A LOCAL CENTRE (USE CLASSES A1/A2/A3/A4/A5/D1) WITH 
ASSOCIATED LANDSCAPING, DRAINAGE AND OTHER 
INFRASTRUCTURE  
 
Consideration was given to the above planning application.  
 
The following attended the meeting and spoke on the application;  
 
Alice Routledge – Asteer Planning.  
 
RESOLVED;  
 
For the reasons set out in the report and update report, the application be 
delegated to the Head of Planning to APPROVE subject to the satisfactory 
receipt of a bat survey and any mitigation required to deal with the 
proposed removal of a tree (T59) on site and subject to the following 
conditions; 
 

1. Approved plans 
2. Construction of access in accordance with submitted plan 
3. Safeguarding nesting birds 
4. Details of safety fencing around SUDS ponds to be approved 
5. Facing materials for the food store to be submitted and approved 
6. Paving around the frontage of the food store to be submitted and 

approved 
7. Approval of lighting 
8. Submission of a Construction Management Plan 
9. Implementation of landscaping  
10. Submission of a Landscape Management Plan  
11. Arboricultural Impact Assessment (AIA) / Arboricultural Method 

Statement (AMS) be updated accordingly  
 

Informatives; 

 EP Standard informs 
 

In the event of any changes being needed to the wording of the Committee’s 
decision (such as to delete, vary or add conditions/informatives/planning 
obligations or reasons for approval/refusal) prior to the decision being issued, 
the Head of Planning has delegated authority to do so in consultation with the 

Page 4



Chairman of the Strategic Planning Board, provided that the changes do not 
exceed the substantive nature of the Committee’s decision. 

 
12 19/0623M - HANDFORTH GARDEN VILLAGE S106 UPDATE  

 
Consideration was given to the update report in relation to the Section 106 
Agreement for the above planning application which was approved by the 
Strategic Planning Board on 13 January 2023.  
 
RESOLVED;  
 
That for the reasons set out in the report and update report the Strategic 
Planning Board;  
 

1. Approved the amended approach to the Section 106 Legal 
Agreement, subject to the requirement that any Memorandum of 
understanding signed would allow for indexation on commuted 
sums due as would have been required through the s106. 

2. Approved the amended list of conditions as follows, 
 

OUTLINE 
 
1. Submission of Reserved Matters- 15 years 
2. Approval of Reserved Matters- All reserved 
3. Approved Plans – Location and parameter plans 
4. Approve Accommodation Schedule 
5. Compliance with mitigation set out in Environmental Statement (and 
Amendment) 
6. No occupation until IPIW approved in Full are substantially complete 
7. Approval of Phasing Plans 
8. Development to comply with housing densities identified in the Fixed 
Parameters Land Use Plan  
9. Compliance with Public Rights of Way and 20-Year Walking Route 
Code 
10. Approval of signage for pedestrians and cyclists, to include timings 
11. Programme of archaeological work to be agreed  
12. No works on the main development site to take place within 100m 
of the Diary House Farm (Listed Building) site prior to the completion of 
the stabilisation/repair works 
13. Future development of the designs for the site, coding and 
development going forward, must adhere to the Heritage Design 
principles and Fixed Parameters: Heritage Plan 
14. All Reserved Matters application to be supported by an 
Arboricultural Impact Assessment 
15. Management plan for works for trees identified as being or having 
the potential to be a veteran tree 
16. Landscaping for each phase to be approved 
17. Boundary treatment for each phase to be approved 
18. Levels/contours 
19. Landscape implementation 

Page 5



20. Submission of Habitat Creation and Landscape and Habitat 
Management Plan for areas within building parcels and outside of 
strategic green infrastructure   
21. Submission of detailed designs including proposed locations for the 
proposed on-site wildlife ponds.  
22. Measures for safeguarding the retained ecological habitats across 
the site during the construction and demolition process (if not deleted) 
23. Bird Nesting Season 
24. Provision of proposals for the interpretation of the retained Local 
Wildlife Site 
25. Updated protected species surveys and mitigation method 
statements and biodiversity metrix calculations prior to commencement 
for each phase. 
26. Method Statement of Amphibian Reasonable Avoidance Measures 
for that approved phase 
27. Approval of Lighting Scheme for each phase  
28. Detailed proposals of compensatory hedgerow planting to be 
provided to address impacts of any hedgerow lost to the scheme. 
29. Proposals for the management of public access into the retained 
Local Wildlife Site 
30. Agreement of scheme entered into Great Crested District Level 
Licence Scheme 
31. Incorporation of features to enhance biodiversity  
32. Phase II Ground Investigations and Risk Assessments for each 
phase 
33. Verification Report required for each phase 
34. Approval of a proposal for restricted access from footpaths in the 
open space and ecological areas along the western boundary with the 
A34 
35. Soils shall be pre-tested for contamination and verified for suitability 
for use 
36. Unexpected contamination 
37. No infiltration of surface water drainage into the ground where 
adverse concentrations of land contamination are known or suspected 
38. Compliance with FRA 
39. Site wide Surface Water Drainage Scheme to be approved 
40. For each phase- SUDS Drainage Management Plan to be 
approved  
41. Foul and surface water shall be drained on separate systems. 
42. Park & Ride provision before occupation of 150 dwelling houses 
43. Provision of bus service between Handforth & Wilmslow 
44. Access Strategy for Dairy House Lane to be agreed 
45. The submitted Travel Plan Framework, which is hereby approved, 
shall be implemented in accordance with the submitted timetable 
46. Ultra-Low Emission Boilers for each phase 
47. Electric Vehicle Infrastructure plan for each phase 
48. Covered and secure space/s for cycles, where appropriate 
throughout the development 
49. Noise insulation measures to achieve BS 8233 
50. Approval required for any plant/equipment on premises 

Page 6



51. Approval of opening hours for all commercial, industrial, and retail 
premises. 
52. Approval of external lighting 
53. Approval of kitchen extraction equipment 
54. Demonstrate compliance with Nationally Described Space 
Standards 
55. Character Area Design Codes to be approved for each phase 
56. Code Compliance Statements shall accompany all reserved 
matters applications 
57. Manchester Airport – Aerodrome Safeguarding – reflective surfaces 
58. Manchester Airport – Aerodrome Safeguarding - Wildlife Hazard 
Management Plan for each phase 
59. Dust and smoke control measures 
60. Approval of external materials/finishes 
61. Approval of Sustainable Waste Management Strategy for each 
phase  
62. Removal of PD Rights 
63. Approval of CEMP for each phase.  
64. Approval of Construction Traffic Management Plan (CTMP) 
65. S106 obligations- Council land 
66. S106 Obligations- land in other ownership 
67. Details required to limit traffic speeds in outline areas to 20mph  
68. EA Condition – Unexpected contamination 
69. EA Condition – No piling or penetrative foundations without express 
consent 
70. EA Condition – Infiltration of surface water 
71. EA Condition – Verification report 

 
FULL 
 
1. Three year time limit 
2. Approved Plans 
3. Compliance with mitigation measures set out in the Environmental 
Statement  
4. Approval of Phasing Plan for the development of the Initial Primary 
Works 
5. Approval of detailed scheme for any works to the track/public right of 
way(FP127) where it links between the new bridge over the A34 (to the 
east) and Hall Road (to  
the west)  
6. Tree protection in vicinity of Bridge 
7. Submission of Habitat Management and Monitoring Plan for the 
Handforth Dean Meadow and Ponds Local Wildlife Site to put site under 
management at the time of the initial site infrastructure works  
8. Submission of detailed design for wildlife underpasses 
9. Approval of CEMP for IPIW 
10. Details of replacement wildlife ponds 
11. Amphibian avoidance measures if needed 
12. Agreement of scheme entered into Great Crested District Level 
Licence Scheme 

Page 7



13. Updated protected species surveys and mitigation method statements 
and biodiversity metrix calculations prior to commencement for each 
phase. 
14. Bird Nesting Season 
15. Approval of Lighting Scheme for each phase  
16. Detailed proposals of compensatory hedgerow planting to be provided 
to address impacts of any hedgerow lost to the scheme. 
17. Remediation Options and Strategy/None 
18. Soils shall be pre-tested for contamination and verified for suitability for 
use 
19. Notwithstanding the submitted plans levels for the Country Park to be 
agreed together with landscaping of the same 
20. Notwithstanding the submitted plans landscaping details of the A34 
Bridge and details/finishes of the bridge design" 
21. Detailed Landscape and Planting Scheme to be agreed 
22. Boundary treatments 
23. Programme of archaeological work to be agreed 
24. Remediation Options and Strategy 
25. Management of bore holes 
26. Verification Report required  
27. No works on the main development site to take place within 100m of 
the Diary House Farm (Listed Building) site prior to the completion of the 
stabilisation/repair works 
28. Scheme for Sustainable Urban Drainage Systems (SUDS) of the IPIW 
area/full approval, 
29. Levels as approved unless otherwise agreed  
30. Foul and surface water shall be drained on separate systems. 
31. Manchester Airport – Aerodrome Safeguarding – reflective surfaces 
32. Wildlife Hazard Management Plan  
33. Dust and smoke control measures 
34. S106 Obligations -Council owned land 
35. Notwithstanding road designs- measures to be designed to limit 
speeds to 20mph 
 
 

3. Approved the amended list of s106 requirements and triggers as 
follows- 

  
 
 

S106 Amount Trigger 

Submission of Strategic Green  
Infrastructure Strategy 
  

 Commencement of development 

Submission of Strategic Green  
Infrastructure and  
common areas Interim management  
and Maintenance plans 
 

 Commencement of development 

Submission of Community  Prior to commencement of 

Page 8



management 
and maintenance plan for  
common areas and strategic 
green infrastructure 

development outside of the 
strategic green infrastructure and 
initial preparation and 
infrastructure works 
 

Strategic green and common areas  
outside of or not attached to building  
parcels  
 

 Provision of - Prior to the 
commencement of development 
outside of the strategic green 
infrastructure and initial 
preparation and infrastructure 
works 
 
transfer to management body – 
prior to occupation of the 
development 
 

Strategic green and common areas  
attached to or part of phased building  
parcels 
 

 Provision of - On a phased basis 
occupation of 50% units in the 
phase  
 
transfer to management body 
and maintenance in perpetuity- 
On a phased basis occupation of 
75% of the units in the phase 
 

Transfer to management body 
and maintenance in perpetuity  
of the Handforth Dean Meadow and  
Ponds Local Wildlife Site 
 

 prior to occupation of the 
development 

Ecological areas that form part of the  
phased building parcels 
 

 Provision of- On a phased basis 
occupation of 50% units in the 
phase  
 
transfer to management body 
and maintenance in perpetuity - 
on a phased basis, occupation of 
75% of the units in the phase 
 

Off-site ecological mitigation  £5,943,664 Lump sum prior to  
commencement and then  
annual maintenance sum 
   

Education (primary/secondary/SEN) £14,661,362 50% prior to Commencement 
of a unit then 50% Prior to 
occupation of 300th unit 
 

Education -provision of school site  Prior to commencement of  
Dwellings 
 

Page 9



Village Hall/village centre/ 
employment uses-provision of and  
transfer to management body 
 

 Prior to disposal of 1000th unit 

Affordable Housing 
 

30% Prior to sale or let of 50% market 
houses 
 

Highway improvement works 
 

£5,047,000 Prior to occupation of 300 units 

Highways - Hall Moss Lane £387,522 Prior to commencement of 
development 
 

Highways – Poynton bypass 
 

£4,661,192 Occupation of the 150th unit 

Highways - Pathways and cycleways 
 

£500,000 Commencement of development 

Highways – Travel plan monitoring 
 

£10,000 Commencement of development 

Public Open Space in housing areas 
 

 Provision of - Occupation of 50% 
of  
the units in the phase 
 
Transfer to management  
body and maintenance in  
perpetuity  - Occupation of 75%  
of the units in the phase 
 

Allotments/Community Orchard- 
Provision and transfer to  
management body 
 

 Prior to disposal of 1000th unit 

Indoor and outdoor sports facilities    £1,719,987 50% prior to occupation of any  
Units and 50% prior to 
occupation 
of 750th unit 
 

Healthcare - Handforth £1,530,015 Prior to occupation of any units 
 

 
 

4. In the event of any changes being needed to the wording of the 
Committee’s decision (such as to delete, vary or add 
conditions/informatives/planning obligations or reasons for 
approval/refusal) prior to the decision being issued, the Head of 
Planning has delegated authority to do so in consultation with the 
Chairman of the Strategic Planning Board, provided that the 
changes do not exceed the substantive nature of the Committee’s 
decision. 

 
 

Page 10



 
 
 

The meeting commenced at 10.00 am and concluded at 11.30 am 
 

Councillor B Puddicombe (Chair) 
 

 
 
 

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank



 
OFFICIAL 

 
   Application No: 22/0872M 

 
   Location: Land between Junctions 7 and 8 of the M56 

 
   Proposal: Erection of a Motorway Service Area (MSA), demolition of all existing 

buildings except for the retention and conversion of one residential 
building (existing farmhouse) and the part retention and conversion of the 
Eastern Barn for MSA operational purposes, including associated access 
and buildings (Amenity Building, MSA Hotel and Fuel Filling Station 
including photovoltaics and ancillary structures), Service Yard, parking for 
all categories of vehicle (including electric vehicle charging), open space, 
landscaping and planting, drainage, vehicular circulation, pedestrian and 
cycle links (including diversion of cycle track) and earthworks/enabling 
works. 
 

   Applicant: 
 

Tatton Services Ltd 

   Expiry Date: 
 

08-Jul-2022 

 

SUMMARY 
 
The proposed Motorway Service Area (MSA) is inappropriate development in the Green Belt, 
which reduces openness and encroaches into the countryside.  Whilst there will be some 
localised harm to the open rural character of the site, the visual effects are tempered by the 
position of the site surrounded by the Strategic Road Network (SRN) and proposed 
landscaping.  The design approach for the development to reflect a modern farmstead is a 
positive aspect of the proposal, and adequate open space is provided having regard to the 
location, type and scale of development. 
 
There will some relatively limited loss of trees and parts of hedgerows that are considered to 
contribute to one or more of the amenity, biodiversity, landscape character or historic character 
of the area.  But replacement planting and an overall net gain in hedgerows and habitats will 
mitigate for these losses.  There is no significant impact upon the statutory designated site of 
Rostherne Mere Ramsar and SSSI or the non-statutory designated site of Yarwood Heath 
Covert Local Wildlife Site, and no significant impact upon protected species.  However, 13ha 
of Best and Most Versatile (BMV) (Grade 2) agricultural land will be lost to the development, 
which weighs against the proposal.   
 
The development will cause little or no harm to the settings of the designated heritage assets, 
including the Scheduled Monument of Watch Hill motte and bailey, nearby Conservation Areas 
and the Grade II* Registered Parks and Gardens of Dunham Massey and Tatton Park. There 
is the potential for a greater level of harm to the be caused to non-designated heritage assets 
Yarwood Heath Farmhouse/barns through loss of fabric/built form and changes to its setting 
and the change in character from agricultural to an operational MSA.  However, the substantial 
retention of these buildings as focal points of the development is another positive aspect, with 
the scheme putting the historic farm group being back into active use and saved from 
dereliction.  An archaeological watching brief will be secured by condition. 

Page 13 Agenda Item 5



 
OFFICIAL 

 
Subject to appropriate mitigation and conditions, the traffic and transport impacts of the 
development proposal can be satisfactorily assimilated into the highway network.  
Improvements relate to the Bowdon roundabouts, including a TOUCAN crossing over the slip 
road, and the diversion and upgrading of the existing Cycletrack through the site, along 
Yarwood Heath Lane.  No issues are raised with regard to the HS2 safeguarded areas. 
 
In terms of the impact on town centres, there are no sequentially preferable sites for the MSA, 
and given the relative health of the identified centres and limited trade diversion, it is considered 
that the proposals will not result in a significant adverse impact on any nearby centres, subject 
to conditions controlling the amount and use of floorspace. 
 
The proposed new buildings will achieve at least 10% of their predicted annual energy 
consumption from renewable or low carbon sources and reduce building regulated carbon 

emissions (kg CO₂/m²) by 50% compared to Part L of the Building Regulations (December 
2021) for a building heated by natural gas.  However, 10% of the entire development’s energy 
consumption will not be from renewable or low carbon sources due to the very substantial 
energy requirement of the proposed 96 EV chargers.  The EV chargers do however contribute 
to an overall reduction in carbon emissions by their very nature. 
 
There is considered to be neutral or acceptable impacts upon matters relating to contaminated 
land, controlled waters, noise, air quality, living conditions, flood risk and drainage subject to 
relevant conditions. 
 
Both the National Planning Policy Framework and Circular 01/2022, confirm that: "The primary 
function of roadside services should be to support the safety and welfare of the road user".  
Circular 01/2022 states that the maximum distance between signed motorway service areas 
(MSAs) should be 28 miles.  On this basis the applicant has submitted a Gap Analysis report 
with the application which identifies the gaps exceeding 28 miles between MSAs, along routes 
using the SRN involving part or all of the M56 between the M6 and Manchester, where this 
route on the SRN is either the shortest route or a reasonable alternative route.  20 gaps in MSA 
provision have been identified on 10 routes that exceed the 28-mile distance.  Gaps range from 
30.3 miles to 52.8 miles 8 further gaps were identified in provision for HGVs due to the lack of 
HGV parking at Knutsford.  The proposed MSA would remove 9 of the identified gaps and 
reduce the remaining gaps.  The proposed location of the MSA therefore makes a significant 
contribution towards highway safety and the wellbeing of users of the SRN in this location by 
removing or reducing all of the 20 identified gaps.   
  
Lymm Truckstop was disregarded in the applicant’s Gap Analysis Report as it is not a signed 
MSA.  This appears to be due to its parking capacity.  However, Lymm is still a material 
consideration as it does provide a facility for road users to stop and take a break during their 
journey on both the M6 and M56.  The car parking capacity at Lymm is identified in a current 
planning application (with Warrington Council) to extend it and change to a dual use MSA from 
M56 and Truckstop from M6, as 316 spaces.  The MSA proposals at Lymm increase this to 
628, which gives an indication of the existing shortfall and this capacity limits the weight to be 
afforded to it in highway safety terms.  The application has a holding recommendation from 
National Highways who have raised a number of concerns regarding the data that supports the 
application, but they also object to the dual status of a MSA from the M56 and a Truckstop from 
the M6.  The application is therefore stalled, and there is no indication of the concerns being 

Page 14



 
OFFICIAL 

addressed in a timely manner.  The application therefore also attracts very limited weight at this 
time.  There are not considered to be any preferable alternative sites for the MSA. 
 
There are a range of socio-economic benefits arising from the proposal including significant job 
creation during construction and operation, and specific benefits to the local economy.  The 
applicant is also committing to a target of 15% of the value of all goods and services used 
during construction will be sourced from individual and businesses within a 10 miles radius of 
the site.  In addition, they intend to partner with at least 50 businesses within a radius of 30 
miles of the site, during operation.  A local employment and training agreement is also 
proposed.  A Tourist Information Area will be provided within the site.  These are all significant 
benefits arising from the proposal. 
 
Overall, the identified benefits of the proposed development are considered to clearly outweigh 
the harm to the Green Belt by reason of inappropriateness and the other identified harm in this 
case.  Very special circumstances are therefore considered to exist. 
 
 
SUMMARY RECOMMENDATION 
 
Approve subject to a s106 agreement, conditions and referral to the Secretary of State 
 

 
 
DESCRIPTION OF SITE AND CONTEXT 
 
The application site is a 15.78ha site and comprises an existing farmstead at Yarwood Heath 
Farm and associated buildings of approximately 2,800sqm, which are accessed from Yarwood 
Heath Lane. The complex comprises a range of buildings including barns and a red brick 
farmhouse. An avenue of trees lines the driveway to the farmhouse. The site also contains 
grazing land which surrounds the existing farm buildings. 
 
The site is located at junctions 7 and 8 of the M56 at the junction with the A556, and is 
surrounded by these major highways.  The site is bordered by the A556 to the west and the 
M56 to the south, with associated slip roads on and off these roads forming either part of the 
site or the site’s boundaries.  Immediately to the west of the site is an area of woodland, known 
as Yarwood Heath Covert, which is a Local Wildlife Site (LWS) comprising woodland and 
ponds. The nearest statutory ecological designation is Rostherne Mere Ramsar, Site of Special 
Scientific Interest (SSSI) and National Nature Reserve (NNR), which is located approximately 
400m south of the site boundary, on the other side of the M56. 
 
Adjacent to the south east boundary of the site, between the slip roads of the M56, there is a 
triangular area of woodland, and roadside planting lines the embankments to Yarwood Heath 
Lane as it rises to cross the motorway.  Access to Yarwood Heath Lane is currently restricted 
for vehicular traffic due to the presence of gates at either end, and provides local farm access 
only.  Yarwood Heath Lane is a designated cycle track, which has the status of a Public Right 
of Way.  
 
There are a number of designated heritage assets within the wider vicinity of the application 
site. These include the Grade II* Registered Park and Garden of Dunham Massey and the 

Page 15



 
OFFICIAL 

Grade II* Registered Park and Garden of Tatton Park to the south east of the site boundary. 
The Scheduled Ancient Monument (SAM) of Watch Hill Motte and Bailey Castle is located within 
1km of the site boundary to the north.  
 
The site is located within the Green Belt and the Bollin Valley Local Landscape Designation 
Area (LLDA) as identified in the Cheshire East Local Plan.  The site lies very close to the 
administrative boundary of Trafford Council, within the Parish of Rostherne, with the Parish of 
Little Bollington to the west, and the settlement edge of Bowdon (in Trafford) located 
approximately 650m north east of the application site. 
 
DETAILS OF PROPOSAL  
 
This application seeks full planning permission for the erection of a Motorway Service Area 
(MSA), which includes the demolition of all existing buildings except for the retention and 
conversion of one residential building (existing farmhouse) and the part retention and 
conversion of the eastern barn for MSA operational purposes, including associated access and 
buildings. The proposed new buildings will comprise of an Amenity Building (6292sqm), a MSA 
Hotel (100 bedrooms / 4009sqm.), a Fuel Filling Station (980sqm), and a re-built western barn 
for cycle parking, and ancillary structures).  Additional facilities include a service yard, parking 
for all categories of vehicle (including electric vehicle charging), roof mounted solar 
photovoltaics, open space, landscaping and planting, drainage, vehicular circulation, 
pedestrian and cycle links (including diversion of cycle track) and earthworks/enabling works. 
 
The application is accompanied by an Environmental Statement. 
 
The description of development was amended during the course of the application to allow for 
the retention of the eastern barn. 
 
RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY  
 
None relevant to current proposal.  
 
POLICIES  
 
Cheshire East Local Plan Strategy (CELPS) 
MP1 Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development 
PG1 Overall Development Strategy 
PG2 Settlement Boundaries 
PG3 Green Belt  
PG6 Open Countryside 
PG7 Spatial distribution of development 
SD1 Sustainable development in Cheshire East 
SD2 Sustainable development principles 
IN1 Infrastructure 
IN2 Developer Contributions 
EG1 Economic Prosperity 
EG2 Rural Economy  
EG5 Promoting a Town Centre First Approach to Retail and Commerce 
SE1 Design 

Page 16



 
OFFICIAL 

SE3 Biodiversity and geodiversity 
SE4 The Landscape 
SE5 Trees, Hedgerows and Woodland 
SE7 The historic environment  
SE9 Energy Efficient Development 
SE12 Pollution, Land Contamination and Land Instability 
SE13 Flood risk and Water Management 
CO1 Sustainable Travel and Transport  
CO2 Enabling Business Growth Through Transport Infrastructure 
CO4 Travel Plans and Transport Assessments 
 
Site Allocations & Development Policies Document (SADPD) 
GEN1 Design Principles 
GEN2 Security at crowded places 
GEN5 Aerodrome safeguarding 
ENV1 Ecological network core areas 
ENV2 Ecological Implementation 
ENV3 Landscape Character 
ENV5 Landscaping 
ENV6 Trees, hedgerows and woodland implementation 
ENV7 Climate change 
ENV12 Air Quality 
ENV14 Light pollution 
ENV16 Surface water management and flood risk 
ENV17 Protecting water resources 
HER1 Heritage assets 
HER5 Registered parks and gardens 
HER7 non-designated heritage assets 
HER8 Archaeology 
RUR5 Best and most versatile agricultural land 
RUR8 Visitor accommodation outside of settlement boundaries 
RET3 Sequential and impact tests 
RET5 Restaurants, cafés, pubs and hot food takeaways 
INF1 Cycleways, bridleways and footpaths 
INF3 Highway safety and access 
INF9 Utilities 
REC3 Open space implementation 
 
Neighbourhood Plan 
There is no neighbourhood plan covering the application site. 
 
OTHER MATERIAL POLICY CONSIDERATIONS  
 
National Planning Policy Framework (the Framework)  
National Planning Practice Guidance 
CEC Design Guide 
National Design Guide 
Cheshire East Local Landscape Designation Review 2018 
Landscape Character Assessment 2018 

Page 17



 
OFFICIAL 

Draft Sustainable Drainage Systems SPD 
DfT Circular 01/2022 - Strategic road network and the delivery of sustainable development 
Trafford Local Plan  
 
CONSULTATIONS  
 
There have been two rounds of public consultation – the first in March 2022, when the 
application was first submitted, and the second in May 2023, following the receipt of revised 
plans / additional information.  The most recent comment from each consultee is summarised 
below: 
 
Gardens Trust – Do not wish to comment on the proposals (June 2023) 
 
Cheshire Gardens Trust – No comments to make (April 2022) 
 
Historic England – No objection (June 2023) 
 
Archaeological Planning Advisory Service – No objection subject to condition relating to a 
programme of archaeological work (March 2022) 
 
Environment Agency – No objection subject to conditions relating to fuel tanks and surface 
water (September 2023) 
 
United Utilities – No objection subject to conditions relating to drainage (May 2022) 
 
Lead Local Flood Authority – No objection – concur with EA comments 
 
Natural England – No objection - the proposed development will not have significant adverse 
impacts on designated sites. (September 2023) 
 
Cheshire Wildlife Trust - Holding objection due to an outstanding request for additional 
information in relation to the biodiversity net-gain (BNG) assessment (May 2022) 
 
National Trust – No objection (May 2022) 
 
Cheshire Constabulary – No comments received 
 
HS2 Ltd. – No objection subject to condition relating to access for HS2 vehicles (June 2023) 
 
Cadent Gas – Advise applicant to register development with LinesearchbeforeUdig. 
 
National Highways – No objection subject to conditions relating to highways works (May 2023) 
 
Strategic Transport Manager – No objections subject to conditions relating to highways works 
(August 2022) 
 
Public Rights of Way – No objection (April 2022) 
 

Page 18



 
OFFICIAL 

Manchester Airport Safeguarding – Object to jetty over open water due to potential to feed / 
attract birds.  Conditions recommended relating to flight safety (June 2023) 
 
Environmental Protection – No objection subject to conditions relating to noise and 
contaminated land (April 2022) 
 
(Former) Cllr Leach – Supports the application (May 2022) 
 
Warrington Council – No comments received 
 
Trafford Council – Object on the grounds that it would be inappropriate development in the 
Green Belt, harming openness and visual amenity, and would harm the setting of the Watch 
Hill Scheduled Ancient Monument and there would be no very special circumstances that would 
outweigh the harm to the Green Belt and other harm.  Also raise concern about the potential 
impact on Altrincham, Hale and Bowdon centres, and the impact of additional traffic on roads 
within Trafford (January 2023).  In the event the application is approved, conditions are 
recommended relating to landscaping the north side of site, submission of a travel plan, 
submission of a construction method statement, and restrictions on retail floorspace. 
 
Millington Parish Council – Support the proposal, but seek assurance that Bowdon sewerage 
works has enough capacity (April 2022) 
 
Little Bollington Parish Meeting – Object on grounds of inappropriate development in the 
Green Belt, no access from motorway network, increased traffic on local roads, retail impact on 
nearby towns, flood risk, light and noise pollution, no need for MSA, no case for hotel, and can 
be accessed from local roads as well as motorway (May 2022) 
 
Rostherne Parish Council – Support the application (May 2022) 
 
 
OTHER REPRESENTATIONS  
 
During the two rounds of public consultation (March 2022 and May 2023) approximately 150 
letters of representation were received from local residents, local groups / organisations 
(including Bowdon Conservation Group, High Legh Parish Council, High Legh primary School, 
CPRE and Little Bollington with Agden Community Council) and other interested parties 
objecting to the proposal on the following grounds:   

 Inappropriate development in Green Belt – vastly greater in scale than existing 
development 

 Intrusion into countryside and Area of Special County Value 

 Destruction of trees (including ancient woodland) 

 Loss of habitats 

 Loss of wildlife – already declined due to A556 link road 

 Additional traffic, congestion and adverse impact on highway safety 

 Roundabout system not designed for use by HGVs  

 No EV charging points proposed 

 Cycle stores only for workers – dangerous cycle route 

 Increased air pollution (proposed clean air zone adjacent to the site) 

Page 19



 
OFFICIAL 

 Light pollution 

 No gaps in MSA provision / no need for MSA at this location – others in area: Lymm, 
Knutsford, Chester , Saughall, and others on M6, M61 and M62 -a all less than 28 miles 
away 

 At junction 6 (less than 4 miles away) there are also extensive retail, fuel, food and hotel 
services including the Manchester Airport Marriot Hotel and the Holiday Inn Express. 

 Petrol station and Waitrose shop in at Bowdon Service Station on the A56, less than 0.5 
miles away 

 M56 is 38 miles long and there are three sets of services already 

 No need for further retail food outlets 

 Adequate hotel accommodation in local area 

 Altrincham (just a couple of miles away from this site) already has an award-winning 
market filled with local artisan producers 

 Could harm local businesses 

 People are attracted by the retail facilities on offer so that the service stations become 
'destinations' in their own right and not places to rest/refuel/refresh – increased traffic on 
local roads 

 Impact on local centres – Knutsford, Hale and Altrincham 

 Most food supplies to this truck stop food hall will be imported from outside the area. 

 Minimum wage jobs created.  Employees unlikely to come from local area.  No 
commercial benefit to area. No need for low paid jobs. 

 Altrincham is not an area of high unemployment – many similar jobs available locally 

 Where is north cycle link from Trafford to Cheshire? 

 Infrastructure does not support a site of this size 

 Westmorland’s Tebay site has different locational characteristics to this site 

 Within River Bollin Flood plain, which has flooded regularly in recent years 

 Impact on local heritage, ecology and landscape designations 

 No public transport nearby, so staff would have to travel by car 

 Most drivers on the M56 will have started or be finishing their journeys in Greater 
Manchester, 10 miles away, or Manchester airport, 4 miles away.  No need to stop at 
this site. 

 Eastbound traffic would have a circuitous route to leave the M56 and arrive at the 
services, via 2 roundabouts. 

 Hotel proposal made redundant for above reasons, and truck drivers have sleeper cabs 

 HS2 will pass close to one side of the proposed development with an increasingly busy 
M56 and A556 on the other sides of the proposed site. hardly the peaceful idyllic 
countryside stopover 

 Contrary to climate change objectives 

 Contravenes the recent Environment Act which sets targets for restoring  
Nature 

 The list of 'neighbours' who have been formally contacted with regards this proposal is 
alarmingly small.  

 The site could be used in more harmonious way for leisure / local community uses 

 The HS2 link will present no end of further disruption on the adjacent roads during its 
building 

 The Tatton Estate, of which this was originally a part, was left to the people of Cheshire 
with the intention of providing a rural amenity for the local population in perpetuity. 

Page 20



 
OFFICIAL 

 SMART motorway constructed to ease congestion, and this will now increase congestion 

 Support smaller version of development 

 Site is large compared to other MSAs and is planned as a general retail outlet - three 
times the size of the whole of both sides of the Tebay M6 site or the M5 Gloucester site 

 Easy access other than from motorway 

 Existing road surfaces are already inadequate due to substandard council maintenance 
and this service area would simply accelerate road and environmental deterioration 
further. 

 Will harm the amenities of nearby occupiers of residential properties because of the 
overbearing and dominating effect of new buildings, environmental disturbance and 
pollution; and traffic generation, access and parking. 

 A previous proposal for a warehousing facility in a similar location was not progressed 
for similar reasons having a huge negative environmental impact being close to 
Rostherne Nature reserve and Dunham Massey park. The additional HGV traffic, light 
and noise pollution plus safety issues around the same junction were all factors in this 
proposal not progressing. 

 Proposal fails to contribute positively to the borough’s quality of place and local identity 

 Overdevelopment of site 

 Contrary to national and local policies and guidance. 

 4 million customers per year must include a large number of new journeys and cannot 
only be visits from motorway travellers breaking their journeys. 

 The ‘gaps’ in the motorway network unserved by a MSA which form the basis of the 
applicant’s argument of need are, in our view, in the main contrived journeys between 
points on the motorway network around Manchester.  

 No evidence is provided as to the volume of traffic making these particular journeys 

 Alternative sites considered by applicant are only accessible from motorway network 

 Such sites are clearly preferred in principle by Highways England because there is less 
risk of their becoming destination retail operations in their own right 

 Redevelop Knutsford services instead 

 The provision of new services within 6 miles of J9 is against government 
recommendations. 

 Increased litter 

 At a time when the UK is trying to reduce carbon emissions through decarbonising road 
transport building new infrastructure designed to support diesel and petrol road transport 
seems counter-intuitive. 

 Significant risk of ground pollution from the underground fuel storage for diesel and 
petrol. 

 Vast majority of the traffic on the M56 is local traffic to whom an MSA will be unnecessary 

 Extra mileage for vehicles using lengthy slip roads: 
o M56 eastbound – off 1 mile, on 1.5 miles 
o M56 westbound – off 1.2 miles, on 1 mile 

 Area south of Altrincham has already lost considerable amounts of Green Belt from the 
development of the airport and increasing business park developments 

 The site serves a number of Green Belt functions of preventing sprawl, countryside 
encroachment 

 Government has to limit greenhouse gas emissions in line with agreed international 
commitments to combat climate change, there should be no requirement to create 
capacity for increased traffic volumes 

Page 21



 
OFFICIAL 

 Proposal would lead to the diversion of existing Public Rights of Way that have cultural 
and historical associations. 

 Loss of farmland 

 Object to drive through facility on basis that the point of any MSA is to support the safety 
and welfare of the road user. A drive through does not support that. 

 Arguments based on the competence of the proposed operator and quality offered at 
Tebay and the M5 operations are immaterial. 

 Effects will impact all areas nearby and most seriously outside Cheshire East 

 No benefit to rural community 

 Revised proposals do not address issues 

 If permission is granted to extend Lymm it would permit them to signpost the facility as 
a MSA 

 Impact of extending Lymm is far less than the creation of a new facility at Tatton 

 Access is not sufficient as current junction is poorly designed and not capable of dealing 
with volume of traffic 

 Gap analysis omits Warrington MSA at J11 of M62 allowed on appeal in 2022 and Lymm 
Roadside Facilities located at the M6/M56 junction on the basis that it is not a MSA 

 Only 4 defined policy gaps identified by NH during Warrington MSA appeal, not 20 gaps 
as suggested by the applicant 

 Gaps filled by Warrington scheme 

 Convoluted route has been used under the pretence of ‘route choice’  

 purely to create gaps in the SRN 

 Lymm is signed for trucks from the M6, but does not prevent the use of the site by cars. 
It is signed as ‘services’ from the M56. It is therefore available for all road users and 
serves the purpose of roadside facilities 

 In 2010 document NH included Lymm under its consideration of spacing in relation to 
motorway service areas 

 The approach of the applicant is incorrect re. para B3 and B4 of Circular 02/2013 (now 
superseded)  

 Applicant states that all such facilities required to meet criteria for MSA signage from 
motorway.  May be qualifying criteria for MSA but cannot be used to disregard existing 
roadside facilities when considering gaps. 

 Lymm services functions very much the same as a MSA 

 Lymm motorway signage does not indicate that cars and other vehicles cannot use it, 
but instead indicates its suitability for HGVs. 

 In comparison the M6 J38 Truckstop located further north is not open to non-HGVs 
vehicles and the motorway signage uses the “recognised” black signage for HGV 
facilities to clearly indicate that the truckstop is for lorries only 

 The existing facilities at Lymm already fill the gaps that have been identified by the 
Applicant bar the M6 Knutsford MSA to M62 Birch MSA route in each direction 

 In reality, only two gaps that would be removed by the proposed Tatton MSA, with these 
being: M6 Knutsford MSA to M62 Birch MSA route in each direction – this gap is only 
marginally above (3 miles) the recommended 28 miles 

 Circular does not use the word ‘need’ for a MSA and it is not an ‘absolute’ policy on the 
provision of services. Instead, it sets a recommendation for spacing based on road safety 
advice. While a gap on the existing network of more than 28 miles might represent a 
policy preference for there to be an MSA on a particular section of the SRN, it does not 
mandate that an MSA must be provided. 

Page 22



 
OFFICIAL 

 Details missing from Transport Assessment 

 Applicant’s characterisation of Lymm is at best incomplete and at worst disingenuous 

 Signage arrangements do not detract from fact that Lymm acts as a vital facility for users 
of the SRN 

 By omitting Lymm Services from their Gap Analysis Report, the Applicant distorts the 
provision of motorway services within the locality and, in turn, overstates the importance 
that the proposed development at Tatton 

 Gaps that do exist are only 3 miles beyond the recommended 28-mile gap specified in 
the Circular. While the existence of these gaps is not disputed, their context in respect 
to the presence of services only a short distance beyond them should not be ignored.  
(Doncaster appeal supports this) 

 Application to enhance Lymm services currently under consideration by Warrington 
Council.  This includes limited incursion into Green Belt compared to Tatton proposal 

 
27 letters of support have been received from local residents, local groups / organisations 
(including North Cheshire Chamber of Commerce, South Cheshire Chamber of Commerce, 
Cheshire Country Land & Business Association, Cheshire Business Leaders and the Economic 
Development Service of CEC), companies who currently work with Westmorland (based in 
Manchester, Bolton, Lymm and Stockport), and other interested parties identifying the following 
points in support of the proposal: 

 Cycle and pedestrian routes have been well considered  

 Water features should be incorporated.  

 Great opportunity to create something positive and enhance the area. 

 Extension to the walking/cycling network needed, either with a new bridge across the 
Bollin to Bow Lane, or a protected walking/cycling route alongside the A56 to allow more 
cycling between Trafford and Cheshire 

 In favour of Tebay ethos – thoughtfully designed with sustainability in mind 

 Contribute to local economy and only use local suppliers 

 Site already landlocked by multiple roads 

 Badly needed EV charging points provided – should be rapid chargers 

 The development will provide essential economic oxygen to the area at a time when 
boosting economic prosperity is vital. 325 jobs will be created and indirectly boost other 
existing businesses with an expected Gross Value Add in excess of £9m per annum. 

 130 local growers, producers and suppliers will provide fresh produce. Primary and 
secondary schools will have a better understanding of the ‘farm to fork’ ethos, and 
tourism will promote the wider region 

 Incorporates low embodied carbon buildings, water management, enhanced biodiversity 
and renewable energy to meet the needs of electric vehicles 

 Sympathetic to local environment 

 Significant local employment 

 Sell and promote locally sourced produce 

 Would enhance attractiveness of Cheshire nationally 

 Would retain economic benefits of the facility with the north west and Cheshire in 
particular 

 Will provide an outlet to showcase local produce 

 Will bring significant economic, social, environmental and sustainability benefits. 

Page 23



 
OFFICIAL 

 If the application is successful, the economic development service will work with 
Westmorland Group, to put in place a supply chain development programme to give local 
producers an opportunity to supply local produce within the Tatton Services farmshop 
 

 
10 letters making the following general observations on the proposal have also been received 
from local residents and interested parties: 

 There needs to be effective linkage between the B5569 (de-trunked A556) and Trafford 
(via Bow Green) for cycles. The A56 is horrendous for cycles and there is not a usable 
traffic free route south from here.  

 Opportunity to join things up – walking / cycling route to Bowden should be provided 

 The bend in the shared cycle pedestrian path at the western end of the subway is quite 
sharp considering that it will be at the bottom of a gradient 

 The farm accesses are shown as kerbed as if they are side roads. The pedestrian and 
cycle path should be continuous with a kerb or ramp between it and the main 
carriageway. 

 A cycle route using the proposed new path through Tatton Services between the 
boundary with Trafford and Tatton, Knutsford or Northwich should be included in the 
Council's LCWIP 

 Given the site is principally set up for the servicing of people travel by motor vehicles, a 
cycle route would be a good acknowledgment of the need to reduce reliance on carbon 
exploit modes of transport and allow green transport alternatives to sit in harmony with 
this development 

 Should be a requirement for hydrogen fuel station 

 Cycle access to Cherry Tree Lane is required 

 Can public transport go to the site? 

 Have sufficient observations been made at peak traffic times? 

 Should we have electric bike charging too? 

 Concern about in increased traffic in an already congested area 

 

OFFICER APPRAISAL 
 
Green Belt 
 
The application site lies within the Green Belt.  National and local policies attach great 
importance to Green Belts.  The fundamental aim of Green Belt policy is to prevent urban sprawl 
by keeping land permanently open.  The two essential characteristics of Green Belts are their 
openness and their permanence (paragraph 137 NPPF).   
 
Green Belts serve the following five purposes (paragraph 138 NPPF):  
a) to check the unrestricted sprawl of large built-up areas; 
b) to prevent neighbouring towns merging into one another; 
c) to assist in safeguarding the countryside from encroachment; 
d) to preserve the setting and special character of historic towns; and 
e) to assist in urban regeneration, by encouraging the recycling of derelict and 
other urban land. 
 

Page 24



 
OFFICIAL 

To achieve this, there are restrictions on the types of development which may be carried out.  
These are listed as exceptions to inappropriate development in the Green Belt within 
paragraphs 149 and 150 of the Framework and within CELPS policy PG 3.   
 
Development not falling within one of the listed exceptions is defined as inappropriate 
development.  Paragraph 147 of the Framework confirms that inappropriate development is by 
definition harmful to the Green Belt and should not be approved except in very special 
circumstances.   
 
Paragraph 148 directs Local Planning Authorities to give substantial weight to any harm to the 
Green Belt.  It confirms that very special circumstances will not exist unless the potential harm 
to the Green Belt by reason of inappropriateness, and any other harm resulting from the 
proposal, is clearly outweighed by other considerations.  
  
Whilst “local transport infrastructure which can demonstrate a requirement for a Green Belt 
location” is listed as one exception to inappropriate development in paragraph 150 c) of the 
Framework and in policy PG3 of the CELPS, the applicant accepts that the proposal is not local 
infrastructure, and this exception does not apply.  None of the other exceptions listed in 
paragraphs 149 and 150 of the Framework and/or in policy PG3 are relevant to the current 
proposal.  The proposed MSA is therefore inappropriate development in the Green Belt. 
 
Other Green Belt harm 
 
Openness 
The openness of the Green Belt is one of its two essential characteristics.  There is no statutory 
definition of openness. The courts (for example, Timmins v Gedling BC and Westerleigh [2014] 
EWHC 654 (Admin), John Turner v Secretary of State for Communities and Local Government 
and East DC [2016] EWCA Civ 466, Samuel Smith Old Brewery (Tadcaster) and ors v North 
Yorkshire County Council [2020] UKSC 3)  have identified a number of matters which may need 
to be considered when assessing the impact of a proposal on openness.  These include, but 
are not limited to:  

- Openness is capable of having both spatial and visual aspects: the visual impact of the 
proposal may be relevant, as could its volume;  

- The duration of the development, and its remediabilty  
- The degree of activity likely to be generated, such as traffic generation  

 
The existing buildings on the site are a consolidated group located in the northern part of the 
site and comprise a total floorspace of approximately 2,800sqm, with the remainder of the site 
being predominantly open agricultural land.  The tallest of the existing buildings is the 
farmhouse, which is to be retained, and has a height of 8.7m.  The existing barns have ridge 
heights around 6.5m.  The proposed development comprises a total floorspace of 11,834sqm 
with the remainder of the site being largely dedicated to car parking primarily occupying the 
southern half of the site, and some staff parking to the north of the proposed buildings. The 
proposed new buildings would range in height between 8.3m (fuel barn) and 11.2m (hotel).   
 
It should be noted that these heights have been confirmed with the applicant and are marginally 
lower than those stated in the ES.  However, a Parameters Plan approach was used to assess 
heights, whereby building zones were identified, which are set out below. 

 Parameter Plan Building Zones 1 (hotel & amenity building) = Maximum of 12m   

Page 25



 
OFFICIAL 

 Parameter Plan Building Zone 2 (fuel barn) = Maximum of 9m 
These parameter building heights are in excess of the heights of the proposed buildings shown 
on the submitted plans and, therefore, the ES provides a robust assessment of the impacts of 
the buildings.  
 
By virtue of the increase in built development resulting from the MSA compared to the existing 
farmstead development, there will be a significant reduction in openness in both visual and 
spatial terms by reason of the increased quantum of development, the degree of activity likely 
to be generated by the MSA and the permanence of the development.  
 
Green Belt Purposes 
Given the scale and location of the development compared to the existing, the proposal will 
also conflict with one of the purposes of the Green Belt through encroachment into the 
countryside.  The proposed development will occupy a much larger footprint to that which 
currently exists on the site, encroaching into areas where there is currently no development.  
No other conflict with Green Belt purposes is considered to result from the proposed MSA. 
 
The proposed development is therefore inappropriate development in the Green Belt which is 
harmful by definition.  Additional harm results from a significant loss of openness and 
encroachment into the countryside.  Substantial weight should be afforded to the identified harm 
to the Green Belt. 
 
Character and appearance 
 
Design and character 
CELPS policy SD 2 sets out the Sustainable Development Principles for Cheshire East.  It 
states that, amongst other matters, development will be expected to contribute positively to an 
area’s character and identity, creating or reinforcing local distinctiveness in terms of:  
 

- Height, scale, form and grouping  
- Choice of materials  
- External design features  
- Massing of development   
- Relationship to neighbouring properties, street scene and the wider neighbourhood   

 
These principles are also reflected within CELPS policy SE1 and GEN1 of the SADPD which 
deal with design, and Chapter 12 of the Framework.  
 
The scheme has been revised during the course of the application.  It was initially proposed to 
demolish all of the buildings within the Yarwood Heath Farm complex, with the exception of the 
main farmhouse.  This has now been amended so that the farmhouse and its outriggers are 
retained along with the majority of the two-storey eastern barn.  The western barn is to be 
demolished and replaced with a new brick-built cycle store.   
 
The Design & Access statement explains in some detail that the applicant’s overall design 
ambition is to create the feeling of arriving on a farm, rather than another typical MSA, as a 
positive way to break a driver’s journey. 
 

Page 26



 
OFFICIAL 

Typically, MSAs comprise an amenity building, a fuel filling station, and a hotel.  Circular 
01/2022 “Strategic road network and the delivery of sustainable development” sets out the 
minimum requirements for roadside facilities to be eligible for signing from the strategic road 
network (SRN).  These include: 

 Available 24 hours a day 

 2 hours free parking 

 Lighting & CCTV 

 Free toilets / handwashing facilities 

 Shower/washing facilities for HGV drivers 

 Fuel – petrol / diesel / EVC 

 Free telephone for emergency use / wifi and power points 
These requirements largely dictate what is provided within an MSA and in this case these 
facilities are provided for within the proposed amenity building and fuel barn.  A hotel is not 
needed to meet minimum requirements for signing from the SRN, but they are a common 
element of MSAs and do provide an extra facility with some safety and welfare benefits for 
motorway users.  A hotel extends the offer available at MSAs and allows for longer (overnight) 
stops to be taken by motorway users as required.  This is considered to be an additional benefit 
in terms of highway safety. 
 
Policy RUR 8 of the SADPD relates to visitor accommodation outside of settlement boundaries 
and states that certain types of visitor accommodation may be appropriate to a rural area where 
their scale is appropriate to the location and setting, and where there is an identified need for 
the accommodation which cannot be met in nearby settlements because the type of 
accommodation proposed is intrinsically linked with the countryside.  In this case the hotel 
provides an additional facility to the requirements set out in Circular 01/2022 for MSAs, which 
extends the highway safety benefits to motorway users of the MSA and is therefore intrinsically 
linked to the countryside location of the MSA.  The need for the MSA is explored further below 
and if that need is demonstrated, it is considered the proposed hotel will meet the objectives of 
RUR 8. 
 
The scale of the development is also dictated by the requirements set out in Circular 01/2022 
but has also been informed by the applicant’s experience at their other MSAs.  Table 1 below 
shows a comparison between Gloucester Services (southbound) and the application proposals: 
 

 Tatton Services Gloucester Services 
(southbound only) 

Traffic flows (Annual 

Average Daily Traffic flow 
– 2019) 
 

130,863 93,822 

Amenity Building 
Floorspace 
 

6,291sqm 
(including first floor) 

3,650sqm 
(including first floor) 

Amenity Building Height 
 

9.3m 8.9m 

Hotel Building 
Floorspace 

4,009sqm 
(3 floors) 

3,716sqm 
(4 floors) 

Hotel Building Height 
 

11.2m 12.4m 

Table 1: Comparison between Gloucester and proposed Tatton Services 

Page 27



 
OFFICIAL 

 
Inevitably, most of the developed area of a MSA will be devoted to vehicle parking.  The 
minimum parking requirements for MSAs is also set out within Circular 01/2022 and are based 
upon traffic flows (vehicles per day).  The scheme’s parking provision and how this compares 
to the requirements of Circular 01/2022 is set out in Table 2 below:   
 
Parking Type Proposed Parking 

Numbers proposed on 
Plans 

Parking Requirements 
in Circular 01/2022 

Car Parking (including for 
hotel) 

655 599 + 30 for hotel = 649 

Disabled Car Parking 
within above provision 
(including for hotel) 

33 30 + 2 for hotel = 32 

HGV 58 58 

Caravan 18 18 

Coach 13 12 

Motorcycle 18 18 

Abnormal load 1 1 

Staff Parking 92 n/a 
Table 2: Parking provision and requirements 

 
The figures in this table show that the proposed parking arrangements meet the requirements 
of Circular 01/2022, without there being significant overprovision. 
 
The overall scale of the development is therefore considered to meet the relevant requirements 
of Circular 01/2022, and whilst the hotel is not a requirement for a MSA it is a facility that is 
common across most MSAs and brings with it additional highway safety benefits by facilitating 
longer breaks in journeys and is acceptable as part of the wider MSA proposal.   
 
The scale of the development will inevitably result in a significant change to the character and 
appearance of the site.  The nearest key visual receptors are from the eastbound M56 slip road 
as it passes below Yarwood Heath Lane heading north where the road is situated at a similar 
level to the site.  Continuing along the slip road the site then becomes screened by a 
landscaped bund until the approach to Bowden South roundabout, where the level of the road 
rises above the site and becomes visible again.  Panoramic views of the site are available from 
the roundabout, and these views continue from the cycle track along Yarwood Heath Lane.  
 
As noted above, the concept of reinventing the site as a farm is the key theme that the MSA 
proposal is based upon and is a positive aspect of the scheme.  The positioning of the hotel 
and amenity building is intended to wrap around and protect the central space from the wider 
highway environment in terms of visual screening and noise attenuation and create a farmstead 
of buildings around the farmhouse in keeping with the history of the site. 
 
The fuel filling station, which includes a drive thru (coffee shop), is a separate structure located 
towards the south of the site.  The applicant has explained that drive thru facilities are often 
provided as separate buildings in other British MSAs due to their franchised nature. In this case 
the drive thru is incorporated with the fuel filling station to meet the operational requirements of 
the applicant.  Its also reduces the number buildings across the site.  The HGV amenity facility 

Page 28



 
OFFICIAL 

is also included within the fuel barn enabling it to be located within easy access of the HGV 
parking area. 
 
The existing farmhouse on the site will be utilised for the MSA staff, with the re-built western 
barn to be used as a cycle store and the retained eastern barn used for covered seating, a play 
area and storage. 
 
The Council’s design officer has reviewed the proposal and advises that the proposed amenity 
building and hotel are successful in reimagining the established agricultural character in a 
contemporary context. The amenity building has a relatively simple but contemporary form and 
is elevated with timber cladding and rammed earth. The hotel building follows a similar 
approach, although the roof incorporates a split ridge to allow natural ventilation and light into 
the building.  Overall, the textural qualities and down-to-earth nature of the proposed materials 
helps to tie the contemporary design into the agricultural context whilst remaining distinct from 
the existing farm cluster that is retained.  Additionally, the provision of photovoltaic cells on the 
roofs reflects the sustainable approach to design which is a core concept of the scheme. 
 
The proposed amenity building is of a significant scale when compared to the rest of the site, 
however, the retention of the existing farmhouse and the historic barns helps to maintain an 
emphasis on the focal point at the centre of the scheme. This also reduces the potential impact 
on the farmhouse, as the grouping manages to retain some of its agricultural character which 
contributes to the sense of place.  The fuel barn is a lower building compared to the hotel and 
amenity building, but it follows a similar design approach to these other new buildings on the 
site. 
 
The central pedestrian avenue creates a spine which connects the fuel barn in the South to the 
farmyard space in the North.  The central axis will be a tree-lined pathway which will direct 
motorists from their cars to the buildings.  The spine ends in a bridged access over the feature 
swale creating a sense of arrival.  An additional entrance will be provided to serve the eastern 
side of the car park to allow travellers to enter the amenity building directly from the car park.  
There will be significant areas of surface car parking, however the landscape strategy and 
approach to creating SuDS areas does help to reduce the impact of those areas upon the 
character and appearance of the scheme, whilst acknowledging that this level of parking 
provision is necessary for the proposed use as a MSA. The site is already enclosed by the 
surrounding road network, and the landscaping around the edges of the site, both existing and 
proposed, will help to screen it visually within the wider context.   
 
From a design perspective, the retention of the existing eastern barn, and rebuilding of the 
western barn in a similar form, is a major improvement on the original scheme and helps to 
reinforce the existing character of the farm cluster whilst retaining the courtyard space. 
 
Landscape 
The application site is located within the Bollin Valley Local Landscape Designation Area as 
identified in the Cheshire East Local Plan.  The site is also located within Landscape Character 
Area 10a – Lower Bollin, as identified in the 2018 CEC Landscape Character Assessment.   
 
Policy SE4 of the CELPS notes that the high quality of the built and natural environment is 
recognised as a significant characteristic of the borough. All development should conserve the 
landscape character and quality and should where possible, enhance and effectively manage 

Page 29



 
OFFICIAL 

the historic, natural and man-made landscape features that contribute to local distinctiveness 
of both rural and urban landscapes.  This policy states that in Local Landscape Designation 
Areas (LLDAs), the Council will seek to conserve and enhance the quality of the landscape and 
to protect it from development which is likely to have an adverse effect on its character and 
appearance and setting.  Policy SD2 also includes requirements to respect and, where 
possible, enhance the landscape character of the area. Policy ENV3 of the SADPD reinforces 
this approach in LLDAs, and policy ENV5 sets out requirements for landscaping schemes on 
development proposals. 
 
Chapter 7 of the submitted Environmental Statement (ES) covers landscape and visual issues 
and incorporates a Landscape and Visual Impact Assessment (LVIA) in accordance with best 
practice ‘Guidelines for Landscape and Visual Impact Assessment Third Edition, Landscape 
Institute, and Institute of Environmental Management and Assessment’, (GLVIA 3).  An 
addendum to the Landscape Chapter of the ES was also provided in May 2023.  
 
The original ES makes reference to the Bollin Valley Area of Special County Value (ASCV) 
designated under the former Macclesfield Borough Local Plan.  The addendum picks up the 
point that the SADPD has now superseded the policies in the MBLP, and the Bollin Valley 
ASCV has been replaced by the Bollin Valley LLDA.  
 
There are some minor changes to the extent of the LLDA when compared with the previous 
ASCV, however this relates to the road infrastructure surrounding the site which has been 
constructed since the designation of the ASCV. The replacement of the Bollin Valley ASCV with 
the Bollin Valley LLDA does not change the assessment presented in the original ES. 
 
A study area for landscape and visual effects and Zone of Theoretical Visibility (ZTV) of 3km 
has been adopted in the LVIA and this is reasonable given the potential effects of the scheme.  
Pre-application consultation was carried out with CEC in November/December 2020 regarding 
the methodology, designations, site description, cumulative effects and mitigation and these 
have been broadly incorporated into the proposals and LVIA. 
 
The immediate application site area comprises a number of agricultural fields  
surrounding the farm complex of Yarwood Heath Farm. Two areas of substantial woodland are 
located adjacent to the application site, including Yarwood Heath Covert, which is a Local 
Wildlife Site (LWS). The other area of woodland lies to the south east of the site between the 
two carriageways of the M56 slip road. The surrounding road network serves to contain the 
application site and physically separates it from the wider landscape. 
 
The likely significant effects upon the landscape are summarised below: 
 
Landscape effects 
There would be a loss of mature trees and hedgerows, which are considered further below, but 
the most significant landscape impact would be to Landscape Character Area (LCA) 10A: 
Lower Bollin, within which the site lies.  LCA 10A would be subject to moderate adverse effects, 
which would be ‘significant’ at Construction and Operation Year 1. By Operation Year 15, 
effects would reduce to moderate/minor and ‘not significant’. This assessment is agreed by 
CEC landscape officers. 
 
 

Page 30



 
OFFICIAL 

Visual effects 
The National Trust has stated in consultation that there is no objection in terms of visual impact 
on Dunham Massey, as is stated in the LVIA, which is agreed.  The LVIA correctly states that 
Green Belt is not a landscape designation in its own right and it does not assess the impact 
upon that designation. However, visual aspects of proposed development may affect the visual 
openness of Green Belt designated land. In the case of the proposed development, 
notwithstanding the substantial loss of openness within the site, it appears that the site would 
be largely visually contained, in the long term, and the proposals would be unlikely to affect the 
perception of openness in the surrounding areas. This is due to existing areas of roadside 
woodland planting which would lead to this area being well screened in the future. There would 
be short term effects on the visual openness of the surrounding area until the planting matures.  
The change to the site itself would be significant. 
 
Lighting 
In terms of the effects of lighting upon visual amenity, a range of lighting will be used across 
the site.  The submitted lighting assessment does not provide a detailed lighting design but 
does provide details of typical equipment to be used in different areas of the site.  The main 
access road will be illuminated by 12m high lighting columns, the inner roadways and car park 
areas will have 5m high columns, the service yard will have 7m high columns, and the western 
pedestrian approach to the farmhouse will have 1m high bollard lighting.  The courtyard (and 
associated building access) will also have 1m high bollard lighting, as well as 2.1m high wall 
lights. Finally, the HGV, caravan and coach parking and the fuel station will have 10m high 
lighting columns. 
 
The lighting assessment states that “Due to the presence of existing artificial highway lighting 
to adjacent roundabouts and junctions, it is considered that this localised area is the equivalent 
of an E2 / E3 Zone classification (Suburban,  
medium district brightness – small town centres or suburban locations).”  Whilst it is accepted 
that there is some existing highway lighting within this area, it is very much concentrated on the 
two roundabouts and the links between them.  The slip road and the A556 that border the site 
are not illuminated.  Therefore, other than the illumination of any road signs on the surrounding 
roads, there is no permanent lighting to the south of the roundabouts.  Consequently, there will 
be some visual intrusion by artificial lighting. 
 
Policy ENV14 of the SADPD relates to light pollution and permits lighting schemes subject to it 
being the minimum required for security / safety; light spillage and glare being minimised; 
lighting being energy efficient, and; there being no significant adverse effect individually or 
cumulatively on: residential amenity, pedestrians, cyclists and other road users, the character 
of the area, nature conservation, heritage assets, specialist facilities, and individuals and 
groups. 
 
The information that has been provided with the application does suggest that there will be 
some visual impact upon the local area.  The existing street lighting in the local area is relatively 
limited, however given the presence of this lighting, the position of the site surrounded by the 
strategic road network, the lighting on the site will be seen as an extension to the existing 
illuminated roundabouts / junctions.  As such whilst there will be some adverse impact upon 
visual amenity during hours of darkness, due to artificial lighting being an urban, rather than 
rural, characteristic, this impact would be limited in its extent.  Details of the specific lighting 

Page 31



 
OFFICIAL 

scheme can be dealt with by condition, which will give the council control over further limiting 
the impacts arising from the proposed lighting. 
 
LLDA 
There would be a significant effect on a localised part of the LLDA, in the same way that the 
applicant identifies that LCA 10: Lower Bollin LCA would be affected. The LVIA does not state 
this, explaining instead that the “extent and nature of effects would be limited”. The effect on 
this localised part of the LLDA is therefore underestimated in the LVIA. However, this impact 
would be localised and not affect the wider LLDA, which is visually and physically separated by 
the surrounding road network. This containment would increase as the existing roadside 
planting areas and proposed bund planting mature. 
 
Cumulative effects 
It is stated in the LVIA that there would be no significant cumulative or in-combination effects.  
This is due to other construction schemes having either been completed, or that they are due 
to be completed prior to construction of the proposed development, and that consequently they 
are considered as part of the future baseline.  There are no other known schemes that may 
give rise to cumulative effects. 
 
Trafford Council do not raise any concerns regarding the landscape impact of the proposal or 
compliance with their own landscape policies. 
 
The original ES concludes on landscape matters (at paragraphs 7.7.24 and 7.7.25): 
The total extent of the landscape and visual effects would be localised and limited in nature... 
Although some inevitable landscape and visual effects would occur in the longer-term as a 
result of the proposed development, the long-term significant effects are restricted to the 
inevitable direct physical effects on the land use of the site. No significant long-term visual 
effects are predicted due to the context of the application site in relation to the surrounding 
infrastructure and the established mitigation surrounding the proposed development. 
 
Visual impact conclusion 
The contemporary approach of the design to reflect a modern farmstead is a very positive 
aspect of the proposal and works well with this site, and wider landscape impacts are 
considered to be relatively limited due to the containment of the site and additional landscaping 
(bunding and planting to boundaries) proposed.  However, the scale of the proposal and its 
spread across the site, including the extent of car parking, lighting and the level of activity 
associated with the operation of the MSA, will have a localised urbanising effect upon this 
countryside location.  The area is largely characterised by sporadic development within a wider 
setting of open agricultural land, and some woodland, interrupted by the Strategic Road 
Network (SRN) in several locations.  Undoubtedly the position of the site surrounded by the 
SRN, and adjacent to major junctions, tempers this effect to a good extent.  Indeed, it is difficult 
to imagine a better site for a MSA to serve the SRN, than one that is surrounded by the SRN 
itself. The proposed landscaping will also serve to reduce the overall visual impact of the 
development in the longer term, but views into the site from some of the closest visual receptors 
will remain, and there will be some moderate localised harm to the open, rural character of the 
site arising from the development.  Moderate weight is attached to this harm. 
 
 
 

Page 32



 
OFFICIAL 

Trees and hedgerows 
 
The application site benefits from some established tree cover to the north side of the M56, and 
the southwestern boundary of the site abuts the Local Wildlife Site – Yarwood Heath Covert - 
which is also recorded on the National Forest Inventory for mixed (mainly conifer) woodland, 
with adjacent areas recorded on the National Forest Inventory for broadleaved woodland.  
 
The application is supported by an Arboricultural Impact Assessment (AIA), which identifies 3 
individual and 1 group of high quality A Category trees, 3 individual and 1 group of moderate 
quality B Category trees and 7 individual and 2 groups of low-quality C Category trees. The AIA 
has determined that 1 individual A Cat tree (T1), 1 group of B Cat trees (G1) and 1 individual 
and 1 group of low-quality C Cat trees would need to be removed to accommodate the proposal. 
 
Policy SE5 of the CELPS and ENV6 of the SADPD seek to protect trees, hedgerows or 
woodlands (including veteran trees or ancient semi-natural woodland), that provide a significant 
contribution to the amenity, biodiversity, landscape character or historic character of the 
surrounding area, unless there are clear overriding reasons for allowing the development and 
there are no suitable alternatives.  Where such impacts are unavoidable, development 
proposals must satisfactorily demonstrate a net environmental gain by appropriate mitigation, 
compensation or offsetting. 
 
In terms of the proposed removals, the loss of a Category A Oak tree is unfortunate but given 
that the tree is not protected or considered to be of high amenity value as it is not clearly visible, 
its loss is accepted. Group G1 comprises of semi mature trees recorded on the National Forest 
Inventory and part of this group is proposed for removal to accommodate the access and 
associated earth works. Given that the trees are relatively recent plantings which have 
acknowledged collective value, but limited arboricultural value with individual trees of low 
quality, it is considered that the loss of these trees could be adequately off set elsewhere within 
and around the site through the provision of new planting within the development to retain and 
improve canopy cover, enable climate adaptation resilience, and support biodiversity in 
accordance with Policy SE5. 
 
Hedgerow H1 and part of Hedgerows H2 and H3 are shown to be removed to accommodate 
the proposal. The hedgerows are described as single species early mature hedgerows, some 
of which may be subject to the Hedgerow Regulations 1997, and which appear to follow the 
line of the 1840 tithe map. 
 
A Hedgerow Assessment report has been submitted which concludes that Hedgerows H1, H2 
or H3 do not meet the criteria to qualify as ‘important’ under the Hedgerow Regulations 1997.  
However, the report does note that hedgerow H3 and the bottom of H2 are referenced as 
occurring on the 1828 Manor of Rostherne map and goes on to state that they could meet 
Criterion 5 of the Hedgerow Regulations.  
Criterion 5 states: 
“5.  The hedgerow— 
(a) is recorded in a document held at the relevant date at a Record Office as an integral part of 
a field system pre-dating the Inclosure Acts(8); or 
(b) is part of, or visibly related to, any building or other feature associated with such a system, 
and that system— 
 

Page 33



 
OFFICIAL 

(i) is substantially complete; or 
(ii) is of a pattern which is recorded in a document prepared before the relevant date by 
a local planning authority, within the meaning of the 1990 Act(9), for the purposes of 
development control within the authority’s area, as a key landscape characteristic.” 

 
The report then considers the key wording of the Regulations and expresses the view that the 
hedgerow sections located on historic mapping do not meet criterion 5 (a) as they are not 
considered to be an integral part of the field system as they define access tracks and one field 
boundary, and do not meet 5(b) as they are not ‘substantially complete.  
 
The word ‘integral’ is not defined in the Hedgerow Regulations and the arboricultural officer 
considers that it is generally understood that when interpreting maps, roads and trackways are 
accepted to be part of the field system, since access to the fields would not be possible without 
them, and due to hedges marking the boundaries between public rights of way and agricultural 
land.  Consequently, hedgerow H3 and the bottom of H2 can potentially be defined as 
“important” under the Regulations.   
 
As noted above, policies SE5 and ENV6 seek to retain and protect trees and hedgerows.  SE5 
makes specific reference to those that provide a significant contribution to the amenity, 
biodiversity, landscape character or historic character of the surrounding area.  The trees and 
parts of hedgerows to be removed are considered to contribute to one or more of these 
attributes (namely, the amenity, biodiversity, landscape character and historic character of the 
area).  These losses will result in relatively limited harm to the overall site in terms of the extent 
of tree and hedgerow cover, but despite the limited extent of removals, due the relative 
significance of them, their loss is considered to attract moderate weight overall. Consequently, 
this harm will need to be considered in the planning balance section of this report, in terms of 
whether there are clear overriding reasons for allowing the development.  If their loss is 
accepted, adequate mitigation in the form of native, mixed species replacement hedgerows is 
to be provided. 
 
Should the application be approved, conditions are recommended to retain and protect existing 
trees not identified for removal, and replacement planting proposals. 
 
Ecology 
 
The application site is located within an Ecological Network Core Area as identified under policy 
ENV1 of the SADPD.  The closest internationally designated site is Rostherne Mere Ramsar 
Site, located approximately 0.4km south of the Application Site at its closest point, separated 
from the site by the M56 and farmland.  Rostherne Mere SSSI and NNR is located 
approximately 0.3km south of the Application Site (the Ramsar designation covers the majority 
of the SSSI, but not all of it).  Finally, Yarwood Heath Covert Local Wildlife Site (LWS) is situated 
immediately west of the Application Site. 
 
Policy SE3 of the CELPS requires areas of high biodiversity and geodiversity value to be 
protected and enhanced.  The policy also explains that proposals which are likely to have an 
adverse impact on a Site of Special Scientific Interest (SSSI) will not normally be permitted.  All 
development (including conversions and that on brownfield and greenfield sites) must aim to 
positively contribute to the conservation and enhancement of biodiversity and geodiversity and 

Page 34



 
OFFICIAL 

should not negatively affect these interests.  Policy ENV2 sets out ecological requirements for 
development proposals. 
 
The Ecology chapter of the ES is supported by a collection of survey reports and assessments 
covering the ecology matters below. 
 
Statutory Designated Sites 
The application site falls within Natural England’s SSSI impact risk zones associated with 
Rostherne Mere Ramsar and SSSI. The application is supported by a ‘shadow’ Habitats 
Regulations Assessment (HRA), which considers the potential of the proposed development to 
result in a significant effect on the Ramsar.  Following a request from Natural England for further 
information to identify the significance of potential impacts and the scope for mitigation, 
Technical Notes were submitted by the applicant which expanded on the cumulative impacts 
of air quality and potential hydrological changes on Rostherne Mere arising from the 
development and other projects (including HS2). 
 
The Council’s nature conservation officer advises that the Council should adopt the HRA 
produced by the applicant to fulfil the Council’s duty as competent authority under the Habitats 
Regulations. 
 
The HRA confirms that all relevant potential pathways for significant effects to arise as a result 
of the proposed development have been fully examined, and full regard has been given to the 
comments from Natural England in their consultation responses.  Having considered all of the 
potential significant effects that could arise, the HRA concludes that the proposals are not likely 
to lead to significant adverse effects on the integrity on the Ramsar Site, when the  
proposals are considered alone or in combination with other plans or projects. 
 
Based on these conclusions, and the Council adopting the HRA, Natural England considers 
that the proposed development will not have likely significant effects on the Rostherne Mere 
Ramsar and has no objection to the proposed development. 
Non-statutory designated Sites 
The application site is located adjacent to Yarwood Heath Covert Local Wildlife Site (LWS). 
Sites of this type receive protection through Local Plan polices as noted above. 
 
The Local Wildlife Site is unlikely to be directly affected by the land take of the proposed 
development, however, it may be adversely affected by insensitive working practices during the 
construction phase and by excessive lighting during the operational phase.  The lighting 
assessment submitted in support of the application concludes that the lighting scheme for the 
development can be designed so as to avoid an adverse effect on the LWS.  Final lighting 
details can be secured by condition. 
 
If planning consent is granted a condition is recommended to secure the submission and 
implementation of a Construction Environmental Management Plan (CEMP) informed by the 
recommendations of the ecology chapter of the ES. 
 
Woodland 
The Biodiversity Net Gain calculation, as discussed below, includes the loss of 0.04 ha of 
woodland in the vicinity of the southern access. The woodland lost appears to be highways 
planting associated with the Yarwood Heath Lane crossing over the M56. 

Page 35



 
OFFICIAL 

 
Hedgerows 
Hedgerows are a priority Habitat and hence a material consideration. The proposed 
development would result in the loss of 0.38km of existing hedgerows from within the site.  
Whilst it would be preferable for the proposal to retain the existing hedgerows, the biodiversity 
net gain (BNG) metric submitted with the application does show that the scheme would result 
in an overall net gain for hedgerows if an appropriate landscaping strategy, including the new 
hedgerow planting as entered in the metric, is delivered on site. This can be secured through 
the BNG condition referred to below. 
 
Great Crested Newts 
Whilst previous surveys have recorded the presence of this protected species at ponds a short 
distance from the application site, no evidence of this species was recorded during the latest 
round of surveys. Therefore, this species is not reasonably likely to be affected by the proposed 
development. 
 
Badgers 
No evidence of badger activity was recorded during the latest survey. Badgers are currently not 
reasonably likely to be affected by the development of this site. However, as the status of 
badgers on a site can change, if planning permission is granted a condition is recommended to 
require an updated badger survey to be undertaken and submitted to the LPA prior to the 
commencement of development. 
 
Bats  
The number of bat species recorded on site is sufficiently diverse for the application site to be 
selected as Local Wildlife Site for Mammals. Sites such as this receive protection through Local 
Plan Strategy policy SE3. 
 
Much of the application site is made up of improved grassland which is of limited value for bats, 
however the loss of woodland and hedgerows as a result of the development would reduce the 
available habitat for bats. The submitted BNG metric, however, shows that adequate 
compensatory planting is provided to mitigate for the losses. 
 
Excessive lighting associated with the development would also be likely to have a significant 
adverse effect on roosting bats. The additional information submitted alongside the Ecology 
Chapter Addendum to the ES includes a lighting assessment that concludes that the lighting 
associated with the access road can be designed so as to result in light spill onto the retained 
woodland of less than 1 lux.  As noted above, a condition is recommended requiring the 
submission of a lighting scheme if the application is approved. 
 
Barn Owls 
No evidence of this protected species was recorded during the submitted surveys. Barn Owls 
are therefore not reasonably likely to be affected by the proposed development. 
 
Nesting Birds 
The application site has the potential to support breeding birds, potentially including the more 
widespread priority species which are a material consideration for planning. As noted in relation 
to bats, the development will result in the loss of some habitat for birds, however, adequate 
compensatory planting is provided to mitigate for that lost.  Conditions are recommended 

Page 36



 
OFFICIAL 

requiring the submission of a nesting bird survey and the provision of bat and bird boxes (to 
enhance the biodiversity value of the development) if the application is approved. 
 
Non-native invasive plant species 
A number of invasive non-native plant species are present on site. If a habitat management 
plan is produced for the site, it should include proposals for the control of these species. 
 
Biodiversity Net Gain 
In accordance with Local Plan policy SE3(5) all development proposals must seek to lead to an 
overall enhancement for biodiversity. In order to assess the overall loss/gains of biodiversity 
the applicant has submitted an assessment undertaken in accordance with the Defra 
Biodiversity ‘Metric’ version 3. 
 
The metric calculation as submitted shows the proposed development and associated 
landscaping resulting in a net gain for biodiversity for both area based and hedgerow habitats. 
The gain is achieved through habitat creation measures on site and the enhancement of the 
adjacent Yarwood Heath Covert Local Wildlife Site.  When including the off-site Yarwood Heath 
Covert woodland, the development will achieve an increase of 17.05% in habitat units and 
12.44% in hedgerow units.  Yarwood Heath Covert is shown to be within the applicant’s control 
on the submitted site location plan (within land edged blue) and therefore this can be secured 
by condition.  
 
Subject to the recommended conditions the proposal is considered to comply with policies SE3, 
ENV1 and ENV3 of the Cheshire East Local Plan.  
 
Archaeology and Heritage  
 
There are no designated heritage assets located within the application site. The  
nearest designated heritage asset is the scheduled monument of Watch Hill motte and bailey 
located approximately 380m to the north of the scheme, on the northern banks of the River 
Bollin, within the administrative area of Trafford Council. 
 
The Application Site contains a farmhouse, Yarwood Heath Farm, with associated outbuildings. 
The farmhouse is identified as a non-designated heritage asset for the purposes of the ES. 
Yarwood Heath Farm is shown on early 19th-century mapping of the site and was an estate 
farm of the Tatton Estate. 
 
Whilst the initial Heritage Assessment identified the farmhouse as a non-designated heritage 
asset it considered the other buildings in close proximity to the house to be of little heritage 
interest.  This was not a view shared by the CEC heritage team and it is considered that there 
is interest to all three buildings both individually and as a group. The form, grouping, massing 
and configuration of the three buildings plays an important part in their contribution to the 
landscape.  Consequently, further consideration of the existing barns has been undertaken 
leading to the retention of one of the barns and the re-building of another on a smaller footprint.  
 
The application site also lies between two large estates - The Grade II* Registered Park and 
Garden of Dunham Massey and the Grade II* Registered Park and Garden of Tatton Park to 
the south east of the site boundary. 
 

Page 37



 
OFFICIAL 

Devisdale Conservation Area and Bowdon Conservation Area are located over 1km north east 
of the application site, within the administrative area of Trafford Council. 
 
Policy SE7 of the CELPS states that all new development should seek to avoid harm to heritage 
assets and sets out requirements for development proposals that affect designated and non-
designated heritage assets.  HER1 of the SADPD requires proposals affecting heritage assets 
and their settings to be accompanied by proportionate information that assesses and describes 
their impact on the asset’s significance.  Policy HER5 expects development proposals affecting 
a Registered Historic Park and Garden to preserve the heritage asset, its setting and any 
features of special interest that contribute to its significance.  When considering the direct or 
indirect effects of a development proposal on a non-designated heritage asset (including locally 
listed buildings), policy HER7 requires a balanced judgement to be made having regard to the 
significance of the heritage asset and the scale of any loss or harm.  HER8 relates to 
archaeology and scheduled monuments. 
 
The application is accompanied by a heritage assessment and a dedicated chapter within the 
ES considers the impact of the development upon these heritage assets.  These documents 
are considered to provide a proportionate level of information that assesses and describes their 
impact on the asset’s significance, in accordance with relevant policy requirements.  
 
Farm Buildings 
As noted above, the site is comprised of an early 19th century farm group of a house, two barns 
and courtyard walls, open brick sheds and later 20th century large sheds. The farmhouse and 
early barns are currently derelict and have been for some years.  The later barns to the east of 
the site and fields remain in active agricultural use.  
 
The scheme initially proposed the demolition of all of the buildings within the Yarwood Heath 
Farm complex, with the exception of the main farmhouse.  Following concerns raised by the 
Conservation Officer, this has now been amended so that the farmhouse and its outriggers are 
retained along with the majority of the two-storey eastern barn.  The western barn is to be 
demolished and replaced with a new brick cycle store.   
 
The farmhouse is three bays wide with later porch, sashes to front, casement windows to 
gables, and extensions to the rear of varying ages, including what appeared to be outdoor 
privies.  The building is in relatively sound condition, given the number of years it has stood 
empty, with some damp to the interior caused by issues at roof level.  The main approach to 
the front is via a tree lined lane.  
 
The eastern brick barn, dates from the early to mid-19th century and is two storeys in height.  
The structure retains a large diminishing course slate roof, there are original hopper head 
windows, circular hayloft window, patterned brick air vents to the elevations. There has been 
some minor replacement brick work and a later extension of no significance to the rear.  The 
southern portion of the barn and its gable are later additions. The building is in relatively sound 
condition internally and externally, with some deterioration to trusses, first floor structure and 
historic slate roof.  The original linear footprint and construction to the barn is still readily 
appreciable. 
 
The smaller single storey (western) barn appears to be of a similar date, possibly once including 
stables.   There are hopper head windows, close boarded doors with strap hinges and 

Page 38



 
OFFICIAL 

unfortunately a later roof.  Subsequent research has suggested that this barn was also originally 
two storeys and was the subject of a fire which reduced the building to a single storey and left 
it in a less complete/sound state. Today the building is a much poorer condition than the 
farmhouse and the eastern barn and it has been substantially altered.  It does, however, still 
contribute to the group and has architectural elements of historic interest.   All three of these 
buildings are considered to be non-designated heritage assets (NDHA). 
 
The other buildings on the site are of a later date including large cattle sheds which lie to the 
rear of the farmhouse and eastern barn. They are of no historic or architectural interest. 
 
The existing setting to the south of the farmhouse is one of open fields with an agricultural 
character, albeit with later large agricultural sheds to the east. This setting will be 
comprehensively altered by the new development.  However, the removal of the large utilitarian, 
metal sheds from the rear of the farmhouse and barn will be an enhancement to the NDHAs 
and the new amenity building is to be set away from the rear of the eastern barn, allowing its 
rear elevation (currently concealed) to become visible. 
 
In order to address initial concerns relating to the demolition of the barns, landscaping and 
location of the hotel, significant amendments have been made to the design for the scheme.  
The eastern barn is now to be largely retained and restored, save the later southern end. The 
walls at the southern end will be rebuilt in the form of a walled courtyard space.  The western 
barn will be replaced, with another single storey brick structure, of a sympathetic design, using 
salvaged materials. It is designed to reflect the original layout/aesthetic to the group of 
buildings. 
 
At present there are no detailed proposals for the retained farmhouse building (it is expected to 
be used as a space for MSA staff); but, if the application is approved, the restoration and reuse 
of this structure, along with the barn, would need to be subject to detailed conditions in terms 
of the works required and their timing to ensure the retention and re-use of these historic 
buildings. 
 
The proposals would cause a slight change in significance and cause minor harm to the non-
designated asset of Yarwood Heath Farmhouse through loss of fabric/built form and changes 
to its setting and the change in character from agricultural to an operational MSA.   However, 
these are a group of buildings which are currently derelict and at risk of further deterioration or 
loss, as only the later barns to the rear are in active use.   This scheme will see the historic farm 
group put back into active use and saved from dereliction.   Modifications have been made to 
the original submission to ensure that the buildings and landscaping works coming forward 
respond to the retained heritage assets. 
 
Scheduled Ancient Monument 
With regard to the impact of the scheme upon the Watch Hill Scheduled Ancient Monument 
(SAM), Trafford Council has objected to the proposal on the grounds that it would harm the 
setting of the SAM.  The ES identifies that the construction phase of the development may bring 
glimpses of construction traffic within the site boundary of the SAM and a slight increase in 
noise, although there is already an audible intrusion whilst at the site from the traffic along the 
nearby road network. The glimpses of construction traffic within the proposed development 
would likely be no more of a distracting element in the view than the glimpses of the traffic along 
the carriageway of the A556/A56 and M56 junction.  However, the potential for taller elements 

Page 39



 
OFFICIAL 

of construction traffic to intrude into views, such as cranes and larger earth-moving equipment, 
albeit for a very time-limited period, has the potential to cause a minimal distraction to the 
contribution this view makes to the significance of the asset. The impact will be , and temporary, 
the effect being minor adverse.  The construction phase of the scheme would not result in any 
effect upon any other identified heritage asset.  
 
In their consultation response, Historic England notes that the ES presents evidence that the 
construction of the proposed development would have a very limited impact on the setting of 
the scheduled motte and bailey castle.  Whilst the castle was sited to command views over the 
river crossing, the view is now 
constrained by woodland and affected by the construction of the road system which surrounds 
the site of the proposed development.  The design of the proposed MSA, retaining the former 
farmhouse, and employing an architectural  
style that evokes agricultural outbuildings, would further limit the impact of the  
proposed development on the setting of the scheduled monument. 
 
The CEC Conservation Officer has nothing to add to the assessment and comments made by 
the Inspector at Historic England, and agrees with their conclusions, in terms of the very limited 
impact upon the motte and bailey SAM.  It is also noted that landscape condition for the northern 
boundary has been suggested by applicant in response to the concerns raised by Trafford 
Council to limit the impact of scheme upon views of the SAM. 
 
Registered Parks & Gardens 
The Grade II* Registered Park and Garden (RPG) of Tatton Park is located to the south east 
of the site boundary.  The northern edge of this designation runs along the southern side of 
Ashley Road, which is approximately 2km from the application site, and as such given this 
distance and the scale of the development proposed there is no considered to be any significant 
impact upon Tatton Park.  Similarly, in terms of Dunham Massey (also a Grade II* RPG) the 
ES states that there is little or no intervisibility of the site from the Dunham Massey RPG and 
combined with the fact that the application site does not form part of the setting of the asset, 
the operation of the proposed development will cause no change which results in a neutral 
effect to Dunham Massey.  This position is agreed.  Furthermore, Dunham Massey is a National 
Trust site and the National Trust raise no objections to the proposal.   
 
Archaeology 
Chapter 9 of the ES discusses the potential archaeological deposits.  The document outlines 
that the farm buildings associated with Yarwood Heath Farm are seen on the 1847 Tithe map 
of the area. These buildings are extant throughout the first, second and third editions of the OS 
Maps for this area, with little alterations to the footprints over that time. 
 
Section 9.3.7 of the document outlines the potential for early Roman deposits within the 
proposed development area. 9.3.8 discusses the potential medieval deposits within the study 
area, including the potential for evidence of medieval water management on the land. 9.3.12 
outlines the first documentary evidence of Yarwood Farm, with it appearing as an established 
building on the 1819 Greenwood map of the area, suggesting that the farmhouse may well have 
been built in the 18th century. Further mapping shows the development of Yarwood Farm 
complex with the addition and removal of several farm and outbuildings. 
 

Page 40



 
OFFICIAL 

The ES then outlines the background of the site in terms of archaeological potential.  The CEC 
archaeologist advises that whilst it suggests that the recovery of evidence for medieval water 
management is of local interest, it would, however, provide valuable insight into the much 
broader impact of medieval landscape management in a region with significant peat deposits, 
it could provide crucial information on a microscale of the water management processes 
engaged for much larger sites, and therefore would be significant on a regional basis.  
Furthermore, the previous works on the site which uncovered part of the medieval water 
management system was only partially excavated and therefore the full extent and significance 
of this systems has not been assessed. 
 
From reviewing the supporting documentation of this application, along with the information 
held of the Cheshire Historic Environment Records there is a requirement for archaeological 
mitigation for this proposed development. This mitigation may include archaeological watching 
briefs during construction and a level II building survey of the farm buildings in order to identify 
and record any historical materials and phasing of these buildings.  This is also recommended 
by Historic England and can be secured by condition if the application is approved. 
 
Conservation Areas 
The ES concludes that there would be no change to the significance of the Devisdale 
Conservation Area and the Bowdon Conservation Area, resulting in a neutral impact upon these 
designated heritage assets, which is agreed with. 
 
Heritage conclusions 
Historic England considers that the ES provides an accurate assessment of the limited impacts 
which the proposed development would have upon the settings of the Watch Hill SAM and of 
the Registered Park and Garden at Dunham Massey.  These impacts will cause little or no harm 
to the settings of the designated heritage assets. There is the potential for a greater level of 
harm to be caused to non-designated heritage assets on the site of the proposed designation 
itself. However, the measures proposed in the ES should provide an adequate level of 
mitigation for that harm. 
 
Accordingly, subject to conditions, the proposal is not considered to result in any significant 
harm to the heritage assets within and nearby the application site during the construction or 
operational phases of the development, in accordance with the heritage policies of the 
development plan listed above. 
 
Open Space 
 
Policy REC3 of the SADPD requires all major employment and other non-residential 
developments to provide open space as a matter of good design and to support health and 
well-being. The provision of open space will be sought on a site-by-site basis, taking account 
of the location, type and scale of the development.  No minimum requirement for open space 
is specified in the policy.  In the case of the current proposals, open space is provided in the 
form of outdoor seating areas in the central courtyard / kitchen garden area together with 
walkways around, and access to, the fields to the west of the buildings, including for dog 
owners, which is considered to meet the requirements expected from motorway users taking a 
break from their journeys.  Whilst noise from and sight of the SRN are inevitable from the site, 
the open space area will benefit from the setting of the retained farmhouse and tree lined 
driveway making it a relatively pleasant space to be within.  Access will also be available to the 

Page 41



 
OFFICIAL 

shared pedestrian / cycleway (along Yarwood Heath Lane) that runs through the site.  Further 
details will be provided as part of the landscape scheme but the open space areas as proposed 
are considered to be appropriate for the proposed use having regard to the location, type and 
scale of the development. 
 
Agriculture and Soils 
 
Best and most versatile agricultural land (BMV) is defined in Annex 2 to the Framework as land 
in grades 1, 2 and 3a of the Agricultural Land Classification (ALC).  Policy SD1 of the CELPS 
‘Sustainable development in Cheshire East’ requires development to protect the best and most 
versatile agricultural land where possible.  Policy SD2 expects all development to avoid the 
permanent loss of such land unless the strategic need overrides these issues; Policy RUR5 of 
the SADPD expands on this principle, explaining that where proposals involve the loss of best 
and most versatile agricultural land to development, it must be demonstrated that the benefits 
of development clearly outweigh the impacts of the loss of the economic and other benefits of 
the land; and every effort has been made to mitigate the overall impact of the development on 
best and most versatile agricultural land.  Similarly, paragraph 174 b) of the Framework requires 
consideration of the economic and other benefits of the best and most versatile agricultural 
land. 
 
Chapter 10 of the ES relates to agriculture and soils.   The ES explains that the site is shown 
on the “provisional” ALC maps produced by MAFF in the 1970s as falling mostly into ALC grade 
2 “very good” quality land. These maps were produced before the ALC system was amended 
in 1988, and cannot be relied upon for site specific use, as explained in Natural England’s 
Technical Information Note 049 (2012). 
 
The site is shown on Natural England’s “Likelihood of BMV” maps (2017) as mostly falling into 
the “high (>60% area BMV)” category.  Surrounding land is also shown as falling within either 
the “high” or “moderate (20-60% area BMV)” categories. 
There is no published detailed ALC date for the site, therefore a detailed ALC survey was 
carried by the applicant.    This examined the soils across the site on a regular 100 metre grid, 
in accordance with the approved MAFF methodology (ALC of England and Wales: Revised 
Guidelines and Criteria for  
Grading the Quality of Agricultural Land, MAFF 1988).  The site was examined in 14 locations.  
13ha of the 15.8ha site (82%) was found to be ALC Grade 2 (very good quality) agricultural 
land.  This land falls within the definition of the “best and most versatile agricultural land” as 
identified in the Framework. 
 
The proposed development will result in the permanent loss of 13.0 ha of Grade 2 agricultural 
land. This is below the 20ha threshold for consultation with Natural England, and it is noted that 
Natural England have not commented on this loss within their consultation response.  The area 
around the site is all predicted to be mostly of BMV quality, and the land affected is detached 
from surrounding farmland by the road network. The ES concludes that in the local context this 
loss of good quality land is not significant.   
 
There are also localised effects on the farm business that occupies the land and farm buildings. 
However, it is understood that these are not occupied on a secure, long-term arrangement and 
the use of the building for housing cattle broadly equates to the stocking level of the land 
enclosed by the surrounding roads. The overall effect is stated to be adverse but not significant. 

Page 42



 
OFFICIAL 

 
There are no effective measures to mitigate the loss of agricultural land, although it is stated 
that the soil resources will be stripped for reuse in landscaping wherever possible, but the loss 
to agricultural use, and consequently the loss of agricultural land, is a permanent and moderate 
adverse effect.  This is therefore considered to weigh moderately against the proposal. 
 
Land Contamination, Ground conditions and Pollution 
 
Policy SE12 of the CELPS explains that all development should be located and designed so as 
not to result in a harmful or cumulative impact upon air quality, surface water and groundwater, 
noise, smell, dust, vibration, soil contamination, light pollution or any other pollution which would 
unacceptably affect the natural and built environment, or detrimentally affect amenity or cause 
harm. Developers will be expected to minimise and mitigate the effects of possible pollution 
arising from the development itself, or as a result of the development (including additional traffic) 
during both the construction and the life of the development.  Policy ENV17 of the SADPD 
supplements this policy and makes explicit the protection of groundwater and surface water in 
terms of their flow and quality. 
 
Contaminated land 
The assessment within Chapter 11 of the ES considers the potential for new pathways between 
contamination sources (if present) and sensitive receptors (human health and controlled 
waters) to be created during the operational and construction phases of the proposed 
development.  Phase I and Phase II Geo-Environmental Assessments have also been 
submitted with the application. 
 
The Council’s contaminated land team agree with the recommendation in the submitted reports 
that further site investigation is undertaken following the demolition of the existing buildings on 
site.  In addition to a general investigation, this should also target specific areas of potential 
contamination identified within the Phase I report (e.g., potential tank bund, suspected asbestos 
sheeting area, etc.) 
 
In terms of ground gas, the Phase I report identified the off-site landfills and sewage farm as a 
moderate risk.  This would indicate that in accordance with established good practice (CIRIA 
C665) that a monitoring period of 6 visits over 3 months should be undertaken rather than the 
4 visits over 1 month presented.  In addition, the Phase I report recommended that monitoring 
wells should be placed along the site boundary where possible.  Monitoring wells were not 
placed along the north/northeast boundaries and as a result the proposed main amenity 
building lies between the offsite ground gas sources and the nearest monitoring well.  Finally, 
there was some flooding of boreholes during monitoring visits.  The monitoring was undertaken 
in December and the ground was noted as wet on each occasion.  Consideration should be 
given to seasonal water table variations and the potential impact of a lower water table during 
the summer months on the ground gas pathway.  Comment should also be provided on the 
volatile organic compound results recorded.   
 
Whilst the contaminated land team raise no objection to the proposal, they recommend that the 
above matters are addressed within the required supplementary investigation.  Appropriate 
conditions are therefore recommended. 
 
 

Page 43



 
OFFICIAL 

Controlled waters 
Turning to controlled waters, the Environment Agency (EA) originally objected to the proposal 
because they considered the risks to groundwater to be unacceptable. Within their objection, 
the EA stated that the applicant had not supplied adequate information to demonstrate that the 
risks posed to groundwater can be satisfactorily managed.  
 
Further information was subsequently submitted by the applicant to provide clarification on the 
issues raised by the EA relating to the underground storage associated with the fuel filling 
station and the HGV refuelling area.  Whilst these facilities will be constructed to relevant 
industry standards (Blue Book), it is anticipated that any underground storage tanks will be 
installed below the level of the water table.  The EA have therefore noted that any leaks from 
underground storage tanks installed below the water table would constitute a direct discharge 
of hazardous substances to groundwater, and as such they require a detailed design of the 
underground storage tanks to be submitted.  The applicant has indicated that the fuel filling 
station will be designed to accommodate the evolving driver needs in terms of electrification 
versus traditional fuel usage and does not currently have a detailed picture of the final design 
requirements in that respect. 
 
Having regard to the above details, the EA raise no objection to the proposal subject to 
conditions relating to the design of the underground storage tanks and the disposal of surface 
water.   
 
Subject to the conditions referred to above, the proposal will comply with policy SE12 insofar 
as it relates to ground conditions and policy ENV17. 
 
Noise 
In support of the application, the applicant has submitted an acoustic report within the ES which 
assesses the impact of the noise from construction of and use of the proposed development in 
accordance with:  

 BS8233:2014 Guidance on Sound Insulation and Noise Reduction for Buildings 

 BS4142:2014 Methods for rating and assessing industrial and commercial sound.  

 BS 5228 Vibration and Construction on open sites. 
 
Environmental Protection Officers have confirmed that this is an agreed methodology for the 
assessment of the noise source. 
 
The existing background noise is dominated by road traffic on the A556, M56 and associated 
slip roads, and indicates that mitigation is likely to be required to reduce internal levels at the 
MSA hotel to within recommended criteria.  There is sporadic residential development in the 
broad location of the application site, but the nearest is over 200m from the site boundary 
separated from the site by the strategic road network. 
 
The ES identifies that these existing sensitive receptors may experience a temporary, minor 
adverse effect as a result of noise and vibration associated with the construction phase.  
Existing and proposed noise sources have been considered at the proposed noise sensitive 
areas of the site, such as the hotel. The assessment has demonstrated that without mitigation, 
internal noise levels as recommended in BS8233 will be exceeded. 
 

Page 44



 
OFFICIAL 

A range of mitigation is proposed within the ES to minimise the potential impact from noise and 
vibration associated with the construction phase.  These could be consolidated into a 
construction environmental management plan, which can be secured by condition. 
 
To reduce noise levels as much as practicable in the outdoor areas of the proposed 
development, bunding is proposed on the eastern, southern and western site boundaries.  In 
addition, the development itself provides screening to the walled garden.  In order to achieve 
the appropriate internal noise levels within the hotel a glazing specification is recommended, 
which again can be secured by condition. 
 
Subject to conditions, no significant noise issues are therefore raised. 
 
Air quality 
Air quality impacts have been considered within the air quality assessment chapter of the ES.  
The application site is not located within an Air Quality Management Area and local air quality 
monitoring in the vicinity of the Application Site identified that pollutant concentrations were well 
below the relevant air quality objectives. 
 
During the construction phase the potential for dust and emissions to be created is identified in 
the report.  A dust management plan is recommended to mitigate for these potential impacts. 
 
The report considers whether the development will result in increased exposure to airborne 
pollutants, particularly as a result of additional traffic and changes to traffic flows. The 
assessment uses ADMS Roads to model NO2, PM10 and PM2.5 impacts from additional traffic 
associated with this development and the cumulative impact of committed development within 
the area. It concludes that the impacts will be not significant on the surrounding area and any 
new receptors introduced by the construction of an on-site hotel.  
 
The applicant has also submitted a detailed plan of the number and type of electric vehicle 
charging facilities.  The proposal is based on a long-term plan of providing 54 high power charge 
points for the MSA and 42 standard powered chargers for the hotel and staff car parks (96 in 
total). It is therefore proposed to provide customer side infrastructure, containment and ducting 
ready to accept this number of charge points to allow progressive installation (up to 2038) in 
line with future demand. 
 
No significant air quality impacts are therefore anticipated. 
 
Living conditions 
  
CELPS Policy SE1 states that development should ensure an appropriate level of privacy for 
new and existing residential properties. Policy HOU12 of the SADPD states development 
proposals must not cause unacceptable harm to the amenities of adjoining or nearby occupiers 
of residential properties, sensitive users or future occupiers of the proposed development due 
to: 
 
1. loss of privacy; 
2. loss of sunlight and daylight; 
3. the overbearing and dominating effect of new buildings;  
4. environmental disturbance or pollution; or 

Page 45



 
OFFICIAL 

5. traffic generation, access and parking. 
 
Having regard to the details above relating to pollution, and by virtue of separation distance to 
the nearest residential properties, and the containment of the application site by the strategic 
road network, there will be no significant impact upon the living conditions of these neighbours. 
 
Flood Risk and Drainage 
 
Policy SE13 of the CELPS requires developments to integrate measures for sustainable water 
management to reduce flood risk, avoid an adverse impact on water quality and quantity within 
the borough and provide opportunities to enhance biodiversity, health and recreation, in line 
with national guidance. 
 
Policy ENV16 of the SADPD requires development proposals to demonstrate how surface 
water runoff can be managed, including with the use of sustainable drainage systems (SuDS). 
 
The application site is located entirely in Flood Zone 1 and is predominantly at very low risk of 
flooding from surface water sources according to Environment Agency mapping. There are no 
records of historical flood events at the site based on the Environment Agency and Local 
Authority data. 
 
There are existing waterbodies and minor watercourses near the application site, particularly 
around Yarwood Heath Covert. The nearest EA Main River  
is the Birkin Brook, located to the east of the M56 on the eastern site boundary. The Birkin 
Brook enters the River Bollin approximately 180m northeast of the application site. The River 
Bollin has a number of smaller tributaries, both upstream and downstream of the application 
site. 
 
The drainage strategy for the site has considered the drainage hierarchy as identified below: 

i. into the ground (infiltration); 
ii. to a surface water body; 
iii. to a surface water sewer, highway drain, or another drainage system; 
iv. to a combined sewer 

 
Due to the underlying ground conditions and groundwater levels, disposal of surface water by 
infiltration is not a feasible option in this instance.  There is a 600mm drainage culvert 
constructed as part of the previous improvement works to the A556.  The culvert originates on 
the site boundary before passing beneath the A556 and discharging into the Birkin Brook. With 
no indication of another outfall from the site, along with the site levels generally sloping 
downwards toward the culvert, this is identified by the applicant as the most appropriate way 
for the site to drain. 
 
A series of attenuation basin are proposed to the west and east, prior to flows being routed 
along the northern boundary before discharging at the restricted rate to the culvert.  Due to the 
nature of the development, there are a range of pollution risks associated with it. 
 
The proposed buildings are the lowest risk due to the surface water comprising of roof water.  
Rainwater harvesting and rainwater gardens are proposed to manage the surface water from 
these areas with the flows being directed to the attenuation basins. 

Page 46



 
OFFICIAL 

 
The main and staff car parks have an increased risk compared to the buildings, and a series of 
dry swales are proposed within the car park to then direct flows to other SuDS features. 
 
Coach and HGV parking, the service yard and parking around the fuel station has a medium 
risk of pollution due to the potential for hydrocarbons within the surface water.  A series of oil 
separators are therefore proposed and positioned upstream of the attenuation in order to 
provide treatment ahead of the flows entering the attenuation. 
 
The highest risk is main forecourt of the filling station, along with the HGV fuelling area.  Within 
these areas a Class 1 forecourt separator is proposed.  
 
The proposed SuDS attenuation includes six basins, of which two will hold permanent open 
water (one to the west of the main site and one to the north).  Manchester Airport has 
commented on the proposals and noted that these features have the potential to attract and 
support species of birds that are hazardous to aircraft.  They raise specific concern regarding 
the basin holding water to the west with a jetty / platform going out into the pond and objected 
to this element as it would allow people to feed the birds such as ducks or geese.  This jetty 
has now been removed from the proposal to address the concerns of the Airport.  
 
As noted earlier in this report, the Rostherne Mere Site of Special Scientific Interest (SSSI) and 
RAMSAR site is located to the south of the application site, beyond the M56. The assessment 
in the ES has not highlighted any potential for the application site and Rostherne Mere to be 
connected from a fluvial or groundwater perspective, or by foul drainage.  
 
The LLFA raises no objection to the proposals and advises that no further conditions are 
required in addition to those recommended by the EA.  Subject to these conditions the proposal 
will comply with policies SE13 and ENV16 of the Local Plan. 
 
Highways 
 
Policy CO1 of the CELPS sets out the Council’s expectations for development to deliver the 
Council objectives of delivering a safe, sustainable, high quality, integrated transport system 
that encourages a modal shift away from car travel to public transport, cycling and walking; 
supportive of the needs of residents and businesses and preparing for carbon free modes of 
transport.  Policy CO2 includes a range of criteria to enable business growth through transport 
infrastructure, including supporting the improvement of national motorway network facilities 
where appropriate.  Policy CO4 requires all major development proposals that are likely to 
generate significant additional journeys to be accompanied by a Transport Assessment and, 
where appropriate, a Travel Plan. 
 
Policy INF1 of the SADPD requires developments to contribute positively to local walking, 
cycling and public transport objectives.  Policy INF3 requires development proposals to provide 
safe access to and from the site for all highway users and ensure that development traffic can 
be satisfactorily assimilated into the safe operation of the existing highway network. 
 
Chapter 13 of the ES covers Transport and Access matters, and this together a Transport 
Assessment and a Framework Travel Plan consider the highway issues associated with the 
proposed development. 

Page 47



 
OFFICIAL 

 
Highway Impact 
The development will be accessed via the Yarwood Heath Lane arm of the  
Bowdon South Roundabout.  This highway (including the Bowdon North and South 
roundabouts) falls under the jurisdiction of National Highways, and therefore National Highways 
have assessed and made recommendations on the proposal from a traffic impact perspective.  
CEC Highways Authority and Trafford Highways Authority were party to the agreed scope and 
subsequent inputs of the submitted Transport Assessment (TA). 
 
The estimated peak hour development traffic flows were agreed, and the information used to 
calculate the peak hour flows was replicated to produce daily traffic flows for the proposed 
development. The calculated daily traffic flows were then distributed and assigned to the 
highway network using the agreed distribution patterns from the TA. It is noted the proposed 
development will add relatively low numbers of new trips to the network (with the exception of 
employees) and will reassign existing trips from passing traffic onto the slip roads/roundabouts 
adjacent to the development.   
 
Furthermore, no increase in flow (including development traffic) on the A56 Lymm Road and 
A56 Dunham Road links at its intersection with the Bowden North roundabout was observed 
within the modelling. 
 
Accordingly, National Highways raise no objection to the proposed development, subject to 
conditions that are required in the interests of ensuring that the M56 motorway continues to 
fulfil its purpose as part of the national system of routes for through traffic, in accordance with 
Section 10 (2) of the Highways Act 1980, maintaining the safety of traffic on the road, and 
preserving its integrity. Furthermore, National Highways recognise that the proposals would 
increase the amount of Heavy Goods Vehicle (HGV) parking within the area, in line with the 
requirements set out in Circular 01/2022.  The recommended conditions relate to the detail of 
the proposed highway works, and a travel plan.  CEC Highways concur with this 
recommendation. 
 
Parking 
The Department for Transport (DfT) Circular 02/2013 (The Strategic Road Network and the 
Delivery of Sustainable Development) (now superseded by Circular 01/2022) has been used to 
determine the level of parking required at the proposed MSA which is appropriate given the 
location and development under consideration. The proposed vehicular parking provision 
complies with this guidance. Electric car vehicular charging facilities are also proposed.   
 
The proposed location of cycle parking is acceptable in principle, but details are recommended 
to be secured by condition.   
 
Sustainable links 
The site is surrounded by an existing operational highway network therefore access for non-
car modes will be limited, albeit improvements to foot and cycle access are proposed via 
Yarwood Heath Lane. Furthermore, the signalisation of the Bowdon South roundabout will 
provide some benefit from an active travel perspective.  
 
Yarwood Heath Lane is an existing Cycle Track which will be partially diverted as part of the 
proposals to accommodate the main vehicular access to serve the development.  The Cycle 

Page 48



 
OFFICIAL 

Track will be retained (as diverted) as a 3m wide shared facility for pedestrians and cyclists.  
The northern point of this pedestrian/cycle route will meet the existing TOUCAN crossing at the 
roundabout immediately adjacent to the northern boundary of the site, which will be upgraded 
with a 4m wide staggered refuge island and connecting with the existing shared 
footway/cycleway that will also be improved as part of the highway works to the Bowdon 
roundabouts.  Travelling south through the site, a new eastern spur will be created along the 
existing tree lined driveway to allow pedestrian and cycle access to the MSA, and an underpass 
will be constructed to the west, below the proposed access road.  The pedestrian/cycle track 
will then continue along its existing alignment through the site, over the existing motorway 
bridge onto Tom Lane to the south of the M56. 
 
The CEC Highway officer has noted that there is an absence of a footway/cycleway connection 
towards Trafford MBC which is an existing situation.  National Highways are examining 
proposals to address this, but no firm proposals are yet available. 
 
The Highways officer has advised that since the submission of this application there has been 
significant progress with the development of the Bollin Valley Way. Although the scheme is still 
at “Feasibility Stage” it would offer improved non-motorised linkages to the development from 
the south. Accordingly, they consider that a contribution towards cycling Infrastructure is 
warranted. The road between Tom Lane and Yarwood Heath Lane over the Motorway is not 
adopted highway but does have the status of a Cycle Track.  The proposal adjusts the alignment 
of the existing Cycle Track and therefore it is requested by CE Highways that as part of this 
development that a dedication agreement is entered into to allow the continuation of a public 
Cycleway connection to the development. 
 
As noted above, Yarwood Heath Lane is already designated as a Cycle Track and public right 
of way.  Such a dedication agreement is therefore not considered to be necessary in this case.  
With regard to the contribution towards cycling infrastructure, CEC highways suggest a figure 
of £75,000.  However, no details have been provided of how this figure was calculated, or where 
it would be spent.  Accordingly, these requirements are not considered to be necessary to make 
the development acceptable and do not meet the tests of Regulation 122 of the Community 
Infrastructure Levy (CIL) Regulations 2010. 
 
The absence of cycle linkages between Trafford and Cheshire East is also something that has 
been raised widely in the letters of representation. Whilst it could be considered beneficial if 
such a link was created it would be unreasonable to request provision under the current 
application due to the likely scale and cost of the improvement required set against the 
proposed development and likely trip generation. As noted above, there are no firm proposals 
for this at present. As an alternative, details of a staff access facility, potentially through bus 
provision, is recommended through an updated Travel Plan secured by condition.  
 
Highways conclusion 
It is considered that subject to the provision of appropriate mitigation and conditions, the traffic 
and transport impacts of the development proposal can be satisfactorily assimilated into the 
highway network.  At the time of writing the HS2 Safeguarding Direction remained applicable 
 
HS2 
 
The High Speed Two Phase 2b Crewe to Manchester West Midlands to Leeds  

Page 49



 
OFFICIAL 

Safeguarding Directions came into force on 23 May 2023, replacing previous Safeguarding 
Directions which were issued on 6 June 2022. There are a number of interfaces between the 
proposals that are the subject of this application and HS2 safeguarded areas in this location.  
At the time of writing the HS2 Safeguarding Direction remains applicable.  
 
HS2 Ltd has confirmed there were extensive proactive discussions with the applicant, and a 
legal agreement addressing the interface between the proposed MSA development and the 
HS2 Phase 2b safeguarding directions was completed on 27 June 2023.  The agreement is 
subject to the LPA including a condition which prevents any work taking place in the 
safeguarded area until detailed design and method statements for all works proposed to be 
constructed within the safeguarding area have been submitted to and approved in writing by 
the LPA. 
 
Town Centre Impact 
 
The Glossary within Annex 2 to the Framework defines what is meant by a “main town centre 
use”.  Retail development, restaurants, drive-through restaurants, and hotels are all identified 
as main town centre uses.  MSAs are not referred to in the glossary, but the proposed MSA 
does include the main town centre uses identified above as its constituent parts.  
 
The applicant maintains that a MSA is not a main town centre use, but a number of 
representations, including the consultation response from Trafford Council, raise concerns 
about the potential impact of the development upon the nearby centres of Altrincham, Hale and 
Bowdon.  Given that the site is accessible from the local road network, not just the motorway, 
it is considered to be appropriate to examine the potential retail impact of the proposal. 
 
Paragraph 87 of the Framework requires local planning authorities to apply a sequential test to 
planning applications for main town centre uses which are neither in an existing centre nor in 
accordance with an up-to-date plan.  Paragraph 90 states that when assessing applications for 
retail and leisure development outside town centres, which are not in accordance with an up-
to-date plan, local planning authorities should require an impact assessment if the development 
is over a proportionate, locally set floorspace threshold (if there is no locally set threshold the 
default threshold is 2,500sqm of gross floorspace).  
 
These requirements are reflected in policy EG5 of the CELPS, which also confirms that town 
centres will be promoted as the primary location for main town centre uses including retail, 
leisure, cultural and office development.  Policy RET3 of the SADPD confirms main town centre 
uses should be located in designated centres, and then in edge-of-centre locations, and only if 
suitable sites are not available or expected to become available within a reasonable period, 
should out of centre sites be considered.  RET3 also includes locally set thresholds for impact 
tests (ranging between 200sqm and 500sqm).  Policy RET5 includes general requirements for 
restaurants, cafés, pubs and hot food takeaways. 
 
Sequential test 
Circular 01/2022 “Strategic road network and the delivery of sustainable development” states 
that the primary function of roadside facilities is to support the safety and welfare of road users.  
This is achieved by providing opportunities for the travelling public to stop and take a break 
during their journey.  The network of signed roadside facilities on the SRN is intended to provide 

Page 50



 
OFFICIAL 

opportunities to stop at intervals of approximately half an hour, or a maximum distance between 
signed MSAs should be 28 miles.   
 
As is detailed further below, this application seeks to reduce the number of gaps that exist in 
MSA provision within the area, and as such has very specific locational requirements.  In this 
regard, paragraph 012 of the Town Centres and Retail Planning Practice Guidance 
acknowledges this, and states that: 
“Use of the sequential test should recognise that certain main town centre uses have particular 
market and locational requirements which mean that they may only be accommodated in 
specific locations. Robust justification will need to be provided where this is the case, and land 
ownership does not provide such a justification.” 
 
In terms of the sequential test, given that all of the town centre uses that form the MSA 
collectively (retail, restaurant, drive-through and hotel) are to serve the travelling public, and to 
support the safety and welfare of those using the M56 motorway, it is not considered that there 
are any sequentially preferable sites that could accommodate a development for this purpose.   
 
Impact test 
The application form indicates that the proposed amenity building has a gross internal 
floorspace of 6498sqm, and the hotel has a gross internal floorspace of 3533sqm.  The total 
floorspace of main town centre uses therefore far exceeds the thresholds set out in the 
Framework and policy RET3.  Whilst the applicant considers that the proposed MSA is not a 
main town centre use, an impact assessment has been provided to respond to local concerns 
regarding the diversion of trade from local centres.  The site can be accessed easily from the 
local road network, and not just the motorway, so the possibility does exist for people from 
surrounding areas to visit the site as a destination itself, and not just passing traffic on the 
motorway network.  
 
Health checks of nearby centres (Altrincham, Hale, Bowdon, Lymm and Knutsford) have been 
completed which highlight that these centres are all vital and viable serving an important role 
as local retail, leisure, and service destination for their surrounding areas. There is a good mix 
of retailers with many independent retailers supported by some national retailers. Vacancies 
across the centres are below national averages.  
 
There is no known existing, committed or planned public and private investment in a centre or 
centres that would be adversely affected by the proposed development. 
 
The applicant’s retail statement states that there will be new and diverted trade to the proposed 
MSA.  They maintain that the diverted trade will be from facilities at the beginning or end of 
journeys, other MSAs on the strategic highway network and potentially other roadside facilities 
in the area.  After that, any diversion from existing retail facilities and town centres will be so 
widespread and to such a low extent, there will be negligible impacts felt by any protected town 
centre.  The submitted impact assessment calculates that there will be a less than 1% impact 
of the development on nearby centres. 
 
Given the relative health of the identified centres and limited trade diversion, it is considered 
that the proposals will not result in a significant adverse impact on any nearby centres and as 
such is considered to fully accord with retail policy tests within national and local policy.  

Page 51



 
OFFICIAL 

Conditions relating to the proposed floorspace and how it is used are recommended to ensure 
the development operates as assessed and that nearby centres are appropriately protected.  
 
Energy efficient development  
 
Policy SE9 of the CELPS expects non-residential development over 1,000 square metres to 
secure at least 10 per cent of its predicted energy requirements from decentralised and 
renewable or low carbon sources, unless the applicant can clearly demonstrate that having 
regard to the type of development and its design, this is not feasible or viable.  It also states 
that non-residential development of 10,000 square metres gross floor space should install a 
site-wide district heating network, where feasible and viable.  Policy ENV7 of the SADPD 
requires development proposals to incorporate measures that can adapt and/or demonstrate 
resilience to climate change and mitigate its impacts. 
 
The isolated nature of the site makes district heating unfeasible as an energy solution, coupled 
with the high capital cost and future maintenance associated with it.  However, a range of 
energy efficient initiatives are proposed. 
 
The submitted energy strategy highlights that there are two main targets that it seeks to 
address: 

1. To support the planning application and in particular to ensure at least 10% of the 
project’s predicted annual energy consumption (kWh) is met from decentralised and 
renewable or low carbon sources (Policy SE9).  

2. To meet the project sustainability aspiration of reducing building regulated carbon 

emissions (kg CO₂/m²) by 50% compared to Part L of the Building Regulations 
(December 2021) for a building heated by natural gas. 

 
(Regulated carbon is a term used in the Building Regulations for emissions associated with 
heating, cooling, pumps, fans, lighting etc. Emissions associated with ‘plug in loads’ and 
catering for example are not included.) 
 
Policy SE9 states that the council will look favourably upon development that follows the 
principles of the Energy Hierarchy and seeks to achieve a high rating under schemes such as 
BREEAM (for non-residential development). For non-residential development, this will be 
especially so where the standard attained exceeds that required by the current Building 
Regulations (or as updated). 
 
In accordance with the Energy Hierarchy, the proposed development has looked at reducing 
energy demand prior to considering energy generation from renewable sources.  The following 
passive measures have been included in the design of each building: 
 

 Site layout - The orientation of each building has been developed to reduce unwanted 
solar heat gain in summer and maximise solar energy generation. 

 Topography – New trees have the potential to provide shading to the western glazed 
areas of the amenity building. 

 Shading – Shading provisions have been modelled and the impact on predicted energy 
reduction demonstrated to all buildings. 

Page 52



 
OFFICIAL 

 Daylighting – The buildings are afforded good levels of natural daylight. As such, daylight 
linking lighting controls are proposed to reduce the energy output of artificial lighting 
accordingly. 

 Thermal performance (U-value) - The lower the U-value the lower the energy transferred 
through the construction fabric. Analysis of the Hotel and Amenity Building has shown 
that reducing the U-value to 20% lower than the Building Regulation ‘Notional Building’ 
values reduces energy consumption and it is proposed these values are implemented. 
A reduction in the U-values of the Fuel Barn does not provide similar energy 
improvements and so it is proposed to retain the U-values for the Fuel Barn in line with 
the ‘Notional Building’. 

 
Turning to renewable energy sources, the technologies recommended in the applicant’s energy 
strategy for the proposed development are;  

(i)  Amenity Building; Ground Source Heat Pump (GSHP) + Solar Thermal water 
heating  

(ii)  MSA Hotel; GSHP + Solar Thermal water heating  
(iii) Fuel Barn; Air Source Heat Pump + Solar Thermal water heating  

 
These measures would achieve Building Regulation compliance for each of the buildings.  
Further measures required to achieve a 10% reduction in total predicted annual energy 
consumption required by policy SE9 would be provided by electricity generation using 
photovoltaics.  It is also anticipated that this would meet the applicant’s target of reducing 
building regulated carbon emissions by 50% compared to Part L of the Building Regulations 
(December 2021) for a building heated by natural gas. 
 
The details above relate only to the three main new buildings within the development, whereas 
policy SE9 requires 10% of the development’s predicted energy requirements to come from 
decentralised and renewable or low carbon sources.  The proposed development will have a 
greater energy requirement than just from these three buildings.  The energy strategy does not 
refer to the use of renewables relative to the total predicted energy requirements of the 
development.  More specifically, the energy requirement for the EV charging points is not 
included. 
 
However, given the anticipated electricity demand of the proposed electric vehicle charging 
strategy, it is unlikely that this can be achieved.  The amenity building, the hotel, fuel barn and 
the number of vehicle charge points predicted by 2038 would require an 8.45MVA electrical 
supply from the District Network Operator (DNO).  The applicant explains that providing this 
level of network capacity would be challenging due to infrastructure costs and electrical 
availability charges.  It therefore follows that providing 10% of the predicted energy requirement 
of the development via renewable sources is unlikely to be feasible or viable in this case.  
However, no specific details have been submitted to demonstrate this. 
 
It should be noted that the applicant is committing to providing 96 EV charging points by 2038, 
which is a significant amount, and is in line with the national strategy to phase out petrol and 
diesel cars.  Therefore, whilst the EV charging points will not be powered by on-site renewable 
energy sources, they will contribute to an overall reduction in carbon emissions by increasing 
the availability of EV charging points for an increased number of electric vehicles. 
 

Page 53



 
OFFICIAL 

The move away from petrol and diesel vehicles will inevitably result in other low carbon fuel 
technologies coming forward, such as hydrogen and compressed natural gas.  Given the 
relatively early stages of development for such fuels, they have not been included within the 
current proposals.  However, the applicant has confirmed that the site is being developed with 
flexibility in mind to allow for the incorporation of alternative low carbon fuels in the future to 
reflect demand. 
 
Consequently, as it has not been demonstrated that the development will secure at least 10% 
of its predicted energy requirements from decentralised and renewable or low carbon sources, 
there is conflict with policy SE9.  Taken in isolation this is considered to attract substantial 
weight against the proposal.  However, the high energy demand (that will not be provided by 
renewables on site) is created by the applicant’s commitment to provide 96 EV charging points, 
which carries considerable weight as a benefit of the proposal.  As such, taking the energy 
proposals as a whole, it is considered reasonable to reduce the overall weight afforded to the 
harm arising from the identified conflict with policy SE9 from substantial to limited. 
 
It is recommended that an energy strategy is required by condition, to ensure that the amount 
of renewable energy generation is maximised on the site (for the existing buildings as well as 
the new buildings), given that the 10% target of local plan policies is unlikely to be achieved for 
the development as a whole, but will potentially be exceeded for the major new buildings on 
the site. 
 
Other considerations 
 
Need 
The applicant’s position that there is a need for a MSA in this location and that they can meet 
that need with the current proposals. 
 
The Department for Transport (DfT) Circular 01/2022 ‘Strategic road network and the delivery 
of sustainable development’ explains how National Highways will: 

 engage with the planning system 

 fulfil its remit to be a delivery partner for sustainable economic growth whilst maintaining, 
managing and operating a safe and efficient strategic road network 

 
It addresses the requirements for roadside facilities, including heavy goods vehicles (HGVs) 
driver services and new provisions for zero emissions vehicles. 
 
Both the National Planning Policy Framework and Circular 01/2022, confirm that: "The primary 
function of roadside services should be to support the safety and welfare of the road user". 
 
Circular 01/2022 explains that all roadside facilities that are accessed directly from a motorway 
or motorway junction must be signed for safety reasons. As such, new or improved facilities 
must meet the minimum requirements for signing as set out in the Circular. 
 
Roadside facilities perform an important safety function by providing opportunities for the 
travelling public to stop and take a break during their journey. Government advice is that 
motorists should stop and take a break of at least 15 minutes every 2 hours. 
 

Page 54



 
OFFICIAL 

The network of signed roadside facilities on the Strategic Road Network (SRN) is intended to 
provide opportunities to stop at intervals of approximately half an hour. However, the timing is 
not prescriptive as travel between services may take longer on congested parts of the SRN.  
Paragraph 76 of Circular 01/2022 states that on this basis, maximum distance between signed 
motorway service areas (MSAs) should be 28 miles.  
 
Drivers of many heavy goods and public service vehicles are subject to a regime of statutory 
breaks and other working time restrictions such that roadside facilities are critical to ensure 
compliance with these requirements. Paragraph 80 of Circular 01/2022 recognises that on 
certain parts of the SRN and at certain times a shortage of parking facilities for HGVs can make 
it difficult for drivers to find safe space to stop and adhere to requirements for mandatory breaks 
and rests. The maximum distance between motorway facilities providing HGV parking (being 
service areas, rest areas or truckstops) should be no more than 14 miles. 
 
Paragraph 78 of the Circular explains that when determining applications for new or improved 
sites, local planning authorities should not need to consider the merits of spacing between 
different facilities, for safety reasons, as informed by the maximum recommended distances 
set out above. 
 
A Gap Analysis report has been submitted with the application which identifies the gaps 
exceeding 28 miles between MSAs, along routes using the SRN involving part or all of the M56 
between the M6 and Manchester, where this route on the SRN is either the shortest route or a 
reasonable alternative route. 
 
The Gap Analysis identifies that for journeys undertaken on routes on the identified SRN, there 
are 20 gaps in MSA provision on 10 routes that exceed the 28-mile distance set out in Circular 
01/2022 (i.e. there is a gap in both directions of travel on each of the 10 routes).  
 
Of the gaps identified, only 5 of them are the shortest SRN route via the M56 junction 7/8.  For 
the other 15 gaps shorter routes along other parts of the SRN exist between the relevant points.  
However, the previous version of Circular 01/2022 (Circular 02/2013), which set out the same 
maximum 28-mile distance between MSAs, stated that the distance was appropriate for all parts 
of the strategic road network regardless of traffic flows or route choice.  Whilst Circular 01/2022 
makes no reference to route choice, it is considered to be a sensible approach to consider 
reasonable alternative routes within the gap analysis, even where those routes may be longer.  
If there are accidents or congestion on the shortest route, then the longer route may be taken, 
or a driver may be more familiar with a certain route or simply wish to avoid a route. 
 
Any alternative route to be considered should be a reasonable alternative, as some routes are 
unlikely to be taken.  The gap analysis report uses the following example: 
A driver could travel from the western end of M58 north of Liverpool and take a  
circuitous route to the M56 Chester MSA via the M60 on the east side of Manchester, without 
passing a single MSA. However, this route is 83 miles and the shortest dual carriageway route 
(via the M57 and Runcorn) is 25 miles and the shortest route wholly on the SRN (using the 
M58, M6 and M56) is 42 miles. 
 
The applicant has used a three-step process to identify reasonable route choices: 

 Firstly, if the route is likely to use either of the east-west motorways between the M6 and 
Manchester (the M56 or M62) in whole or in part. 

Page 55



 
OFFICIAL 

 Secondly, if using the M56 between the M6 and Manchester in whole or in part is the 
shortest route; and 

 Thirdly, if using the M56 between the M6 and Manchester in whole or in part is not the 
shortest route but is a reasonable alternative (as defined below). 

 
In the gap analysis report the applicant has taken reasonable alternative routes as one that 
either: 

 has a negligible difference in length; or 

 has a greater than negligible but still small increase in length that is a reasonable choice 
for a driver to make and digital mapping / satellite navigation is likely to direct drivers on 
this route, this is more likely during rush hour periods where there is regular congestion 
at certain critical points in the SRN such as at M60/M62 Junction 12. 

  
Table 3 below, taken from the applicant’s Gap Analysis Report, provides a summary of the 
relevant gaps in MSA provision, whether the SRN route via the M56 J7/8 is the shortest, what 
the increased distance is for the SRN route via J7/8, and whether that route is a reasonable 
alternative. 
 

 
Table 3:  Gaps in MSA provision  

 
The MSA gaps, using the same colouring as above, are illustrated in Figure 1 below.  The gaps 
shown take into consideration the recently approved (3 May 2022) MSA at Warrington on the 
M62 motorway.  It should be noted that none of the proposed routes pass by the approved 
Warrington MSA. 
 

Page 56



 
OFFICIAL 

 
Figure 1: Gaps in MSA provision 

 
 
Also of relevance to these identified gaps is the fact that the M6 Knutsford MSA only has 
provision for HGVs to park in emergencies.  Whilst HGV parking is usually required at an MSA, 
the service area provision in this area is split between Knutsford MSA immediately south of 
Junction 19 (without full HGV parking) and Lymm Truckstop at M6 Junction 20, which in 
combination provide sufficient overall parking for all road users on this section of the M6. SRN 
routes using the A556 do not pass the Lymm facility so HGVs would have to stop at Sandbach 
MSA on the M6, which is 12 miles south of Knutsford MSA.  Consequently, there is a longer 
gap in provision for HGVs on a number of routes. Table 4 below identifies these additional HGV 

Page 57



 
OFFICIAL 

gaps (using same methodology as above).  6 of the HGV gaps shown in the table below are on 
the same routes as those identified in Table 3 but are extended due to the lack of HGV parking 
at Knutsford.  The other 2 gaps are gaps on an additional route (not identified in Table 3). 
 

 
Table 4: Additional HGV gaps 
 

Figure 2 illustrates the location of the additional HGV gaps. 
 

 
Figure 2: Additional HGV gaps 

 
Table 5 below then shows journey times along the routes with gaps in MSA provision based on 
average speeds for an HGV travelling at 56mph and a light vehicle at 70mph. These do not 
take into account variable speed limits that may be in place or planned via Smart Motorway 
technology, congestion or incidents that can be present on a route. 

Page 58



 
OFFICIAL 

 

 

Page 59



 
OFFICIAL 

 

 
Table 5 Distance & Travelling Time between MSAs 

 
Based on the maximum spacing of 28 miles as stated in DfT Circular 01/2022, and taking each 
direction separately, the applicant’s submitted gap analysis report identifies 20 gaps in MSA 
provision, and a further 8 gaps (6 extended and 2 new) in MSA provision for HGVs due to 

Page 60



 
OFFICIAL 

Knutsford MSA only providing emergency HGV parking.  Gaps range from 30.3 miles to 52.8 
miles. 
 
Table 6 indicates what effect the introduction of the proposed M56 Tatton MSA will have upon 
the identified gaps: 
 

 

 

Page 61



 
OFFICIAL 

Table 6 – Effect of proposed MSA on gaps 

 
Based on the above the following nine gaps in MSA provision would no longer exist if the 
proposed MSA is provided: 

 M56 Chester MSA to the eastern end of M67 (and vice versa); 

 M6 Knutsford MSA to M62 Birch MSA (and vice versa); 

 M62 Burtonwood MSA to the eastern end of M67 (and vice versa); 

 M6 Charnock Richard MSA to the eastern end of M67; and 

 M62 Birch MSA to M6 Knutsford MSA (and vice versa). 
 
All of the remaining gaps are also reduced in length by the provision of the proposed MSA.  The 
construction of the proposed MSA would also result in some gaps being duplicated.  For 
example the gaps between M6 Knutsford MSA and M61 Bolton MSA, and M56 Chester MSA 
to M61 Bolton MSA, would be reduced to gaps between Tatton MSA and M61 Bolton MSA, and 
vice versa.  Therefore, only the following seven gaps in MSA provision (from the original 20) 
would remain if the Tatton MSA is provided: 

 M56 Tatton MSA to M61 Bolton MSA (and vice versa); 

 M56 Tatton MSA to the northern end of M66 (and vice versa); 

 M56 Tatton MSA to the western end of M58 (and vice versa); and 

 M56 Tatton MSA to M6 Charnock Richard MSA 
 

These gaps are shown in Figure 2 below. 

Page 62



 
OFFICIAL 

 
Figure 2: Residual MSA gaps if Tatton MSA is provided 

 
In terms of HGVs the following additional HGV gaps would no longer exist following introduction 
of the proposed MSA at Tatton: 

 M6 Sandbach MSA to M62 Birch MSA (and vice versa); and 

 M6 Sandbach MSA to the end of M67 (and vice versa). 
The remaining gaps would be the same as those for MSAs as outlined above. 
 
The proposed location of the MSA therefore makes a significant contribution towards highway 
safety and the wellbeing of users of the SRN in this location by removing or reducing all of the 
20 identified gaps.  Given the number of gaps it removes or reduces, and the associated road 
safety benefits, is considered to attract very substantial weight. 
 
As noted by National Highways in their consultation response, the proposals would increase 
the amount of HGV parking within the area, in line with the requirements set out in DfT Circular 
01/2022, which also attracts substantial weight in favour of the proposal. 
 

Page 63



 
OFFICIAL 

Lymm Truckstop 
The significance of Lymm Truckstop also needs to be considered alongside the above 
information.  The presence of Lymm Truckstop has been referred to within the points made in 
representation against the proposed development. Lymm Truckstop is located at M6 Junction 
20 (and junction 9 of M56). This is signed from the motorway network as a Truckstop and does 
not meet the criteria set out in DfT Circular 01/2022 for an MSA.  As Lymm is a Truckstop and 
not a MSA, the presence of Lymm has been disregarded from the applicant’s analysis of gaps 
in MSA provision.  In this area, the service area provision is split between Lymm Truckstop and 
Knutsford MSA (which does not have full HGV parking). The next provision to the south is then 
at Sandbach. 
 
A letter submitted on behalf of Moto (June 2023), who operate Lymm Truckstop, suggests the 
applicant’s characterisation of Lymm is at best incomplete and at worst disingenuous.  Moto 
recognise that Lymm is signed for trucks from the M6, but from the M56 it is signed as ‘Services’. 
Although neither of these signage arrangements identify that Lymm is a ‘Motorway Service 
Area’ within the context of Circular 01/2022, this does not detract from fact that Lymm acts as 
a vital facility for users of the SRN. As such, Moto maintain that by omitting Lymm Services 
from their Gap Analysis Report, the applicant distorts the provision of motorway services within 
the locality and, in turn, overstates the importance that the proposed development at Tatton is 
proclaimed to be providing. 
 
Table 1 of Annex A of Circular 01/2022 sets out the minimum requirements for roadside facilities 
to be eligible for signing from the SRN, and Table 2 sets out parking requirements at motorway 
service areas.  Lymm Truckstop appears to have all the mandatory requirements to be eligible 
for signing from the SRN, which include: 

 Available 24 hours a day 

 2 hours free parking 

 Lighting & CCTV 

 Free toilets / handwashing facilities 

 Shower/washing facilities for HGV drivers 

 Fuel – petrol / diesel / EVC 

 Free telephone for emergency use / wifi and power points 
 

However, it does not meet the parking requirements for MSAs as set out in Table 2 of Annex 
A.  Despite, this Lymm Truckstop is considered to be a material consideration as it does provide 
a facility for road users to stop and take a break during their journey, even though it is not 
defined as a MSA. 
 
On 30th January 2023 Moto submitted an outline planning application for the extension and 
conversion of Lymm services to create an MSA from the M56 and improved truck stop off the 
M6 (ref. 2023/00142/OUTM).  Increased parking provision is a key part of this application.  The 
application form outlines a proposed increase of car parking numbers from 316 to 628; and 
increase of HGV parking from 305 to 368 and an increase in parking for caravans from 0 to 17 
to support the proposed dual status of the proposed roadside facility.  This demonstrates what 
parking provision would be required for it to qualify as a signed MSA serving the M56 only, and 
the shortfall that currently exists.   
 
In terms of the existing situation with Lymm, whilst Lymm does provide a facility for drivers to 
stop and rest, and is a material consideration in this case, it does not have the capacity to 

Page 64



 
OFFICIAL 

accommodate the numbers of parking spaces required by a MSA (as set out in Circular 
01/2022) in the interests of road safety.  It therefore does not function as a MSA as set out in 
Circular 01/2022, and does not result in the same highway safety benefits as an MSA.  This 
limits the weight to be afforded to it as an alternative to the current proposals.   
 
At the time of writing, a holding recommendation (until 14 September 2023) was the latest 
response on the planning application to extend Lymm truckstop from National Highways who 
have raised a number of concerns regarding the data that supports the application, but they 
also state explicitly that “the site cannot have dual status” of a MSA from the M56 and a 
Truckstop from the M6.  They also note that if Lymm was to be a MSA, it would have implications 
for the Knutsford roadside facility, which would need to be amended to the status of “Motorway 
Rest Area”, as the Knutsford site does not meet the requirements to be considered a MSA in 
its own right. 
 
The planning application for extended facilities at Lymm therefore appears to be stalled, with 
several matters to be resolved. As such, having regard to the status of that application, the 
concerns raised by National Highways, including them not supporting the concept of a dual use 
(of MSA and Truckstop) as proposed, and the absence of any indication that these concerns 
can be resolved, the weight that can be attributed to the proposals at Lymm and the associated 
planning application is very limited at this time.  Even if the Lymm extension scheme was 
eventually approved, gaps which the current application proposals remove, would still remain.   
 
Added to this, paragraph 80 of Circular 01/2022 recognises that at certain times / locations a 
shortage of parking facilities for HGVs can make it difficult for drivers to find safe space to stop 
and adhere to requirements for mandatory breaks and rests. The Circular states that to alleviate 
the shortage, the expansion of existing facilities on the SRN is likely to be needed alongside 
the creation of new parking sites. As a result, existing truckstops (including closed facilities) on 
or near to the SRN must be retained for their continued and future use unless it can be clearly 
demonstrated that a need no longer exists.  Therefore, whilst the outcome of the Lymm 
application is currently unknown, due to the concerns raised by National Highways regarding 
the proposed dual use of the facilities at Lymm, the current situation suggests Lymm must be 
either a Truckstop from both motorways or a MSA from both motorways.  If the Lymm 
application was amended to propose a signed MSA from the M56 and a signed MSA from the 
M6 this would raise further questions.  It is assumed that either more land would be required, 
or a reduction in HGV parking spaces would be required, in order to accommodate the required 
car parking spaces.  More land, if available, would likely mean a new planning application would 
be required, and a reduction in HGV spaces would run contrary to the specific objective of the 
Circular to retain existing truck stops.  
 
Alternative Sites 
An Alternative Sites Assessment has been submitted with the application that looks at 
alternative locations for a MSA that would address the gaps in the G 
ap Analysis Report. 
 
Paragraph 84 of Circular 01/2022 explains that on-line (between junctions) service areas are 
more accessible to users of the SRN and as a result more conducive to encouraging drivers to 
stop and take a break. They also help to avoid an increase in traffic demand at junctions with 
all-purpose roads.  However, where an on-line service area cannot be delivered due to 
planning, safety, operational or environmental constraints, the development of a site that shares 

Page 65



 
OFFICIAL 

a common boundary with the highway at a junction with the SRN, and which provides the 
mandatory requirements to be eligible for signing as set out in table 1 of Annex A, is to be 
preferred to the continued absence of facilities. 
 
For an online site to be deliverable, there needs to be sufficient space for slip roads to be 
constructed in accordance with the weaving standards set out in DMRB.  This states that the 
minimum weaving section shall be 2km for motorways in rural areas, and that weaving 
assessments are to be undertaken for distances between 2km and 3km.  The number of gaps 
to be closed by a proposed MSA location was also considered in the Alternative Sites 
Assessment.  
 
From this the following sites were taken forward to the next stage to identify whether any had 
sufficient land to accommodate a MSA: 

 M6 / M56 J20 / J9 (8 MSA gaps, Lymm expansion site) 

 M56 Broomedge (8 MSA gaps, online site) 

 M56 J8/7 (9 MSA gaps, the Application Site and junction site) 

 M56 Junctions 3, 4, 5 and 6 (16 MSA gaps at each, junction sites) 

 M56 Junction 3A (12 MSA gaps, junction site) 

 M60 Junction 5 (12 MSA gaps, junction site 
 

Once the amount of required land was taken into account, the following remained as potential 
sites (as shown in Figure 3): 

 M6 / M56 J20 / J9 (Lymm expansion/ junction MSA) – 2 sites, 'Lymm 1' and 'Lymm 2' 

 M56 Broomedge online MSA – 2 sites, 'Broomedge 1' and 'Broomedge 2'; and 

 M56 J8/7 junction MSA – 2 sites, 'Tatton 1' and 'Tatton 2' (the Application Site) 
 

 
Figure 3 – Potential MSA Sites 

 
The Broomedge sites were the only online sites remaining, all sites are located in the Green 
Belt, and all of the sites closed a similar number of gaps (8 or 9).  All 6 sites were then taken to 
the third stage of site selection. 
 

Page 66



 
OFFICIAL 

Individual site appraisals were then undertaken assessing each site against a range of 
environmental criteria.  Table 7 below summarises the environmental impacts identified by the 
applicant’s assessment.  The higher the mark the better the site performed against the stated 
criteria. 
 

 
Table 7: Summary of Environmental Impacts 
 

The site at Lymm 1 would be an expansion of the existing facilities at Lymm on land adjacent 
to the existing Truck stop.  In terms of gaps closed the potential sites at Broomedge and Lymm 
were found to close 8 MSA gaps, whereas the application site would close 9 MSA gaps in total.  
Whilst the Broomedge was an online site, and preferable in terms of MSA provision, it closed 1 
less gap than the application site.  It did not close the gap in both directions between Knutsford 
and Birch, which the application site would.  If Broomedge was taken forward as the site for an 
MSA, this gap would remain.  Consequently, the application site was identified as the most 
suitable site for a MSA to meet the safety and welfare needs of motorists using the M56 on the 
identified SRN, and no preferable alternatives exist.  
 
Socio economic issues 
The application site (land and some of the buildings) is currently occupied by a local farming 
business on a short term, seasonal and non-secure basis as part of a wider full-time business.  
The proposal will result in the loss of 13ha of the best and most versatile agricultural land, and 
the site as whole will not be available for the current business or any other local business for 
the purposes of agriculture in the future. 
 
Chapter 6 of the Environmental Statement outlines the socio-economic impacts of the 
development.  It states that there should be 207 direct construction jobs supported on site per 
annum over the estimated build time of up to two years.  The ES also states that the 
development could support an additional 352 indirect jobs in the wider economy per annum 
over the construction phase.  Up to £66.4million of Gross Value Added could also be generated 
over the two-year build period.   
 
In terms of the operational phase the proposed MSA is estimated to support 234 full-time 
equivalent (FTE) jobs on-site, generate around £9.2million of GVA per annum, pay business 
rates of approximately £628,000 per annum and pay around £4.7million in staff wages per 
annum once it is fully developed and operational. 
 
The Planning Statement submitted with the application explains that the applicant’s existing 
MSAs are unique in their industry as they operate without franchises.  Their MSAs include farm 
shops and kitchens that include homemade food and produce from local suppliers, actively 
linking with the local community.  In this regard, the applicant seeks to commit to a target of 
15% of the value of all goods and services used during construction will be sourced from 

Page 67



 
OFFICIAL 

individual and businesses within a 10 miles radius of the site.  In addition they intend to partner 
with at least 50 businesses within a radius of 30 miles of the site, including measures to ensure 
local businesses, industries and trade groups are aware of opportunities relating to the 
provision of goods and services during operation. It is proposed to secure this within a s106 
agreement. Several letters of support have been received from local business groups. 
 
The applicant is also willing to commit to a local employment agreement via a s106 agreement, 
which will include: 

 A target that at least 15% of the total number of jobs available during construction will 
be taken by residents within 10 miles of the Site.  

 A target that at least 60% of the total number of jobs available during operation will be 
taken by residents within 10 miles of the Site. 

 The owner will endeavour to employ no less than 3 construction trade apprentices, and 
that the minimum qualification which apprentices will work towards is NVQ Level 2 

 The owner will endeavour to employ no less than 10 apprentices during operation of the 
MSA, and that the minimum qualifications which apprentices will work towards is NVQ 
Level 2.  

 
The applicant also proposes to include a Tourist Information Area within the site to provide 
information about places, attractions, destinations and events of interest to tourists and visitors 
to the area.  Details of this can be secured by condition. 
 
It should however also be noted that some of the letters of representation objecting to the 
proposals suggest that Altrincham is not an area of high unemployment, there are many similar 
jobs to those that would be provided at the MSA, and that there is no need for low paid jobs.  
Whilst these comments are acknowledged, the economic benefits including significant job 
creation, are considered to be a significant benefit of the proposal.  Taken together with the 
other stated economic benefits, a commitment to employment and training for local people 
during construction and operation, and a commitment to work with at least 50 local businesses 
within a 30-mile radius of the site, these benefits are considered to attract substantial weight in 
favour of the proposal. 
 
Heads of Terms 
 
Draft heads of terms for a s106 agreement have been submitted by the applicant.  This includes 
securing the following: 
 

 Off-site highways works  
This can be dealt with by condition as recommended by National Highways 

 Sustainable Travel and Transport Plan 
This can be dealt with by condition 

 Local Employment – Construction  
is recommended that this is secured by s106 agreement 

 Local Employment – Operation 
It is recommended that this is secured by s106 agreement 

 Apprenticeships – Construction Phase 
It is recommended that this is secured by s106 agreement 

 Apprenticeships – End-user Phase 
It is recommended that this is secured by s106 agreement 

Page 68



 
OFFICIAL 

 Local Procurement – Construction 
It is recommended that this is secured by s106 agreement 

 Local Procurement – Operation 
It is recommended that this is secured by s106 agreement 

 Construction Management Plan 
This can be dealt with by condition 

 Pedestrian / cycle path improvements 
This can be dealt with by condition 

 Biodiversity Net Gain 
This can be dealt with by condition 

 Yarwoodheath Covert Improvement Works 
This can be dealt with by condition  

 EV Charging Points 
This can be dealt with by condition 

 Energy Strategy 
This can be dealt with by condition 

 Tourist Information Area 
This can be dealt with by condition 

 Works to Yarwood Heath Farm Buildings 
This can be dealt with by condition 

 
From the above, it is currently considered that only the employment and training, and local 
procurement obligations should be secured as part of a s106 agreement.  Should that position 
change following further discussions members will be update in advance of the committee. 
 
It is therefore recommended that should the application be approved a s106 agreement with 
the following Heads of Terms is required: 

 Local Employment Agreement – Construction  

 Local Employment Agreement – Operation 

 Apprenticeships Plan – Construction Phase 

 Apprenticeships Plan – End-user Phase 

 Local Procurement Agreement – Construction 

 Local Procurement Agreement – Operation 
 

 
CIL Regulations 
These requirements are considered to be necessary to make the development acceptable in 
planning, are directly related to the development, and are fairly and reasonably related in scale 
and kind to the development. 
 
Planning Balance  
 
Harm 
The proposed development is an inappropriate form of development in the Green Belt, which 
does not preserve openness and conflicts with the purposes of Green Belt by encroaching into 
the countryside.  Inappropriate development is, by definition, harmful to the Green Belt and 
should not be approved except in very special circumstances.  Paragraph 148 of the Framework 
states that local planning authorities should ensure that substantial weight is given to any harm 

Page 69



 
OFFICIAL 

to the Green Belt.   ‘Very special circumstances’ will not exist unless the potential harm to the 
Green Belt by reason of inappropriateness, and any other harm resulting from the proposal, is 
clearly outweighed by other considerations. 
 
Whilst the design rationale of reinventing a traditional farmstead in a contemporary context is a 
very positive aspect of the scheme, and in the wider context the site is physically contained by 
the SRN, the scale of the development, the extent of car parking, lighting and the level of activity 
associated with the operation of the MSA, will have a localised urbanising effect upon what is 
currently open farmland.  As such there will be a harmful impact upon the character of the area, 
to a moderate degree, which is likely to reduce over time, having regard to these particular site 
circumstances and proposed landscaping.  Moderate weight is attached to this harm. 
 
The loss of a category A Oak tree, the loss of semi mature trees recorded on the National 
Forest Inventory, and the loss of hedgerows, which all contribute towards the amenity, 
biodiversity, landscape character or historic character of the surrounding area, attract moderate 
weight against the proposal.  As does the loss of 13ha of the best and most versatile (BMV) 
agricultural land.  
 
The proposals would cause a slight change in significance and cause minor harm to the non-
designated asset of Yarwood Heath Farmhouse through loss of fabric/built form and changes 
to its setting and the change in character from agricultural to an operational MSA.  This minor 
harm attracts very limited weight, when considered in the context and design principles of the 
scheme overall.   
 
Finally, in terms of harm, it has not been demonstrated that the development will secure at least 
10% of its predicted energy requirements from decentralised and renewable or low carbon 
sources, and therefore there is harm arising due to the conflict with policy SE9.  For the reasons 
previously given, limited weight it attributed to this harm. 
 
Benefits 
Balanced against this harm is the need for a MSA in this location. Circular 01/2022 sets out the 
government’s policy on the provision of roadside facilities on or near to the SRN and their 
eligibility for signing.  This document explains that the network of signed roadside facilities on 
the SRN is intended to provide opportunities to stop at intervals of approximately half an hour 
and sets out clearly that the maximum distance between signed motorway service areas should 
be 28 miles.   
 
The submitted gap analysis report identifies gaps over 28 miles between MSAs, along routes 
using the SRN involving part or all of the M56 between the M6 and Manchester, where this 
route on the SRN is either the shortest route or a reasonable alternative route.  This report 
identifies 20 gaps on 10 routes.   5 of the gaps are the shortest SRN route via the M56, and the 
other 15 are reasonable alternative routes where shorter routes do exist. 
 
The application proposals would close 9 of the identified gaps and reduce the 11 remaining 
gaps to a maximum of 33.4 miles.  This compares to the existing situation of 20 gaps ranging 
between 30.3 miles to 52.8 miles, and even longer gaps for HGVs.   
 
Circular 01/2022 states that the maximum distance between signed MSAs should be 28 miles 
in the interests of road safety, and the application site closes more gaps over 28 miles than any 

Page 70



 
OFFICIAL 

of the other alternative sites examined.  Arguably 1 gap in MSA provision could be enough to 
demonstrate the need for a MSA, and therefore as the proposal closes a total of 9 gaps, and 
reduces 11, the proposal unequivocally serves an important road safety function which, given 
the number of gaps it removes or reduces, and the associated road safety benefits, is 
considered to attract very substantial weight. 
 
As noted by National Highways in their consultation response, the proposals would increase 
the amount of HGV parking within the area, in line with the requirements set out in DfT Circular 
01/2022, which also attracts substantial weight in favour of the proposal. 
 
Lymm Truck Stop lies a short distance from the application site, accessed from both the M6 
and M56, and is also material consideration as it does provide a facility for road users to stop 
and take a break during their journey, even though it is not defined as a MSA.  Whilst Lymm 
has most of the facilities required for a signed MSA (as set out in Circular 01/2002), it does not 
meet the parking requirements for a MSA.  The existing number of car park spaces are stated 
in a current application to extend the site as 316.  These 316 parking spaces are to serve the 
travelling public on both the M6 and M56. The application seeks to increase this to 628 to 
support their proposal for a dual use of Truck Stop from the M6 and signed MSA from the M56.  
This demonstrates what parking provision would be required for it to qualify as a signed MSA 
serving the M56 only, and the shortfall that currently exists.  If the M6 was included as a MSA 
as well, in order to address the National Highways comments that the “site cannot have dual 
status” the parking requirement would significantly increase even further.  Therefore, whilst 
Lymm does provide a facility for drivers to stop and rest, it does not have the capacity to 
accommodate the numbers of parking spaces required by a MSA (as set out in Circular 
01/2022) in the interests of road safety.  Only limited weight can therefore be attached to the 
presence of the existing Lymm Truckstop as an alternative to the current proposals. 
 
The 28 miles distance referred to in Circular 01/2022 specifically refers to MSAs and not 
roadside facilities in general.  In the context of this current application, and the gaps identified, 
Lymm’s contribution to providing opportunities for drivers to stop and take a break, are relatively 
limited due to its capacity issues.  National Highways currently have a holding recommendation 
to the planning application that seeks to extend the facilities at Lymm.  They do not support the 
dual status (MSA and Truck Stop) of that site.  MSAs have specific capacity requirements, 
which Lymm falls well short of.  To qualify as a MSA from both the M6 and M56 the parking 
requirement for a MSA based on traffic flows from both motorways would undoubtedly be 
significantly more than is currently proposed.  The proposals at Lymm therefore appear to be 
stalled, with several matters to be resolved. As such, its potential as an alternative site can only 
be given very limited weight at this time.  Even if Lymm Truck Stop was given increased weight 
as a rest facility for travellers, gaps which the application proposals remove would still remain.  
Therefore, there are no preferred alternative sites for a MSA to address the identified gaps in 
provision, which carries substantial weight in favour of the current proposal.  
 
The proposal has economic benefits including significant job creation which, notwithstanding 
the comments from some local residents, are considered to be a very tangible benefit of the 
proposal, together with other stated economic benefits, a commitment to employment and 
training for local people during construction and operation, and a commitment to work with at 
least 50 local businesses within a 30-mile radius of the site.  Collectively these benefits are 
considered to attract substantial weight in favour of the proposal. 
 

Page 71



 
OFFICIAL 

The design approach of the farmstead, including the retention of the original farmhouse and 
the eastern barn and the rebuilding of the western barn in a similar form, relates well to the local 
area, and together with significant areas of landscaping and open space is a positive feature of 
the proposal.  The net gain for biodiversity of 17% in habitats and 12% in hedgerows, the 
upgrading of the existing Cycle Track through the site along Yarwood Heath Lane complete 
with underpass beneath the MSA access road, and the provision of a TOUCAN crossing at the 
Bowdon South roundabout to improve pedestrian/cycle connectivity are all further positive 
aspects of the development. 
 
There is considered to be neutral or acceptable impacts upon matters relating to contaminated 
land, controlled waters, noise, air quality, living conditions, flood risk and drainage, highways 
and town centres subject to relevant conditions. 
 
Overall, the identified benefits of the proposed development are considered to clearly outweigh 
the harm to the Green Belt by reason of inappropriateness and the other identified harm in this 
case.  Very special circumstances are therefore considered to exist.   
 
Referral to Secretary of State 
 
It should be noted that due to the scale and nature of the proposal, being inappropriate 
development in the Green Belt, the application will need to be referred to the Secretary of State 
under the requirements of The Town and Country Planning (Consultation) (England) Direction 
2021.  Therefore, any resolution to approve will be subject to the outcome of this process. 
 
CONCLUSIONS 
 
The proposal is inappropriate development in the Green Belt, which reduces openness and 
encroaches into the countryside, results in the loss of BMV, trees and hedgerows of local value, 
results in some minor harm to a non designated heritage asset, has an adverse impact upon 
the character and appearance of the area, and does not provide 10% of the predicted energy 
requirements from renewable or decentralised sources.  However, this harm is clearly 
outweighed by the need for the proposal and the associated highway safety benefits, the 
economic benefits of the scheme, the opportunities for local businesses, the employment and 
training opportunities, and the design approach to the extent that very special circumstances 
exist.  Accordingly, the application is recommended for approval subject to a s106 agreement 
to secure the Heads of Terms below, the following conditions, and consultation with the 
Secretary of State. 
 
Heads of Terms 
 

 Local Employment Agreement – Construction  

 Local Employment Agreement – Operation 

 Apprenticeships Plan – Construction Phase 

 Apprenticeships Plan – End-user Phase 

 Local Procurement Agreement – Construction 

 Local Procurement Agreement – Operation 
 
 
 

Page 72



 
OFFICIAL 

Conditions 
 

1. Time period – 3 years 

2. Development to be carried out in accordance with approved plans 

3. Details of materials to be submitted 

4. Sample panel of brickwork to be submitted 

5. Details of all windows and doors of farmhouse, eastern and western barn to be 

submitted 

6. Detailed repair schedule for works to the farmhouse and eastern barn to be submitted 

7. Timetable for the construction of the cycle store (western barn) to be submitted 

8. Methodology/strategy for the dismantling of the western barn and for the re-use of the 

salvaged brick work within the new cycle store to be submitted 

9. Lighting scheme to be submitted 

10. Updated badger survey prior to commencement. 

11. Safeguarding of nesting birds – details to be submitted 

12. Submission and implementation of a Construction Environmental Management Plan 

(CEMP) informed by the recommendations of the ES ecology chapter. 

13. Submission and implementation of Biodiversity Net Gain measures and 30 years 

(habitat) management informed by the submitted biodiversity metric. 

14. Incorporation of ecological features (Bat and bird boxes etc.) 

15. Scheme to install underground tanks to be submitted  

16. Scheme to dispose of surface water to be submitted 

17. Sustainable drainage management and maintenance plan to be submitted 

18. plan for the lifetime of the development 

19. Retention of existing trees 

20. Tree protection and special construction measures to be submitted / implemented 

21. Arboricultural method statement to be submitted 

22. Landscaping scheme to be submitted  

23. Landscaping implementation 

24. Boundary treatment details to be submitted 

25. Details of earthworks, including proposed grading and mounding of land to be 

submitted 

26. Landscape management plan to be submitted 

27. Full design and construction details of highway improvement works to be submitted 

28. Installation of fence along the boundary of the application site alongside the M56 and 

associated slip road  

29. No drainage from the proposed development shall connect into the motorway drainage 

system / or run-off onto M56 motorway 

30. Construction Management Plan to be submitted (highways) 

31. Implementation of highway improvement works and works to Yarwood Heath Lane 

32. Submission of updated travel plan 

33. Provision of car and cycle parking 

34. SuDS design details to be submitted (aircraft safety) 

35. Bird Hazard Management Plan to be submitted (aircraft safety) 

36. All exterior lighting capped at the horizontal with no upward light spill. 

37. No reflective materials other than clear or obscure glass shall be added to the buildings 

Page 73



 
OFFICIAL 

38. Glint and glare assessment for proposed solar panels – no additional solar panels to 

be installed 

39. Method statements to be submitted in advance of any development in HS2 

safeguarding areas  

40. Retail floorspace  to be restricted (extent of floorspace and comparison goods) 

41. Submission of Construction Environment Management Plan (noise, disturbance, etc.) 

42. Implementation of noise mitigation measures (including glazing specification for hotel) 

43. Details of phasing of EV charging points to be submitted 

44. Energy Strategy to be submitted 

45. Phase II ground investigation report (and remediation strategy if required) to be 

submitted 

46. Verification report in accordance with the approved Remediation Strategy to be 

submitted 

47. Imported soil to be tested for contamination 

48. Actions in event of unidentified contamination being found 

49. Written scheme of investigation (archaeology) to be submitted and implemented 

50. Detail of Tourist Information Area to be submitted 

 

 

 
 
 
 

 
 

Page 74



 
OFFICIAL 

 

P
age 75



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

 

22/0872M 

LAND BETWEEN 

JUNCTIONS 7 AND 8  

OF THE M56  

P
age 77



T
his page is intentionally left blank



P
age 79



T
his page is intentionally left blank



P
age 81



T
his page is intentionally left blank



© Planit I.E. Limited

A1
Size

Planit I.E. Limited

LEEDS
No.1 Aire Street, Leeds Station, Leeds, LS1 4PR
T: 0113 824 6413

MANCHESTER 
2 Back Grafton St , Altrincham, WA14 1DY
T: 0161 928 9281

E: info@planit-ie.com W: planit-ie.com

Project Tatton Motorway Service Area

Client Tatton Services

Stage 2
Workstage

2607-PLA-XX-XX-DR-L-0004
Drg No.

1:1250
Scale

03.08.22
Created on

SAB
Created by

GB
Approved by

Drg Title Highway Boundary Plan

 

Suitability

S4
Revision

P05

STANDISH
Standish Gatehouse, Stonehouse, Gloucestershire, GL10 3BZ
T: 0145 360 7080

Drawn Apprvd.DateRevision Description

 

LONDON
Unit 6 Waterside, 44-48 Wharf Road, London, N1 7UX
T: 0207 253 5678

LIVERPOOL
Tempest 5.3, 12 Tithebarn Street, Liverpool, L2 2DT
T: 0151 363 1230

NOTES:
1. Do not scale from this drawing.
2. Always work to noted dimensions.
3. All dimensions are in millimetres unless otherwise stated.
4. All setting out, levels and dimensions to be agreed on site.
5. The dimensions of all materials must be checked on site before being laid out.
6. This drawing must be read with the relevant specification clauses and detail 
drawings.
7. Order of construction and setting out to be agreed on site.

S4-P01 03-08-22 Planning SAB

THIS DRAWING IS COPYRIGHT PROTECTED AND MAY NOT BE 
REPRODUCED IN WHOLE OR PART WITHOUT WRITTEN 
AUTHORITY FROM THE OWNER.

C

KEY

Ruin

Bollin

Dr
ai

n

W
ar

d 
Bd

y

The Cheshire

Covert

Gantry

Birkin Brook

M 56

River

YARW
OODHEATH LANE

De
f

Yarwood Heath Farm

CH
ES

TE
R 

RO
AD

29.3m

Yarwoodheath

Ponds

CR

(Telecommunication)

37
41

00

37
41

50

37
42

00

37
42

50

37
43

00

37
43

50

37
44

00

37
44

50

37
45

00

37
45

50

37
46

00

37
46

50

37
47

00

37
47

50

37
48

00

37
48

50

37
49

00

37
49

50

Plant
Kitchen

Dining
Shop

External 
Condensers

Kitchen Store

Store

Colleague
Room

Linen
Store

1

2

3

6

4

5

1

2

3

6

4

5

Heat Generation
Equipment

Water Tanks
circa 40sqm

Pumps, expansion and
pressurisation plant

Plant

Cash Office

Tills

Food Counter

Male
WCs

Dishwash
Dishwash

Store

Children's
Play

Retail
Store

Food
 Prep Area

Kitchen

Female
WCs

Shower &
Family Rooms

Coffee

Kitchen

U
P

COSHH
Room

U
P

Office Switch
Room

RisersMVHR
Area

2
2

0
0

x
1

8
0

0
 1

3
P

Food Counter

Sandwiches One Pot Bakery

2
2

0
0

x
1

8
0

0
 1

3
P

2
2

0
0

x
1

8
0

0
 1

3
P

Kitchen
Store

2 2 0 0 x 1 8 0 0  1 3 P

U P

SCH 2.71

DH 1.93

1100l 

Compactor

1100l 

1100l 

Compactor

1100l 

1100l 

360l 660l

1100l 

360l

1100l 1100l 

1100l 

360l 660l

1100l 

360l

1100l 1100l 

1100l 

360l 660l

1100l 

360l

1100l 1100l 

1100l 

360l 660l

1100l 

360l

Bin Store

+34m

+35m

+32.5m

+34m

+34m

+32m

+34m

+32m

+31.2m

+31m

+31.5m

+30.7m

+31.5m

+30.9m

+30.4m (ex)

+30.3m (ex)

+30.399m (ex)

+29.855m (ex)

+29.855m (ex)

+29.790m (ex)

+29.604m (ex)

+29.403m (ex)

+29.500m (ex)

+29.500m (ex)

+29.200m (ex)

+29.300m (ex)

+28.700m (ex)

Highway boundary 
based at bottom of slip 
road embankment

Bund height at 2m or 
greater in relation to 
highway boundary levels

Bund height falls  slightly 
below 2m (1.5-2m approx) 
compared to highway 
boundary levels 

Bund height around 1.5m 
(approx) above existing 
highway boundary levels 

Bund height falls  slightly 
below 2m (1.5-2m approx) 
compared to highway 
boundary levels 

Bund height at 2m or 
greater in relation to 
highway boundary levels

+23.300m (existing 
bottom of bund level)

+23.400m  (existing bottom of bund level)

+23.400m (existing bottom of bund level)

0m 5 10 15 20

Scale Bar (m)

0 10 20 30 5040

S c a le  B a r  (m )

0 5 1 01 2 3 4

S c a le  B a r  (m )

0 1 .00 .5 2 .0

0m 5 10 15
S c a le  B a r  (m )

0 51 2 3 4

GB

Proposed post and mesh fence - 
1.2m high along existing line of 
highway boundary

Illustrative image - Post and mesh fencing

Existing fencing currently on site

S4-P02 20-12-22 Planning CB GB
S4-P03 05-01-23 Planning JTO GB
S4-P04 20-02-23 Planning JTO GB
S4-P05 31-08-23 Planning JTO GB

P
age 83



T
his page is intentionally left blank



P
age 85



T
his page is intentionally left blank



© Planit I.E. Limited

A1
Size

Planit I.E. Limited

LEEDS
No.1 Aire Street, Leeds Station, Leeds, LS1 4PR
T: 0113 824 6413

MANCHESTER 
2 Back Grafton St , Altrincham, WA14 1DY
T: 0161 928 9281

E: info@planit-ie.com W: planit-ie.com

Project Tatton Motorway Service Area

Client Tatton Services

Stage 2
Workstage

2607-PLA-XX-XX-DR-L-0003
Drg No.

1:1250
Scale

06.08.21
Created on

SAB
Created by

GB
Approved by

Drg Title Tree Retention and Removal

 

Suitability

S4
Revision

P04

STANDISH
Standish Gatehouse, Stonehouse, Gloucestershire, GL10 3BZ
T: 0145 360 7080

Drawn Apprvd.DateRevision Description

 

LONDON
Unit 6 Waterside, 44-48 Wharf Road, London, N1 7UX
T: 0207 253 5678

LIVERPOOL
Tempest 5.3, 12 Tithebarn Street, Liverpool, L2 2DT
T: 0151 363 1230

NOTES:
1. Do not scale from this drawing.
2. Always work to noted dimensions.
3. All dimensions are in millimetres unless otherwise stated.
4. All setting out, levels and dimensions to be agreed on site.
5. The dimensions of all materials must be checked on site before being laid out.
6. This drawing must be read with the relevant specification clauses and detail 
drawings.
7. Order of construction and setting out to be agreed on site.

S4-P01 06-08-21 Planning SAB

THIS DRAWING IS COPYRIGHT PROTECTED AND MAY NOT BE 
REPRODUCED IN WHOLE OR PART WITHOUT WRITTEN 
AUTHORITY FROM THE OWNER.

C

KEY

Ruin

Bollin

Dr
ai

n

W
ar

d 
Bd

y

The Cheshire

Covert

Gantry

Birkin Brook

M 56

River

YARW
OODHEATH LANE

De
f

Yarwood Heath Farm

CH
ES

TE
R 

RO
AD

29.3m

Yarwoodheath

Ponds

CR

(Telecommunication)

37
41

00

37
41

50

37
42

00

37
42

50

37
43

00

37
43

50

37
44

00

37
44

50

37
45

00

37
45

50

37
46

00

37
46

50

37
47

00

37
47

50

37
48

00

37
48

50

37
49

00

37
49

50

W1 (A)

W1 (A)

W1 (B)

W1 (C)

H5

H5

H4

H3

H3

H3

H2

H2

H1

H1

G4

G3

G2

G1

G1

T13

T12

T11

T10

T9

T8

T7

T6T5

T4

T3

T2

T1

0m 5 10 15 20

Scale Bar (m)

0 10 20 30 5040

Scale Bar (m)

0 5 101 2 3 4

Scale  Bar (m)

0 1.00.5 2.0

0m 5 10 15
Scale Bar (m)

0 51 2 3 4

Planning application boundary  

Existing Trees to be removed (red fill)
Refer to categories below (outline colour)

Root Protection Area 

CATEGORY A: High Quality (green 
outline)  

CATEGORY B: Moderate Quality
(blue outline)   

CATEGORY C: Low Quality
(grey outline)    

Existing Trees to be retained (green fill)
Refer to categories below (outline colour)

Tree Reference Code To Tree SurveyT1

TREE SURVEY

RED LINE BOUNDARY

Existing area of highways buffer planting to 
be removed and replaced to accomodate 
new levels.

Existing Hedgerow  to be removed (red fill)

Existing Hedgerow  to be retained (green fill)

Refer to tree schedule 0302-1128-TS-V1 (SEED - arb) for 
additional information on Existing trees. 

S4-P02 29-10-21 Planning SAB
GB
GB

S4-P03 08-12-21 Planning SAB GB
S4-P04 08-12-21 Planning SAB GB

P
age 87



T
his page is intentionally left blank



© Planit I.E. Limited

A1
Size

Planit I.E. Limited

LEEDS
No.1 Aire Street, Leeds Station, Leeds, LS1 4PR
T: 0113 824 6413

MANCHESTER 
2 Back Grafton St , Altrincham, WA14 1DY
T: 0161 928 9281

E: info@planit-ie.com W: planit-ie.com

Project Tatton Motorway Service Area

Client Tatton Services

Stage 2
Workstage

2607-PLA-XX-XX-DR-L-1000
Drg No.

1:1250
Scale

06.08.21
Created on

SAB
Created by

GB
Approved by

Drg Title Hardworks

 

Suitability

S4
Revision

P09

STANDISH
Standish Gatehouse, Stonehouse, Gloucestershire, GL10 3BZ
T: 0145 360 7080

Drawn Apprvd.DateRevision Description

 

LONDON
Unit 6 Waterside, 44-48 Wharf Road, London, N1 7UX
T: 0207 253 5678

LIVERPOOL
Tempest 5.3, 12 Tithebarn Street, Liverpool, L2 2DT
T: 0151 363 1230

NOTES:
1. Do not scale from this drawing.
2. Always work to noted dimensions.
3. All dimensions are in millimetres unless otherwise stated.
4. All setting out, levels and dimensions to be agreed on site.
5. The dimensions of all materials must be checked on site before being laid out.
6. This drawing must be read with the relevant specification clauses and detail 
drawings.
7. Order of construction and setting out to be agreed on site.

S4-P01 06-08-21 Planning SAB

THIS DRAWING IS COPYRIGHT PROTECTED AND MAY NOT BE 
REPRODUCED IN WHOLE OR PART WITHOUT WRITTEN 
AUTHORITY FROM THE OWNER.

C

KEY

Ruin

Bollin

Dr
ai

n

W
ar

d 
Bd

y

The Cheshire

Covert

Gantry

Birkin Brook

M 56

River

YARW
OODHEATH LANE

De
f

Yarwood Heath Farm

CH
ES

TE
R 

RO
AD

29.3m

Yarwoodheath

Ponds

CR

(Telecommunication)

37
41

00

37
41

50

37
42

00

37
42

50

37
43

00

37
43

50

37
44

00

37
44

50

37
45

00

37
45

50

37
46

00

37
46

50

37
47

00

37
47

50

37
48

00

37
48

50

37
49

00

37
49

50

Plant
Kitchen

Dining
Shop

External 
Condensers

1

2

3

6

4

5

1

2

3

6

4

5

Kitchen Store

Store

Colleague
Room

Linen
Store

1

2

3

6

4

5

1

2

3

6

4

5

1

2

3

6

4

5

Heat Generation
Equipment

Water Tanks
circa 40sqm

Pumps, expansion and
pressurisation plant

Plant

Cash Office

Tills

Food Counter

Male
WCs

Dishwash
Dishwash

Store

Children's
Play

Retail
Store

Food
 Prep Area

Kitchen

Female
WCs

Shower &
Family Rooms

Coffee

Kitchen

U
P

COSHH
Room

U
P

Office Switch
Room

RisersMVHR
Area

2
2

0
0

x
1

8
0

0
 1

3
P

Food Counter

Sandwiches One Pot Bakery

2
2

0
0

x
1

8
0

0
 1

3
P

2
2

0
0

x
1

8
0

0
 1

3
P

Kitchen
Store

2 2 0 0 x 1 8 0 0  1 3 P

U P

SCH 2.71

DH 1.93

1100l 

Compactor

1100l 

1100l 

Compactor

1100l 

1100l 

360l 660l

1100l 

360l

1100l 1100l 

1100l 

360l 660l

1100l 

360l

1100l 1100l 

1100l 

360l 660l

1100l 

360l

1100l 1100l 

1100l 

360l 660l

1100l 

360l

Bin Store

Orbital footpath/pram 
/wheelchair route

0m 5 10 15 20

Scale Bar (m)

0 10 20 30 5040

S c a le  B a r  (m )

0 5 1 01 2 3 4

S c a le  B a r  (m )

0 1 .00 .5 2 .0

0m 5 10 15
S c a le  B a r  (m )

0 51 2 3 4

Planning application boundary  

HRA SURFACING WITH COLOURED CHIPPINGS
to access roads, HGV, coach and caravan parking

HRA surfacing with buff pre coated chippings 
with a clear, non-pigmented binder.  Applied at a 
minimum rate of 10kg/m2 to achieve average 
texture depth of 12mm.

HRA SURFACING
to access roads, HGV, coach, staff and caravan 
parking

INSITU CONCRETE WITH AN EXPOSED 
AGGREGATE FINISH (COARSE)
to parking bays and central circulation

Insitu Concrete Surface with exposed
aggregate finish.  Bespoke matrix colour and 
aggregate mix TBC (aggregate to be a coarse 
mix of buff colours ).
INSITU CONCRETE WITH AN EXPOSED 
AGGREGATE FINISH (FINE)
to pedestrian spaces and routes

Insitu Concrete Surface with exposed
aggregate finish.  Bespoke matrix colour and 
aggregate mix TBC (aggregate to be a fine mix of 
buff colours ).

RESIN BOUND/BONDED GRAVEL
to cycle routes and pedestrian access tracks
Resin bound or bonded gravel with natural buff 
tones. 

SELF BOUND GRAVEL
to pedestrian walking loops
Self bound breedon gravel in natural buff tones.  

LOOSE GRAVEL
to Hotel Garden
Loose fine gravel in buff and grey tones.  

SANDSTONE COBBLE AND PAVING SETTS
To Kitchen and Hotel Gardens
Sawn and tumbled with a sand blasted top 

ANTI-SLIP TIMBER DECKING
to bridged access routes and feature areas of the 
Kitchen Garden.

EXISTING MOT FARM TRACK RETAINED

INSITU CONCRETE WITH A BRUSHED FINISH
To Fuel filling station forecourt

PLAY BARK
Bark surfacing to play areas

HARDWORKS

S4-P02 29-10-21 Planning SAB
GB
GB

S4-P03 15-11-21 Planning SAB GB
S4-P04 08-12-21 Planning SAB GB
S4-P05 17-02-22 Planning SAB GB
S4-P06 20-12-22 Planning CB GB
S4-P07 05-01-23 Planning JTO GB
S4-P08 20-02-23 Planning JTO GB
S4-P09 31-08-23 Planning JTO GB

P
age 89



T
his page is intentionally left blank



© Planit I.E. Limited

A1
Size

Planit I.E. Limited

LEEDS
No.1 Aire Street, Leeds Station, Leeds, LS1 4PR
T: 0113 824 6413

MANCHESTER 
2 Back Grafton St , Altrincham, WA14 1DY
T: 0161 928 9281

E: info@planit-ie.com W: planit-ie.com

Project Tatton Motorway Service Area

Client Tatton Services

Stage 2
Workstage

2607-PLA-XX-XX-DR-L-2000
Drg No.

1:1250
Scale

06.08.21
Created on

SAB
Created by

GB
Approved by

Drg Title Softworks

 

Suitability

S4
Revision

P11

STANDISH
Standish Gatehouse, Stonehouse, Gloucestershire, GL10 3BZ
T: 0145 360 7080

Drawn Apprvd.DateRevision Description

 

LONDON
Unit 6 Waterside, 44-48 Wharf Road, London, N1 7UX
T: 0207 253 5678

LIVERPOOL
Tempest 5.3, 12 Tithebarn Street, Liverpool, L2 2DT
T: 0151 363 1230

NOTES:
1. Do not scale from this drawing.
2. Always work to noted dimensions.
3. All dimensions are in millimetres unless otherwise stated.
4. All setting out, levels and dimensions to be agreed on site.
5. The dimensions of all materials must be checked on site before being laid out.
6. This drawing must be read with the relevant specification clauses and detail 
drawings.
7. Order of construction and setting out to be agreed on site.

S4-P01 06-08-21 Planning SAB

THIS DRAWING IS COPYRIGHT PROTECTED AND MAY NOT BE 
REPRODUCED IN WHOLE OR PART WITHOUT WRITTEN 
AUTHORITY FROM THE OWNER.

C

KEY

Ruin

Bollin

Dr
ai

n

W
ar

d 
Bd

y

The Cheshire

Covert

Gantry

Birkin Brook

M 56

River

YARW
OODHEATH LANE

De
f

Yarwood Heath Farm

CH
ES

TE
R 

RO
AD

29.3m

Yarwoodheath

Ponds

CR

(Telecommunication)

37
41

00

37
41

50

37
42

00

37
42

50

37
43

00

37
43

50

37
44

00

37
44

50

37
45

00

37
45

50

37
46

00

37
46

50

37
47

00

37
47

50

37
48

00

37
48

50

37
49

00

37
49

50

Plant
Kitchen

Dining
Shop

External 
Condensers

Kitchen Store

Store

Colleague
Room

Linen
Store

1

2

3

6

4

5

1

2

3

6

4

5

Heat Generation
Equipment

Water Tanks
circa 40sqm

Pumps, expansion and
pressurisation plant

Plant

Cash Office

Tills

Food Counter

Male
WCs

Dishwash
Dishwash

Store

Children's
Play

Retail
Store

Food
 Prep Area

Kitchen

Female
WCs

Shower &
Family Rooms

Coffee

Kitchen

U
P

COSHH
Room

U
P

Office Switch
Room

RisersMVHR
Area

2
2

0
0

x
1

8
0

0
 1

3
P

Food Counter

Sandwiches One Pot Bakery

2
2

0
0

x
1

8
0

0
 1

3
P

2
2

0
0

x
1

8
0

0
 1

3
P

Kitchen
Store

2 2 0 0 x 1 8 0 0  1 3 P

U P

SCH 2.71

DH 1.93

1100l 

Compactor

1100l 

1100l 

Compactor

1100l 

1100l 

360l 660l

1100l 

360l

1100l 1100l 

1100l 

360l 660l

1100l 

360l

1100l 1100l 

1100l 

360l 660l

1100l 

360l

1100l 1100l 

1100l 

360l 660l

1100l 

360l

Bin Store

0m 5 10 15 20

Scale Bar (m)

0 10 20 30 5040

S c a le  B a r  (m )

0 5 1 01 2 3 4

S c a le  B a r  (m )

0 1 .00 .5 2 .0

0m 5 10 15
S c a le  B a r  (m )

0 51 2 3 4

Planning application boundary  

Semi-mature tree planting
To car parks, gardens and entrance routes. 

Native buffer mix
To boundary mounds and areas of screening

Existing area of woodland buffer mix 
planting, and retained grassland

Species rich lawn and wildflower 
planting
20% Wildflower
80% Species rich lawn 

Aquatic planting 
to the edges of permanent water bodies

Native Hedgerow Planting

Ornamental planting
to main pedestrian spine, kitchen and 
hotel garden

Rain garden planting
to semi-permanent water/drainage 
features

Growing space
within kitchen gardens and east of MSA

Existing Trees retained

Existing hedgerow retained

SOFTWORKS

S4-P02 28-09-21 Planning SAB
S4-P03 29-10-21 Planning SAB

GB
GB
GB

Growing space
within kitchen gardens and east of MSA

Refer to Design and Access Statement for detailed planting 
schedules of proposed species mixes. 

S4-P04 15-11-21 Planning SAB GB
S4-P05 08-12-21 Planning SAB GB
S4-P06 14-12-21 Planning SAB GB
S4-P07 17-02-22 Planning SAB GB
S4-P08 09-12-22 Planning CB GB
S4-P09 05-01-23 Planning JTO GB
S4-P10 20-02-23 Planning JTO GB
S4-P11 31-08-23 Planning JTO GB

P
age 91



T
his page is intentionally left blank



P
age 93



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Stmp

Stmp

BWB01

BWB02

BWB03

BWB04

BWB05

T03

Dr
ai

n

W
ar

d 
Bd

y

Birkin Brook

De
f

Ponds

22.64

22.60

22.56

22.64

22.75

22.92

23.25

23.36

A556

A56

Yarwoodheath Lane

Proposed Cycle Track underpass
3.00m wide plus additional
clearance

M56

Connection to existing
alignment of
Yarwoodheath Lane

Proposed vehicle
access to MSA

Existing TOUCAN crossing upgraded
with 4.00m wide staggered refuge island

Proposed pedestrian and
cyclist access to MSA

Diverted pedestrian /
cycle route in the form of
a 3.0m wide shared use
Cycle Track

Diverted pedestrian /
cycle route in the form of
a 3.0m wide shared use
Cycle Track

Improvements to existing
Cycle Track to provide
traffic free 3.0m wide
shared facility

Improvements to existing
shared footway/cycleway
as part of highway works
to Bowdon roundabouts

Existing Yarwoodheath Lane Cycle Track. Improvements
to route to be discussed between
HS2, National Highways and Cheshire East
Council and local landowners

Issues & Revisions
Rev Date Details of issue / revision RevDrw

Birmingham | 0121 233 3322
Leeds | 0113 233 8000

Manchester | 0161 233 4260
London | 020 7407 3879

Nottingham | 0115 924 1100
www.bwbconsulting.com

BWB Ref: Date: Scale@A1:

Drawn: Reviewed:

Drawing Status

Project - Originator - Zone - Level - Type - Role - Number Status

Drawing Title

Project Title

Client

Rev

© Copyright BWB Consulting Ltd
S2M56-BWB-GEN-XX-SK-CH-SK018

FOR INFORMATION

A. King L.Hames

NTH 2346

Yarwoodheath Lane
Walking and Cycling
Proposals

M56 Tatton J7/8 Tatton
Motorway Services Area

Tatton Services Ltd

1:100010.09.21

P05

P01 10.09.21 Preliminary Issue LHAK

Notes
1. Do not scale this drawing. All dimensions must be checked/ verified

on site. If in doubt ask.

2. This drawing is to be read in conjunction with all relevant architects,
engineers and specialists drawings and specifications.

3. All dimensions in millimetres unless noted otherwise. All levels in
metres unless noted otherwise.

4. Any discrepancies noted on site are to be reported to the engineer
immediately.

Y:\NTH\NTH2346_M56 J7-8 MSA\02. Project Delivery\01. WIP\Sketches\M56-BWB-GEN-XX-SK-CH-SK018_Yarwoodheath Lane walking and cycling proposals.dwg

APPROX

Key

Existing footway/cycleway or cycle track removed

Diverted cycle track including underpass

Proposed private pedestrian/cyclist access to MSA

Existing footway/cycleway or cycle track upgraded as part
of MSA development including upgraded TOUCAN crossing

Existing footway/cycleway or cycle track unaffected by MSA

P02 16.02.22 Masterplan update and labels amended SHAK

P03 17.02.22 Legend amended SHSRH

P04 20.12.22 SRHSRHMasterplan amended

P05 10.02.23 SRHSRHMasterplan amended

P
age 95



T
his page is intentionally left blank



P
age 97



T
his page is intentionally left blank



P
age 99



T
his page is intentionally left blank



P
age 101



T
his page is intentionally left blank



P
age 103



T
his page is intentionally left blank



P
age 105



T
his page is intentionally left blank



P
age 107



T
his page is intentionally left blank



P
age 109



T
his page is intentionally left blank



P
age 111



T
his page is intentionally left blank



P
age 113



T
his page is intentionally left blank



P
age 115



T
his page is intentionally left blank



P
age 117



T
his page is intentionally left blank



© Planit I.E. Limited

A1
Size

Planit I.E. Limited

LEEDS
No.1 Aire Street, Leeds Station, Leeds, LS1 4PR
T: 0113 824 6413

MANCHESTER 
2 Back Grafton St , Altrincham, WA14 1DY
T: 0161 928 9281

E: info@planit-ie.com W: planit-ie.com

Project Tatton Motorway Service Area

Client Tatton Services

Stage 2
Workstage

2607-PLA-XX-XX-DR-L-3000
Drg No.

VARIES
Scale

06.08.21
Created on

SAB
Created by

GB
Approved by

Drg Title Long Site sections - Sheet 1

 

Suitability

S4
Revision

P08

STANDISH
Standish Gatehouse, Stonehouse, Gloucestershire, GL10 3BZ
T: 0145 360 7080

Drawn Apprvd.DateRevision Description

 

LONDON
Unit 6 Waterside, 44-48 Wharf Road, London, N1 7UX
T: 0207 253 5678

LIVERPOOL
Tempest 5.3, 12 Tithebarn Street, Liverpool, L2 2DT
T: 0151 363 1230

NOTES:
1. Do not scale from this drawing.
2. Always work to noted dimensions.
3. All dimensions are in millimetres unless otherwise stated.
4. All setting out, levels and dimensions to be agreed on site.
5. The dimensions of all materials must be checked on site before being laid out.
6. This drawing must be read with the relevant specification clauses and detail 
drawings.
7. Order of construction and setting out to be agreed on site.

THIS DRAWING IS COPYRIGHT PROTECTED AND MAY NOT BE 
REPRODUCED IN WHOLE OR PART WITHOUT WRITTEN 
AUTHORITY FROM THE OWNER.

C

RIVER BOLLINM56 SLIP ROADSPROPOSED MOUND AND
BUFFER PLANTING

PROPOSED MOUND AND
BUFFER PLANTING

M56

SITE BOUNDARYSITE BOUNDARY

AMENITY BUILDING PROFILE OF EXISTING FARM BUILDINGSPROPOSED FUEL BARN

EXISTING BUFFER
PLANTING

EXISTING BUFFER
PLANTING

M56 SLIP ROAD

Long site section 1
Scale: 1:1500S1

BOLLIN VALLEY WAY

SIGHT LINE FROM 
BOLLIN VALLEY WAY

30
0030

00

Long site section 2
Scale: 1:750S2

PROPOSED MOUND AND
BUFFER PLANTING

SITE BOUNDARY

PROPOSED MOUND AND
BUFFER PLANTING

EXISTING MOUND AND
BUFFER PLANTING

PROPOSED ATTENUATION
PONDS

PROPOSED FORMAL
WATER FEATURE

PROPOSED FORMAL
WATER FEATURE

HOTEL AMENITY BUILDING M56 SLIP ROAD

PROPOSED
PEDESTRIAN/
CYCLE ROUTE

20
00

30
00

Long site section 3
Scale: 1:750S3

EXISTING MOUND AND
BUFFER PLANTINGSITE BOUNDARY

PROPOSED BUFFER
PLANTING

SITE BOUNDARY

CARAVAN PARKINGFUEL FILLING STATION FUEL FILLING STATION
CAR PARK

FUEL FILLING STATION
GARDEN

PROPOSED ATTENUATION
PONDACCESS ROAD

PROPOSED
PEDESTRIAN/
CYCLE ROUTE

20
00

S4-P01 06-08-21 Planning SAB

Ruin

& UA Bdy

Def

Castle Hill

26.8m LYMM ROAD

Const

CR

Co Const & UA Bdy

ROUNDABOUT

Boro

Bollin

M
 56

ETL

Dr
ai

n

Const

W
ar

d 
Bd

y

The Cheshire

Co

Lounge

Covert

New Bridge

Gantry

M 56

BOWDO
N

Mast

Birkin Brook

M 56

River

YARW
OODHEATH LANE

De
f

Yarwood Heath Farm

C
H

ES
TE

R
 R

O
AD

29.3m

Yarwoodheath

(PH)

Ponds

M
 56

& Met Dist Bdy

20.7m

Watch Hill
&

29.9m
CR

Issues

Boro Const

M
P

(Telecommunication)

Met Dist Bdy

3
7

4
0

5
0

3
7

4
1

0
0

3
7

4
1

5
0

3
7

4
2

0
0

3
7

4
2

5
0

3
7

4
3

0
0

3
7

4
3

5
0

3
7

4
4

0
0

3
7

4
4

5
0

3
7

4
5

0
0

3
7

4
5

5
0

3
7

4
6

0
0

3
7

4
6

5
0

3
7

4
7

0
0

3
7

4
7

5
0

3
7

4
8

0
0

3
7

4
8

5
0

3
7

4
9

0
0

3
7

4
9

5
0

Def
Watch Hill

A 
56 Sinks

Ordnance Survey, (c) Crown Copyright 2017. All rights reserved. Licence number 100022432

P la n t

K i t c h e n

D in in g
S h o p

E x t e r n a l  

C o n d e n s e r s

Kitchen Store

Store

Colleague
Room

Linen
Store

1

2

3

6

4

5

1

2

3

6

4

5

Heat Generation
Equipment

Water Tanks
circa 40sqm

Pumps, expansion and
pressurisation plant

P l a n t

C a s h  O f f i c e

T i l l s

F o o d  C o u n t e r

M a l e

W C s

D i s h w a s h
D i s h w a s h

S t o r e

C h i l d r e n ' s

P l a y

R e t a i l

S t o r e

F o o d

 P r e p  A r e a

K i t c h e n

F e m a l e

W C s

S h o w e r  &

F a m i l y  R o o m s

C o f f e e

K i t c h e n

C O S H H

R o o m

O f f i c e S w i t c h

R o o m
R i s e r s

M V H R

A r e a

F o o d  C o u n t e r

Sandwiches One Pot Bakery

K i t c h e n

S t o r e

2 2 0 0 x 1 8 0 0  1 3 P

U P

S C H  2 . 7 1

D H  1 . 9 3

1 1 0 0 l  

C o m p a c t o r

1 1 0 0 l  

1 1 0 0 l  

C o m p a c t o r

1 1 0 0 l  

1 1 0 0 l  

3 6 0 l 6 6 0 l

1 1 0 0 l  

3 6 0 l

1 1 0 0 l  1 1 0 0 l  

1 1 0 0 l  

3 6 0 l 6 6 0 l

1 1 0 0 l  

3 6 0 l

1 1 0 0 l  1 1 0 0 l  

1 1 0 0 l  

3 6 0 l 6 6 0 l

1 1 0 0 l  

3 6 0 l

1 1 0 0 l  1 1 0 0 l  

1 1 0 0 l  

3 6 0 l 6 6 0 l

1 1 0 0 l  

3 6 0 l

B i n  S t o r e

Location Plan
Scale: 1:5000P1

S
E

C
TI

O
N

 1

SECTION 2

SECTION 3

S4-P02 17-08-21 Planning SAB
S4-P03 27-08-21 Planning SAB

GB
GB
GB

S4-P04 29-10-21 Planning SAB GB
S4-P05 08-12-21 Planning SAB GB
S4-P06 17-02-22 Planning SAB GB
S4-P07 20-12-22 Planning CB GB
S4-P08 05-01-23 Planning JTO GB

P
age 119



T
his page is intentionally left blank



© Planit I.E. Limited

A1
Size

Planit I.E. Limited

LEEDS
No.1 Aire Street, Leeds Station, Leeds, LS1 4PR
T: 0113 824 6413

MANCHESTER 
2 Back Grafton St , Altrincham, WA14 1DY
T: 0161 928 9281

E: info@planit-ie.com W: planit-ie.com

Project Tatton Motorway Service Area

Client Tatton Services

Stage 2
Workstage

2607-PLA-XX-XX-DR-L-3001
Drg No.

VARIES
Scale

06.08.21
Created on

SAB
Created by

GB
Approved by

Drg Title Long Site sections - Sheet 2

 

Suitability

S4
Revision

P09

STANDISH
Standish Gatehouse, Stonehouse, Gloucestershire, GL10 3BZ
T: 0145 360 7080

Drawn Apprvd.DateRevision Description

 

LONDON
Unit 6 Waterside, 44-48 Wharf Road, London, N1 7UX
T: 0207 253 5678

LIVERPOOL
Tempest 5.3, 12 Tithebarn Street, Liverpool, L2 2DT
T: 0151 363 1230

NOTES:
1. Do not scale from this drawing.
2. Always work to noted dimensions.
3. All dimensions are in millimetres unless otherwise stated.
4. All setting out, levels and dimensions to be agreed on site.
5. The dimensions of all materials must be checked on site before being laid out.
6. This drawing must be read with the relevant specification clauses and detail 
drawings.
7. Order of construction and setting out to be agreed on site.

THIS DRAWING IS COPYRIGHT PROTECTED AND MAY NOT BE 
REPRODUCED IN WHOLE OR PART WITHOUT WRITTEN 
AUTHORITY FROM THE OWNER.

C

S4-P01 06-08-21 Planning SAB

Ruin

& UA Bdy

Def

Castle Hill

26.8m LYMM ROAD

Const

CR

Co Const & UA Bdy

ROUNDABOUT

Boro

Bollin

M
 56

ETL

Dr
ai

n

Const

W
ar

d 
Bd

y

The Cheshire

Co

Lounge

Covert

New Bridge

Gantry

M 56

BOWDO
N

Mast

Birkin Brook

M 56

River

YARW
OODHEATH LANE

De
f

Yarwood Heath Farm

C
H

ES
TE

R
 R

O
AD

29.3m

Yarwoodheath

(PH)

Ponds

M
 56

& Met Dist Bdy

20.7m

Watch Hill
&

29.9m
CR

Issues

Boro Const

M
P

(Telecommunication)

Met Dist Bdy

3
7

4
0

5
0

3
7

4
1

0
0

3
7

4
1

5
0

3
7

4
2

0
0

3
7

4
2

5
0

3
7

4
3

0
0

3
7

4
3

5
0

3
7

4
4

0
0

3
7

4
4

5
0

3
7

4
5

0
0

3
7

4
5

5
0

3
7

4
6

0
0

3
7

4
6

5
0

3
7

4
7

0
0

3
7

4
7

5
0

3
7

4
8

0
0

3
7

4
8

5
0

3
7

4
9

0
0

3
7

4
9

5
0

Def
Watch Hill

A 
56 Sinks

Ordnance Survey, (c) Crown Copyright 2017. All rights reserved. Licence number 100022432

P la n t

K i t c h e n

D in in g
S h o p

E x t e r n a l  

C o n d e n s e r s

Kitchen Store

Store

Colleague
Room

Linen
Store

1

2

3

6

4

5

1

2

3

6

4

5

Heat Generation
Equipment

Water Tanks
circa 40sqm

Pumps, expansion and
pressurisation plant

P l a n t

C a s h  O f f i c e

T i l l s

F o o d  C o u n t e r

M a l e

W C s

D i s h w a s h
D i s h w a s h

S t o r e

C h i l d r e n ' s

P l a y

R e t a i l

S t o r e

F o o d

 P r e p  A r e a

K i t c h e n

F e m a l e

W C s

S h o w e r  &

F a m i l y  R o o m s

C o f f e e

K i t c h e n

C O S H H

R o o m

O f f i c e S w i t c h

R o o m
R i s e r s

M V H R

A r e a

F o o d  C o u n t e r

Sandwiches One Pot Bakery

K i t c h e n

S t o r e

2 2 0 0 x 1 8 0 0  1 3 P

U P

S C H  2 . 7 1

D H  1 . 9 3

1 1 0 0 l  

C o m p a c t o r

1 1 0 0 l  

1 1 0 0 l  

C o m p a c t o r

1 1 0 0 l  

1 1 0 0 l  

3 6 0 l 6 6 0 l

1 1 0 0 l  

3 6 0 l

1 1 0 0 l  1 1 0 0 l  

1 1 0 0 l  

3 6 0 l 6 6 0 l

1 1 0 0 l  

3 6 0 l

1 1 0 0 l  1 1 0 0 l  

1 1 0 0 l  

3 6 0 l 6 6 0 l

1 1 0 0 l  

3 6 0 l

1 1 0 0 l  1 1 0 0 l  

1 1 0 0 l  

3 6 0 l 6 6 0 l

1 1 0 0 l  

3 6 0 l

B i n  S t o r e

Location Plan
Scale: 1:5000P1

SECTION 1

SECTION 2

S
E

C
TI

O
N

 3

SECTION 4

SECTION 5

SECTION 6

Boundary Section 1
Scale: 1:250S1

M56 SLIP ROADEXISTING BUFFER PLANTINGPROPOSED MOUNDING AND
BUFFER PLANTING

EXIT ROAD

HGV BUFFER PLANTING

HGV PARKING

S
IT

E
 B

O
U

N
D

A
R

Y

20
00

Boundary Section 6
Scale: 1:250S6

S
IT

E
 B

O
U

N
D

A
R

Y

EXISTING
ACCESS
TRACK

EXISTING MATURE
TREE PLANTING

PROPOSED BUFFER
PLANTING

PROPOSED BUFFER
PLANTING

SITE EXIT ROUTE

60
00

20
00

Boundary Section 5
Scale: 1:250S5

SITE ACCESS ROUTE

S
IT

E
 B

O
U

N
D

A
R

Y

YARWOODHEATH COVERT

PROPOSED
PEDESTRIAN/CYCLE

ROUTE

PROPOSED BUFFER PLANTING PROPOSED ATTENUATION POND

20
00

Boundary Section 4
Scale: 1:250S4

PROPOSED BUFFER PLANTINGENTRANCE ROAD

PROPOSED
CYCLE/PEDESTRIAN ROUTE

PROPOSED SWALE FEATURE

45
00

Boundary Section 3
Scale: 1:250S3

M56 SLIP ROADEXTENSION TO ROAD
S

IT
E

 B
O

U
N

D
A

R
Y

EXISTING BUFFER
PLANTING

SWALE FEATUREPROPOSED HEDGEROW
PLANTING AND TREES

60
00

EXISTING SCRUB
PLANTING

EXISTING
GRASSLAND

Boundary Section 2
Scale: 1:250S2

M56 SLIP ROAD

EXISTING BUFFER PLANTING

S
IT

E
 B

O
U

N
D

A
R

Y

PROPOSED MOUND AND
BUFFER PLANTING

STAFF/SERVICE
ACCESS ROAD

20
00

S4-P02 17-08-21 Planning SAB
S4-P03 27-08-21 Planning SAB
S4-P04 29-10-21 Planning SAB GB

GB
GB
GB

S4-P05 08-12-21 Planning SAB GB
S4-P06 17-02-22 Planning SAB GB
S4-P07 20-12-22 Planning CB GB
S4-P08 05-01-23 Planning JTO GB
S4-P09 20-02-23 Planning JTO GB

P
age 121



T
his page is intentionally left blank



© Planit I.E. Limited

A1
Size

Planit I.E. Limited

LEEDS
No.1 Aire Street, Leeds Station, Leeds, LS1 4PR
T: 0113 824 6413

MANCHESTER 
2 Back Grafton St , Altrincham, WA14 1DY
T: 0161 928 9281

E: info@planit-ie.com W: planit-ie.com

Project Tatton Motorway Service Area

Client Tatton Services

Stage 2
Workstage

2607-PLA-XX-XX-DR-L-3002
Drg No.

VARIES
Scale

26.10.22
Created on

SAB
Created by

GB
Approved by

Drg Title Long Site sections - Sheet 3

 

Suitability

S4
Revision

P05

STANDISH
Standish Gatehouse, Stonehouse, Gloucestershire, GL10 3BZ
T: 0145 360 7080

Drawn Apprvd.DateRevision Description

 

LONDON
Unit 6 Waterside, 44-48 Wharf Road, London, N1 7UX
T: 0207 253 5678

LIVERPOOL
Tempest 5.3, 12 Tithebarn Street, Liverpool, L2 2DT
T: 0151 363 1230

NOTES:
1. Do not scale from this drawing.
2. Always work to noted dimensions.
3. All dimensions are in millimetres unless otherwise stated.
4. All setting out, levels and dimensions to be agreed on site.
5. The dimensions of all materials must be checked on site before being laid out.
6. This drawing must be read with the relevant specification clauses and detail 
drawings.
7. Order of construction and setting out to be agreed on site.

THIS DRAWING IS COPYRIGHT PROTECTED AND MAY NOT BE 
REPRODUCED IN WHOLE OR PART WITHOUT WRITTEN 
AUTHORITY FROM THE OWNER.

C

M56 SLIP ROADS

SITE BOUNDARY

PROPOSED AMENITY
BUILDING

PROFILE OF EXISTING
FARM BUILDINGS

EXISTING BUFFER PLANTING
TO HIGHWAY VERGE

(Above) Long site section - Year 01
Scale: 1:100001

SIGHT LINE FROM BOLLIN
VALLEY WAY

FOOTPATHPROPOSED NATIVE
WOODLAND BUND WITH

SPECIMEN TREES

3M
BUND

HEIGHT

EXISTING BUFFER
PLANTING TO HIGHWAY

VERGE

EXISTING BUFFER PLANTING AGRICULTURAL FIELD

BOLLIN VALLEY WAY

RIVER BOLLIN

GRASS
VERGE TO
MIDDLE OF
HIGHWAY

ESTABLISHED DECIDUOUS
WOODLAND

WATCH HILL MOTTE & BAILEY
CASTLE

S4-P01 26-10-22 Planning AR

Ruin

& UA Bdy

Def

Castle Hill

26.8m LYMM ROAD

Const

CR

Co Const & UA Bdy

ROUNDABOUT

Boro

Bollin

M
 56

ETL

Dr
ai

n

Const

W
ar

d 
Bd

y

The Cheshire

Co

Lounge

Covert

New Bridge

Gantry

M 56

BOWDO
N

Mast

Birkin Brook

M 56

River

YARW
OODHEATH LANE

De
f

Yarwood Heath Farm

C
H

ES
TE

R
 R

O
AD

29.3m

Yarwoodheath

(PH)

Ponds

M
 56

& Met Dist Bdy

20.7m

Watch Hill
&

29.9m
CR

Issues

Boro Const

M
P

(Telecommunication)

Met Dist Bdy

3
7

4
0

5
0

3
7

4
1

0
0

3
7

4
1

5
0

3
7

4
2

0
0

3
7

4
2

5
0

3
7

4
3

0
0

3
7

4
3

5
0

3
7

4
4

0
0

3
7

4
4

5
0

3
7

4
5

0
0

3
7

4
5

5
0

3
7

4
6

0
0

3
7

4
6

5
0

3
7

4
7

0
0

3
7

4
7

5
0

3
7

4
8

0
0

3
7

4
8

5
0

3
7

4
9

0
0

3
7

4
9

5
0

Def
Watch Hill

A 
56 Sinks

Ordnance Survey, (c) Crown Copyright 2017. All rights reserved. Licence number 100022432

P la n t

K i t c h e n

D in in g
S h o p

E x t e r n a l  

C o n d e n s e r s

Kitchen Store

Store

Colleague
Room

Linen
Store

1

2

3

6

4

5

1

2

3

6

4

5

Heat Generation
Equipment

Water Tanks
circa 40sqm

Pumps, expansion and
pressurisation plant

P l a n t

C a s h  O f f i c e

T i l l s

F o o d  C o u n t e r

M a l e

W C s

D i s h w a s h
D i s h w a s h

S t o r e

C h i l d r e n ' s

P l a y

R e t a i l

S t o r e

F o o d

 P r e p  A r e a

K i t c h e n

F e m a l e

W C s

S h o w e r  &

F a m i l y  R o o m s

C o f f e e

K i t c h e n

C O S H H

R o o m

O f f i c e S w i t c h

R o o m
R i s e r s

M V H R

A r e a

F o o d  C o u n t e r

Sandwiches One Pot Bakery

K i t c h e n

S t o r e

2 2 0 0 x 1 8 0 0  1 3 P

U P

S C H  2 . 7 1

D H  1 . 9 3

1 1 0 0 l  

C o m p a c t o r

1 1 0 0 l  

1 1 0 0 l  

C o m p a c t o r

1 1 0 0 l  

1 1 0 0 l  

3 6 0 l 6 6 0 l

1 1 0 0 l  

3 6 0 l

1 1 0 0 l  1 1 0 0 l  

1 1 0 0 l  

3 6 0 l 6 6 0 l

1 1 0 0 l  

3 6 0 l

1 1 0 0 l  1 1 0 0 l  

1 1 0 0 l  

3 6 0 l 6 6 0 l

1 1 0 0 l  

3 6 0 l

1 1 0 0 l  1 1 0 0 l  

1 1 0 0 l  

3 6 0 l 6 6 0 l

1 1 0 0 l  

3 6 0 l

B i n  S t o r e

SECTION 01
LOCATION PLAN: 1:5000

S4-P02 28-10-22 Planning SAB
GB
GB

M56 SLIP ROADS

SITE BOUNDARY

PROPOSED AMENITY
BUILDING

PROFILE OF EXISTING
FARM BUILDINGS

(Above) Long site section - Year 15
Scale: 1:100002

SIGHT LINE FROM BOLLIN
VALLEY WAY

FOOTPATHPROPOSED NATIVE
WOODLAND BUND WITH

SPECIMEN TREES

3M
BUND

HEIGHT

EXISTING BUFFER PLANTING AGRICULTURAL FIELD

BOLLIN VALLEY WAY

EXISTING BUFFER PLANTING
TO HIGHWAY VERGE

EXISTING BUFFER
PLANTING TO HIGHWAY

VERGE

RIVER BOLLIN

GRASS
VERGE TO
MIDDLE OF
HIGHWAY

ESTABLISHED DECIDUOUS
WOODLAND

WATCH HILL MOTTE & BAILEY
CASTLE

Scale Bar (m)

0 5 10 15 20 25 30 35 40 5045

S4-P03 31-10-22 Planning JTO GB
S4-P04 20-12-22 Planning CB GB
S4-P05 05-01-23 Planning JTO GB

P
age 123



T
his page is intentionally left blank



© Planit I.E. Limited

A1
Size

Planit I.E. Limited

LEEDS
No.1 Aire Street, Leeds Station, Leeds, LS1 4PR
T: 0113 824 6413

MANCHESTER 
2 Back Grafton St , Altrincham, WA14 1DY
T: 0161 928 9281

E: info@planit-ie.com W: planit-ie.com

Project Tatton Motorway Service Area

Client Tatton Services

Stage 2
Workstage

2607-PLA-XX-XX-DR-L-3003
Drg No.

VARIES
Scale

26.10.22
Created on

SAB
Created by

GB
Approved by

Drg Title Long Site sections - Sheet 4

 

Suitability

S4
Revision

P02

STANDISH
Standish Gatehouse, Stonehouse, Gloucestershire, GL10 3BZ
T: 0145 360 7080

Drawn Apprvd.DateRevision Description

 

LONDON
Unit 6 Waterside, 44-48 Wharf Road, London, N1 7UX
T: 0207 253 5678

LIVERPOOL
Tempest 5.3, 12 Tithebarn Street, Liverpool, L2 2DT
T: 0151 363 1230

NOTES:
1. Do not scale from this drawing.
2. Always work to noted dimensions.
3. All dimensions are in millimetres unless otherwise stated.
4. All setting out, levels and dimensions to be agreed on site.
5. The dimensions of all materials must be checked on site before being laid out.
6. This drawing must be read with the relevant specification clauses and detail 
drawings.
7. Order of construction and setting out to be agreed on site.

THIS DRAWING IS COPYRIGHT PROTECTED AND MAY NOT BE 
REPRODUCED IN WHOLE OR PART WITHOUT WRITTEN 
AUTHORITY FROM THE OWNER.

C

S4-P01 22-12-22 Planning CB

Ruin

& UA Bdy

Def

Castle Hill

26.8m LYMM ROAD

Const

CR

Co Const & UA Bdy

ROUNDABOUT

Boro

Bollin

M
 56

ETL

Dr
ai

n

Const

W
ar

d 
Bd

y

The Cheshire

Co

Lounge

Covert

New Bridge

Gantry

M 56

BOWDO
N

Mast

Birkin Brook

M 56

River

YARW
OODHEATH LANE

De
f

Yarwood Heath Farm

C
H

ES
TE

R
 R

O
AD

29.3m

Yarwoodheath

(PH)

Ponds

M
 56

& Met Dist Bdy

20.7m

Watch Hill
&

29.9m
CR

Issues

Boro Const

M
P

(Telecommunication)

Met Dist Bdy

3
7

4
0

5
0

3
7

4
1

0
0

3
7

4
1

5
0

3
7

4
2

0
0

3
7

4
2

5
0

3
7

4
3

0
0

3
7

4
3

5
0

3
7

4
4

0
0

3
7

4
4

5
0

3
7

4
5

0
0

3
7

4
5

5
0

3
7

4
6

0
0

3
7

4
6

5
0

3
7

4
7

0
0

3
7

4
7

5
0

3
7

4
8

0
0

3
7

4
8

5
0

3
7

4
9

0
0

3
7

4
9

5
0

Def
Watch Hill

A 
56 Sinks

Ordnance Survey, (c) Crown Copyright 2017. All rights reserved. Licence number 100022432

P la n t

K i t c h e n

D in in g
S h o p

E x t e r n a l  

C o n d e n s e r s

Kitchen Store

Store

Colleague
Room

Linen
Store

1

2

3

6

4

5

1

2

3

6

4

5

Heat Generation
Equipment

Water Tanks
circa 40sqm

Pumps, expansion and
pressurisation plant

P l a n t

C a s h  O f f i c e

T i l l s

F o o d  C o u n t e r

M a l e

W C s

D i s h w a s h
D i s h w a s h

S t o r e

C h i l d r e n ' s

P l a y

R e t a i l

S t o r e

F o o d

 P r e p  A r e a

K i t c h e n

F e m a l e

W C s

S h o w e r  &

F a m i l y  R o o m s

C o f f e e

K i t c h e n

C O S H H

R o o m

O f f i c e S w i t c h

R o o m
R i s e r s

M V H R

A r e a

F o o d  C o u n t e r

Sandwiches One Pot Bakery

K i t c h e n

S t o r e

2 2 0 0 x 1 8 0 0  1 3 P

U P

S C H  2 . 7 1

D H  1 . 9 3

1 1 0 0 l  

C o m p a c t o r

1 1 0 0 l  

1 1 0 0 l  

C o m p a c t o r

1 1 0 0 l  

1 1 0 0 l  

3 6 0 l 6 6 0 l

1 1 0 0 l  

3 6 0 l

1 1 0 0 l  1 1 0 0 l  

1 1 0 0 l  

3 6 0 l 6 6 0 l

1 1 0 0 l  

3 6 0 l

1 1 0 0 l  1 1 0 0 l  

1 1 0 0 l  

3 6 0 l 6 6 0 l

1 1 0 0 l  

3 6 0 l

1 1 0 0 l  1 1 0 0 l  

1 1 0 0 l  

3 6 0 l 6 6 0 l

1 1 0 0 l  

3 6 0 l

B i n  S t o r e

SECTION 01

LOCATION PLAN: 1:5000

LH

Scale Bar (m)

0 5 10 15 20 25 30 35 40 5045

M56 SLIP ROADS

SITE BOUNDARY

PROPOSED HOTEL
BUILDING

EXISTING BUFFER PLANTING
TO HIGHWAY VERGE

(Above) Long site section - Year 01
Scale: 1:10001

SIGHT LINE FROM WATCH HILL
MOTTE & BAILEY CASTLE

EXISTING BUFFER
PLANTING TO HIGHWAY

VERGE

EXISTING BUFFER PLANTING AGRICULTURAL FIELD

BOLLIN VALLEY WAY

RIVER BOLLIN

GRASS
VERGE TO
MIDDLE OF
HIGHWAY WATCH HILL MOTTE & BAILEY

CASTLE

6M
MOTTE
SUMMIT

EXISTING AVENUE OF
MATURE LIME TREES

EXISTING
GRASSLAND

PROPOSED
SCRUB PLANTING

Scale Bar (m)

0 5 10 15 20 25 30 35 40 5045

M56 SLIP ROADS

SITE BOUNDARY

PROPOSED HOTEL
BUILDING

(Above) Long site section - Year 15
Scale: 1:10002

SIGHT LINE FROM WATCH HILL
MOTTE & BAILEY CASTLE

EXISTING BUFFER
PLANTING TO HIGHWAY

VERGE

EXISTING BUFFER PLANTING AGRICULTURAL FIELD

BOLLIN VALLEY WAY

RIVER BOLLIN

GRASS
VERGE TO
MIDDLE OF
HIGHWAY WATCH HILL MOTTE & BAILEY

CASTLE

6M
MOTTE
SUMMIT

EXISTING AVENUE OF
MATURE LIME TREES

EXISTING BUFFER PLANTING
TO HIGHWAY VERGE

EXISTING
GRASSLAND

PROPOSED
SCRUB PLANTING

S4-P02 20-02-23 Planning JTO GB

P
age 125



T
his page is intentionally left blank



P
age 127



T
his page is intentionally left blank



P
age 129



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

 OFFICIAL 

   Application No: 23/2225N 
 

   Location: Bentley Motors Limited, PYMS LANE, CREWE, CW1 3PL 
 

   Proposal: Construction of a new paint shop on the site of an existing colleague 
carpark including a four story office annex. Work includes the construction 
of two bridge links over Sunnybank Road, plant annexes and a roof 
terrace. 
 

   Applicant: 
 

Mr Andrew Robertson, Bentley Motors Ltd 

   Expiry Date: 
 

01-Nov-2023 

 

 
SUMMARY 
 
The proposal is for a new production and manufacturing building for the existing Bentley 
Motors campus which would also require the building over of the existing car park to the west 
of the existing paintshop to provide for construction of a new paintshop building and attached 
offices.  
 
This proposal would bring economic benefits and investment in an area with a longstanding 
association with the manufacture of motor vehicles. Bentley Motors are a major employer 
located within one of the principal growth areas of the Borough where national / local plan 
policies strongly support such development. Although a small segment of designated public 
open space would be lost to the south of the site this has to be balanced against the 
economic benefits of the proposals and the aspirations of the Council to realise the growth 
potential of Crewe and to allow for the growth of employment on this strategic employment 
site as defined in the Development Plan by encouraging investment in the area. The proposal 
prefigures the production of new electric vehicle products in the next few years within the 
Volkswagen/Bentley group and would allow for the Cheshire manufacturing site to prepare a 
business case to the VW Board in Germany in respect of this to bring manufacturing to 
Cheshire East. 
 
The proposal is compatible with the surrounding development and the design, scale and form 
of the proposals would not appear incongruous within their context. The impact of the 
proposal on trees and hedges would not be significant and environmental considerations 
relating to flooding, drainage, land contamination, noise, public open space, and ecology 
would be acceptable subject to conditions and the inspection of further clarification the Lead 
Local Flood Authority (LLFA) to be reported in the committee update for this application. The 
impact on neighbouring residential amenity would be acceptable and owing to the generous 
separation with the nearest neighbouring properties and having regard to the context of the 
area as a centre for automotive manufacturing. Satisfactory access and parking provision can 
be provided and the development would not result in material harm on the local highway 
network. A section of land owned by Bentley, as shown on plan ‘Bentley Land take rev R1’, 
that sits alongside the A530 is required to deliver the cycle/pedestrian scheme. To mitigate 
the highways impact of the proposal the applicant has agreed to contribute this land to the 
council, and this will be secured so that the land is delivered prior to the development being 
occupied or brought into use. This is to be achieved through developer contributions through 
section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 to be agreed if the application is 
resolved to be approved by the Strategic Planning Board. 
 

Page 131 Agenda Item 6



 

 OFFICIAL 

The proposal is therefore considered to comply with the relevant policies of the Cheshire 
East Local Plan Strategy (CELPS), the policies of the Cheshire East Site Allocations and 
Development Plan Document and guidance contained within the National Planning Policy 
Framework. The application is therefore recommended for approval. 
 
Recommendation 
Approve with conditions. 
 

 
 
DESCRIPTION OF SITE AND CONTEXT 
 
This application relates to the site of Bentley Motors, a large industrial site for the 
manufacturing of motor vehicles located on Pyms Lane, Crewe. The Crewe Bentley campus 
has been in situ for over 70 years and hosts the full lifecycle of motor car production, 
including design, research and development, engineering and manufacturing. The wider site 
is expansive and runs from Middlewich Road at the west, along Pyms Lane, now closed to 
traffic, to the border of residential housing estate to the east. The south of the wider site is 
bounded by the railway line. The whole site is covered by the Strategic Employment Site 
policy EMP1 in the Cheshire East Site Allocations and Development Policies Document, and 
the designated employment site CRE1 - Land at Bentley Motors - in the Cheshire East Site 
Allocations and Development Policies Document. The site is within the settlement boundary 
of Crewe. 
 
The site edged red for this application is located largely on an area of existing car parking to 
the west of the existing paint shop, as part of the main factory complex. The existing paint 
shop and application site is divided by Sunnybank Road, closed to public traffic. To the south 
lies the recreation ground and sports/social club, known as 'Legends', for the use of Bentley 
workers and to the north Pyms Lane; beyond which there are office buildings associated with 
Bentley. To the west there is an area of further car parking, proposed to be retained, with a 
parking plaza, solar panels and the Bentley visitors centre further still to the west by 
Middlewich Road. 
 
DETAILS OF PROPOSAL 
 
This is an application for full planning permission for the construction of a new paint shop 
with an approximate footprint of 166m by 70m, and total height of22.5m. The proposal for the 
new building would have a floor area of over 15,000sqm in place of a large section of the car 
park, with access to remain from within the Bentley site. The proposed building would run 
parallel to the existing paintshop, essentially achieving broadly the same length as the 
existing factory floors of the main Bentley complex. It would include ancillary workshops on 
the ground floor but otherwise the paintshop itself which would be open throughout the 
sectional equivalent of three floors and the upper roof space. An additional four storey block 
would protrude from the northern elevation providing staffing facilities and offices on the third 
and fourth floors.  
 
The building would be linked to the existing paintshop at the plant by two link bridges, the 
northernmost of which is annotated on plans as 'Link Bridge no.1', across Sunnybank Road, 
built at approx. 7.3m from ground level, some 5m in width and of approx. 40m length west to 
east. A second link to the south of the building, known as Link Bridge no. 2, would be built at 
a similar height above the perimeter road/Sunnybank Road, but would then angle 90 
degrees to run for some 50m to the existing workshop to the south of the existing paintshop. 

Page 132



 

 OFFICIAL 

Bentley Signage is proposed to be displayed at the left hand side of the west facing side 
elevation, to be visible from the visitors centre and point of access to the site from 
Middlewich Road. This would be subject to separate advert consent. 
 
To the south of the building the existing 6.5m approx. width service road currently dividing 
the car park and the sports ground would be extended a further approx. 50m to the existing 
car park to the west. New grass verges and a turning area for forklifts would be sited to the 
south of the building. A small existing building with conservatory associated with the sports 
centre would be demolished to make way for this. 
 
RELEVANT HISTORY 
 
There is an extensive planning history for the Bentley Motors site. However, the only 
applications of relevance to this proposal are as follows:  
 
21/4054D Discharge of condition 24 of app 17/4011N - Hybrid Planning Application for - 
Outline planning application (with all matters reserved except for means of access and layout 
for Production and Manufacturing Facility 2) for the erection of 2 no. production and 
manufacturing facilities; two covered links connecting one of the production and 
manufacturing facilities with Bentley's existing manufacturing facility; an engine test bed 
facility together with associated car parking, landscaping and associated infrastructure. Full 
planning application for the erection of a gatehouse, security fencing, pedestrian turnstile 
and associated turning facilities to the west of the existing Bentley Motors site on Pyms 
Lane; the erection of a gatehouse, security fence, pedestrian turnstile, bin store, 
reconfiguration of visitor parking and associated turning facilities to the east of the existing 
Bentley Motors site on Pyms Lane; the erection of a gatehouse, security fence, cycle store, 
pedestrian turnstile and associated turning facilities together with a further gate on 
Sunnybank Road  Approved 01/SEP/2021 
 
19/0680D Discharge of conditions 20, 24 and 25 on application 17/4011N - Hybrid Planning 
Application Approved 09/APR/2019 
 
18/0228N - Construction of two 7,200sqm, 4 storey office blocks and related external works 
– Approved 26/APR/2018 
 
17/4011N Hybrid Planning Application for - Outline planning application (with all matters 
reserved except for means of access and layout for Production and Manufacturing Facility 2) 
for the erection of 2 no. production and manufacturing facilities; two covered links connecting 
one of the production and manufacturing facilities with Bentley's existing manufacturing 
facility; an engine test bed facility together with associated car parking, landscaping and 
associated infrastructure. Full planning application for the erection of a gatehouse, security 
fencing, pedestrian turnstile and associated turning facilities to the west of the existing 
Bentley Motors site on Pyms Lane; the erection of a gatehouse, security fence, pedestrian 
turnstile, bin store, reconfiguration of visitor parking and associated turning facilities to the 
east of the existing Bentley Motors site on Pyms Lane; the erection of a gatehouse, security 
fence, cycle store, pedestrian turnstile and associated turning facilities together with a further 
gate on Sunnybank Road. Approved with conditions 09/APR/2019 
 
17/3150S EIA Screening request for proposed production & manufacturing development EIA 
Opinion Issued 22/NOV/2021 
 
16/0341N - Demolition of all existing on-site buildings and structures, the construction of a 
five storey engineering technical centre comprising offices at the front of the building and 

Page 133



 

 OFFICIAL 

warehousing at the rear, the construction of a two storey design centre comprising offices 
and a workshop together with associated works – Approved 27-Oct-2017  
 
15/4141N - Alterations to E1 Car Park, realignment of internal road, construction of a vehicle 
test building, relocation of Gate 3 Security Lodge and amendments to gate arrangement, 
installation of 5 No. entry gate positions and relocation of cycle and motor cycle shelters – 
Approved 18-Nov-2015  
 
15/3869N - It is proposed to convert the existing field into a private car park for Bentley 
Motors. The site is an existing green area which will be converted to hard standing material 
to suit the needs of a car park. The car park will be enclosed with fences. North east and 
south of the proposed car park, a 14m width band will be dedicated for planting – Approved 
18-Mar-2016  
 
15/3665N - Construction of a 4 storey office building on the site of an existing carpark – 
Approved 28-Oct-2015  
 
14/5262N - Proposed pre-fabricated building, complete with services to be installed as office 
and restrooms for lorry park on site at Bentley Motors – Approved 09-Feb-2015  
 
14/2944N - Construction of a new Painted Body Store Warehouse and ancillary 
accommodation totalling approximately 5060sqm gross internal floor area. The relocation of 
fuel tanks and a fuel filling location. The proposed building comprises a large warehouse with 
one and a half portal frame structure, a single storey office annex to the North elevation with 
rest and WC facilities, an enclosed link to the existing adjacent warehouse to the east and an 
enclosed bridge link above the private road to the adjacent property to the North. A 10m 
overhanging canopy will be provided for the full width of the building to the west elevation 
and a 2m deep canopy to the north side of the east link – Approved 29-Aug-2014  
 
13/5114N - Variation of condition 2 (approved plans) on application 12/4426N (proposed 
development of the site to provide a permanent car park with a total of 1817 car parking 
spaces plus lorry parking for up to 14 HGV's) – Approved 18-Feb-2014  
 
12/4426N - Proposed development of the site to provide a permanent car park with a total of 
1817 car parking spaces plus lorry parking for up to 14 HGVs – Approved 03-Jun-2013 
 
12/4373N - New build showroom with associated car parking approved on 6th February 2013 
 
12/3418N – Full planning permission approved to develop site to provide a permanent car 
park with a total of 478 parking spaces on 30th November 2012  
 
12/4319N – Resolved to grant full planning permission (subject to S106 Obligation) for the 
erection of a two storey temporary office accommodation with links to an existing building to 
accommodate existing staff relocated on site on 1st May 2013  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 134



 

 OFFICIAL 

POLICIES 
 
National Policy 
 
National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) 
 
Cheshire East Local Plan Strategy (CELPS) 
 
MP 1 Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development  
PG 1 Overall Development Strategy  
PG 2 Settlement Hierarchy  
PG 7 Spatial Distribution of Development Policy  
SD 1 Sustainable Development in Cheshire East Policy  
SD 2 Sustainable Development Principles Policy  
IN 1 Infrastructure  
IN 2 Developer Contributions  
EG 1 Economic Prosperity   
EG 3 Existing and Allocated Employment Sites  
SE 1 Design  
SE 2 Efficient Use of Land  
SE 3 Biodiversity and Geodiversity  
SE 4 The Landscape  
SE 5 Trees, Hedgerows and Woodland  
SE 6 Green Infrastructure  
SE 7 Built Heritage 
SE 9 Energy Efficient Development  
SE 13 Flood Risk and Water Management  
SC 2 Indoor and Outdoor Sports Facilities 
CO 1 Sustainable Travel and Transport  
CO 2 Enabling Business Growth Through Transport Infrastructure  
CO 4 Travel Plans and Transport Assessments 
Appendix C - Parking Standards 
 
 
Cheshire East Site Allocations and Development Policies Document (SADPD) 
 
EMP1 - Strategic Employment Area 
EMP2 - Employment Allocations 
GEN1 – Design Principles 
PG9 - Settlement Boundaries 
HOU12 - Amenity 
REC1 - Open Space Protection 
ENV1 - Ecological Network 
ENV2 - Ecology 
ENV5 - Landscaping 
ENV6 - Trees, Hedgerows and Woodland 
ENV7 - Climate Change 
ENV12 - Air Quality 
ENV16 - Surface Water Management and Flood Risk 
ENV17 - Protecting Water Resources 
HER 7 Non Designated Heritage Asset 
INF1 - Cycleways, Bridleways and Footpaths 
INF3 - Highway Safety and Access 

Page 135



 

 OFFICIAL 

CRE1 - Land at Bentley Motors, Crewe 
 
Neighbourhood Planning 
 
There is no Neighbourhood Plan for Crewe. 
 
Other Material Considerations 
 
National Planning Practice Guidance (NPPG) 
 
CONSULTATIONS     
 
Environmental Protection - no objection subject to conditions on securing recommendations 
of noise report 
 
Cadent Gas - no objection; recommends informatives relating to gas mains 
 
United Utilities - no objection subject to conditions on drainage and SUDs. 
 
Lead Local Flood Authority (LLFA) - holding objection until further information has been 
clarified; this has been submitted by the applicant and will be reviewed by the LLFA prior to 
the committee update 
 
Environment Agency - no objection 
 
Active Travel England - no consultation response 
 
Greenspaces on behalf of Cheshire East Council (formerly known as ANSA) - requests 
mitigation for loss of open space 
 

 
Nature Conservation - no objection subject to conditions  
Highways - no objection subject to agreed s.106 agreement with applicant 
 
Crewe Town Council - 'Whilst the committee did not object to the development, concern 
was raised relating to the use by those accessing the site on Sunnybank Road. It is sought 
that traffic accessing via Sunnybank Road is re-routed to reduce the impact on residential 
neighbours from employee and delivery traffic' 
 
REPRESENTATIONS 
Ward Councillor Pratt - comments on parking availability - asks how the removal of the 
colleague car park will impact parking availability locally 
 
OFFICER APPRAISAL 
 
Principle of Development 
 
Chapter 2 of the NPPF introduces the presumption in favour of sustainable development, 
which is the focus of policy MP1 of the Cheshire East Local Plan Strategy (CELPS).  This 
policy stipulates that proposals that accord with policies in the Development Plan will be 
approved without delay, unless material considerations indicate otherwise. Policy SD2 of the 
CELPS is the overarching policy in relation to the design of all proposals, requiring them to 
contribute positively to an area's character and identity in terms of design and the 

Page 136



 

 OFFICIAL 

relationship to the future and neighbouring occupiers. These considerations, along with 
others, are addressed in the following sections in this report.  
 
The application site is within a designated strategic employment area. Site allocation CRE1 
of the SADPD, 'Land at Bentley Motors, Pyms Lane', states that this site is allocated for 
employment purposes to support further investment by Bentley Motors in design, research 
and development, engineering and production facilities. Development proposals for the site 
should: 
 

1. retain the existing sports facility, playing field and associated area of existing open 
space unless they are proven to be surplus to need, or suitable improved provision is 
created having regard to the requirements of LPS Policy SC 2 'Indoor and outdoor 
sports facilities'; 

2. as part of a travel plan, improve walking and cycling routes through the site and seek 
to maximise connections for pedestrians and cyclists to and from the site including, for 
cyclists, the Connect2 Crewe to Nantwich Greenway; 

3. be sensitively designed to make sure that the amenity of residents in the vicinity of the 
site is not unacceptably affected; and 

4. avoid any harm to heritage assets and their setting in accordance with LPS Policy SE 
7 ‘The historic environment’ and Policy HER 7 'Non-designated heritage assets' and 
having regard to the advice on mitigation measures contained in the Heritage Impact 
Assessment for the site submitted with the SADPD. 

 
These considerations will be considered throughout the analysis of this proposal in the 
respective sections of the report. Particular attention should be paid to each of these criteria 
in the site allocation as they are directly addressed by the proposal following negotiations and 
discussions by officers to add value to the scheme. 
 
Policy EMP1 of the SADPD states that these strategic employment areas are of particular 
significance to the economy of Cheshire East and will be protected for employment use as 
set out in CELPS Policy EG3 on existing and allocated employment sites. The proposal 
enhances the employment provision of Bentley Motors at this site and very substantial weight 
is afforded to the proposal in light of this. 
 
The proposal is for a new B2 (industrial) advanced manufacturing building and associated 
infrastructure within a settlement boundary. Subject to all other relevant material 
considerations there is no policy reason to undermine the principle of development. In line of 
the presumption in favour of sustainable development outlined in the NPPF and CELPS 
policy MP1 the principle of development is considered acceptable subject to material 
considerations as set out below. 
 
Design and Impact on Character of the Area 
 
Cheshire East Local Plan Strategy Policy SD2 states that all development will be expected to 
contribute positively an area's character and identity, creating or reinforcing local 
distinctiveness in terms of; 
- Height, scale, form and grouping 
- Choice of materials 
- External design features 
- Massing of the development (the balance between built form and green/public spaces) 
- Green infrastructure; and  
- Relationship to neighbouring properties, street scene and the wider neighbourhood 
 

Page 137

https://maps.cheshireeast.gov.uk/ce/localplan/adoptedpoliciesmap2022?&e=368181&n=356520&s=5000


 

 OFFICIAL 

Policy SE1 of the CELPS advises that the proposal should achieve a high standard of design 
and, wherever possible, enhance the built environment. It should also respect the pattern, 
character and form of the surroundings. 
 
Policy GEN1 (Design Principles) sets a number of design principles that development 
proposals should meet. This includes the following; 1. create high quality, beautiful and 
sustainable buildings and places, avoiding the imposition of standardised and/or generic 
design solutions where they do not establish and/or maintain a strong sense of quality and 
place; 2. create a sense of identity and legibility by using landmarks and incorporating key 
views into, within and out of new development; 3. reflect the local character and design 
preferences set out in the Cheshire East Borough Design Guide supplementary planning 
document unless otherwise justified by appropriate innovative design or change that fits in 
with the overall form and layout of their surroundings. 
 
The main pattern of development on site is that of a tight, regularly arranged grid of 
warehouses and workshops. The proposed paintshop would extend this built form to the west 
and would read as a visually logical addition to the main factory complex when viewed from 
Pyms Lane to the north, the access from Middlewich Road and the visitor centre to the west; 
and points within the site to the south. The bulk of the existing factory would obscure view of 
the new structure from any point beyond to the east. The proposed structure would be 
significant in bulk and scale although when read from the public highway to the west it would 
not appear visually overbearing given the existing built form on site. Moreover, the existing 
paintshop reads as somewhat 'higgledy-piggledy' with a variety of chimneys, flues and roof 
apparatus which the proposed new paintshop would entirely screen, lending a tidier, rather 
more 'slick' appearance to the industrial campus.  
 
The new building would be of contemporary and modern design. The proposed materials 
palette would be entirely in keeping with this advanced manufacturing facility and befits this 
strategic employment site and key part of the industrial base of Cheshire East. The facing 
materials at the walls would be white and dark grey composite flat aluminium panels set in a 
horizontal orientation ,and similar white and dark grey composite profiled aluminium panels 
set in a vertical orientation., Metal rainscreen panels. aluminium feature panels fixed to the 
west elevation  and an aluminium louvred screen for plant areas complete the appearance.  
Two green walls are also provided alongside the four storey block on the northern elevation. 
Minor amendments to the elevations have been received during the course of the application 
in line with the applicant's requirements which do not present material changes to this 
assessment. 
 
In line with the requirement of site allocation CRE1 and policy HER7 of the SADPD and 
policy SE7 of the CELPS consideration has been had to the locally listed building at Bentley 
Motors. This would be located well beyond the site edged red to the east and would not be 
impacted in any way. 
 
Overall then the proposal would comply with the above policies on visual amenity. 
 
Impact on Residential Amenity 
 
Policy SE12 of the CELPS states that the council will seek to ensure all development is 
located and designed so as not to result in a harmful or cumulative impact upon air quality, 
surface water and groundwater, noise, smell, dust, vibration, soil contamination, light 
pollution or any other pollution which would unacceptably affect the natural and built 
environment, or detrimentally affect amenity or cause harm. Developers will be expected to 
minimise and mitigate the effects of possible pollution arising from the development itself, or 

Page 138



 

 OFFICIAL 

as a result of the development (including additional traffic) during both the construction and 
the life of the development. Where adequate mitigation cannot be provided, development will 
not normally be permitted. 
 
Policy HOU12 of the SADPD states that with reference to the residential standards set out in 
Table 8.2 'Standards for space between buildings', the Cheshire East Borough Design Guide 
supplementary planning document and other policies where relevant, development proposals 
must not cause unacceptable harm to the amenities of adjoining or nearby occupiers of 
residential properties, sensitive uses, or future occupiers of the proposed development due 
to: 1. loss of privacy; 2. loss of sunlight and daylight; 3. the overbearing and dominating effect 
of new buildings; 4. environmental disturbance or pollution; or 5. traffic generation, access 
and parking. 
 
The proposed industrial unit would generate a workforce of some 350 employees. The 
physical manufacturing process that would occur would be the painting of car bodies. Air 
handling units and local chillers will be installed in the building as part of the Mechanical 
Ventilation Strategy serving the manufacturing areas, offices and plant spaces. The 
application has stated that separate waste stream bins will be provided throughout the 
building which will be emptied daily and taken to the on-site recycling centre for treatment. 
The waste is then separated into bulk waste stream bins for recycling off site. 
 
The Council's environmental protection team has reviewed the submitted noise report and 
environmental health detail and has no objection, subject to appropriate conditions in relation 
to this. 
 
The proposed paint shop is within an existing complex of entirely industrial use buildings with 
no neighbouring residential uses. There is a sports/social club sited to the south but the 
introduction of further built form would not introduce any material amenity impacts on this 
given the existing use of the wider site.  
 
Matters relating to parking and access will be discussed in the relevant section further in this 
report. Subject to this it is therefore found that policy HOU12 of the SADPD and policy SE12 
of the CELPS would be complied with. 
 
Public Open Space 
 
Site allocation CRE1 states that proposals will be supported where it would retain the existing 
sports facility, playing field and associated area of existing open space unless they are 
proven to be surplus to need, or suitable improved provision is created having regard to the 
requirements of CELPS Policy SC 2 'Indoor and outdoor sports facilities'. The neighbouring 
sports facility falls outside the site edged red and would be retained. 
 
This application triggers Policy SE6 requirements for open space provision.  The location 
plan currently uses a colleague carpark but also encompasses an area of open space in the 
south classified as part of the outdoor sports facilities. 
 
The Proposed Site Plan encroaches into the open space proposing a forklift truck service 
area, sprinkler tank, hardstanding and VIP drop off area.  
 
This open space is protected within the SADPD Policy REC 1.  Criterion 2 - The types of 
opens space to which this policy applies includes: existing areas of open space shown on the 
adopted policies map, such as formal town parks, playing fields, pitches and courts, play 
areas, allotments and amenity open space; other incidental open spaces, which are too small 

Page 139



 

 OFFICIAL 

to be shown on the adopted policies map.  Development proposals that involve the loss of 
open space, as defined in Criterion 2 will not be permitted unless: 
 

i. in assessment has been undertaken that has clearly shown the open space is surplus 
to requirements; or 

ii. It would be replaced by equivalent or better open space in terms of quantity and 
quality and it is in a suitable location; or 

iii. The development is for alternative sports and recreational provision, the benefits of 
which clearly outweigh the loss. 

 
Consequently, there are two parts to this application from an open space perspective - a 
need to provide open space for the development and secondly to address the loss of existing 
open space in line with REC 1. 
 
A roof terrace provides a green roof with paved terrace.  An access strip of paving around the 
green roof is provided however it is understood to be a VIP area so it has been commented 
by the Council's open space team that it is questionable if current employees will benefit to 
mitigate the loss of the existing open space.  Green walls and general landscaping are 
provided in areas 1, 2 and 3 in the visitor areas but again this does not directly benefit 
employees. 
 
It has been recommended by the public open space officer that the design is revisited to 
provide increased open space provision for employees in terms of a ‘break out’ space.   
 
In response, the applicant has provided detail identifying the existing and proposed green 
spaces on the site. The calculations as per the drawings are noted below.  
 
Existing site: – mainly hedges and an inaccessible spoil heap 
Perimeter hedge: 321,421m length 
Green area (Grass and plants/small bushes): 564m² 
Grass spoil heap: 1,640m² 
TOTAL: 2,204m² 
 
Proposed scheme: - New grass areas, planting, shrubs, trees, green roof and green walls.  
Green grass area and planting: 1,735m² 
Shrubs and planting: 238m² 
Green roof: 834m² 
TOTAL: 2,807m² 
Green Walls: 350m² 
 
None of the existing green spaces are useable by workers on site. The current space 
referred to by the public open space as ‘lost’ space at the southern part of the site is actually 
a spoil heap from the build of the 'Legends' sports facility, it is not accessible for colleagues 
and is hedged on all sides. The applicant has stated that the new proposal provides more 
accessible green space for colleagues to use than on the existing site. The loss of hedgerow 
will be replaced by shrub planting around the perimeters. This can be conditioned as per the 
remarks in the trees/ecology section of this report. 
 
In addition to the landscaped areas at ground level, Bentley are providing a substantial area 
of green roof (834m²) and adjacent paved terrace (310m²) which is accessible for all Bentley 
workers to enjoy via the dedicated entrance to the south east of the building.  (VIP is just a 
term used for areas that are part of the VIP tours around the site). As well as this, the 

Page 140



 

 OFFICIAL 

scheme provides 2 large green walls at the front of the site creating more visual interest and 
greenery.  
 
The applicant has stated that there will be 'plenty of external amenity and sport areas recently 
added to the adjacent site in the last 12 months, this also includes greenhouses, beehives 
and allotments etc.' In terms of policy REC 1: Open space protection, it is therefore important 
to fully assess the proposal in light of this. The response to each criterion is noted below 
 
Policy REC 1: Open Space Protection: 
 

1. Development proposals that involve the loss of open space, as defined in Criterion 
2 below, will not be permitted unless:  

i. an assessment has been undertaken that has clearly shown the open space 
is surplus to requirements;  
 

The development provides more green space and useable green space. 
 

ii. it would be replaced by equivalent or better open space in terms of quantity 
and quality and it is in a suitable location;  
 

The green space proposed is useable whereas the existing mound is not. The applicant 
has stated that the new proposals offer better quality and variation of green spaces; 
planting, green roof, green wall.  
 

iii. the development is for alternative sports and recreational provision, the 
benefits of which clearly outweigh the loss.  
 

The applicant has provided a plan showing the new outdoor sports, amenities, allotments, 
greenhouses and bee hives directly to the south of the site. 
  

2. The types of open space to which this policy applies includes: existing areas of 
open space shown on the adopted policies map, such as formal town parks, 
playing fields, pitches and courts, play areas, allotments and amenity open space; 
other incidental open spaces, which are too small to be shown on the adopted 
policies map, but which are of public value for informal recreation or visual amenity; 
and open spaces provided through new development yet to be shown on the 
adopted policies map. 
 

The applicant has stated that the proposals provide more accessible and useable green 
spaces than the existing site, that also provide greater visual amenity. The proposals also 
include gabion walls to deal with the changes in levels which provide further visual 
benefits to the site.  
 
The impact on the land designated as green space then must be considered in the context of 
what use that space currently serves and the context of the wider Bentley site which has 
extensive sports and recreation facilities which would not be impacted by the proposal. 
Finally, this needs to be considered in the planning balance of the scheme as a  whole, 
taking into account the substantial weight afforded to the site's employment designation, the 
economic benefits afforded by the scheme, and the added value secured by improvements to 
the Connect2 cycleway scheme, as detailed further in the report below. 
 
 
 

Page 141



 

 OFFICIAL 

Highways 
 
Policy CO1 of the CELPS states, inter alia, that to deliver the council objectives of delivering 
a safe, sustainable, high quality, integrated transport system that encourages a modal shift 
away from car travel to public transport, cycling and walking; supportive of the needs of 
residents and businesses and preparing for carbon free modes of transport, the council will 
expect development to: 1. Reduce the need to travel by: i. Guiding development to 
sustainable and accessible locations or locations that can be made sustainable and 
accessible; ii. Ensuring development gives priority to walking, cycling and public transport 
within its design; iii. Encouraging more flexible working patterns and home working; iv. 
Supporting improvements to communication technology for business, education, shopping 
and leisure purposes and; v. Supporting measures that reduce the level of trips made by 
single occupancy vehicles. 
 
Policy INF3 of the SADPD states that development proposals should: i. comply with the 
relevant Highway Authority’s and other highway design guidance; ii. provide safe access to 
and from the site for all highway users and incorporate safe internal movement in the site to 
meet the requirements of servicing and emergency vehicles; iii. make sure that development 
traffic can be satisfactorily assimilated into the operation of the existing highway network so 
that it would not have an unacceptable impact on highway safety, or result in severe residual 
cumulative impacts on the road network; iv. incorporate measures to assist access to, from 
and within the site by pedestrians, cyclists and public transport users and meets the needs of 
people with disabilities; and v. not generate movements of heavy goods vehicles on 
unsuitable roads, or on roads without suitable access to the classified highway network. 
 
Sustainable access 
 
The site is within the wider Bentley site and footway access from the new building to the 
wider Crewe area will be available including to nearby bus stops.  
 
SADPD site allocation CRE1 states that development proposals should as part of a travel 
plan, improve walking and cycling routes through the site and seek to maximise connections 
for pedestrians and cyclists to and from the site including, for cyclists, the Connect2 Crewe to 
Nantwich Greenway; 
 
There is the existing Connect2 off-road cycle/pedestrian link that runs alongside the A530 
Middlewich Rd, from Nantwich to Crewe then continues in an eastwards direction through 
Crewe. Cheshire East Council have plans to extend this route northbound and past the 
Bentley site and Pyms Ln, and onto the new Local Plan development sites around the 
Leighton area of northwest Crewe. This will provide additional cycle and pedestrian access 
from the Bentley site to Nantwich and areas of Crewe and will assist in mitigating the loss of 
parking provision and highways impact of the development by creating a safer cycle access 
and wider choice of travel modes to and from the site for Bentley staff. 
 
Some land owned by Bentley, as shown on plan ‘Bentley Land take rev R1’, that sits 
alongside the A530 is required to deliver the cycle/pedestrian scheme. To mitigate the 
highways impact of the proposal the applicant has agreed to contribute this land to the 
council, and this should be secured so that the land is delivered prior to the development 
being occupied or brought into use. Cycle parking has not been mentioned and a condition 
for this is also required. 
 
Policy CO2 of the CELPS states, inter alia, that the council will support new developments 
that are (or can be made) well connected and accessible by enabling development by 

Page 142



 

 OFFICIAL 

supporting transport infrastructure, regeneration and / or behaviour change initiatives that will 
mitigate the potential impact of development proposals including: i. Supporting schemes 
outlined within the current Infrastructure Delivery Plan / Local Transport Plan; ii. Where new 
or improved infrastructure is provided, supporting measures to improve the walking, cycling 
and sustainable travel environment on routes relieved of traffic; iii. Supporting improvements 
to communication technology for business, education, shopping and leisure purposes; iv. 
Supporting the improvement of rail infrastructure - especially facilities at railway stations; v. 
Supporting the improvement of national motorway network facilities, where appropriate; vi. 
Providing recharging points for hybrid or electric vehicles in major developments in order to 
reduce carbon emissions; and vii. For residential and non-residential development, where 
there is clear and compelling justification that is it necessary to manage the road network, 
proposals should adhere to the current adopted Cheshire East Council Parking Standards for 
Cars and Bicycles set out in Appendix C (Parking Standards). 
 
Policy INF1 of the SADPD states that development proposals should seek, where feasible, to 
provide links to national cycle routes, long-distance footpaths, canal towpaths and rights of 
way network. 
 
In this regard the proposed developer contribution towards the cycle scheme would not only 
mitigate for the loss of parking within the site but would also help the Council to meet its 
strategic goals in relation to sustainable travel and transport as outlined in policies CO1 and 
CO2 of the CELPS and policy INF1 of the SADPD. 
 
Safe and suitable access  
 
No new access will be created to the public highway and given the extent of the existing site, 
the existing access points are considered acceptable. Any HGV movement associated with 
the development will continue to use the access via Pyms Ln.  
 
Parking 
 
The development will be on an existing Bentley car park with the loss of 858 parking spaces, 
with no additional parking proposed. To justify this the applicant carried out a parking survey 
over the last week in August, outside of the Bentley’s summer shutdown period, to determine 
the parking capacity and occupancy.  
 
The surveys were carried out over 3 working days in the morning time, early afternoon and 
late afternoon, and included all the spaces south of Pyms Ln and west of Sunnybank Rd. The 
car parks have a total capacity of just over 3,400 spaces.  
 
Of all the surveyed days and times, the peak occupancy was on day 1 morning with 2,342 
spaces taken with 1,062 vacant spaces remaining. The 2nd busiest was day 2 early afternoon 
with 1,294 vacant spaces. Late afternoon was the least busy time with upwards of 2,500 
vacant spaces. After the proposal is developed the surveys therefore indicate that there 
would be approximately 200 vacant spaces at the busiest time. These would cater for this 
current proposed development but in addition as mitigation for the loss of parking a 
contribution of land from the applicant to Cheshire East is required, which would help deliver 
the cycle scheme and encourage modes of travel to the site other than the car. 
 
The current over provision of parking dates back to a 2012 application to construct the 
western section of the car park and also an R&D campus on the site of current proposal on 
the car park.  The new carpark was completed around 2014 but the R&D campus was 

Page 143



 

 OFFICIAL 

instead developed to the north side of Pyms Lane rather than on the existing carpark. In 
addition, a significant number of Bentley employees now work from home post covid.  
 
Subject to the transfer of land (to be secured through a legal agreement), from the 
information provided there will be sufficient parking within the Bentley site and the proposal 
will not result in parking over spilling onto the public highway, and is therefore acceptable 
with the appropriate conditions. 
 
Drainage and Flood Risk 
 
Policy SE13 of the CELPS, in line with chapter 15 of the NPPF, states  that developments 
must integrate measures for sustainable water management to reduce flood risk, avoid an 
adverse impact on water quality and quantity within the borough and provide opportunities to 
enhance biodiversity, health and recreation, in line with national guidance. Policy ENV16 of 
the SADPD states, that in order to manage surface water drainage effectively and reduce the 
risk of flooding elsewhere, in accordance with LPS Policy SE 13 ‘Flood risk and water 
management’, development proposals should satisfy the following criteria. It should be 
demonstrated how surface water runoff can be appropriately managed. Surface water runoff 
should be managed to achieve: i. on greenfield sites, at least no increase in runoff rates, and 
a reduction in rates where possible; and ii. on previously developed sites, a reduction in 
existing runoff rates in line with the Non-Statutory Technical Standards for Sustainable 
Drainage Systems (2015) or any subsequent replacement standards. 
 
Bentley have Environmental Agency consent to discharge their waste via the foul drainage. 
There are no large quantities of trade effluent. 
 
Cheshire East Council as the Lead Local Flood Authority (LLFA) has reviewed the application 
and based on the submitted information they would place a holding objection until the below 
conditions have been satisfied: Details of the party responsible for the maintenance of flood 
mitigation assets -The below pipes show flooding in the 1 in 100 + CC rainfall event. The 
LLFA has also stated that they will require evidence of how this flooding will be contained 
within the site boundary. A detailed surface water management plan is required to ensure 
that the development is in accordance with NPPF and local planning policies. It should be 
ensured that all major developments have sufficient surface water management, are not at 
increased risk of flooding and do not increase flood risk off-site.  
 
To this end the applicant has submitted extensive technical detail to respond to the LLFA's 
comments which are being reviewed at the time of authoring this report and will be reported 
back in the committee update. 
 
Trees and Ecology 
 
There are no protected trees on site. A section of native hedgerow would be lost as a result 
of the proposed development with a co-responding loss of biodiversity. Native hedgerows are 
a priority habitat and hence a material consideration. If the loss of the existing hedgerow is 
considered unavoidable the LPA's ecologist has recommend that replacement planting be 
proposed as a means of compensating for its loss. This can be conditioned at discharge of 
conditions stage to make the development compliant with policies ENV6 of the SADPD and 
SE5 of the CELPS on trees and hedgerows, and to ensure appropriate landscaping is 
provided along the lines of the requirements of policy ENV5 of the SADPD. 
 

Page 144



 

 OFFICIAL 

The loss of the existing hedgerow and minor tree losses on site would result in a minor loss 
of suitable nesting bird habitat. If planning consent is granted a standard breeding birds 
condition would be required to safeguard nesting birds: 
 
The proposed development would result in the demolition of buildings and a single tree would 
be lost that has been identified as having potential to support roosting bats. However, 
considering the nature of the application site and surroundings the Council's ecologist has 
advised that roosting bats are not reasonably likely to be present or affected by the proposed 
development.  
 
Policy SE3 of the CELPS requires all developments to aim to positively contribute to the 
conservation of biodiversity and policy ENV2 of the SADPD requires developments to 
achieve a Biodiversity Net Gain. With the exception of the existing hedgerow the application 
site supports very limited semi-natural habitat, with only small areas of amenity grassland 
landscaping being present around the site which is predominantly buildings and hard 
standing. No detailed landscaping proposals have been submitted, but the proposed 
development, with the exception of the loss of hedgerow discussed above, is likely to be 
neutral in respect of biodiversity losses and gains. 
 
The Council's ecologist has noted that the application site is located relatively close to the 
Crewe Swift Colony Local Wildlife Site, so the incorporation of features for this species might 
be beneficial and could be secured by means of the appropriate condition if consent were 
granted. 
 
CIL REGULATIONS 
 
In order to comply with the Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) Regulations 2010, it is 
necessary for planning applications with legal agreements to consider the issue of whether 
the requirements within the S106 satisfy the following: a) Necessary to make the 
development acceptable in planning terms; a) Directly related to the development; and b) Fair 
and reasonably related in scale and kind to the development. It is considered that the 
contributions required as part of the application are justified meet the Council’s requirement 
for policy compliance. All elements are necessary, directly relate to the development and are 
fair and reasonable in relation to the scale and kind of development. The non-financial 
requirements ensure that the development will be delivered in full. On this basis the S106 the 
scheme is compliant with the CIL Regulations 2010. 
 
 
CONCLUSION and PLANNING BALANCE 
 
The considerations relating to the comments of all statutory consultees have been noted and 
addressed in the report, subject to a committee update from the Lead Local Flood Authority 
(LLFA).  
 
Substantial weight is afforded to the clear policy support for the proposal at this site in the 
form of CRE1 Bentley Motors employment allocation. This proposal would bring economic 
benefits and investment in an area with a longstanding association with the manufacture of 
motor vehicles. Bentley Motors are a major employer located within one of the principal 
growth areas of the Borough where national / local plan policies strongly support such 
development.  
 
Although a small segment of designated public open space would be lost to the south of the 
site this has to be balanced against the economic benefits of the proposals and the 

Page 145



 

 OFFICIAL 

aspirations of the Council to realise the growth potential of Crewe and to allow for the growth 
of employment on this strategic employment site as defined in the Development Plan by 
encouraging investment in the area. The proposal prefigures the production of new electric 
vehicle products in the next few years within the Volkswagen/Bentley group and would allow 
for the Cheshire manufacturing site to prepare a business case to the VW Board in Germany 
in respect of this to bring manufacturing to Cheshire East.  
 
Planning officers have worked with the applicant to secure agreement to a section 106 
agreement to provide for the Connect2 cycleway scheme at Middlewich Road which clearly 
fulfils the aspirations of local planning policy in relation to this key Strategic Employment site.  
 
This planning application is therefore recommended for approval, subject to section 106 
agreement to secure the following: 
 

Section 106 Ask Trigger 

Highway improvements to 
Connect2 off road Nantwich 
to Crewe pedestrian and 
cycleway link 

Transfer of section of land 
marked on Bentley Land 
Take drawing Rev R1 

Prior to the development 
being occupied or brought 
into use 

   

 
and the following planning conditions: 
 
1. Time limit (3 years) 
2. Approved plans 
3. Materials 
4. Submission of replacement planting/landscaping scheme 
5. Accordance with recommendations of Noise Impact Assessment (NIA) 
6. Foul and Surface Water Drainage 
7. Submission of SUDs scheme prior to occupation 
8. Survey for Nesting Birds 
9. Biodiversity Net Gain - Nesting Birds 
10. Cycle Parking 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 146



 

 OFFICIAL 

 

P
age 147



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

 

23/2225N 

BENTLEY MOTORS LIMITED 

PYMS LANE CREWE 

CW1 3PL 

P
age 149



Pymm
s Lane

Sunnybank R
oad

N 356650000
E 368250000

Bentley Motors - 
Brick and cladding 
existing building

Bentley Motors - 
Brick and cladding 
existing building

Bentley Motors - 
Brick and cladding 
existing building

Sports
 and 

Social 
Club - 

existin
g build

ing

Bentley Motors - 
existing parking

Bentle
y Mot

ors -  

existin
g build

ing

KEY:

                          PROPOSED NEW BUILT BOUNDARY

10m0

1:1000

25m 50m

General Notes
Do not scale from this drawing. Only work to written dimensions.

All site dimensions shall be verified by the Contractor on site prior 
to commencing any works.

This drawing is the property of Fletcher-Rae (UK) Limited (t/a 
Fletcher-Rae) and copyright is reserved by them. The drawing is not 
to be copied or disclosed by or to any unauthorised persons without 
the prior written consent of Fletcher-Rae (UK) Limited.

Sheet Name:

Status

Scale

Date

Drawn By

Checked By

Project:

Client:

Level 12, Tower 12, 18-22 Bridge Street, Manchester, M3 3BZ

t +44 (0) 161 242 1140
w www.fletcher-rae.com
e info@fletcher-rae.com

Rev. Description Date ISS APP

Project No. Orig. Zone Level Type Role Dwg No. Rev

S2 Information
As indicated @ A2

P1

Bentley Motors Ltd

Bentley Paint Shop

12.04.2023

AAD
DL

Location Plan

23002-FRA-XX-XX-DR-A-PL01
1 : 1250
01-XX_Location Plan

P1 Issued for Planning TBC AAD DL

N

P
age 150



A D E

1

27

1:10

PV Panels

1:10

49.3

49.55
49.70

50.20

50.25

50.56

50.80

51.02
50.35

50.45

50.20
51.29

51.60

51.52

51.73

51.85

52.07

50.20

50.20

50.20

50.20

51.02

49.90

50.20

49.15

49.50

49.00

FFL 50.35

FFL 50.35

Sprinkler 
Tank

Fork Lift Truck Service Area

VIP Drop-Off

VIP Drop-Off

Paint Mix 
Service Access

52.09

Staff Access
N 356652174
E 368165659

N 356638906
E 368177187

N 356663480
E 368110682

N 356495623
E 368048657

N 356476212
E 368076666

Bentley Motors - 
Brick and cladding 
existing building

Bentley Motors - 
Brick and cladding 
existing building

Bentley Motors - 
Brick and cladding 
existing building

Sports
 and 

Social 
Club - 

existin
g build

ing

Bentley Motors - existing parking

50.64 50.20

51.20

51.23

51.50

50.45

TBC

Sheet Name:

Status

Scale

Date

Drawn By

Checked By

Project:

Client:

Level 12, Tower 12, 18-22 Bridge Street, Manchester, M3 3BZ

t +44 (0) 161 242 1140
w www.fletcher-rae.com
e info@fletcher-rae.com

Rev. Description Date ISS APP

Project No. Orig. Zone Level Type Role Dwg No. Rev

General Notes
Do not scale from this drawing. Only work to written dimensions.

All site dimensions shall be verified by the Contractor on site prior to 
commencing any works.

This drawing is the property of Fletcher-Rae (UK) Limited (t/a Fletcher-
Rae) and copyright is reserved by them. The drawing is not to be copied 
or disclosed by or to any unauthorised persons without the prior 
written consent of Fletcher-Rae (UK) Limited.

S2 Information
 1 : 500 @ A0

P1

Bentley Motors Ltd

Bentley Paint Shop

2023.03.09

RT
DL

Proposed Site Plan

23002-FRA-XX-XX-DR-A-PL04

 1 : 500
ROOF PLAN

N

0 10m 20m 30m 40m 50m

P1 Issued for Planning TBC AAD DL

P
age 151



GROUND FLOOR

50350

LEVEL 01

54100

LEVEL 02

7500

LEVEL 03

11250

U/S HAUNCH

18000

ACD

PARAPET LEVEL

22550

BE

LEVEL 00 -500

-500

7501 20000 30000 20000

Green wall Green wall 

OFFICE PARAPET

16524

BENTLEY

Bentley signage

GROUND FLOOR

50350

U/S HAUNCH

18000

A C D

PARAPET LEVEL

22550

B E

VIP TERRACE

12350

7501200003000020000

GROUND FLOOR

50350

LEVEL 01

54100

LEVEL 02

7500

LEVEL 03

11250

PARAPET LEVEL

22550

ROOF OFFICE

15000

14131211109876432 5 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 261 27

VIP TERRACE

12350

8500 7137 7137 7137 7137 7137 7137 7137 7137 7137 7137 7137 7137 7137 7137 7137 7137 7137 7137 7137 7137 7137 7137 10499 10499 8500

BENTLEY

PARAPET LEVEL

22550

14 13 12 11 10 9 8 7 6 4 3 25151617181920212223242526 127

LEVEL 00 -500

-500

VIP TERRACE

12350

8500 10499 10499 7137 7137 7137 7137 7137 7137 7137 7137 7137 7137 7137 7137 7137 7137 7137 7137 7137 7137 7137 7137 7137 7137 8500

Link 

Bridge

Link 

Bridge

General Notes:

Site levels are to be checked with a site measure prior to any works. See 

structural engineers drawings for building perimeter levels and 

retaining wall proposals. Information is based on a topo survey. 

Refer to below ground utilities topographic survey and CCTV survey for 

existing below ground services.

Refer to asbestos survey for existing buildings and link bridge 

connections.

Landscape design to be detailed by landscape architect.

Design elements that do not form part of this tender and will be 

completed part of a fit-out by the client are:

Internal FF&E office/general fit out, paint shop equipment, machinery 

and associated MEP

Internal specialist final finishes

Internal conveyors and associated shutters

Roof chimneys/flues. Contractor to provide openings and upstands. 

Openings to be temporarily sealed for air tests. Contractor to allow for 

a return visit to flash/seal the roof penetratons once installed (by 

others). Exact sizes and locations to be provided by client. 

See DBX report for acoustics requirements

Paint shop, Wax area, East & South annex requirements as per MEP 

report 

Roof U-Value 0.16

External Wall U-Value 0.26

Ground Floor U-Value 0.18

Vehicle access doors U-Value 1.30

External door U-Value 1.60

North annex requirements as per MEP report 

Roof U-Value 0.15

External Wall U-Value 0.18

Ground Floor U-Value 0.15

External door U-Value 1.60

Glass requirements as per MEP report 

U-Value 1.40

G-Value 0.29

LT -Value 0.60

Air permeability 2 m3/h/m2@50Pa

White metal profile wall system
Euroclad Elite 56 Insulated built-up wall system, MW5 
trapezoidal external wall profile horizontally laid, inverted to give 
standing seam appearance, or similar and approved. Non-
combustible material only
To achieve U-Value of 0.26. 

Mid grey profile wall system
Euroclad Elite 52 Insulated built-up wall system, MW5 
trapezoidal external wall profile vertically laid, inverted to give 
standing seam appearance, or similar and approved. Non-
combustible material only
To achieve U-Value of 0.26. 

Removeable hook on vertical panels fixed onto Type 2 Euroclad 
Elite 52. Panels to be provided by contractor for BML to paint

Same profile as above in white for the link bridges
Euroclad Elite 52

White and mid grey metal rainscreen flat face prefinished 
rainscreen panel system. Non-combustible aluminium panel 
with secret fix
Colour: White and grey inbetween windows

Green Wall system. 
ANS Living wall Module 500mm x 250mm x 100mm;
ANS Fixing Rails to be fixed to the substrate with site specific 
fixing at site specific centres. 14mm x 35mm x 4mm 
Aluminium. (See manufacturer’s specifications)
Drainage Channel (See manufacturer’s specifications)
107mm x 51mm gutter. (Product Reference: Osma Squareline 
(or approved equivalent). 
Waterproof breathable membrane (See manufacturer’s 
specifications) Product Reference: ProFelt Breathable
Membranes or Obex Cortex 0520FR Manufacturer: Profelt or 
Obex
Irrigation system: Break Tank (size of which is site specific); 
Dosatron® liquid feed dispenser to ensure correct feeding of 
wall to ensure healthy growth of plants; Electronic program to 
give warning of failure of irrigation system. Recirculation syste 
to be included.
See MEP drawings for connections. 
ANS Living Wall Planting Media. Plant choice as selected by 
ANS Global to suit location and requirements.

Roof top plant louvre sreens
Renson Linius louvres. Extruded aluminium fixed to mullions 
which in turn fix to purlins on the steel columns. Individual 
horizontal profiles in Z-shape, open.
L.033 with ventilation (See manufacturer’s specifications)

External glazing curtain wallling and windows
Comar Architectural Aluminium Systems
Product reference: Comar 5P.i to Kitemark License, BS4873 
PAS 24:2016. Secured by Design License Holder
Finish as delivered: Polyester Powder Coated to RAL 7016, 60 
Micron minimum thickness
Glazing details: Double Glazed- Silicone sealed units in 
accordance with BS 5713.
All glazing to be the same colour except the dark grey opaque 
panels

Cladding panel sizes to match specification. Installation as per 
manufacturers details and spec. Window heads to align with 
cladding lines. Proposals to be agreed

External Elevations Legend

External cladding

Window

Spandrel panel

Curtain walling

1.

2.

3.

4.

6.

5.

7.

8.

9.

10.

2a.

Sheet Name:

Status

Scale

Date

Drawn By

Checked By

Project:

Client:

Level 12, Tower 12, 18-22 Bridge Street, Manchester, M3 3BZ

t +44 (0) 161 242 1140

w www.fletcher-rae.com

e info@fletcher-rae.com

Rev. Description Date ISS APP

Project No. Orig. Zone Level Type Role Dwg No. Rev

General Notes

Do not scale from this drawing. Only work to written dimensions.

All site dimensions shall be verified by the Contractor on site prior to 

commencing any works.

This drawing is the property of Fletcher-Rae (UK) Limited (t/a Fletcher-

Rae) and copyright is reserved by them. The drawing is not to be copied 

or disclosed by or to any unauthorised persons without the prior 

written consent of Fletcher-Rae (UK) Limited.

S4 Approval

As indicated @ A0

P2

Bentley Motors Ltd

Paint Shop

17.04.2023

LG

DL

Proposed Elevations

23002-FRA-XX-XX-DR-A-PL12

1 : 250

PL-12_North Elevation
1 : 250

PL-12_South Elevation

1 : 250

PL-12_West Elevation

1 : 250

PL-12_East Elevation

Double glazed aluminium 
windows. Dark grey 
frames

Double glazed aluminium 
curtain walling dark grey. 
Comar 5Pi to manufacturers 
details and specifications

Double glazed aluminium curtain 
walling dark grey with single door. 
Comar 5Pi to manufacturers 
details and specifications

Light Grey roller shutter 
doors and personnel 
doors

White metal louvres to be 
installed as part of fit-out works 
by specialist to match white 
cladding 

Double glazed 
aluminium windows
Dark grey frames

Light grey roller 
shutter and 
personnel doors

Double glazed aluminium 
curtain walling dark grey. 
Comar 5Pi to 
manufacturers details 
and specifications

White metal louvres to be 
installed as part of fit-out works 
by specialist to match white 
cladding 

Light grey 
personnel doors

Double glazed aluminium curtain 
walling dark grey. Comar 5Pi to 
manufacturers details and 
specifications

Opaque glazed 
panels to hide 
changing area

Louvered plant screen

Green Wall panel system. Max 
stand off 150mm tbc Weight TBC 
by Green Wall specialist. 
Manufacturer ANS or similar and 
aproved

Louvered plant 
screen. Light grey

White metal rainscreen 
flat face panel system. 
Non-combustible

Louvered plant screen

Louvered plant screen

Mid grey profile wall system with 
vertical panel. Non-combustible with 
added hook on vertical panels 
showing client colours. Removable 
panels to be provided for the client to 
paint prior to installation

Louvres required for ventilation. 
Additional louvres for plant areas to 
be confirmed by client and to be 
installed as part of fit-out works by 
specialist to match cladding colour

Natural ventilation via 
louvered double door

Natural ventilation via 
louvered single door

Natural ventilation via 
louvered double door

See MEP drawings for 
louvre sizes. Louvres to 
match cladding colour

Opaque glazed panels 
to hide structural beams 
and stair landing

HAZARD SCHEDULE

Hazard

Label Hazard Description

1 Fire escape and Ramp access from paint store

2 Green roof client manitenance and insurer

confirmation

3 Paint store lid access and edge protection not

part of contract works

4 Means of fire escape and required clear areas

5 Extent of lining tbc by client. There will be no

services within any voids created with the

lining due to fire risk.

6 High level roof access and escape

7 Potential use of hot wax. No safety stations

provided as part of contract works

8 Existing buildings and bridge link to be

coordinated and exact locations agreed.

Existig asbestos to be removed by Bentley as

per surveys. Late amendment to link bridge

requires structural coordination

9 All openings to be sealed for air tightness test.

Coveyor openings to have air tight and fire

curtain to be installed as part of fit-out works

by specialist

10 Removable panels for client to paint. Hook on

system and weight for handling to be

reviewed

11 Roof top plant maintenance and access to be

coordinated

White metal profile wall system with 
horizontal panel to continue below 
slab level where external levels are 
lower.

Sprinklers

Security perimeter 
paladin fence.

Security perimeter 
paladin fence.

Sprinklers

All glazing to be the same 
colour

Structural columns to be 
painted to match mid grey 
cladding colour

Bentley signage

P1 Issued for Planning TBC AAD DL

P2 Planning amendments to

elevations

09.10.23 DL LG

P
age 152



A

C

D

14 13 12 11 10 9 8 7 6 4 3 25

B

15

E

1617181920212223242526 127

3

4

2

1

C
o
n
v
e
yo

r 
B

ri
d

g
e

C
o
n
v
e
yo

r 
B

ri
d

g
e

107.62 m²

Compressor

Room 41.39 m²

T1 Extraction

27.12 m²

Collg Skill Area
53.06 m²

Maintenance

Rest Area

27.12 m²

Rob Test Area

62.81 m²

Maintenance

Workshop 141.48 m²

Maintenance

Storage

24.69 m²

Entry Air Lock

27.03 m²

WC's

159.01 m²

Jig & Features

Workshop

26.41 m²

Delivery Airlock

71.51 m²

Sealer/ LASD

Storage
56.15 m²

Sealer/ LASD

Supply
84.22 m²

RO Water Plant 32.83 m²

Vacuum

41.42 m²

LV Switchroom

46.96 m²

Delivery73.97 m²

Paint Store

44.00 m²

Paint Prep

15.20 m²

Testing Booth

111.19 m²

Paint Mix Room

1
160.11 m²

Paint Mix Room

2

44.00 m²

Wax Storage

72.00 m²

Maintenance

Storage (Heavy

Items)

30.29 m²

WC's

49.23 m²

Wax Colleagues

Rest Area

2
0
0
0
0

3
0
0
0
0

2
0
0
0
0

4
0
1
2
5

8500

314sqm

178950

20200

3
7
9
5
0

8.56 m²

Corridor

51.39 m²

Plant Rm/ Water

St

Paint Store
450sqm

100mm recessed slab

Office

2
0
0
0
0

3
0
0
0
0

2
0
0
0
0

7
5
0
1

VIP ACCESS

STAFF 
ACCESS

VIP ACCESS

6
4
0
0

1
5
3
6
3

Bentley Motors -

Brick and cladding existing building

4.60 m²

Em,Lght,Batt Rm

25.00 m²

Substation

VIP Reception

Staff Entrance

Male Changing

Stair 2

Fe
m

a
le

 C
h

a
n

g
in

g

FIRE EXIT ENTRY / 

FIRE EXIT

FIRE EXIT

FIRE EXITFIRE EXITFIRE EXITFIRE EXIT

FIRE EXIT

FIRE EXIT

FIRE EXIT

VIP DROP OFF

W
A

X
IN

G
 

D
E

LI
V

E
R

IE
S

PAINT SHOP 

DELIVERIES

PAINT SHOP 

DELIVERIES

PL12

PL12

PL12

PL12

35.06 m²

Substation 2

57.66 m²

LV Switch 2

96.00 m²

Jig Storage

Prd.Pro. Fluct.

13.00 m²

Entry Air Lock

23.98 m²

VIP Stair

1399.41 m²

Waxing Area

10472.25 m²

Paint Shop

7.90 m²

Em,Lght,Batt Rm

2

Sheet Name:

Status

Scale

Date

Drawn By

Checked By

Project:

Client:

Level 12, Tower 12, 18-22 Bridge Street, Manchester, M3 3BZ

t +44 (0) 161 242 1140

w www.fletcher-rae.com

e info@fletcher-rae.com

Rev. Description Date ISS APP

Project No. Orig. Zone Level Type Role Dwg No. Rev

General Notes

Do not scale from this drawing. Only work to written dimensions.

All site dimensions shall be verified by the Contractor on site prior to 

commencing any works.

This drawing is the property of Fletcher-Rae (UK) Limited (t/a Fletcher-

Rae) and copyright is reserved by them. The drawing is not to be copied 

or disclosed by or to any unauthorised persons without the prior 

written consent of Fletcher-Rae (UK) Limited.

S4 Approval

1 : 250 @ A0

P2

Bentley Motors Ltd

Paint Shop

11.04.2023

LG

DL

Proposed GA Plan Level 00

23002-FRA-XX-00-DR-A-PL05

1 : 250

PL-05_Proposed Ground Floor

P1 Issued for Planning TBC AAD DL

P2 Planning amendments to

elevations

09.10.23 DL LG

P
age 153



UP

A

C

D

14 13 12 11 10 9 8 7 6 4 3 25

B

15

E

1617181920212223242526 127

Roof top plant spaceExtent of roof top plant space T.B.C.

Li
nk
 B
rid
ge

Ro
of
 to
p 
pl
an
t s
pa
ce

21
00
0

29
00
0

20
00
0

72
00

Plant Mix Area

8500 10499 10499 7137 7137 7137 7137 7137 7137 7137 7137 7137 7137 7137 7137 7137 7137 7137 7137 7137 7137 7137 7137 7137 7137 8500

1410.40 m²
Waxing Area

C
on
ve
yo
r B
rid
ge

15
41
3

40
07
5

15
41
2

46
50

26
00

195900

8500 178950 8450

14490 4509 151160 6900 10391 8450

78
15
0

67
50

8000

55
95

Bentley Motors - 
Brick and cladding existing building

Paintshop

2101 3

21012

2101

1

Meeting Room

Meeting Room

Stair 1 Lobby

Canteen

Stair 2

PL12 3

PL122

PL12

1

Sheet Name:

Status

Scale

Date

Drawn By

Checked By

Project:

Client:

Level 12, Tower 12, 18-22 Bridge Street, Manchester, M3 3BZ

t +44 (0) 161 242 1140
w www.fletcher-rae.com
e info@fletcher-rae.com

Rev. Description Date ISS APP

Project No. Orig. Zone Level Type Role Dwg No. Rev

General Notes
Do not scale from this drawing. Only work to written dimensions.

All site dimensions shall be verified by the Contractor on site prior to 
commencing any works.

This drawing is the property of Fletcher-Rae (UK) Limited (t/a Fletcher-
Rae) and copyright is reserved by them. The drawing is not to be copied 
or disclosed by or to any unauthorised persons without the prior 
written consent of Fletcher-Rae (UK) Limited.

S4 Approval
1 : 250 @ A0

P1

Bentley Motors Ltd

Bentley Paint Shop

11.04.2023

AAD
DL

Proposed GA Plan Level 01

23002-FRA-XX-01-DR-A-PL06

1 : 250
20-01_Proposed First Floor

P1 Issued for Planning TBC AAD DL

P
age 154



UP

A

C

D

14 13 12 11 10 9 8 7 6 4 3 25

B

15

E

1617181920212223242526 127

84.64 m²
Open Plan Office

1410.40 m²
Waxing Area

10499 10499 7137 7137 7137 7137 7137 7137 7137 7137 7137 7137 7137 7137 7137 7137 7137 7137 7137 7137 7137 7137 7137 7137 8500

Lift

187400

178950 8450

70
90
0

15
41
3

40
07
5

15
41
2

21
00
0

29
00
0

20
00
0

Bentley Motors - 
Brick and cladding existing building

Paintshop

2101 3

2101

4

21012

2101

1

Link Bridge
Link Bridge

Office

Stair 1 Lobby

Control Room

Stair 2

Server

PL12 3

PL12

4

PL122

PL12

1

Sheet Name:

Status

Scale

Date

Drawn By

Checked By

Project:

Client:

Level 12, Tower 12, 18-22 Bridge Street, Manchester, M3 3BZ

t +44 (0) 161 242 1140
w www.fletcher-rae.com
e info@fletcher-rae.com

Rev. Description Date ISS APP

Project No. Orig. Zone Level Type Role Dwg No. Rev

General Notes
Do not scale from this drawing. Only work to written dimensions.

All site dimensions shall be verified by the Contractor on site prior to 
commencing any works.

This drawing is the property of Fletcher-Rae (UK) Limited (t/a Fletcher-
Rae) and copyright is reserved by them. The drawing is not to be copied 
or disclosed by or to any unauthorised persons without the prior 
written consent of Fletcher-Rae (UK) Limited.

S4 Approval
1 : 250 @ A0

P1

Bentley Motors Ltd

Bentley Paint Shop

11.04.2023

AAD
DL

Proposed GA Plan Level 02

23002-FRA-XX-02-DR-A-PL07

1 : 250
20-02_Proposed Second Floor

P1 Issued for Planning TBC AAD DL

P
age 155



A

C

D

14 13 12 11 10 9 8 7 6 4 3 25

B

15

E

1617181920212223242526 127

Green Roof

VIP Roof 
Terrace

175.45 m²
Open Plan Office

Li
ft

Bentley Motors - 
Brick and cladding existing building

187400

10499 10499 7137 7137 7137 7137 7137 7137 7137 7137 7137 7137 7137 7137 7137 7137 7137 7137 7137 7137 7137 7137 7137 7137 8500

70
90
0

15
41
3

40
07
5

15
41
2

21
00
0

29
00
0

20
00
0

20525 158425 8450

Paintshop

2101

4

21012

2101

1

Open Plan Office

Stair 1 Lobby

Stair 2

PL12

4

PL122

PL12

1

Link Bridge
Link Bridge

Sheet Name:

Status

Scale

Date

Drawn By

Checked By

Project:

Client:

Level 12, Tower 12, 18-22 Bridge Street, Manchester, M3 3BZ

t +44 (0) 161 242 1140
w www.fletcher-rae.com
e info@fletcher-rae.com

Rev. Description Date ISS APP

Project No. Orig. Zone Level Type Role Dwg No. Rev

General Notes
Do not scale from this drawing. Only work to written dimensions.

All site dimensions shall be verified by the Contractor on site prior to 
commencing any works.

This drawing is the property of Fletcher-Rae (UK) Limited (t/a Fletcher-
Rae) and copyright is reserved by them. The drawing is not to be copied 
or disclosed by or to any unauthorised persons without the prior 
written consent of Fletcher-Rae (UK) Limited.

S4 Approval
1 : 250 @ A0

P1

Bentley Motors Ltd

Bentley Paint Shop

11.04.2023

AAD
DL

Proposed GA Plan Level 03

23002-FRA-XX-03-DR-A-PL08

1 : 250
20-03_Proposed Third Floor

P1 Issued for Planning TBC AAD DL

P
age 156



Pymms 
Lane

Sunnybank Road

G

368200E

PYM
'S LA

NE

U
nd

C
H

TO
AS
TE
R

FR
ID
GE

M/
W
AV
E

FR
ID
GE

O
/H
 c
ab
le
 lv
l 6
1.
60

O
/H
 c
ab
le
 lv
l 6
1.
62

O
/H
 c
ab
le
 lv
l 7
5.
29

O
/H
 c
ab
le
 lv
l 5
7.
92

O
/H
 c
ab
le
 lv
l 5
7.
68

O
/H
 c
ab
le
 lv
l 7
5.
31

O
/H
 c
ab
le
 lv
l 6
8.
75

O
/H
 c
ab
le
 lv
l 6
6.
94

O
/H
 c
ab
le
 lv
l 6
4.
84

O
/H
 c
ab
le
 lv
l 6
4.
81

C

2

B

1

60.61 m²
VIP Reception

Lift
Riser

Riser

36.50 m²
Corridor

75.96 m²
Male Changing

39.96 m²
Female Changing

1.64 m²
Cln

42.06 m²
Staff Entrance

22.68 m²
Stair 2

6.11 m²
Airlock5.81 m²

DDA Change

218 Lockers

82 Lockers

Shower

Shower

Shower

Sh
ow
er

Sh
ow
er

Sh
ow
er

VIP ACCESS

STAFF ACCESS

7530

80
50

6000

55
50

1600

12900 2500 3495 6000

15
00

10545

40
70

37
80

14650

63
00

Riser

2545

C

2

B

1

60.61 m²
Meeting Room

Lift

42.80 m²
Stair 1 Lobby

43.76 m²
Meeting Room

Not
Enclosed

Corridor

110.72 m²
Canteen

17.24 m²
Stair 2

Riser

Riser

80
50

7530

27
00

51
50

7500 11495 6000

80
50

13555116106044

63
75

55
50

Riser

16
00

C

2

B

1

84.64 m²
Open Plan Office

60.81 m²
Office

42.88 m²
Stair 1 Lobby

Not
Enclosed

Corridor

22.79 m²
Control Room

5.78 m²
Cleaners

13.02 m²
Meeting Room

17.24 m²
Stair 2

Lift
Riser

Riser

5.18 m²
Corridor1.96 m²

Unisex WC

1.96 m²
Unisex WC

3.89 m²
DDA WC

11.77 m²
Server

27
00

51
50

80
50

600073553990

3900

135551164060257555

16
00

32
75

29
50

3400

63
00

55
50

Riser

C

2

B

1

175.45 m²
Open Plan Office

Lift
Riser

Riser

42.11 m²
Stair 1 Lobby

60.61 m²
Open Plan Office

17.24 m²
Stair 2

25345

80
50

51
50

80
50

7530 6000

Riser

C

2

B

1

128.48 m²
External Plant Area

23.78 m²
Stair Core

Paving

8430 5500 25345

25
90

54
60

24070 1275

37.81 m²
External Plant Area

6038 29000 5038

40075

84
50

General Notes
Do not scale from this drawing. Only work to written dimensions.

All site dimensions shall be verified by the Contractor on site prior to 
commencing any works.

This drawing is the property of Fletcher-Rae (UK) Limited (t/a Fletcher-
Rae) and copyright is reserved by them. The drawing is not to be 
copied or disclosed by or to any unauthorised persons without the 
prior written consent of Fletcher-Rae (UK) Limited.

Sheet Name:

Status

Scale

Date

Drawn By

Checked By

Project:

Client:

Level 12, Tower 12, 18-22 Bridge Street, Manchester, M3 3BZ

t +44 (0) 161 242 1140
w www.fletcher-rae.com
e info@fletcher-rae.com

Rev. Description Date ISS APP

S2 Information

RevProject No. Orig. Zone Level Type Role Dwg No.

 1 : 100 @ A1

P1

Bentley Motors Ltd

Bentley Paint Shop

05.04.2023

AAD
DL

-PL10

Proposed Office Floor Plans

23002-FRA-XX-ZZ-DR-A

 1 : 100
20-00_Office-Level 00

 1 : 100
20-01_Office-Level 01

 1 : 100
20-02_Office-Level 02

Emergency
Escape

 1 : 100
20-03_Office-Level 03

 1 : 100
20-R1_Office-Level Roof

P1 Issued for Planning TBC AAD DL

Page 157



This page is intentionally left blank



 
OFFICIAL 

 
   Application No: 23/2349N 

 
   Location: Bentley Motors Limited, PYMS LANE, CREWE, CW1 3PL 

 
   Proposal: Demolition of an existing temporary industrial warehouse and construction 

of an Integrated Logistics Centre including a covered logistics route, 
internal amenity and office annex. 
 

   Applicant: 
 

Mr Andrew Robertson, Bentley Motors Ltd 

   Expiry Date: 
 

01-Nov-2023 

 
SUMMARY 
 
The proposal is for new integrated logistics centre for the existing Bentley Motors campus which 
would also involve the demolition of the existing temporary structure, some 8 years old, to the 
east of the existing workshops to provide for construction of the new, permanent logistics 
building. The existing structure on site only has an intended lifespan of some 10 years and 
therefore this application proposal seeks to provide a more permanent, appropriate facility. 
 
The principle of the development is compatible with surrounding land uses and would facilitate 
the delivery of new jobs and economic growth for Bentley Motors, a large local employer. The 
proposal would thereby help to deliver significant economic and social benefits. 
 
The proposal is compatible with the surrounding development and the design, scale and form 
of both the detailed proposals and those indicated in outline form would not appear incongruous 
within their context. The impact of the proposal on trees and hedges would not be significant 
and environmental considerations relating to flooding, drainage, land contamination (subject to 
further investigations), public open space, and ecology would be acceptable subject to 
conditions and the inspection of further submitted detail by the Lead Local Flood Authority 
(LLFA) to be reported in the committee update. The committee update will also deal with the 
response of the applicant to the objection of United Utilities.  
 
The impact on neighbouring residential amenity would be acceptable and owing to the 
generous separation with the nearest neighbouring properties and having regard to the context 
of the area as a centre for automotive manufacturing. Satisfactory access and parking provision 
can be provided and the development would not result in material harm on the local highway 
network. Highways has no objection to the proposal. 
 
The proposal is therefore considered to comply with the relevant policies of the Cheshire East 
Local Plan Strategy (CELPS), the policies of the Cheshire East Site Allocations and 
Development Plan Document and guidance contained within the National Planning Policy 
Framework.  
 
Recommendation: 
Approval subject to conditions 
 

Page 159 Agenda Item 7



 
OFFICIAL 

DESCRIPTION OF SITE AND CONTEXT 
 
This application relates to the site of Bentley Motors, a large industrial site for the manufacturing 
of motor vehicles located on Pyms Lane, Crewe. The Crewe Bentley campus has been in situ 
for over 70 years and hosts the full lifecycle of motor car production, including design, research 
and development, engineering and manufacturing. The wider site is expansive and runs from 
Middlewich Road in the west, along Pyms Lane, now closed to traffic, to the border of 
residential housing estate to the east. The south of the wider site is bounded by the railway 
line. The whole site is covered by the Strategic Employment Site EMP1 in the Cheshire East 
Local Plan Strategy, and the designated employment site CRE1 - Land at Bentley Motors - in 
the Cheshire East Site Allocations and Development Policies Document. The site is within the 
settlement boundary of Crewe. 
 
The site edged red for this application is at the east of the main complex of workshops within 
the Bentley campus. It is occupied largely by the temporary structure serving as the logistics 
warehouse which was approved by planning permission 16/5609N, in use class B1c (light 
industrial). The existing structure is some 11min height, with a footprint of some 115m x 70m. 
The existing building is composed of two very shallow roof pitches.  
 
DETAILS OF PROPOSAL 
 
This is an application for full planning permission for demolition of the existing warehouse and 
construction of an integrated logistics centre with an attached office annex. The proposed 
building would approximately have a footprint of some 155m x 87m, meaning a materially larger 
footprint than that of the existing building. It would be constructed to a maximum height of 
approximately 13m and formed similarly of two roof pitches, albeit with a differing pitch and 
attached to the existing buildings to the south and west. The existing space about the south of 
the existing building would be subsumed by the increased length and the weighbridge would 
be re-sited to the south of the site. 
 
RELEVANT HISTORY 
 
There is an extensive planning history for the Bentley Motors site. However, the only 
applications of relevance to this proposal are as follows: 
 
18/0819D Discharge of conditions 4,5,6,7, & 8 on application 16/5609N Part approved/part 
refused 16/APR/2018 
 
17/2934D Discharge of conditions 1 to 10 on application 16/5609N - It is proposed to construct 
a logistics building on existing hard standing to the east of Bentley's Pyms Lane plant. Part of 
the car park will be reconstructed to form a dispatch area. Part approved/part refused 
24/AUG/2017 
 
16/5609N It is proposed to construct a logistics building on existing hard standing to the east 
of Bentley's Pyms Lane plant. Part of the car park will be reconstructed to form a dispatch area. 
Approved with conditions 03/FEB/2017 
 
16/0341N - Demolition of all existing on-site buildings and structures, the construction of a five 

Page 160



 
OFFICIAL 

storey engineering technical centre comprising offices at the front of the building and 
warehousing at the rear, the construction of a two-storey design centre comprising offices and 
a workshop together with associated works – Approved with conditions – 27-Oct-2017 
15/3869N - It is proposed to convert the existing field into a private car park for Bentley Motors. 
The site is an existing green area which will be converted to hard standing material to suit the 
needs of a car park. The car park will be enclosed with fences. North east and south of the 
proposed car park, a 14m width band will be dedicated for planting. – Approved 18-Mar-2016 
 
15/4141N - Alterations to E1 Car Park, realignment of internal road, construction of a vehicle 
test building, relocation of Gate 3 Security Lodge and amendments to gate arrangement, 
installation of 5 No. entry gate positions and relocation of cycle and motorcycle shelters - 
Approved 18-Nov-2015 
 
15/3665N - Construction of a 4 storey office building on the site of an existing carpark – 
Approved 28-Oct-2015 
 
14/5262N - Proposed pre-fabricated building, complete with services to be installed as office 
and restrooms for Lorry Park on site at Bentley Motors – Approved 09-Feb-2015 
 
14/2944N - Construction of a new Painted Body Store Warehouse and ancillary 
accommodation totalling approximately 5060sqm gross internal floor area. The relocation of 
fuel tanks and a fuel filling location. The proposed building comprises a large warehouse with 
one and a half portal frame structure, a single storey office annex to the North elevation with 
rest and WC facilities, an enclosed link to the existing adjacent warehouse to the east and an 
enclosed bridge link above the private road to the adjacent property to the North. A 10m 
overhanging canopy will be provided for the full width of the building to the west elevation and 
a 2m deep canopy to the north side of the east link – Approved 29-Aug-2014 
 
13/5114N - Variation of condition 2 (approved plans) on application 12/4426N (proposed 
development of the site to provide a permanent car park with a total of 1817 car parking spaces 
plus lorry parking for up to 14 HGV's) – Approved 18-Feb-2014 
 
12/4426N - Proposed development of the site to provide a permanent car park with a total of 
1817 car parking spaces plus lorry parking for up to 14 HGV's – Approved 03-Jun-2013 
 
12/4319N – Resolved to grant full planning permission (subject to S106 Obligation) for the 
erection of a two storey temporary office accommodation with links to an existing building to 
accommodate existing staff relocated on site on 1st May 2013 
 
12/3418N – Full planning permission approved to develop site to provide a permanent car park 
with a total of 478 parking spaces on 30th November 2012 
 
12/4373N - New build showroom with associated car parking approved on 6th February 2013 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 161



 
OFFICIAL 

POLICIES 
 
National Policy 
 
National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) 
 
Cheshire East Local Plan Strategy (CELPS) 
 
MP 1 Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development  
PG 1 Overall Development Strategy  
PG 2 Settlement Hierarchy  
PG 7 Spatial Distribution of Development Policy  
SD 1 Sustainable Development in Cheshire East Policy  
SD 2 Sustainable Development Principles Policy  
IN 1 Infrastructure  
IN 2 Developer Contributions  
EG 1 Economic Prosperity   
EG 3 Existing and Allocated Employment Sites  
SE 1 Design  
SE 2 Efficient Use of Land  
SE 3 Biodiversity and Geodiversity  
SE 4 The Landscape  
SE 5 Trees, Hedgerows and Woodland  
SE 6 Green Infrastructure  
SE 7 Built Heritage 
SE 9 Energy Efficient Development  
SE 13 Flood Risk and Water Management  
SC 2 Indoor and Outdoor Sports Facilities 
CO 1 Sustainable Travel and Transport  
CO 2 Enabling Business Growth Through Transport Infrastructure  
CO 4 Travel Plans and Transport Assessments 
Appendix C - Parking Standards 
 
Cheshire East Site Allocations and Development Policies Document (SADPD) 
 
EMP1 - Strategic Employment Area 
EMP2 - Employment Allocations 
GEN1 – Design Principles 
PG9 - Settlement Boundaries 
HOU12 - Amenity 
REC1 - Open Space Protection 
ENV1 - Ecological Network 
ENV2 - Ecology 
ENV5 - Landscaping 
ENV6 - Trees, Hedgerows and Woodland 
ENV7 - Climate Change 
ENV12 - Air Quality 
ENV16 - Surface Water Management and Flood Risk 
ENV17 - Protecting Water Resources 

Page 162



 
OFFICIAL 

HER 7 Non Designated Heritage Asset 
INF1 - Cycleways, Bridleways and Footpaths 
INF3 - Highway Safety and Access 
CRE1 - Land at Bentley Motors, Crewe 
 
Neighbourhood Planning 
 
There is no Neighbourhood Plan for Crewe. 
 
Other Material Considerations 
 
National Planning Practice Guidance (NPPG) 
 
CONSULTATIONS  
 
Environmental Protection - no objection subject to conditions 
 
United Utilities - objection on the basis of impact on sewer - to be dealt with between Bentley 
and United Utilities and to be discussed in committee update. 
 
Lead Local Flood Authority (LLFA) - holding objection subject to further information which has 
been submitted and will be reviewed prior to the committee update 
 
Active Travel England - no consultation response 
 
Greenspaces on behalf of Cheshire East Council (formerly known as ANSA) - no objection 
 
Highways - no objection  
 
Crewe Town Council - no consultation response 
 
OFFICER APPRAISAL 
 
Principle of Development 
 
Chapter 2 of the NPPF introduces the presumption in favour of sustainable development, which 
is the focus of policy MP1 of the Cheshire East Local Plan Strategy (CELPS).  This policy 
stipulates that proposals that accord with policies in the Development Plan will be approved 
without delay, unless material considerations indicate otherwise. Policy SD2 of the CELPS is 
the overarching policy in relation to the design of all proposals, requiring them to contribute 
positively to an area's character and identity in terms of design and the relationship to the future 
and neighbouring occupiers. These considerations, along with others, are addressed in the 
following sections in this report.  
 
The application site is within a designated strategic employment area. Site allocation CRE1 of 
the SADPD Land at Bentley Motors, Pyms Lane applies to the site. 
 
Policy EMP1 of the SADPD states that these strategic employment areas are of particular 
significance to the economy of Cheshire East and will be protected for employment use as set 

Page 163

https://maps.cheshireeast.gov.uk/ce/localplan/adoptedpoliciesmap2022?&e=368181&n=356520&s=5000


 
OFFICIAL 

out in CELPS Policy EG 3 on existing and allocated employment sites. The proposal enhances 
the employment provision of Bentley Motors at this site and very substantial weight is afforded 
to the proposal in light of this. 
 
The proposal is for a new B2 (general industrial) integrated logistics centre building and 
associated infrastructure within a settlement boundary. Subject to all other relevant material 
considerations there is no policy reason to undermine the principle of development. The NPPF 
requires Local Planning Authorities to adopt a positive and constructive approach towards 
planning applications for economic development. Planning applications that encourage 
sustainable economic development should be treated favourably and this view is further 
reinforced in Policy EG1 of the In line of the presumption in favour of sustainable development 
outlines in the NPPF and CELPS policy MP1 the principle of development is considered 
acceptable subject to material considerations as set out below. 
 
Design and Impact on Character of the Area 
 
Cheshire East Local Plan Strategy Policy SD2 states that all development will be expected to 
contribute positively an area's character and identity, creating or reinforcing local 
distinctiveness in terms of; 
- Height, scale, form and grouping 
- Choice of materials 
- External design features 
- Massing of the development (the balance between built form and green/public spaces) 
- Green infrastructure; and  
- Relationship to neighbouring properties, street scene and the wider neighbourhood 
 
Policy SE1 of the CELPS advises that the proposal should achieve a high standard of design 
and, wherever possible, enhance the built environment. It should also respect the pattern, 
character and form of the surroundings. 
 
Policy GEN1 (Design Principles) sets a number of design principles that development proposals 
should meet. This includes the following; 1. create high quality, beautiful and sustainable 
buildings and places, avoiding the imposition of standardised and/or generic design solutions 
where they do not establish and/or maintain a strong sense of quality and place; 2. create a 
sense of identity and legibility by using landmarks and incorporating key views into, within and 
out of new development; 3. reflect the local character and design preferences set out in the 
Cheshire East Borough Design Guide supplementary planning document unless otherwise 
justified by appropriate innovative design or change that fits in with the overall form and layout 
of their surroundings. 
 
The main pattern of development on site is that of a tight, regularly arranged grid of warehouses 
and workshops. the proposed logistics hub would extend this built form to the east and would 
read as a visually logical addition to the main factory complex when viewed from Pyms Lane to 
the north and the row of residential properties to the east as well as points within the site to the 
south. The bulk of the existing factory would obscure view of the new structure from any point 
beyond to the west, as it does with the current structure on site. The proposed structure would 
be significant in bulk and scale although when read from the public highway to the north and 
the houses to the east it would not appear visually overbearing given the existing built form on 
site. The proposed building would not read as significantly taller than the existing building in 

Page 164



 
OFFICIAL 

material terms. The proposed materials palette would be entirely in keeping with this advanced 
manufacturing facility and befits this strategic employment site and key part of the industrial 
base of Cheshire East. The facing materials at the walls would be aluminium cladding. 
 
In line with the requirement of site allocation CRE1 and policy HER7 of the SADPD and policy 
SE7 of the CELPS consideration has been had to the locally listed building at Bentley Motors. 
This would be located well beyond the site edged red to the north and would not be impacted 
in any way. 
 
Overall then the proposal would comply with the above policies on visual amenity. 
 
Impact on Residential Amenity 
 
Policy SE12 of the CELPS states that the council will seek to ensure all development is located 
and designed so as not to result in a harmful or cumulative impact upon air quality, surface 
water and groundwater, noise, smell, dust, vibration, soil contamination, light pollution or any 
other pollution which would unacceptably affect the natural and built environment, or 
detrimentally affect amenity or cause harm. Developers will be expected to minimise and 
mitigate the effects of possible pollution arising from the development itself, or as a result of the 
development (including additional traffic) during both the construction and the life of the 
development. Where adequate mitigation cannot be provided, development will not normally 
be permitted. 
 
Policy HOU12 of the SADPD states that with reference to the residential standards set out in 
Table 8.2 'Standards for space between buildings', the Cheshire East Borough Design Guide 
supplementary planning document and other policies where relevant, development proposals 
must not cause unacceptable harm to the amenities of adjoining or nearby occupiers of 
residential properties, sensitive uses, or future occupiers of the proposed development due to: 
1. loss of privacy; 2. loss of sunlight and daylight; 3. the overbearing and dominating effect of 
new buildings; 4. environmental disturbance or pollution; or 5. traffic generation, access and 
parking. 
 
The proposed industrial unit would generate a workforce of some 80 employees. Rather than 
a physical manufacturing process it is proposed that the specific use which would occur would 
be the storage and retrieval of parts relating to the car manufacturing process. The application 
has stated that separate waste stream bins will be provided throughout the building which will 
be emptied daily and taken to the on-site recycling centre for treatment. The waste is then 
separated into bulk waste stream bins for recycling off site. 
 
The Council's environmental protection team has reviewed the submitted noise report and 
environmental health detail and has no objection, subject to appropriate conditions in relation 
to this. 
 
The proposed integrated logistics building is within an existing complex of entirely industrial use 
buildings with the only neighbouring residential use sited to the east, where west facing rear 
elevation windows of houses at Minshull New Road. Some 65m would be retained from the 
new ILC building to the closest neighbouring property's rear elevation wall which is easily in 
compliance with the standards set out in Table 8.2 and having regard to the general desirability 
of separation between this advanced manufacturing site and residential uses. 

Page 165



 
OFFICIAL 

 
Matters relating to parking and access will be discussed in the relevant section further in this 
report. Subject to this it is therefore found that policy HOU12 of the SADPD and policy SE12 of 
the CELPS would be complied with. 
 
Public Open Space 
 
Site allocation CRE1 states the proposal will be supported where it would retain the existing 
sports facility, playing field and associated area of existing open space unless they are proven 
to be surplus to need, or suitable improved provision is created having regard to the 
requirements of CELPS Policy SC 2 'Indoor and outdoor sports facilities'. The Bentley sports 
facility 'Legends' falls outside the site edged red and would be retained. 
 
This application triggers Policy SE6 requirements for open space provision and sports 
contributions. 
 
The application to demolish an existing temporary building and construct an integrated logistics 
centre.  This site is identified within the Site Allocations and Development Policies Document 
as CRE1: Land at Bentley Motors.  Development for the site should include the design to be 
sensitive, to ensure the amenity of residents in the vicinity of the site is not unacceptably 
affected.  The site plan indicates a small area of green space between the car park and 
adjoining properties.  The Open Space officer has requested this is appropriately planted to 
reduce the visual impact of the new building for residents. In line with this and in terms of 
general landscaping considerations a landscaping scheme will be conditioned. 
 
The Design and Access Statement shows the logistics route will interfere with the current 
viewing ‘garden’ and the removal of a small corner of shrubbery.  With regards to open space, 
the public open space officer has requested that the applicant could put forward options to 
improve or increase on site provision. 
 
In terms of outdoor sports facilities, financial contributions for offsite provision to be used in line 
with the Council’s Playing Pitch Strategy or any subsequent document would normally be 
sought.  However, in this instance ANSA/public open space have stated that they believe the 
impact should be for the benefit of employees.  They therefore request the applicant to put 
forward potential improvements for the sports on site. Clearly this will need to be weighed in 
the overall planning balance. 
 
The impact on the land designated as green space then must be considered in the context of 
what use that space currently serves and the context of the wider Bentley site which has 
extensive sports and recreation facilities which would not be impacted by the proposal. Finally, 
this needs to be considered in the planning balance if the scheme as a whole, taking into 
account the substantial weight afforded to the site's employment designation and the economic 
benefits afforded by the scheme. 
 
Highways 
 
Policy CO1 of the CELPS states, inter alia, that to deliver the council objectives of delivering a 
safe, sustainable, high quality, integrated transport system that encourages a modal shift away 
from car travel to public transport, cycling and walking; supportive of the needs of residents and 

Page 166



 
OFFICIAL 

businesses and preparing for carbon free modes of transport, the council will expect 
development to: 1. Reduce the need to travel by: i. Guiding development to sustainable and 
accessible locations or locations that can be made sustainable and accessible; ii. Ensuring 
development gives priority to walking, cycling and public transport within its design; iii. 
Encouraging more flexible working patterns and home working; iv. Supporting improvements 
to communication technology for business, education, shopping and leisure purposes and; v. 
Supporting measures that reduce the level of trips made by single occupancy vehicles. 
 
Policy INF3 of the SADPD states that development proposals should: i. comply with the relevant 
Highway Authority’s and other highway design guidance; ii. provide safe access to and from 
the site for all highway users and incorporate safe internal movement in the site to meet the 
requirements of servicing and emergency vehicles; iii. make sure that development traffic can 
be satisfactorily assimilated into the operation of the existing highway network so that it would 
not have an unacceptable impact on highway safety or result in severe residual cumulative 
impacts on the road network; iv. incorporate measures to assist access to, from and within the 
site by pedestrians, cyclists and public transport users and meets the needs of people with 
disabilities; and v. not generate movements of heavy goods vehicles on unsuitable roads, or on 
roads without suitable access to the classified highway network. 
 
The proposal is to demolish an existing industrial building and replace it with a new one, 
extending the building south slightly to increase the floor area. 
 
There will not be any reduction in on-site car parking spaces and access will remain from within 
the Bentley site, with no changes to access from the public highway.  
 
There is a significant number of existing car parking spaces within the wider Bentley site and 
given the existing fall-back use, the parking is considered adequate.  
 
The extension is minor when compared to the wider and existing Bentley site and the Highway 
impact will be minimal and no objection is raised. 
 
Drainage and Flood Risk 
 
Policy SE13 of the CELPS, in line with chapter 15 of the NPPF, states - inter alia - that 
developments must integrate measures for sustainable water management to reduce flood risk, 
avoid an adverse impact on water quality and quantity within the borough and provide 
opportunities to enhance biodiversity, health and recreation, in line with national guidance. 
Policy ENV16 of the SADPD states, inter alia, that in order to manage surface water drainage 
effectively and reduce the risk of flooding elsewhere, in accordance with LPS Policy SE 13 
‘Flood risk and water management’, development proposals should satisfy the following criteria. 
It should be demonstrated how surface water runoff can be appropriately managed. Surface 
water runoff should be managed to achieve: i. on greenfield sites, at least no increase in runoff 
rates, and a reduction in rates where possible; and ii. on previously developed sites, a reduction 
in existing runoff rates in line with the Non-Statutory Technical Standards for Sustainable 
Drainage Systems (2015) or any subsequent replacement standards. 
 
Bentley have Environmental Agency consent to discharge their waste via the foul drainage. 
There are no large quantities of trade effluent. 
 

Page 167



 
OFFICIAL 

Cheshire East Council as the Lead Local Flood Authority (LLFA) has reviewed the application 
and based on the submitted information they would place a holding objection until the below 
conditions have been satisfied: Details for the party responsible for the maintenance of flood 
mitigation assets -The below pipes show flooding in the 1 in 100 + CC rainfall event. The LLFA 
has also stated that they will require evidence of how this flooding will be contained within the 
site boundary. A detailed surface water management plan is required to ensure that the 
development is in accordance with NPPF and local planning policies. It should be ensured that 
all major developments have sufficient surface water management, are not at increased risk of 
flooding and do not increase flood risk off-site.  
 
To this end the applicant has submitted extensive technical detail to respond to the LLFA's 
comments which are being reviewed at the time of authoring this report and will be reported 
back in the committee update. 
 
United Utilities has objected on the basis of impact to the sewer. They have stated that the 
applicant should contact their Developer Services team to address the objection prior to 
submitting agreed details to the Council for formal consideration.  
 
The applicant has submitted a comprehensive Phase II Geoenvironmental Site Assessment to 
the Council. This is considered to satisfy the requirements of planning control in relation to 
drainage although it will be for the applicant to demonstrate this to United Utilities in terms of 
their asset protection outside of planning control. There is however this outstanding United 
Utilities objection. 
 
Trees/Ecology 
 
There are no protected trees on site.  
 
The application site falls within the CEC ecological network which forms part of the SADPD. 
Policy ENV1 therefore applied to this application. Policy SE3 of the CELPS and policy ENV2 of 
the SADPD also require development proposals to deliver a gain for biodiversity. 
 
Whilst the application site is extensive it consists almost entirely of hard standing and buildings. 
Consequently, opportunities for ecological enhancement are limited. Therefore, a condition will 
be recommended regarding enhancements to biodiversity. 
 
The Council's's ecologist has advised that that roosting bats are not reasonably likely to be 
present or affected by the proposed development 
 
CONCLUSION and PLANNING BALANCE 
 
The considerations relating to the comments of all statutory consultees have been noted and 
addressed in the report, subject to a committee update from the Lead Local Flood Authority 
(LLFA) and clarification on the requirements of United Utilities.  
 
Substantial weight is afforded to the clear policy support for the proposal at this site in the form 
of CRE1 Bentley Motors employment allocation. This proposal would bring economic benefits 
and investment in an area with a longstanding association with the manufacture of motor 

Page 168



 
OFFICIAL 

vehicles. Bentley Motors are a major employer located within one of the principal growth areas 
of the Borough where national / local plan policies strongly support such development.  
 
Although no additional recreational provision for workers is proposed this has to be balanced 
against the economic benefits of the proposals as a whole and the aspirations of the Council to 
realise the growth potential of Crewe and to allow for the growth of employment on this strategic 
employment site as defined in the Development Plan by encouraging investment in the area. 
The proposal prefigures the production of new electric vehicle products in the next few years 
within the Volkswagen/Bentley group and would allow for the Cheshire manufacturing site to 
prepare a business case to the VW Board in Germany in respect of this to bring manufacturing 
to Cheshire East. This planning application is therefore recommended for approval. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 169



 
OFFICIAL 

 

P
age 170



 

 

23/2349N 

BENTLEY MOTORS LIMITED 

PYMS LANE CREWE 

 CW1 3PL 

P
age 171



NO  E
NTRY

NO  
ENT
RY

NO  
ENT
RY

NO  
ENT
RY

NO  
ENT
RY

NO  ENTRY

NO  ENTRY

NO  ENTRY

NO  ENTRY

NO  
ENT
RY

NO  
ENT
RY

NO  ENTRY

NO  ENTRY

NO  ENTRY

NO  ENTRY

NO  ENTRY

NO  ENTRY

NO  ENTRY
NO  ENTRY

NO  ENTRY

NO  ENTRY

NO  
ENT
RY

EXIT

EXIT RIGH
T

EXIT RIGH
T

EXIT RIGH
T

EXIT RIGH
T

EXIT
LEFT

EXIT
LEFT

EXIT
LEFT

EXIT
LEFT EXIT

RIGH
T

ONL
Y

EXIT RIGH
T

EXIT RIGH
T

EXIT RIGH
T

EXIT LEF
T

EXIT LEF
T

EXIT
RIGHT

EXIT
RIGHT

RIGH
T

ONL
Y

NO  
ENT
RY

NO  
ENT
RY

NO  
ENT
RY

NO  
ENT
RY

NO  ENTRY

EXIT
RIGHT

14

15

19

21
22

23

20

7

8

24
25

AU
DI
T 
PA
RK
IN
G
 O
NL
Y

NO
PARKING

FAIRWAY
CABIN

MAINLIGHT
CABIN

QSCCABIN

ENGINE TESTSTORAGE

ENGINETESTTEMPORARY OFFICE

SECURITYHUT

SECURITYBARRIERCONTROL

575m²

847m²

842m²
910m²

556m²

BALANCING
POND

FTA Design Articulated Vehicle (2016)

FTA Design Articulated Vehicle (2016)

51.8m

52.4m

52.1m

51.5m

53.3m

53.3m

52.7m

52.1m

Travelling Crane

LB

53.0m

TCB

50.0m

46.0m

48.5m

LB

305

33

30

75

17

39

10

El Sub Sta

465

62

12

1

95

16

El

39a

457

28

17

38

31

485

54

19

14

4

325

65
111

505

10
8

50

15
2

6
2

42

65

35
55

25

315

18

26

5

38

2

507

40

475

121

509

74

46

45

85

18

Sub Sta

2

41
41a

37a

41

467

14
2

55

13
8

11
8

9

55

66

21

10

18
24

465a

47

98

503

7

86

17
2

11

45
107

1

43
37

487

14

17

9

12
8

88

495

18

57

86
a

16
2

133

18
0

54

9

179

180

169

80

15

350

75

10

16

23

Sub

1

340
Sta

191

192

23

18
2

160

12

157

147

El

20
2

173

330

159

11

169

19
2

170

21

14

21
2

CR

Ward
 Bdy

M
IN
SH
U
LL N

EW
 R
O
AD

NIXON STREET

BADGER AVENUE

ASH
BAN

K

WES
T ST

REE
T

PLAC
E

M
O
N
KS LAN

E

M
O
N
KS LAN

E

H
U
LM
E STR

EET

ELEAN
O
R
 C
LO
SE

TIMBRELL AVENUE

M
IN
SH
U
LL N

EW
 R
O
AD

M
AY
FI
EL
D
 M
EW
S

1

Oakleigh Farm

Brassey Bank

Site
Waste Disposal

HEDGE

MIRROR

MIRROR

BAY 1

BAY 2

BAY 3

BAY 4

GIVE WAY

NO PED
ESTR

IAN ACC
ESS

REVERSINGAREA

NOPEDESTRIAN
ACCESS

REV
ERS
ING ARE
A

NO PED
ESTR

IAN ACC
ESS

EXCEPTFOR ACCESS

EXC
EPT FOR

 ACC
ESS

O
NE
 W
AY

ST
O
P

O
NE W

AY

10

EXCEPTFOR ACCESS

ONE
 WAY

EXCEPTFOR ACCESS

GIVE
WAY

ONE
 WAY

EXC
EPT FOR

 ACC
ESS

ONE
 WAY

STO
P

EXCEPTFOR ACCESS

10

10

PEDESTRIAN ROUTE

O
NE W

AY

SOUNDHORN

SOUNDHORN

DEADSLOW

ONE
 WAY

ONE
 WAY

10

10

10

10

ONE WAY

O
NE
 W
AY

10

O
NE
 W
AY

ONE
 WAY

ONE
 WAY

O
NE
 W
AY

NO T
HRO

GUH ROA
D ACC

ESS 
ONL
Y

FI
RE
 A
CC
ES
S

RO
UT
E

KE
EP
 C
LE
AR

AT
 A
LL
 T
IM
ES

FI
RE
 A
CC
ES
S

RO
UT
E

KE
EP
 C
LE
AR

AT
 A
LL
 T
IM
ES

FIRE ACCESSROUTEKEEP CLEAR
AT ALL TIMES

FIRE ACCESSROUTEKEEP CLEAR
AT ALL TIMES

GIVEWAY

GIVEWAY

SIGN SIGN

5

5

5
5

G
IV
E

W
AY

STOP

NO ENTRY

NO
 ENTRY

ST
O
P

17

TR
AC
TO
R

ENGINEERING PARKING

F4 F5 F6 F7 F8
F10 F11 F12 F13 F14 F15 F16 F17 F18 F19 F20

F9

F29

F30

F31

F32

F33 F37

F34 F38

F35 F39

F36 F40

F22 F23 F24 F25 F26 F27 F28

F21

H44

H45

1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12

12
11

10
9

8
7

6
5

4
3

2
1

EXIT

EXIT

3
1

2
5

6
4

7
8

9
10

11
12

13
14

15
16

17
18

19
20

21
22

23
24

25

26
27

28
29

30

32 31

H41

H40

H39

H38

H37

H36

57

58

59

60

61

62

63

64

65

66

67

68

69

70

71

72

C1

C2

C3

C4

C5

C6

C7

C8

C9

C10

C11

C12

C13

C14 C15

C16

MC1

MC2

MC3

MC4

MC5

MC6

MC7

MC11

MC10

MC9

MC8

MC12

MC13

MC14

C16

C17

C25

C24

C26

C27

29

30

31

32

33

34

35

36

37

38

39

40

41

42

43

44

45

46

47

48

49

50

51

52

53

54

55

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

FUELLING
 O
NLY

UN
LO
AD
IN
G
 O
NL
Y

NO ENTR
Y

TURN
LEFT

STOP

TURN
LEFT

TUR
N

EXIT

STOP

STO
P

E3
STORES

THROUGHTRAFFIC

SOUNDHORN

NO PEDESTRIAN
ACCESS

S
O
U
N
D

H
O
R
N

NO PEDESTRIAN
ACCESS SOUND HORN

TURN
RIGHT

THROUGH
TRAFFIC

AHEAD ONLY

STOP

LEF
T

LAYDOWN AREA

LAYDOWNAREA

UN
LO
AD
IN
G

BA
Y

K1

K2

K3

K4

K5

UNLOADING BAY

STOP

NO ENTRY

SLOW

10
 M
PH

SLO
W

SLO
W

SL
O
W

10 MPH

SLOW

10
MPH

10
MPH

NO
 P
ED
ES
TR
IA
N 
AC
CE
SS

NO
 P
ED
ES
TR
IA
N 
AC
CE
SS

RE
SE
RV
ED

TURN
LEFT

NO
 ENTRY

ST
O
P

Pr
op
os
ed
 S
ec
ur
e 
Fe
nc
el
in
e

RAILWAY LINE
CREWE TO HOLYHEAD

STEPS

AR
NC
O

BA
RR
IE
R

barrier

barrier

barrier

barrier

barrier

barrier

barrier

barrier

barrier

barrier

barrier

barrier

barrier

barrier

SU
NN
YB
AN
K 
RO
AD

PYM'S LANE
Pym's Lane

Su
nn
yb
an
k R
oa
d

RO
AD

M
ID
D
LE
W
IC
H

PYM'S LANE

PYM'S LANE

T A R M A C    F O O T P A T H

C
 R
 O
 S
 S
 I 
N
 G

T A R M A C    F O O T P A T H

T 
A 
R
 M
 A
 C
   
 F
 O
 O
 T
 P
 A
 T
 H

GATE ACCESS

TO CAR PARK

Refuse
Vehicle
Parking
(32 No.)

SLO
W

SL
O
W

FO
UR
TH
 A
VE
NU
E

SECOND STREET

FI
FT
H 
AV
EN
UE

FIRST STREET

SECOND STREET

THIRD STREET

TH
IR
D 
AV
EN
UE

SE
CO
ND
 A
VE
NU
E

FIRST STREET

CP H

CP H

THIRD STREET

SUNNYBANK - 1818 SPACES + 35 MEDICAL SPACES

AIR
CON

DIRECTORS PARKING

CAR PARKF

C
 R
 O
 S S I N

 G

ENGINEERING COMPOUND

196 SPACES

SUNNYBANK 2 - 1635 SPACES

PYM'S LANE 440 +
28 MEDICAL SPACES

OMKPARKING

VISITORSPACES 47

HEALTH AND
LEISURE CLUB

OFFICE

CAR PRODUCTION OFFICE
CAR TEST

OFFICES

OFFICE

CANTEEN

STORES

AUTO PAINT SHOP

PAINT FINISHING SHOP

TRAININGCENTRE

LAUNCH

CAR PRODUCTION

W
O
O
DS
HO
P

CAR PRODUCTION

MUSEUM RECEPTION

CLASS ROOMSPOST ROOM

CANTEEN

CA
R 
EN
G
IN
EE
RI
NG

ENGINEBUILD

MAINTENANCE

RECYCLINGCENTRE

OFFICE

OFFICE

OFFICE

STORES

CAR TEST

PETROLPUMPS

BODY ASSEMBLY

COMPUTERROOM

CAR BOND(STORED VEHICLES)

CLAY MODELING

STORES

MACHINING

CLAY MODELING

SHOWROOM

ENGINEBUILD

SMALL PARTS PAINT

PAINTED BODY STORE

ENGINE TEST BEDS

EP
EP

O/
H 
ca
bl
e l
vl
 61
.60

O/
H 
ca
bl
e l
vl
 61
.62

O/
H 
ca
bl
e l
vl
 75
.29

O/
H 
ca
bl
e l
vl
 57
.92

O/
H 
ca
bl
e l
vl
 57
.68

O/
H 
ca
bl
e l
vl
 66
.27

O/
H 
ca
bl
e l
vl
 66
.34

O/
H 
ca
bl
e l
vl
 75
.31

O/
H 
ca
bl
e l
vl
 6
8.
75

O/
H 
ca
bl
e l
vl
 66
.94

O/
H 
ca
bl
e l
vl
 64
.84

O/
H 
ca
bl
e l
vl
 64
.81

O
/H
 cable lvl 65.83

O
/H
 cable lvl 62.17

O
/H
 cable lvl 67.66

O
/H
 cable lvl 64.08

O
/H
 cable lvl 63.40

O
/H
 cable lvl 65.18

O/
H 
ca
bl
e l
vl
 68
.45

O/H cable lvl 58.71

O/H cable lvl 60.33

EP

EP

C2

S1

T1

S2

C5L1

E3

P2

P3

P4

P1

N2

N1

E1

B4

B3

F1

B2

B1

U4

C1

U1

R1

A2

E5

U7

WAY

COVERED

WAY

COVERED

COVEREDWAY

TUNNEL

U3

G1

M4

E6

E7

M6

R2

U8

U6

A3

A6

PERMITOFFICE

U10

TANK
2

TANK
1

C6

A8

HYDRANTAREA

B11

SA
LT
 SH
ED

U5

AI
R

RE
CI
EV
ER

BLOWDOWNVESSEL

X1

CHK

CONTAINER

CONTAINER

A9

U9

C3

PKO
TENT

U13
U12

U15

P5

D1

PL
AN
T

SUB STATION

CONTAINER

BUILDING
04

BUILDING
03

BUILDING
02

BUILDING
06

BUILDING
12

Sub
Station

BUILDING
10

BUILDING
09

BUILDING
08A

BUILDING
08B

BUILDING
07

Polytunnel
Polytunnel

CO
NTAINER
6.2x2.5m

CO
NTAINER
6.2x2.5m

U17

U16

KITCHENSTORE

PL
AN
T

PL
AN
T

C
O
N
TA
IN
ER

DURRSITE CABIN

DURRSITE CABIN

DURRSITE CABIN

DURRSITE CABIN

DURR
W
ASH RO

O
M

CONTAINER

M7

CONTAINER

CONTAINER

CONTAINER

CONTAINER

Cycles

Cycles

Weighbridge

BI
C
YC
LE

ST
AN
D

BI
C
YC
LE

ST
AN
D

BI
C
YC
LE

ST
AN
D

BI
C
YC
LE

ST
AN
D

BI
C
YC
LE

ST
AN
D

BI
C
YC
LE

ST
AN
D

BI
C
YC
LE

ST
AN
D

RAMP

RAMP

EX IN HE

Stainl
ess St

eel Paint 
Mix R

oom

Acces
s Ram

p

COM
PRE
SSO
R

UND
ER B

ENC
H

EX
IN
HE

Stainless Steel
Paint Mix Room

Access Ramp

CO
M
PRESSO

R
UNDER BENCH

EX
IN

HE

Stainless Steel
Paint Mix Room

Access Ramp

CO
M
PRESSO

R
UNDER BENCH

Auth
orise

d
Acce

ss O
nly

Bond
 Park

ing

Auth
orise

d
Acce

ss O
nly

Bond
 Park

ing

MIRRORBALL

MIRRORBALL

MIRRORBALL

MIRRORBALL

MIRROR

M
IR
RO
R

Headquarters

Girl Guides

RWP

RWP

RWP

RWP

RWP

RWP

RWP

RWP

RWP

RWP

RWP

RWP

RWP

RWP

RWP

RWP

RWP

RWP

RWP

RWP

RWP

RWP

RWP

RWP

RWP

RWP

RWP

RWP

RWP

RWP

RWP

RWP

RWP

RWP

RWP

RWPRWP

RWP

RWP
RWP

RWP

RWP

RWP

RWP

RWP

RWP

RWP

RWP

RWP

RWP

RWP

RWP

RWP

RWP

RWP

RWP

RWP

RWP

RWP

RWP

RWP

RWP

RWP

RWP

RWP

RWP

RWP

RWP

RWP

RWP

RWP

RWP

RWP

RWP

RWP

RWP

RWP

RWP

RWP

Bollard

Bollard

Bollard

Bollard

Bollard

Bollard

Bollard

Bollard

Bollard

Bollard

Bollard

Bollard

Bollard

Bollard

Bollard

Bollard

Bollard

Bollard

57.64

56.02

56.65

55.45

56.04

56.04

56.05

56.05

57.66

56.03

56.48

56.01

FRL

FRL

FRL

FRL

FRL

FRL

FRL

FRL

FRL

FRL

FRL

FRL

58.47

56.38

56.42

56.98

56.96

57.03

58.50

56.19

63.60

59.28

60.80

63.62

59.59

59.63

64.02

60.25

60.24

59.28
64.02

RL

RL

RL

RL

RL

RL

RL

RL

RL

RL

RL

RL

RL

RL

RL

RL

RL

RL

RL

RL

RL
RL

57.54

58.84

58.88

58.87

58.85

59.21

58.88

61.98

56.55

62.03

55.81

55.73

55.98

57.21

54.80

56.15

58.82

57.19

55.54

58.68

58.66

58.68

56.34

56.06

62.02

62.05

58.65

56.81

58.81

56.38

56.39

57.20

58.65

58.63

EL

EL

EL

EL

EL

EL

EL

EL

EL

EL

EL

EL

EL

EL

EL

EL

EL

EL

EL

EL

EL

EL

EL

EL

EL

EL

EL

EL

EL

EL

EL

EL

EL

GAS

GAS

53.75
WL

MKR

MKR

TL

ER

ER

ER

ER

ER

ER

ER
ER

ER

ER

ER

ER

ER

ER

ER

RE

LP
LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LPLP

LP

LP

LP

LP

G

G

G

G

G

G
G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

FH

FH

FH

FH

FH

P

P

P

P

RS

RS

RS

RS

RS

RS

RS

RS

RS

SV

52.898
ST5A

ST07

ST06

ST05

52.734
ST04

52.650
ST03

52.572
ST1A

52.310
ST01

52.551
ST02

52.38

52
.3
1

52
.3
1

52
.6
0

52
.5
9

52
.5
8

52
.7
0

52
.6
3

52
.7
5

52.58
52.87

52
.2
8

52
.2
8

52.23

52.24

52
.2
9

52
.2
3

52
.2
0

52
.5
3

52.36

52
.2
5

52.3
0

52.2
8

52
.3
6

52
.3
2

52
.2
3 52
.2
3

52.23

52.25

52
.2
2

52.29

52.19

52
.2
6

52.25

52
.2
9

52
.2
9

52
.3
6

52
.2
9

52
.2
1

52
.2
6

52
.2
5

52
.2
1

52
.2
5

52
.2
3

52
.2
2

52
.2
1

52.20

52
.2
9 52
.4
6

52
.4
2

52
.3
8

52
.3
8

52.38

52
.3
2

52.45

52
.3
7 52
.4
4

53.16
52.66

53.17
52.65

53.20
52.71

53.26
52.64

52.63

52.61

53.22
52.71

52.65

52.57

52
.7
0

52.46

52.50

52.55

52.58

52.5152.5852.64

52.53

52.43

52.62

52
.6
6

52.49
52.65

52.66
52.50

52.51
52.66

52.49

52.64
52.47

52.61 52.45

52.61
52.44

52.60
52.45

52.60
52.44

52.54

52
.5
4

52.60

52.59

52.59

52
.5
5

52
.4
4

52
.4
2

52
.4
4

52.49

52.48

52.50

52.49

52
.5
7

52.49

52.49

52.49

52.50

52.49

52.50

52.50

52.5052.46

52.62

52.64

52.97

52
.7
1

52
.5
8

52
.6
2

52
.6
2

52
.5
7

52
.7
0

52
.6
8

52
.5
4

52
.6
0

52
.5
8

52
.6
4

52
.5
4

52
.5
2

52
.6
5

52
.5
8

52
.5
952
.5
1

52
.6
4

52
.6
3

52
.5
1

52
.6
0

52
.4
9

52
.6
2

52.89

52.86

52.91

52.91

52
.9
7

52.96

52
.6
4

52.87

52.86

52.50

52.59
52.55

52.58

52.55

52.51

52.54 52.58

52.64

52.55
52.62

52.55

52.41

52.50
52.43

52.54
52.50

52.46
52.52

52.55

52.48

52.42

52.48

52.43

52.54

52
.6
0 52
.5
7

52.43

52.58

52.41

52.51

52.52

52.54

52.56

52.4452.50

52.4552.49
52.51

52.53

52.5352.54

52.5452
.5
9

52
.6
5

52
.6
7

52
.5
7

52
.6
3

52
.6
8

52
.5
8

52
.5
8

52
.26

52.23

52
.4
0

52
.4
3

52.24

52.17

52
.26

52.30

52.23

52
.2
9

52
.2
5

52.38

52.38

52.35 52
.3
0

52.36

52.34

52.39
52.34

52
.2
5

52
.4
0

52.36

52.86

52.86

52.89

52.88

52
.8
1

52
.6
7

52.39
52.33

52.30

52.25

52
.2
2

52
.3
6

52.32

52.65

52.64

52.66

52.66

52.71

52.69

52
.4
5

52.76

52
.5
6

52
.8
9

52.88

52.88
52.65

52.86

52.63

52
.7
5

52.8852.87
52.80

52.59

52.46

52.52

52.36

52
.3
5

52
.2
6

52
.2
4

52
.2
8

52
.2
8

52
.2
8

52
.3
0

52
.2
9

52.35

52.37

52
.3
0

52
.3
0

52
.3
0

52
.2
2

52.24

52.36

52.27
52.38

52.30

52.3352.39

52.38 52
.3
4

52.33

52
.3
5

52
.3
7

52
.3
2

52
.3
6

52
.4
0

52
.4
5 52.75

52
.7
5

52
.7
6

52
.8
7

52
.8
8

52.57

52.81

52
.4
1

52.68

52.83

52.88

52.77

52.73

52
.6
5

52
.4
9

52
.7
1

52
.5
2

52.87

52.32

52
.2
8

52.73

52
.2
6

52
.3
2

52
.3
7

52
.5
0

52.33

52
.3
7

52
.3
4

52.62

52
.6
8

52
.6
9

52
.6
7

52
.4
4

52.27

52.23

52.2552.18

52
.1
9

52
.2
3

52
.2
7

52
.2
8

52
.2
2

52
.2
1

52
.2
5

52.26

52
.3
1

52
.3
6

52
.3
0

52
.3
0

52
.2
8

52
.2
9

52.26

52.3652.35

52
.3
9

52
.3
2

52.37

52
.3
5

52
.3
5

52
.3
9

52
.3
8

52
.4
0

52
.4
2

52
.3
0

52
.3
1

52
.3
9

52
.3
9

52
.3
4

52
.3
7

52
.3
0

52
.3
2

52
.2
7

52
.2
5

52
.3
2

52
.2
7

52
.3
3

52
.3
1

52
.2
7

52.26

52
.2
7

52
.2
7

52
.2
5

52.36

52
.2
7

52
.4
3

52.54

52
.8
8

52.5052
.8
7

52.58

52.46

52.53

52.55

52.44

52.42

52
.2
8

52.35

52.42

52.48

52.58
52.45

52.70

52.40

52.3952.69

52.38

52.33

52 62
52.31

52.59
52.27

52
.6
0

52
.2
8

52
.2
8

52
.5
9

52
.3
7

52
.2
7

52
.3
8

52
.3
8

52
.3
6

52
.3
8

52.30

52
.2
9

52.30
52.28

52.40

52.36

52.44

52.44

52.51
52.48

52.52
52.55

52
.5
2

52.4952
.4
6

52.50

52.30

52.40

52.22

52.41

52.46

52.29

52.26

52
.2
6

52
.3
0

52
.2
8

52
.3
7

52.55

52.51

52.58

52.54
52.54

52
.3
0

52
.4
6

52
.3
0

52
.3
2

52
.3
8

52
.3
1

52
.3
0

52
.3
6

52
.3
5

52
.2
652
.2
7

52
.3
3

52
.3
552
.2
9

52
.3
0

52.29

52
.2
7 52
.3
652
.2
9

52
.2
6

52
.3
652
.2
852
.2
5

52
.3
0

52
.3
1

52
.3
2

52
.3
4

52
.8
4

52
.8
5

52
.3
452
.2
652
.2
3

52
.2
5

52
.2
9

52
.8
5

52
.3
5

52
.3
6

52
.8
5

52
.3
1

52
.3
1

52
.2
2

52
.2
6

52
.3
5

52
.8
6

52
.4
0

52
.2
9

52
.3
1

52
.3
4

52
.3
852
.2
752
.2
1

52
.2
952
.2
9

52
.2
9

52
.2
8

52
.2
7

52
.2
2

52
.2
4

52
.2
8

52
.3
1

52
.3
2

52
.2
8

52
.2
7

52.43

52.46

52.54

52
.7
2

52
.5
8

52.61

52
.6
9

52
.5
3

52
.5
2

52
.5
1

52
.50

52
.4
3

52
.4
4

52
.4
3

52
.4
3

52.43

52
.4
2

52
.5
2

52
.5
1

52
.5
6

52.53

52
.5
1

52.50

52.50

52.48

52.53

52
.5
3

52
.4
6

52
.4
652
.5
1

52
.5
2

52
.5
1

52
.5
1

52.45

52.44

52.41

52.36

52.43

52.51

52.51

52.49

52
.5
6

52.55
52.54

52.50

52.46

52.55

52.47
52.42

52.43

52
.4
752.43

52.47

52
.4
8

52
.5
5

52
.5
0

52
.6
3

52
.6
3

52
.5
0

52
.5
4

52
.5
552
.4
9

52
.6
1

52
.5
9

52
.9
0

52
.8
9

52
.9
1

52
.9
0

52
.8
4

52
.7
1

52
.8
3

52
.7
0

52
.8
1

52
.6
9

52
.8
2

52
.6
9

52
.8
2

52
.6
9

52.86

52
.97

52
.8
1

52
.7
0

52
.6
8

52
.7
1

52
.6
9

52
.8
4

52
.8
3

52
.8
0

52.88

52
.8
0

52
.8
0

52
.6
8

52
.7
6

52
.6
4

52
.7
4

52
.6
1

52
.7
2

52
.6
0

52.67

52.75

52.75

52.77

52.70

52
.7
8

52
.6
0

52
.7
2

52
.5
9

52
.5
7

52.54
52.54

52.56

52.7052.59

52.63

52.7652.66

52.7452.60

52.53

52.65

52.67

52
.7
1

52
.5
8

52
.5
3

52
.5
6

52.53

52.53

52.55
52.56

52.56
52.67

52.73

52
.6
1

52.55

52.58

52.48

52
.51

52.48

52
.5
4

52.52

52.52

52.46

52.48

52
.5
7

52.50
52.38

52.46

52.34

52.32

52
.5
2

52
.5
0

52.39

52.41

52.33

52
.3
1

52
.3
3

52.40

52
.5
6

52.41

52.49

52.57

52.70

52.73

52.64

52.87

52.74

52
.6
5

52
.7
6

52.76

52.89

52.89

52.87

52.93

52.80 52.71 52.65

52
.9
5

52.90

52.90

52.89

53.54

52
.9
0

52.84

52.86

52
.8
2

52.81

52.84

52.80

52.76

52.72

52.72

52.76

52.79 52.70

52.67

52.65

52.61

52.69

52.66

52
.7
3

52
.7
8

52
.6
3

52
.6
8

52
.7
1

52
.6
1

52
.6
5

52.68

52
.6
8

52.73

52.97

52.56

52.88

52.81

52.74

52.69

52.64

52.60

52.55

52.95

53.01
52.97

52.89

52.72

52.80

52.71

52.8952.79

52.8852.76

52.8852.70

52
.6
8

52.5552.51

53.21
52.65

52.55

52.64

53.26
52.69

52.68

52.72

53.36
52.78

52.78

53.41
52.84

52.84

52.90

53.47
52.94

52.98

53.51
52.99

53.52
52.91

52.59
52.44

52.58
52.42

52.58
52.42

52.57
52.41

52.56
52.39

52.56
52.39

52.56
52.40

52.55
52.38

52.39

52.42
52.59

52.66

52.77

52.72

52.68
52.69

52.61

52.59

52.6552.68

52.71

52.80

52.81

52.81

52
.6
1

52
.7
7

52
.7
8

52.72

52.54

52
.7
4

52
.7
1

52
.6
8

52
.7
4

52
.6
8

52
.8
0

52
.6
8

52
.7
4

52.76

52
.7
1

52.70

52.67

52.72

52.80

52.76

52.82

52
.8
0

52
.7
7

52.75

52.77 52.69
52.55 52.43

52.32
52.35

52.41
52.46

52
.5
152
.5
3

52.7252.66
52.5652.4852.4752.53

52
.5
7

52.52

52.63

52
.5
9

52.49

52.78
53.40

52.87

52
.8
7

52.51

52
.5
8

52.89

52.90

52.83

52.64

52.65

52.53

52.58

52.49

52.50

52.43

52.46

52.45

52.42

52.50

52.57

52.63

52.60

52.75

52.69 52.78

52.57 52.53 52.45 52.46 52.52 52.61 52.69 52.79

52.7952.6852.64
52.46 52.52

52.5052.56

52.61

52.55

52.51

52.46

52.6552.56
52.4852.4652.50

52.84

52.37

52.46 52.51

52.62 52.73

52.76 52.81 52.94

53.65
53.06

52.92
52.94

52.85
52.86

52.98

52.91
52.91

52.98
52.99

52.87

52.91

52.85

52.92

52.89

52.88
52.93

52.84

52.90

52.84

52.86
52.85

52.78

52.86
52.83

52.83

52.74

52.79
52.78

52.79

52.70

52.78
52.78

52.78

52.77
52.71

52.78
52.78

52.68

52.73

52.70

52.75

52.71

52.72

52.63

52.58

52.69

52.54

52.63

52.57

52.66

52.59

52.70
52.71

52.59
52.59

52.71

52.56

52.66

52.64

52.76

52.60

52.72

52.58

52.70

52.64

52.76

52.58

52.71

52.61

52.73

52.68

52.79

52.65

52.74

52.66

52.79

52.69

52.82
52.83

52.70

52.82

52.70

52.78

52.66

52.77

52.46

52.54

52.46

52.60

52.54
52.47

52.53
52.55

52.49
52.53

52.60

52.48

52.52
52.56

52.55

52.55
52.55

52.50

52.53

52.49
52.56

52.54
52.54

52.53
52.61

52.58
52.65

52.66

52.59
52.55

52.49
52.55

52.48
52.49

52.54
52.47

52.48
52.52

52.50
52.50

52.44

52.49

52.55
52.64

52.58
52.59

52.65
52.66

52.66
52.62

52.60

52.50
52.54

52.53
52.54

52.48
52.47

52.54

52.65

52.59
52.59

52.62

52.60

52.61

52.63

52.60

52.59

52.58

52.63

52.61

52.54

52.57

52.54

52.75

52.56

52.45

52.68

52.81

52.72
52.57

52.35

52.43

52.72
52.59

52.36

52.41

52.84

52.45
52.40

52.43

52.58

52.79

52.50
52.43

52.46

52.48

52.51

52.47

52.59
52.55

52.55

52.63

52.65

52.64

52.69
52.72

52.69

52.79

52.77

52.73

52.47

52.85

52.65

52.51
52.53

52.53

52.49

52.56

52.49

52.50

52.45

52.57
52.52

52.49

52.55

52.50
52.49

52.49
52.50

52.49
52.51

52.50

52.52
52.54

52.60
52.60

52.59

52.55

52.5452.48

52.54

52.51

52.52

52.53

52.60

52.55

52.54

52.52

52.55

52.58

52.58

52.60

52.62

52.57
52.53

52.56

52.66

52.57

52.50

52.50

52.54

52.63

52.47

52.50

52.54

52.59

52.51

52.59

52.51

52.44

52.5152.56

52.61

52.67 52.65

52.67

52.63

52
.8
9

52
.6
7

52
.8
6

52
.6
2

52
.8
7

52
.6
6

52
.8
9

52
.7
0

52
.8
8

52
.7
1

52
.6
7

52
.8
9

52
.8
8

52
.6
0

52
.8
9

52
.5
8

52
.8
8

52
.5
6

52
.8
7

52
.6
0

52
.5
6

52
.4
8

52
.5
2

52.89

52.58

52.87

52.64

52.52

52.73

52.69

52.61

52.63

52.58

52.55

52.63
52.64

52.60

52.64
52.64

52.70

52.66

52.8352.70

52.72

52.73

52.73
52.75

52.67

52.73

52.66 52.68
52.65

52.67

52.62

52.64

52.63

52
.5
8

52.54

52.67

52.60

52.63
52.58

52.60

52.59

52.74
52.78

52.74

52.76

52.78
52.79

52.81

52.80
52.81

52.79

52.79

52.83 52.87

52.86

52.89

52.82 52.89

52.83

52.90

52.90

53.31
52.68 52.76

53.37
52.85
53.45 53.55

52.96

52.41
52.54

52.71 52.81

52.87

53.02

53.01
53.65

53.64
53.08

53.63
53.00

52.7852.7352.62
52.45

52.5052.5652.61

53.62
52.97

53.58
52.95

53.55
52.95

52.93
53.54

52.75
52.59

52.43
52.5352.58

52.60
52.43 52.49 52.52

52.71

52.91
53.52

53.51
52.92

52.83

53.48
52.88

53.47
53.45
52.83

52.78

52.72

52.79
53.44

52.64
52.48

52
.5
6

53.43
52.79

52.54 52.56 52.69

52.74

53.40
52.77

52.79

53.39
52.76

52.78
53.38

52.57 52.69

52.4952.46

52.61

52.62

52.64

52.57

52.92
52.89

52.89

52.79

52.79

52.81

52.65
52.61

52.61

52.50

52.5752.47

52.40

52.47
52.65

52.81

52.85

52
.5
7

52.59

52.60

52.52

52
.5
0

52
.5
4

52.59

52.73

368750E
368750E

368700E
368700E

368650E
368650E

368600E
368600E

368550E
368550E

368500E
368500E

356600N356600N

356550N356550N

356500N356500N

356450N356450N

356400N356400N

356350N

356300N

356250N356250N

356200N356200N

368750E

368700E

368650E

368600E

368750E

368700E

368650E

368600E

52.38

52.46

52.8152.79

52.66

52.37

52.37

52.40

52.37

52.38

52.88

52.88

52.33

52.37

52.38

52.41

52.37

52.40

52.44

52.37

52.37

52.38

52.35

52.35

52.37

52.55

52.87

52.52

52.56

52.99

53.04

53.0053.09

52.88

52.87

52.86

52.88

53.10

53.11

TH

TH

THTH

TH

TH

TH

TH

TH

TH

TH

TH

TH

TH

TH

TH

TH

TH

TH

TH

TH

TH

TH

TH

TH

TH

TH

TH

TH

TH

TH

THTH

TH

TH

TH

TH

TH

TH

automatic barrier

cladded workshop

cladded workshop

cladded shelter

co
nc
re
te

co
nc
re
te

tarmac

co
nc
re
te
 in
sp
ec
tio
n

co
ve
r

m
et
al

co
ve
r

ta
rm
ac

dr
ai
na
ge
 c
ha
nn
el

co
nc
re
te

co
nc
re
te

co
nc
re
te

concrete

dr
ai
na
ge
 c
ha
nn
el

dr
ai
na
ge
 c
ha
nn
el

MH
CL 52.25IC

CL 52.28 MH
CL 52.26

temporary building

br
ic
k 
& 
cl
ad
de
d 
bu
ild
in
g

concrete

MH
CL 52.36

co
nc
re
te

metalsteps

metalsteps

metalsteps

metalsteps

metalsteps

metalsteps

metalsteps

metalsteps

metal
step

metalsteps

metalsteps

metalshed

portakabin

CCTV

drainage channel

G
CL 52.69

lo
ch
 p
al
 fe
nc
e 
ht
.1
.8

canopy

we
ig
hb
rid
ge

concrete

concrete

metal barrier ht.0.8

concrete

co
nc
re
te

m
et
al
 b
ar
rie
r h
t.0
.8

m
et
al
 b
ar
rie
r h
t.0
.8

co
nc
re
te

m
et
al
 b
ar
rie
r h
t.0
.8

co
nc
re
te

paladin fence ht.1.9

co
nc
re
te

concrete

co
nc
re
te

concrete

concrete

m
et
al
 b
ar
rie
r h
t.0
.8

metal barrier ht.0.8

paladin fence ht.2.6

bushes

bush

co
nc
re
te
 w
al
l

el
ev
at
ed

pl
at
fo
rm

el
ev
at
ed

pl
at
fo
rm

canopy

bricksetts

drn chnl

metal barrier ht.0.8 metal railings ht.1.1

m
et
al
 b
ar
rie
r h
t.0
.8

brick setts

MH
CL 52.81

tarmac

dr
ai
na
ge
 c
ha
nn
el

loch pal fence ht.1.8

lo
ch
 p
al
 fe
nc
e 
ht
.1
.8

co
nc
re
te
 w
al
l

re
nd
er
 &
 

cla
dd
ed
 b
ui
ld
in
g

re
nd
er
 &
 c
la
dd
ed
 b
ui
ld
in
g

ca
no
py

co
nc
re
te

concretedr
n 
ch
nl

concrete

tarmac

ta
rm
ac

grass grass

ta
rm
ac

tarmac

ta
rm
ac

tarmac

tarmac

ta
rm
ac

ta
rm
ac

ta
rm
ac

ta
rm
ac

ta
rm
ac

ta
rm
ac

ta
rm
ac

tarmac

tarmac

br
ick
 re
ta
in
in
g 
wa
ll

co
nc
re
te

br
ick
 re
ta
in
in
g 
wa
ll

co
nc
re
te

br
ick
 re
ta
in
in
g 
wa
ll

br
ick
 re
ta
in
in
g 
wa
ll

pl
an
t

plant

pl
an
t

pl
an
t

pl
an
t

pl
an
t

m
et
al
 ra
ilin
gs
 h
t.1
.1

m
et
al
 ra
ilin
gs
 h
t.1
.1

m
et
al
 ra
ilin
gs
 h
t.1
.1

m
et
al
 ra
ilin
gs
 h
t.1
.1

m
et
al
 ra
ilin
gs
 h
t.1
.1

m
et
al
 ra
ilin
gs
 h
t.1
.1

ar
ea
 o
f p
la
nt
s 
& 
bu
sh
es

co
nc
 fe
nc
e 
& 
ba
rb
ed
 w
ire
 h
t.2
.7

conc fence & barbed wire ht.2.7

un
su
rfa
ce
d concrete plant

cladded
hut

<tarm
ac ram

p

metal fence ht.2.4

metal fence ht.2.4
metal barrier ht.0.8

metal barrier ht.0.8

m
et
al
 ra
ilin
gs
 h
t.1
.1

portakabin

canopy

tarmac

tarmac

<tarmac ramp

tarmac

tarmac

tarmac

tarmac

tarmac

tarmac

concreteconcrete

concreteconcrete

tarmac

tarmac

tarmac

tarmac

tarmac

tarmac

tarmac

tarmac

tarmac

tarmac

tarmac

tarmac

tarmac

tarmac

tarmac
tarmac

tarmac

tarmac

tarmac

canopy

concrete

metal railings ht.1.1

metal railings ht.1.1
drainage channel

loch pal fence ht.1.8

lo
ch
 p
al
 fe
nc
e 
ht
.1
.8

paladin fence ht.2.4
concrete wall

concrete wall

paladin fence ht.2.4

concrete wall

paladin fence ht.2.4

concrete wall

paladin fence ht.2.4

concrete wall

paladin fence ht.2.4

paladin fence ht.2.4

concrete w
all

paladin fence ht.2.4

concrete w
all

paladin fence ht.2.4

concrete w
all

paladin fence ht.2.4

concrete w
all

concrete w
all

paladin fence ht.2.4

drainage channel

dr
ai
na
ge
 c
ha
nn
el

dr
ai
na
ge
 c
ha
nn
el

dr
ai
na
ge
 c
ha
nn
el

metal railings ht.1.1

drainage channel

drainage channel

drainage channel

drainage channel

drainage channel

drainage channel

drainage channel

drainage channel

drainage channel

drainage channel

drainage channel

drainage channel

drainage channel

drainage channel

drainage channel

drainage channel

drainage channel

drainage channel

dr
ai
na
ge
 c
ha
nn
el

drainage cha
nnel

drainage channel

drainage channel

drainage channel

portakabin

portakabin

po
rta
ka
bi
n

dr
ai
na
ge
 c
ha
nn
el

dr
ai
na
ge
 c
ha
nn
el

dr
ai
na
ge
 c
ha
nn
el

concrete

concrete

au
to
m
at
ic
 b
ar
rie
r

co
nc
re
te

tarmactarm
ac

ta
rm
ac

ta
rm
ac

co
nc
re
te

au
to
m
at
ic
 b
ar
rie
r

tarmac

ta
rm
ac

ta
rm
ac

co
nc
re
te

co
m
e 
fe
nc
e 
& 

ba
rb
ed
 w
ire
 h
t.2
.5

sm
ok
in
g

sh
el
te
r

MH
CL 52.20

MH
CL 52.17

A/C

A/C

BT

MH
CL 52.27

MH
CL 52.26

MH
CL 52.26
MH

CL 52.27

claddedhut

IC
CL 52.77

paladin fence ht.1.9

sign

TS

P

P

JB

CCTV

vehicle storage shelter

MH
CL 52.33

G
CL 52.20MH

CL 52.24

MH
CL 52.23

G
CL 52.18

IC
CL 52.22

MH
CL 52.22

IC
CL 52.23

IC
CL 52.23

IC
CL 52.21

IC
CL 52.20

unable to locate drainage
channel end due to vehicles

plant

G
CL 52.56

bench & table

bench
& table

sli
din
g 
ga
te

co
m
e 
fe
nc
e 
&

ba
rb
ed
 w
ire
 h
t.2
.5

MH
CL 52.43

G
CL 52.17

MH
CL 52.28

MH
CL 52.24

MH
CL 52.28

G
CL 52.13

G
CL 52.14

MH
CL 52.17

MH
CL 52.19

MH
CL 52.38

IC
CL 52.38

MH
CL 52.32

MH
CL 52.29

G
CL 52.15

MH
CL 52.28

MH
CL 52.36

MH
CL 52.31

MH
CL 52.29

MH
CL 52.28

G
CL 52.19

MH
CL 52.37

MH
CL 52.29

MH
CL 52.33

MH
CL 52.36 G

CL 52.17

MH
CL 52.25

IC
CL 52.26

MH
CL 52.24

MH
CL 52.25

MH
CL 52.24

G
CL 52.21

G
CL 52.43

MH
CL 52.30

G
CL 52.19

MH
CL 52.25

MH
CL 52.24

MH
CL 52.37

MH
CL 52.37

MH
CL 52.27

MH
CL 52.28

MH
CL 52.22

G
CL 52.19

MH
CL 52.30

MH
CL 52.33

G
CL 52.55

G
CL 52.47

MH
CL 52.76

MH
CL 52.64

MH
CL 52.58

MH
CL 52.55

MH
CL 52.66

MH
CL 52.78

MH
CL 52.48

MH
CL 52.45

MH
CL 52.89

G
CL 52.71

MH
CL 52.66

G
CL 52.30

MH
CL 52.51

MH
CL 52.49

MH
CL 52.75

G
CL 52.43

MH
CL 52.49

MH
CL 52.61

G
CL 52.53

G
CL 52.39

MH
CL 52.41

G
CL 52.42

MH
CL 52.51

MH
CL 52.46

MH
CL 52.44

MH
CL 52.80

MH
CL 52.97

MH
CL 52.69

MH
CL 52.77

MH
CL 52.58

MH
CL 52.61

MH
CL 52.66

MH
CL 52.62

MH
CL 52.72

MH
CL 52.60

MH
CL 52.85

MH
CL 52.73

MH
CL 52.56

MH
CL 52.48

MH
CL 52.82

MH
CL 52.80

MH
CL 52.58

MH
CL 52.51MH

CL 52.35

MH
CL 52.37

MH
CL 53.01

MH
CL 53.01

MH
CL 52.58

Station Easting Northing Level
ST01      368636.837      356503.041       52.310
ST02      368714.225      356475.979       52.551
ST03      368713.733      356335.325       52.650
ST04      368637.994      356327.182       52.734
ST05      368619.698      356345.502       52.745
ST06      368582.502      356365.037       52.339
ST07      368605.076      356438.944       52.283
ST1A      368685.878      356491.258       52.572
ST5A      368618.098      356274.809       52.898

Station Easting Northing Level
ST01      368636.837      356503.041       52.310
ST02      368714.225      356475.979       52.551
ST03      368713.733      356335.325       52.650
ST04      368637.994      356327.182       52.734
ST05      368619.698      356345.502       52.745
ST06      368582.502      356365.037       52.339
ST07      368605.076      356438.944       52.283
ST1A      368685.878      356491.258       52.572
ST5A      368618.098      356274.809       52.898

Station Easting Northing Level
ST01      368636.837      356503.041       52.310
ST02      368714.225      356475.979       52.551
ST03      368713.733      356335.325       52.650
ST04      368637.994      356327.182       52.734
ST05      368619.698      356345.502       52.745
ST06      368582.502      356365.037       52.339
ST07      368605.076      356438.944       52.283
ST1A      368685.878      356491.258       52.572
ST5A      368618.098      356274.809       52.898

Ex
ist
in
g 
Bu
ild
in
g

A1
Ex
ist
in
g 
Bu
ild
in
g

A5

Sheet Name:

Suitability

Scale

Created

Drawn By

Project:

Client:

Level 12, Tower 12, 18-22 Bridge Street, Manchester, M3 3BZ

t +44 (0) 161 242 1140
w www.fletcher-rae.com
e info@fletcher-rae.com

This drawing is the property of Fletcher-Rae (UK) Limited and copyright is 
reserved by them.  The drawing is not to be copied, reproduced or re-
distributed either in whole or in part without the prior written consent of 
Fletcher-Rae (UK) Limited.

The originator shall have no responsibility for any liability, loss, cost, damage 
or expense arising from or relating to any use of this document other than for 
its intended purpose on this project. 

This drawing shall be read in conjunction with all other relevant drawings, 
specifications and associated documentation. Any discrepancies, errors or 
omissions are to be reported to the originator before proceeding with work. 

All dimensions are to be checked on site by the contractor prior to proceeding 
with any work. This drawing shall not be scaled to ascertain any dimensions 
Work to figured dimensions only.

DISCLAIMER
When this drawing is issued in CAD, it is an uncontrolled version issued for 
information only, to enable the recipient to prepare their own documents/ 
drawings for which they are solely responsible.

SOFTWARE INTEROPERABILITY
Fletcher-Rae (UK) Limited prepared this drawing using Autodesk REVIT.

Fletcher-Rae (UK) Limited does not accept liability for any loss or degradation 
of any information held in the drawing resulting from the translation from the 
original file format to any other file format or from the recipients reading of it 
in any other programme.

General Notes:

Drawing No. Rev.

Project No.

Hazard Identification!
Ref Hazard Date

Status

SUITABLE FOR REVIEW AND COMMENTS3

1 : 1250 @ A1

C
:\U
se
rs
\d
.le
ss
er
\D
oc
um
en
ts
\2
30
01
-F
R
A
-V
1-
XX
-M
3-
A
-9
80
1_
B
ui
ld
in
g_
d.
le
ss
er
.rv
t

Bentley Motors Ltd

Integrated Logistics Centre
Crewe

14.04.2023
JDC

Location Plan

23001-FRA-V1-XX-DR-A-PL01

23001

Planning

1 : 1250
01-00_Location Plan Copy 11

Rev Revision Details Drawn Date Chck'd

N

0 5 10 20 30 40 50

P
age 172



01 02 03 04 05 06 07 08 09 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22

A

M

EXISTING BUILDING 
A5 . 

EXISTING BUILDING 
A1 . 

EXISTING CARPARK 

EXISTING STYLING 
GARDEN

RELOCATED 
WEIGHBRIDGE

Sheet Name:

Suitability

Scale

Created

Drawn By

Project:

Client:

Level 12, Tower 12, 18-22 Bridge Street, Manchester, M3 3BZ

t +44 (0) 161 242 1140
w www.fletcher-rae.com
e info@fletcher-rae.com

This drawing is the property of Fletcher-Rae (UK) Limited and copyright is 
reserved by them.  The drawing is not to be copied, reproduced or re-
distributed either in whole or in part without the prior written consent of 
Fletcher-Rae (UK) Limited.

The originator shall have no responsibility for any liability, loss, cost, damage 
or expense arising from or relating to any use of this document other than for 
its intended purpose on this project. 

This drawing shall be read in conjunction with all other relevant drawings, 
specifications and associated documentation. Any discrepancies, errors or 
omissions are to be reported to the originator before proceeding with work. 

All dimensions are to be checked on site by the contractor prior to proceeding 
with any work. This drawing shall not be scaled to ascertain any dimensions 
Work to figured dimensions only.

DISCLAIMER
When this drawing is issued in CAD, it is an uncontrolled version issued for 
information only, to enable the recipient to prepare their own documents/ 
drawings for which they are solely responsible.

SOFTWARE INTEROPERABILITY
Fletcher-Rae (UK) Limited prepared this drawing using Autodesk REVIT.

Fletcher-Rae (UK) Limited does not accept liability for any loss or degradation 
of any information held in the drawing resulting from the translation from the 
original file format to any other file format or from the recipients reading of it 
in any other programme.

General Notes:

Drawing No. Rev.

Project No.

Hazard Identification!
Ref Hazard Date

Status

SUITABLE FOR REVIEW AND COMMENTS3

1 : 500 @ A1

C:
\U

se
rs

\a
.d

as
ca

lu
\D

oc
um

en
ts

\2
30

01
-F

RA
-V

1-
XX

-M
3-

A-
98

01
_B

ui
ld

in
g_

a.
da

sc
al

uT
P2

ER
.rv

t

Bentley Motors Ltd

Integrated Logistics Centre
Crewe

14.04.2023
JDC

Proposed Site Plan

23001-FRA-V1-XX-DR-A-PL05

23001

Planning

Rev Revision Details Drawn Date Chck'd

P
age 173



Level 00
52400

Haunch 1
8000

Haunch 2
8000

AKM

Level 01
3600

C

Roof
12000

Plant Deck
7200

L FH

Level 00
52400

Haunch 1
8000

Haunch 2
8000

01020304050607080910111213141516171819202122

Level 01
3600

Roof
12000

Plant Deck
7200

A5 Slab
52560

6750 7500 7500 7500 7500 7500 7500 7500 7500 7500 7500 7500 7500 7500 7500 7500 7500 7500 7500 7500 6750

Level 00
52400

A K M

Level 01
3600

C

Plant Deck
7200

LF H

A5 Slab
52560

Sheet Name:

Suitability

Scale

Created

Drawn By

Project:

Client:

Level 12, Tower 12, 18-22 Bridge Street, Manchester, M3 3BZ

t +44 (0) 161 242 1140
w www.fletcher-rae.com
e info@fletcher-rae.com

This drawing is the property of Fletcher-Rae (UK) Limited and copyright is 
reserved by them.  The drawing is not to be copied, reproduced or re-
distributed either in whole or in part without the prior written consent of 
Fletcher-Rae (UK) Limited.

The originator shall have no responsibility for any liability, loss, cost, damage 
or expense arising from or relating to any use of this document other than for 
its intended purpose on this project. 

This drawing shall be read in conjunction with all other relevant drawings, 
specifications and associated documentation. Any discrepancies, errors or 
omissions are to be reported to the originator before proceeding with work. 

All dimensions are to be checked on site by the contractor prior to proceeding 
with any work. This drawing shall not be scaled to ascertain any dimensions 
Work to figured dimensions only.

DISCLAIMER
When this drawing is issued in CAD, it is an uncontrolled version issued for 
information only, to enable the recipient to prepare their own documents/ 
drawings for which they are solely responsible.

SOFTWARE INTEROPERABILITY
Fletcher-Rae (UK) Limited prepared this drawing using Autodesk REVIT.

Fletcher-Rae (UK) Limited does not accept liability for any loss or degradation 
of any information held in the drawing resulting from the translation from the 
original file format to any other file format or from the recipients reading of it 
in any other programme.

General Notes:

Drawing No. Rev.

Project No.

Hazard Identification!
Ref Hazard Date

Status

SUITABLE FOR REVIEW AND COMMENTS3

 1 : 200 @ A0

C
:\U
se
rs
\d
.le
ss
er
\D
oc
um
en
ts
\2
30
01
-F
R
A
-V
1-
XX
-M
3-
A
-9
80
1_
B
ui
ld
in
g_
d.
le
ss
er
.rv
t

Bentley Motors Ltd

Integrated Logistics Centre
Crewe

18.04.2023
JDC

Proposed GA Elevations

23001-FRA-V1-XX-DR-A-PL09

23001

Planning

 1 : 200
refer to drawing: 2000

North Elevation Copy 12

 1 : 200
East Elevation Copy 11

 1 : 200
South Elevation Copy 13

Kingspan KS1000RW Aluminium Cladding - Light Grey
PPC Aluminium window with opaque glazed vision panel. Dark Grey

PPC Aluminium window with double glazed vision panel. Dark Grey

PPC Aluminium door with double glazed vision panel. Dark 
Grey

Section though existing A5 Building

Kingspan KS1000RW Aluminium Cladding - Light Grey

PPC Aluminium window with double glazed vision panel. Dark Grey

PPC Aluminium door with double glazed vision panel. Dark Grey

Section though 
existing A1 Building

Logistics Route

Logistics Route

PPC Aluminium window with double glazed vision panel. Dark Grey

Kingspan KS1000RW Aluminium Cladding - Dark Grey

PPC Aluminium window with double glazed vision panel. Dark Grey
PPC Aluminium louvred door. Dark Grey

PPC Aluminium flat cladding panel. Dark Grey

Existing brick facade to A1 building

Kingspan KS1000RW cladding. Light Grey

Kingspan KS1000RW roof cladding. Light Grey

Existing A5 building

Existing 
Annex Rev Revision Details Drawn Date Chck'd

P
age 174



DN

DN

NO  ENT
RY

NO  ENTRY NO  ENTRY NO  ENTRY NO  ENTRY

NO  ENTRYNO  ENTRYNO  ENTRY

NO 
 ENT

RY

NO  ENTRYNO  ENTRY

NO  ENTRY NO  ENTRY NO  ENTRY NO  ENTRY NO  ENTRY NO  ENTRY NO  ENTRY NO  ENTRY NO  ENTRY

NO  ENTRY

NO  ENTRY

EXIT

EXIT
RIGHT

EXIT
RIGHT

EXIT
RIGHT

EXIT
RIGHT

EXIT
LEFT

EXIT
LEFT

EXIT
LEFTEXIT

LEFT

EXIT

RIGHT
ONLY

EXIT
RIGHT

EXIT
RIGHT

EXIT
RIGHT

EXIT
LEFT

EXIT
LEFT

EXIT
RIGHT

EXIT
RIGHT

RIGHT
ONLY

NO  ENTRY
NO  ENTRY

NO  ENTRY

NO  ENTRY

NO  ENTRY

EXIT
RIGHT

14 15

19

21
22

23
20

7

8

24 25

AUDIT PARKING ONLY

N
O

PA
R
KI
N
G

FA
IR
W
AY

C
AB
IN

M
AI
N
LI
G
H
T

C
AB
IN

Q
SC

C
AB
IN

EN
G
IN
E 
TE
ST

ST
O
R
AG
E

EN
G
IN
E

TE
ST

TE
M
PO
R
AR
Y

 O
FF
IC
E

SE
C
U
R
IT
Y

H
U
T

SE
C
U
R
IT
Y

BA
R
R
IE
R

C
O
N
TR
O
L

57
5m
²

84
7m
²

84
2m
²

91
0m
²

55
6m
²

B
AL
AN
C
IN
G

P
O
N
D

FTA D
esign

 Artic
ulated

 Vehi
cle (2

016)

FTA Design Articulated Vehicle (2016)

51
.8
m

52
.4
m

52
.1
m

51
.5
m

53
.3
m

53
.3
m

52.7
m

52
.1
m

Tr
av
el
lin
g 
C
ra
ne

LB

53
.0
m

TC
B

50
.0
m

46
.0
m

48
.5
m

LB

305

33

30

75

17

39

10

El
 S
ub
 S
ta

46
5

62

12

1

95

16

El
39a

45
7

28

17

38

31

48
5

54

19

14

4

325

65

111

50
5

108

50

152

6

2

42

65

35

55

25

315

18

26

5

38

2

50
7

40

47
5

121

50
974

46

45

85

18

Su
b 
St
a

2

41

41a

37a

41

46
7

142

55

138

118

9

55

66

21

10

18

24

46
5a

4798

50
3

7

86

172

11

45

107

1

43

37

48
7

14

17

9

128

88

49
5

18

57

86a

162

133

180

54

9

179

18
0

169

80

15

35
0

75

10

16

23

Su
b

1

34
0

St
a

191

19
2

23

182

16
0

12

157

147

El

202

173

33
0

159

11

169

192

17
0

21

14

212

CR
W
ar
d B
dy

MINS
HUL
L NE

W RO
AD NI

XO
N 
ST
RE
ET

BA
D
G
ER
 A
VE
N
U
E

ASH
BAN
K

W
ES
T 
ST
RE
ET

PLACE

MON
KS L
ANE

MON
KS L

ANE

HULM
E ST

REE
T

ELE
AN
OR
 CL
OS
E

TI
M
BR
EL
L 
AV
EN
U
E

MIN
SH
ULL
 NE
W R
OA
D

MAYFIELD MEWS

1

O
ak
le
ig
h 
Fa
rm

Br
as
se
y 
Ba
nk

Si
te

W
as
te
 D
isp
os
al

HE
DG
E

M
IR
R
O
R

M
IR
R
O
R

BA
Y 
1

BA
Y 
2

BA
Y 
3

BA
Y 
4

G
IV
E 
W
AY

N
O

PED
ESTR

IAN
AC
C
ESS

LPW
BAY 2

R
EV
ER
SI
N
G

AR
EA

N
O

PE
D
ES
TR
IA
N

AC
C
ES
S

R
EVER

SIN
G

AR
EA

N
O

PED
ESTR

IAN
AC
C
ESS

EX
C
EP
T

FO
R
 A
C
C
ES
S

EXC
EPT

FO
R
 AC
C
ESS

ONE WAY

STOP

ONE WAY

10

EX
C
EP
T

FO
R
 A
C
C
ES
S

O
N
E W
AY

EX
C
EP
T

FO
R
 A
C
C
ES
S

G
IVE
W
AY

O
N
E W
AY

EXC
EPT

FO
R
 AC
C
ESS

O
N
E W
AY

STO
P

EX
C
EP
T

FO
R
 A
C
C
ES
S

10

10

PE
DE
ST
RIA
N 
RO
UT
E

ONE WAY

S
O
U
N
D

H
O
R
N

S
O
U
N
D

H
O
R
N

D
EA
D

SL
O
W

O
N
E W
AY

O
N
E W
AY

10

10

10

10

O
N
E 
W
AY

ONE WAY

10

ONE WAY

O
N
E W
AY

O
N
E W
AY

ONE WAY

N
O
 TH
R
O
G
U
H

R
O
AD

AC
C
ESS O

N
LY

FIRE ACCESS
ROUTE

KEEP CLEAR
AT ALL TIMES

FIRE ACCESS
ROUTE

KEEP CLEAR
AT ALL TIMES

FI
R
E 
AC
C
ES
S

R
O
U
TE

KE
EP
 C
LE
AR

AT
 A
LL
 T
IM
ES

FI
R
E 
AC
C
ES
S

R
O
U
TE

KE
EP
 C
LE
AR

AT
 A
LL
 T
IM
ES

G
IV
E

W
AY

G
IV
E

W
AY

SI
GN

SI
GN

55

5
5

GIVE
WAY

ST
O
P

N
O
 E
N
TR
Y

NO ENTRY

STOP

17

TRACTOR

EN
GI
NE
ER
IN
G 
PA
RK
IN
G

F4
F5

F6
F7

F8
F1
0
F1
1
F1
2
F1
3
F1
4
F1
5
F1
6
F1
7
F1
8
F1
9
F2
0

F9

F2
9

F3
0

F3
1

F3
2

F3
3
F3
7

F3
4
F3
8

F3
5
F3
9

F3
6
F4
0

F2
2
F2
3
F2
4
F2
5
F2
6
F2
7
F2
8

F2
1

H4
4

H4
5

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12

121110987654321EXIT

EXIT

3
1

2

5
6

4

7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28 29 30

32
31

H4
1

H4
0

H3
9

H3
8

H3
7

H3
6

57
58

59
60

61
62

63
64

65
66

67
68

69
70

71
72

C
1

C
2

C
3

C
4

C
5

C
6

C
7

C
8

C
9

C
10

C
11

C
12

C
13

C
14

C
15

C
16

M
C
1

M
C
2

M
C
3

M
C
4

M
C
5

M
C
6

M
C
7

M
C
11

M
C
10

M
C
9

M
C
8

M
C
12

M
C
13

M
C
14

C
16

C
17

C
25

C
24

C
26

C
27

29
30

31
32

33
34

35
36

37
38

39
40

41
42

43
44

45
46

47
48

49
50

51
52

53
54

55

1
2

3
4

5
6

7
8

9
10

11
12

13
14

15
16

17
18

19
20

21
22

23
24

25
26

27
28

FUELLING ONLY

UNLOADING ONLY

NO ENTRY

TURN
LEFT

STOP

TURN
LEFT

TURN

EXIT

STOP

STOP

E3 STOR
ES

THRO
UGH TRAF
FIC

S
O
U
N
D

H
O
R
N

NO PEDESTRIAN
ACCESS

SOUND
HORN

NO PEDESTRIAN
ACCESS

SO
UN
D 
HO
RN

TURN
RIGHT

THROUGH
TRAFFIC

AHE
AD O

NLY

STOP

LEFT
LA
YD
O
W
N
 A
R
EA

LA
YD
O
W
N

AR
EA

UNLOADING
BAY

K1
K2

K3
K4

K5

UN
LO
AD
IN
G 
BA
Y

STOP

N
O
 E
N
TR
Y

SLO
W

10 MPH

SLOW

SLO
W

SLOW

10
 M
PH

SL
O
W

10 M
PH

10MPH

NO PEDESTRIAN ACCESS NO PEDESTRIAN ACCESS

RESERVED

TURN
LEFT

NO ENTRY

STOP

Proposed Secure Fenceline

R
AI
LW
AY
 L
IN
E

C
R
EW
E 
TO
 H
O
LY
H
EA
D

ST
EP
S

ARNCO
BARRIER

ba
rri
er

ba
rri
er

ba
rri
er

ba
rri
er

ba
rri
er

ba
rri
er

ba
rri
er

ba
rri
er

ba
rri
er

ba
rri
er

ba
rri
er

ba
rri
er

ba
rri
er

ba
rri
er

SUNNYBANK ROAD

PY
M
'S
 L
AN
E

Py
m's
 La
ne

Sunnybank Road

ROAD MIDDLEWICH

PY
M
'S
 L
AN
E

PY
M
'S
 L
AN
E

T 
A 
R 
M
 A
 C
   
 F
 O
 O
 T
 P
 A
 T
 H

C R O S S I N G

T 
A 
R 
M
 A
 C
   
 F
 O
 O
 T
 P
 A
 T
 H

T A R M A C    F O O T P A T H

G
AT
E 
AC
CE
SS

TO
 C
AR
 P
AR
K

Re
fu
se

Ve
hi
cle

Pa
rk
in
g

(3
2 
No
.)

SLO
W

SLOW

FOURTH AVENUE

SE
C
O
N
D
 S
TR
EE
T

FIFTH AVENUE

FI
R
ST
 S
TR
EE
T

SE
C
O
N
D
 S
TR
EE
T

TH
IR
D
 S
TR
EE
T

THIRD AVENUE

SECOND AVENUE

FI
R
ST
 S
TR
EE
T

C
P 
H

C
P 
H

TH
IR
D
 S
TR
EE
T

SU
N
N
YB
AN
K 
- 1
81
8 
SP
AC
ES
 +
 3
5 
M
ED
IC
AL
 S
PA
C
ES

AI
R

C
O
N

DI
RE
CT
OR
S P
AR
KIN
G

C
AR
 P
AR
K

F

C R 
O S 
S I N

 G

EN
G
IN
EE
R
IN
G
 C
O
M
PO
U
N
D

19
6 
SP
AC
ES

SU
N
N
YB
AN
K 
2 
- 1
63
5 
SP
AC
ES

PY
M
'S
 L
AN
E 
44
0 
+

28
 M
ED
IC
AL
 S
PA
C
ES

O
M
K

PA
R
KI
N
G

VI
SI
TO
R

SP
AC
ES
 4
7

H
EA
LT
H
 A
N
D

LE
IS
U
R
E 
C
LU
B

O
FF
IC
E

C
AR
 P
R
O
D
U
C
TI
O
N

O
FF
IC
E

C
AR
 T
ES
T

O
FF
IC
ES

O
FF
IC
E

C
AN
TE
EN

ST
O
R
ES

AU
TO
 P
AI
N
T 
SH
O
P

PA
IN
T 
FI
N
IS
H
IN
G
 S
H
O
P

TR
AI
N
IN
G

C
EN
TR
E

LA
U
N
C
H

C
AR
 P
R
O
D
U
C
TI
O
N

WOODSHOP

C
AR
 P
R
O
D
U
C
TI
O
N

M
U
SE
U
M

R
EC
EP
TI
O
N

C
LA
SS
 R
O
O
M
S

PO
ST
 R
O
O
M

C
AN
TE
EN

C
AR
 E
N
G
IN
EE
R
IN
G

CAR ENGINEERING

LA
B 
O
FF
IC
E

ST
O
R
ES

EN
G
IN
E

BU
IL
D

M
AI
N
TE
N
AN
C
E

R
EC
YC
LI
N
G

C
EN
TR
E

O
FF
IC
E

O
FF
IC
E

O
FF
IC
E

ST
O
R
ES

C
AR
 T
ES
T

PE
TR
O
L

PU
M
PS

BO
D
Y 
AS
SE
M
BL
Y

C
O
M
PU
TE
R

R
O
O
M

C
AR
 B
O
N
D

(S
TO
R
ED
 V
EH
IC
LE
S)

C
LA
Y 
M
O
D
EL
IN
G

ST
O
R
ES

M
AC
H
IN
IN
G

C
LA
Y 
M
O
D
EL
IN
G

SH
O
W
R
O
O
M

EN
G
IN
E

BU
IL
D

SM
AL
L 
PA
R
TS
 P
AI
N
T

PA
IN
TE
D
 B
O
D
Y 
ST
O
R
E

EN
G
IN
E 
TE
ST
 B
ED
S

EP
EP

O/H cable l
vl 61.60

O/H cable l
vl 61.62

O/H cable l
vl 75.29

O/H cable l
vl 57.92

O/H cable l
vl 57.68

O/H cable l
vl 66.27

O/H cable l
vl 66.34

O/H cable l
vl 75.31

O/H cable lv
l 68.75

O/H cable l
vl 66.94

O/H cable l
vl 64.84

O/H cable l
vl 64.81

O/H c
able l

vl 65
.83

O/H c
able l

vl 62
.17

O/H c
able l

vl 67
.66

O/H c
able l

vl 64
.08

O/H 
cable
 lvl 6
3.40

O/H 
cable
 lvl 6
5.18

O/H cable l
vl 68.45

O/
H 
cab
le 
lvl
 58
.71

O/
H 
cab
le 
lvl
 60
.33

EP
EP

C
2

S1

T1

S2
C
5

L1

E3

P2P3P4P1
N
2N
1

E1

B4B3

F1

B2

B1
U
4

C
1

U
1
R
1

A2

E5

U
7

W
AY

C
O
VE
R
ED

W
AY

C
O
VE
R
ED

C
O
VE
R
ED

W
AY

TU
N
N
EL

U
3

G
1

M
4

E6
E7

M
6

R
2

U
8

U
6

A3

A6

PE
R
M
IT

O
FF
IC
E

U
10

TA
N
K
2

TA
N
K
1

C
6

A8

H
YD
R
AN
T

AR
EA

B1
1

SALT SHED

U
5

AIR
RECIEVER

BL
O
W
D
O
W
N

VE
SS
EL

X1

C
H
K

C
O
N
TA
IN
ER

C
O
N
TA
IN
ER

A9

U
9

C
3

PK
O

TE
N
T

U1
3

U1
2

U
15

P5

D
1

PLANT

SU
B 
ST
AT
IO
N

CO
NT
AI
NE
R

BU
IL
DI
NG

04

BU
IL
DI
NG

03 BU
IL
DI
NG

02

BU
IL
DI
NG

06

BU
IL
DI
NG

12

Su
b

St
at
io
n

BU
IL
DI
NG

10

BU
IL
DI
NG

09
BU
IL
DI
NG

08
A

BU
IL
DI
NG

08
B

BU
IL
DI
NG

07

Po
lyt
un
ne
l

Po
lyt
un
ne
l

CONTAINER
6.2x2.5m

CONTAINER
6.2x2.5m

U
17

U
16

KI
TC
H
EN

ST
O
R
E

PLANT PLANT

CONTAINER

D
U
R
R

SI
TE
 C
AB
IN

D
U
R
R

SI
TE
 C
AB
IN

D
U
R
R

SI
TE
 C
AB
IN

D
U
R
R

SI
TE
 C
AB
IN

DURR
WASH ROOM

C
O
N
TA
IN
ER

M
7

C
O
N
TA
IN
ER

C
O
N
TA
IN
ER

C
O
N
TA
IN
ER

C
O
N
TA
IN
ER

Cy
cle
s
Cy
cle
s

W
ei
gh
br
id
ge

BICYCLE

STAND

BICYCLE

STAND

BICYCLE

STAND

BICYCLE

STAND

BICYCLE

STAND

BICYCLE

STAND

BICYCLE

STAND

R
AM
P

RA
MP

EX
IN

HE

Stainless St eel
Paint Mix Room

Access Ramp

C
O
M
P R
ESSO

R
U
N
D
E R
 BEN

C
H

EX IN HE

Stainless Steel
Paint Mix Room

Access Ramp

COMPRESSOR
UNDER BENCH

EXINHE

Stainless Steel
Paint Mix Room

Access Ramp

COMPRESSOR
UNDER BENCH

Authorised
Access O

nly
Bond Parking

Authorised
Access O

nly
Bond Parking

M
IR
R
O
R

BA
LL

M
IR
R
O
R

BA
LL

M
IR
R
O
R

BA
LL

M
IR
R
O
R

BA
LL

M
IR
R
O
R

MIRROR

He
ad
qu
ar
te
rs

G
irl
 G
ui
de
s

01 02 03 04 05 06 07 08 09 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22

A

K

M

B

C

D

E

G

J

2100

1

2100 2

21003

L

F

H

Staircase 1 Lobby

Canteen

25.71 m²
Male WCs

17.84 m²
Female WC

12.71 m²
Corridor

3.97 m²
DDA WC3.26 m²

Male WC Lobby

1.33 m²
Cleaners

2.88 m²
Female WC Lobby

Visitor's Room

31.91 m²
Staircase 2 Lobby

Unisex WC
Unisex WC 2

Lift

Private Substation

LV Switch Room

EM Lighting - Battery
Room

Comms Room

Office

26
17
4

65
83

65
83

12
81
4

62
31

81
64

42
98

16
32
7

90
0

13
00
0

73
60
0

87
50
0

61
00
0

12
25
0

Provisional plant arrangements 
T.B.C. by MEP

Existing Building
A5

Existing Building
A1

6750 7500 7500 7500 7500 7500 7500 7500 7500 7500 7500 7500 7500 7500 7500 7500 7500 7500 7500 7500 6750

Existing Car Park

61
00
0

148547

90
0

13
00
0

20000 17500 20000 17500 20000 17500

1600

52.40 AOD

52.40 AOD

52.64 AOD

52.92 AOD 52.88 AOD

52.49 AOD

52.40 AOD52.40 AOD

52.25 AOD

52.49 AOD 52.65 AOD

52.22 AOD52.22 AOD

52.55 AOD

Auto Store Area

501.66 m²
Loading Bay Area 1

454.69 m²
Loading Bay Area 2

454.69 m²
Loading Bay Area 3

451.56 m²
Loading Bay Area 4

52.40 AOD52.40 AOD 52.40 AOD 52.40 AOD 52.40 AOD

52.56 AOD

52.56 AOD52.40 AOD

52.40 AOD

52.38 AOD

52.40 AOD

52.40 AOD

52.40 AOD

52.40 AOD

52.40 AOD

52.69 AOD

52.25 AOD 52.25 AOD

52.63 AOD
52.62 AOD

52.25 AOD

52.40 AOD 52.40 AOD

Styling Garden

PL09

1

PL09 2

PL093

Sheet Name:

Suitability

Scale

Created

Drawn By

Project:

Client:

Level 12, Tower 12, 18-22 Bridge Street, Manchester, M3 3BZ

t +44 (0) 161 242 1140
w www.fletcher-rae.com
e info@fletcher-rae.com

This drawing is the property of Fletcher-Rae (UK) Limited and copyright is 
reserved by them.  The drawing is not to be copied, reproduced or re-
distributed either in whole or in part without the prior written consent of 
Fletcher-Rae (UK) Limited.

The originator shall have no responsibility for any liability, loss, cost, damage 
or expense arising from or relating to any use of this document other than for 
its intended purpose on this project. 

This drawing shall be read in conjunction with all other relevant drawings, 
specifications and associated documentation. Any discrepancies, errors or 
omissions are to be reported to the originator before proceeding with work. 

All dimensions are to be checked on site by the contractor prior to proceeding 
with any work. This drawing shall not be scaled to ascertain any dimensions 
Work to figured dimensions only.

DISCLAIMER
When this drawing is issued in CAD, it is an uncontrolled version issued for 
information only, to enable the recipient to prepare their own documents/ 
drawings for which they are solely responsible.

SOFTWARE INTEROPERABILITY
Fletcher-Rae (UK) Limited prepared this drawing using Autodesk REVIT.

Fletcher-Rae (UK) Limited does not accept liability for any loss or degradation 
of any information held in the drawing resulting from the translation from the 
original file format to any other file format or from the recipients reading of it 
in any other programme.

General Notes:

Drawing No. Rev.

Project No.

Hazard Identification!
Ref Hazard Date

Status

SUITABLE FOR REVIEW AND COMMENTS3

 1 : 200 @ A0

C
:\U
se
rs
\a
.d
as
ca
lu
\D
oc
um
en
ts
\2
30
01
-F
R
A
-V
1-
XX
-M
3-
A
-9
80
1_
B
ui
ld
in
g_
a.
da
sc
al
uT
P2
ER
.rv
t

Bentley Motors Ltd

Integrated Logistics Centre
Crewe

14.04.2023
JDC

Proposed Ground Floor GA Plan

23001-FRA-V1-00-DR-A-PL06

23001

Planning

 1 : 200
20-00_Proposed GA Plan Copy 11

Rev Revision Details Drawn Date Chck'd

P
age 175



NO  ENT
RY

NO  ENTRY NO  ENTRY NO  ENTRY NO  ENTRY

NO  ENTRYNO  ENTRYNO  ENTRY

NO 
 ENT

RY

NO  ENTRYNO  ENTRY

NO  ENTRY NO  ENTRY NO  ENTRY NO  ENTRY NO  ENTRY NO  ENTRY NO  ENTRY NO  ENTRY NO  ENTRY

NO  ENTRY

NO  ENTRY

EXIT

EXIT
RIGHT

EXIT
RIGHT

EXIT
RIGHT

EXIT
RIGHT

EXIT
LEFT

EXIT
LEFT

EXIT
LEFTEXIT

LEFT

EXIT

RIGHT
ONLY

EXIT
RIGHT

EXIT
RIGHT

EXIT
RIGHT

EXIT
LEFT

EXIT
LEFT

EXIT
RIGHT

EXIT
RIGHT

RIGHT
ONLY

NO  ENTRY
NO  ENTRY

NO  ENTRY

NO  ENTRY

NO  ENTRY

EXIT
RIGHT

14 15

19

21
22

23
20

7

8

24 25

AUDIT PARKING ONLY

N
O

PA
R
KI
N
G

FA
IR
W
AY

C
AB
IN

M
AI
N
LI
G
H
T

C
AB
IN

Q
SC

C
AB
IN

B
AL
AN
C
IN
G

P
O
N
D

51
.8
m

52
.4
m

52
.1
m

51
.5
m

53
.3
m

53
.3
m

52.7
m

52
.1
m

Tr
av
el
lin
g 
C
ra
ne

LB

53
.0
m

TC
B

50
.0
m

46
.0
m

48
.5
m

LB

305

33

30

75

17

39

10

El
 S
ub
 S
ta

46
5

62

12

1

95

16

El
39a

45
7

28

17

38

31

48
5

54

19

14

4

325

65

111

50
5

108

50

152

6

2

42

65

35

55

25

315

18

26

5

38

2

50
7

40

47
5

121

50
974

46

45

85

18

Su
b 
St
a

2

41

41a

37a

41

46
7

142

55

138

118

9

55

66

21

10

18

24

46
5a

4798

50
3

7

86

172

11

45

107

1

43

37

48
7

14

17

9

128

88

49
5

18

57

86a

162

133

180

54

9

179

18
0

169

80

15

35
0

75

10

16

23

Su
b

1

34
0

St
a

191

19
2

23

182

16
0

12

157

147

El

202

173

33
0

159

11

169

192

17
0

21

14

212

CR
W
ar
d B
dy

MINS
HUL
L NE

W RO
AD NI

XO
N 
ST
RE
ET

BA
D
G
ER
 A
VE
N
U
E

ASH
BAN
K

W
ES
T 
ST
RE
ET

PLACE

MON
KS L
ANE

MON
KS L

ANE

HULM
E ST

REE
T

ELE
AN
OR
 CL
OS
E

TI
M
BR
EL
L 
AV
EN
U
E

MIN
SH
ULL
 NE
W R
OA
D

MAYFIELD MEWS

1

O
ak
le
ig
h 
Fa
rm

Br
as
se
y 
Ba
nk

Si
te

W
as
te
 D
isp
os
al

HE
DG
E

M
IR
R
O
R

M
IR
R
O
R

BA
Y 
1

BA
Y 
2

BA
Y 
3

BA
Y 
4

G
IV
E 
W
AY

N
O

PED
ESTR

IAN
AC
C
ESS

LPW
BAY 2

R
EV
ER
SI
N
G

AR
EA

N
O

PE
D
ES
TR
IA
N

AC
C
ES
S

R
EVER

SIN
G

AR
EA

N
O

PED
ESTR

IAN
AC
C
ESS

EX
C
EP
T

FO
R
 A
C
C
ES
S

EXC
EPT

FO
R
 AC
C
ESS

ONE WAY

STOP

ONE WAY

10

EX
C
EP
T

FO
R
 A
C
C
ES
S

O
N
E W
AY

EX
C
EP
T

FO
R
 A
C
C
ES
S

G
IVE
W
AY

O
N
E W
AY

EXC
EPT

FO
R
 AC
C
ESS

O
N
E W
AY

STO
P

EX
C
EP
T

FO
R
 A
C
C
ES
S

10

10

PE
DE
ST
RIA
N 
RO
UT
E

ONE WAY

S
O
U
N
D

H
O
R
N

S
O
U
N
D

H
O
R
N

D
EA
D

SL
O
W

O
N
E W
AY

O
N
E W
AY

10

10

10

10

O
N
E 
W
AY

ONE WAY

10

ONE WAY

O
N
E W
AY

O
N
E W
AY

ONE WAY

N
O
 TH
R
O
G
U
H

R
O
AD

AC
C
ESS O

N
LY

FIRE ACCESS
ROUTE

KEEP CLEAR
AT ALL TIMES

FIRE ACCESS
ROUTE

KEEP CLEAR
AT ALL TIMES

FI
R
E 
AC
C
ES
S

R
O
U
TE

KE
EP
 C
LE
AR

AT
 A
LL
 T
IM
ES

FI
R
E 
AC
C
ES
S

R
O
U
TE

KE
EP
 C
LE
AR

AT
 A
LL
 T
IM
ES

G
IV
E

W
AY

G
IV
E

W
AY

SI
GN

SI
GN

55

5
5

GIVE
WAY

ST
O
P

N
O
 E
N
TR
Y

NO ENTRY

STOP

17

TRACTOR

EN
GI
NE
ER
IN
G 
PA
RK
IN
G

F4
F5

F6
F7

F8
F1
0
F1
1
F1
2
F1
3
F1
4
F1
5
F1
6
F1
7
F1
8
F1
9
F2
0

F9

F2
9

F3
0

F3
1

F3
2

F3
3
F3
7

F3
4
F3
8

F3
5
F3
9

F3
6
F4
0

F2
2
F2
3
F2
4
F2
5
F2
6
F2
7
F2
8

F2
1

H4
4

H4
5

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12

121110987654321EXIT

EXIT

3
1

2

5
6

4

7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28 29 30

32
31

H4
1

H4
0

H3
9

H3
8

H3
7

H3
6

57
58

59
60

61
62

63
64

65
66

67
68

69
70

71
72

C
1

C
2

C
3

C
4

C
5

C
6

C
7

C
8

C
9

C
10

C
11

C
12

C
13

C
14

C
15

C
16

M
C
1

M
C
2

M
C
3

M
C
4

M
C
5

M
C
6

M
C
7

M
C
11

M
C
10

M
C
9

M
C
8

M
C
12

M
C
13

M
C
14

C
16

C
17

C
25

C
24

C
26

C
27

29
30

31
32

33
34

35
36

37
38

39
40

41
42

43
44

45
46

47
48

49
50

51
52

53
54

55

1
2

3
4

5
6

7
8

9
10

11
12

13
14

15
16

17
18

19
20

21
22

23
24

25
26

27
28

FUELLING ONLY

UNLOADING ONLY

NO ENTRY

TURN
LEFT

STOP

TURN
LEFT

TURN

EXIT

STOP

STOP

E3 STOR
ES

THRO
UGH TRAF
FIC

S
O
U
N
D

H
O
R
N

NO PEDESTRIAN
ACCESS

SOUND
HORN

NO PEDESTRIAN
ACCESS

SO
UN
D 
HO
RN

TURN
RIGHT

THROUGH
TRAFFIC

AHE
AD O

NLY

STOP

LEFT
LA
YD
O
W
N
 A
R
EA

LA
YD
O
W
N

AR
EA

UNLOADING
BAY

K1
K2

K3
K4

K5

UN
LO
AD
IN
G 
BA
Y

STOP

N
O
 E
N
TR
Y

SLO
W

10 MPH

SLOW

SLO
W

SLOW

10
 M
PH

SL
O
W

10 M
PH

10MPH

NO PEDESTRIAN ACCESS NO PEDESTRIAN ACCESS

RESERVED

TURN
LEFT

NO ENTRY

STOP

Proposed Secure Fenceline

R
AI
LW
AY
 L
IN
E

C
R
EW
E 
TO
 H
O
LY
H
EA
D

ST
EP
S

ARNCO
BARRIER

ba
rri
er

ba
rri
er

ba
rri
er

ba
rri
er

ba
rri
er

ba
rri
er

ba
rri
er

ba
rri
er

ba
rri
er

ba
rri
er

ba
rri
er

ba
rri
er

ba
rri
er

ba
rri
er

SUNNYBANK ROAD

PY
M
'S
 L
AN
E

Py
m's
 La
ne

Sunnybank Road

ROAD MIDDLEWICH

PY
M
'S
 L
AN
E

PY
M
'S
 L
AN
E

T 
A 
R 
M
 A
 C
   
 F
 O
 O
 T
 P
 A
 T
 H

C R O S S I N G

T 
A 
R 
M
 A
 C
   
 F
 O
 O
 T
 P
 A
 T
 H

T A R M A C    F O O T P A T H

G
AT
E 
AC
CE
SS

TO
 C
AR
 P
AR
K

Re
fu
se

Ve
hi
cle

Pa
rk
in
g

(3
2 
No
.)

SLO
W

SLOW

FOURTH AVENUE

SE
C
O
N
D
 S
TR
EE
T

FIFTH AVENUE

FI
R
ST
 S
TR
EE
T

SE
C
O
N
D
 S
TR
EE
T

TH
IR
D
 S
TR
EE
T

THIRD AVENUE

SECOND AVENUE

FI
R
ST
 S
TR
EE
T

C
P 
H

C
P 
H

TH
IR
D
 S
TR
EE
T

SU
N
N
YB
AN
K 
- 1
81
8 
SP
AC
ES
 +
 3
5 
M
ED
IC
AL
 S
PA
C
ES

AI
R

C
O
N

DI
RE
CT
OR
S P
AR
KIN
G

C
AR
 P
AR
K

F

C R 
O S 
S I N

 G

EN
G
IN
EE
R
IN
G
 C
O
M
PO
U
N
D

19
6 
SP
AC
ES

SU
N
N
YB
AN
K 
2 
- 1
63
5 
SP
AC
ES

PY
M
'S
 L
AN
E 
44
0 
+

28
 M
ED
IC
AL
 S
PA
C
ES

O
M
K

PA
R
KI
N
G

VI
SI
TO
R

SP
AC
ES
 4
7

EP
EP

O/H cable l
vl 61.60

O/H cable l
vl 61.62

O/H cable l
vl 75.29

O/H cable l
vl 57.92

O/H cable l
vl 57.68

O/H cable l
vl 66.27

O/H cable l
vl 66.34

O/H cable l
vl 75.31

O/H cable lv
l 68.75

O/H cable l
vl 66.94

O/H cable l
vl 64.84

O/H cable l
vl 64.81

O/H c
able l

vl 65
.83

O/H c
able l

vl 62
.17

O/H c
able l

vl 67
.66

O/H c
able l

vl 64
.08

O/H 
cable
 lvl 6
3.40

O/H 
cable
 lvl 6
5.18

O/H cable l
vl 68.45

O/
H 
cab
le 
lvl
 58
.71

O/
H 
cab
le 
lvl
 60
.33

EP
EP

C
2

S1

T1

S2
C
5

L1

E3

P2P3P4P1
N
2N
1

E1

B4B3

F1

B2

B1
U
4

C
1

U
1
R
1

A2

E5

U
7

W
AY

C
O
VE
R
ED

W
AY

C
O
VE
R
ED

C
O
VE
R
ED

W
AY

TU
N
N
EL

U
3

G
1

M
4

E6
E7

M
6

R
2

U
8

U
6

A3

A6

PE
R
M
IT

O
FF
IC
E

U
10

TA
N
K
2

TA
N
K
1

C
6

A8

H
YD
R
AN
T

AR
EA

B1
1

SALT SHED

U
5

AIR
RECIEVER

BL
O
W
D
O
W
N

VE
SS
EL

X1

C
H
K

C
O
N
TA
IN
ER

C
O
N
TA
IN
ER

A9

U
9

C
3

PK
O

TE
N
T

U1
3

U1
2

U
15

P5

D
1

PLANT

SU
B 
ST
AT
IO
N

CO
NT
AI
NE
R

BU
IL
DI
NG

04

BU
IL
DI
NG

03 BU
IL
DI
NG

02

BU
IL
DI
NG

06

BU
IL
DI
NG

12

Su
b

St
at
io
n

BU
IL
DI
NG

10

BU
IL
DI
NG

09
BU
IL
DI
NG

08
A

BU
IL
DI
NG

08
B

BU
IL
DI
NG

07

Po
lyt
un
ne
l

Po
lyt
un
ne
l

CONTAINER
6.2x2.5m

CONTAINER
6.2x2.5m

U
17

U
16

KI
TC
H
EN

ST
O
R
E

PLANT PLANT

CONTAINER

D
U
R
R

SI
TE
 C
AB
IN

D
U
R
R

SI
TE
 C
AB
IN

D
U
R
R

SI
TE
 C
AB
IN

D
U
R
R

SI
TE
 C
AB
IN

DURR
WASH ROOM

C
O
N
TA
IN
ER

M
7

C
O
N
TA
IN
ER

C
O
N
TA
IN
ER

C
O
N
TA
IN
ER

C
O
N
TA
IN
ER

Cy
cle
s
Cy
cle
s

W
ei
gh
br
id
ge

BICYCLE

STAND

BICYCLE

STAND

BICYCLE

STAND

BICYCLE

STAND

BICYCLE

STAND

BICYCLE

STAND

BICYCLE

STAND

R
AM
P

RA
MP

EX
IN

HE

Stainless St eel
Paint Mix Room

Access Ramp

C
O
M
P R
E SSO

R
U
N
D
E R
 B EN

C
H

EX IN HE

Stainless Steel
Paint Mix Room

Access Ramp

COMPRESSOR
UNDER BENCH

EXINHE

Stainless Steel
Paint Mix Room

Access Ramp

COMPRESSOR
UNDER BENCH

Authorised
Access O

nly
Bond Parking

Authorised
Access O

nly
Bond Parking

M
IR
R
O
R

BA
LL

M
IR
R
O
R

BA
LL

M
IR
R
O
R

BA
LL

M
IR
R
O
R

BA
LL

M
IR
R
O
R

MIRROR

He
ad
qu
ar
te
rs

G
irl
 G
ui
de
s

DN

DN

01 02 03 04 05 06 07 08 09 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22

A

K

M

B

C

D

E

G

J

2100

1

21003

L

F

H

Existing Building
A5

Existing Building
A1

501.66 m²
Loading Bay Area 1

454.69 m²
Loading Bay Area 2

454.69 m²
Loading Bay Area 3

451.56 m²
Loading Bay Area 4

39.64 m²
Staircase 1 Lobby

33.12 m²
Conf. Room 1

34.15 m²
Conf. Room 2

81.49 m²
Central Office

103.51 m²
Training Room

40.25 m²
Staircase 2 Lobby

61.11 m²
Corridor

PL09

1

PL093

Sheet Name:

Suitability

Scale

Created

Drawn By

Project:

Client:

Level 12, Tower 12, 18-22 Bridge Street, Manchester, M3 3BZ

t +44 (0) 161 242 1140
w www.fletcher-rae.com
e info@fletcher-rae.com

This drawing is the property of Fletcher-Rae (UK) Limited and copyright is 
reserved by them.  The drawing is not to be copied, reproduced or re-
distributed either in whole or in part without the prior written consent of 
Fletcher-Rae (UK) Limited.

The originator shall have no responsibility for any liability, loss, cost, damage 
or expense arising from or relating to any use of this document other than for 
its intended purpose on this project. 

This drawing shall be read in conjunction with all other relevant drawings, 
specifications and associated documentation. Any discrepancies, errors or 
omissions are to be reported to the originator before proceeding with work. 

All dimensions are to be checked on site by the contractor prior to proceeding 
with any work. This drawing shall not be scaled to ascertain any dimensions 
Work to figured dimensions only.

DISCLAIMER
When this drawing is issued in CAD, it is an uncontrolled version issued for 
information only, to enable the recipient to prepare their own documents/ 
drawings for which they are solely responsible.

SOFTWARE INTEROPERABILITY
Fletcher-Rae (UK) Limited prepared this drawing using Autodesk REVIT.

Fletcher-Rae (UK) Limited does not accept liability for any loss or degradation 
of any information held in the drawing resulting from the translation from the 
original file format to any other file format or from the recipients reading of it 
in any other programme.

General Notes:

Drawing No. Rev.

Project No.

Hazard Identification!
Ref Hazard Date

Status

SUITABLE FOR REVIEW AND COMMENTS3

 1 : 200 @ A0

C
:\U
se
rs
\d
.le
ss
er
\D
oc
um
en
ts
\2
30
01
-F
R
A
-V
1-
XX
-M
3-
A
-9
80
1_
B
ui
ld
in
g_
d.
le
ss
er
.rv
t

Bentley Motors Ltd

Integrated Logistics Centre
Crewe

14.04.2023
JDC

Proposed First Floor GA Plan

23001-FRA-V1-01-DR-A-PL07

23001

Planning

 1 : 200
20-00 Proposed First Floor GA Plan Copy 11

Rev Revision Details Drawn Date Chck'd

P
age 176



NO  ENT
RY

NO  ENTRY NO  ENTRY NO  ENTRY NO  ENTRY

NO  ENTRYNO  ENTRYNO  ENTRY

NO 
 ENT

RY

NO  ENTRYNO  ENTRY

NO  ENTRY NO  ENTRY NO  ENTRY NO  ENTRY NO  ENTRY NO  ENTRY NO  ENTRY NO  ENTRY NO  ENTRY

NO  ENTRY

NO  ENTRY

EXIT

EXIT
RIGHT

EXIT
RIGHT

EXIT
RIGHT

EXIT
RIGHT

EXIT
LEFT

EXIT
LEFT

EXIT
LEFTEXIT

LEFT

EXIT

RIGHT
ONLY

EXIT
RIGHT

EXIT
RIGHT

EXIT
RIGHT

EXIT
LEFT

EXIT
LEFT

EXIT
RIGHT

EXIT
RIGHT

RIGHT
ONLY

NO  ENTRY
NO  ENTRY

NO  ENTRY

NO  ENTRY

NO  ENTRY

EXIT
RIGHT

14 15

19

21
22

23
20

7

8

24 25

AUDIT PARKING ONLY

N
O

PA
R
KI
N
G

FA
IR
W
AY

C
AB
IN

M
AI
N
LI
G
H
T

C
AB
IN

Q
SC

C
AB
IN

EN
G
IN
E 
TE
ST

ST
O
R
AG
E

EN
G
IN
E

TE
ST

TE
M
PO
R
AR
Y

 O
FF
IC
E

SE
C
U
R
IT
Y

H
U
T

SE
C
U
R
IT
Y

BA
R
R
IE
R

C
O
N
TR
O
L

57
5m
²

84
7m
²

84
2m
²

91
0m
²

55
6m
²

B
AL
AN
C
IN
G

P
O
N
D

51
.8
m

52
.4
m

52
.1
m

51
.5
m

53
.3
m

53
.3
m

52.7
m

52
.1
m

Tr
av
el
lin
g 
C
ra
ne

LB

53
.0
m

TC
B

50
.0
m

46
.0
m

48
.5
m

LB

305

33

30

75

17

39

10

El
 S
ub
 S
ta

46
5

62

12

1

95

16

El

39a

45
7

28

17

38

31

48
5

54

19

14

4

325

65

111

50
5

108

50

152

6

2

42

65

35

55

25

315

18

26

5

38

2

50
7

40

47
5

121

50
974

46

45

85

18

Su
b 
St
a

2

41

41a

37a

41

46
7

142

55

138

118

9

55

66

21

10

18

24

46
5a

4798

50
3

7

86

172

11

45

107

1

43

37

48
7

14

17

9

128

88

49
5

18

57

86a

162

133

180

54

9

179

18
0

169

80

15

35
0

75

10

16

23

Su
b

1

34
0

St
a

191

19
2

23

182

16
0

12

157

147

El

202

173

33
0

159

11

169

192

17
0

21

14

212

CR
W
ar
d B
dy

MINS
HUL
L NE

W RO
AD NI

XO
N 
ST
RE
ET

BA
D
G
ER
 A
VE
N
U
E

ASH
BAN
K

W
ES
T 
ST
RE
ET

PLACE

MON
KS L
ANE

MON
KS L

ANE

HULM
E ST

REE
T

ELE
AN
OR
 CL
OS
E

TI
M
BR
EL
L 
AV
EN
U
E

MIN
SH
ULL
 NE
W R
OA
D

MAYFIELD MEWS

1

O
ak
le
ig
h 
Fa
rm

Br
as
se
y 
Ba
nk

Si
te

W
as
te
 D
isp
os
al

HE
DG
E

M
IR
R
O
R

M
IR
R
O
R

BA
Y 
1

BA
Y 
2

BA
Y 
3

BA
Y 
4

G
IV
E 
W
AY

N
O

PED
ESTR

IAN
AC
C
ESS

LPW
BAY 2

R
EV
ER
SI
N
G

AR
EA

N
O

PE
D
ES
TR
IA
N

AC
C
ES
S

R
EVER

SIN
G

AR
EA

N
O

PED
ESTR

IAN
AC
C
ESS

EX
C
EP
T

FO
R
 A
C
C
ES
S

EXC
EPT

FO
R
 AC
C
ESS

ONE WAY

STOP

ONE WAY

10

EX
C
EP
T

FO
R
 A
C
C
ES
S

O
N
E W
AY

EX
C
EP
T

FO
R
 A
C
C
ES
S

G
IVE
W
AY

O
N
E W
AY

EXC
EPT

FO
R
 AC
C
ESS

O
N
E W
AY

STO
P

EX
C
EP
T

FO
R
 A
C
C
ES
S

10

10

PE
DE
ST
RIA
N 
RO
UT
E

ONE WAY

S
O
U
N
D

H
O
R
N

S
O
U
N
D

H
O
R
N

D
EA
D

SL
O
W

O
N
E W
AY

O
N
E W
AY

10

10

10

10

O
N
E 
W
AY

ONE WAY

10

ONE WAY

O
N
E W
AY

O
N
E W
AY

ONE WAY

N
O
 TH
R
O
G
U
H

R
O
AD

AC
C
ESS O

N
LY

FIRE ACCESS
ROUTE

KEEP CLEAR
AT ALL TIMES

FIRE ACCESS
ROUTE

KEEP CLEAR
AT ALL TIMES

FI
R
E 
AC
C
ES
S

R
O
U
TE

KE
EP
 C
LE
AR

AT
 A
LL
 T
IM
ES

FI
R
E 
AC
C
ES
S

R
O
U
TE

KE
EP
 C
LE
AR

AT
 A
LL
 T
IM
ES

G
IV
E

W
AY

G
IV
E

W
AY

SI
GN

SI
GN

55

5
5

GIVE
WAY

ST
O
P

N
O
 E
N
TR
Y

NO ENTRY

STOP

17

TRACTOR

EN
GI
NE
ER
IN
G 
PA
RK
IN
G

F4
F5

F6
F7

F8
F1
0
F1
1
F1
2
F1
3
F1
4
F1
5
F1
6
F1
7
F1
8
F1
9
F2
0

F9

F2
9

F3
0

F3
1

F3
2

F3
3
F3
7

F3
4
F3
8

F3
5
F3
9

F3
6
F4
0

F2
2
F2
3
F2
4
F2
5
F2
6
F2
7
F2
8

F2
1

H4
4

H4
5

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12

121110987654321EXIT

EXIT

3
1

2

5
6

4

7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28 29 30

32
31

H4
1

H4
0

H3
9

H3
8

H3
7

H3
6

57
58

59
60

61
62

63
64

65
66

67
68

69
70

71
72

C
1

C
2

C
3

C
4

C
5

C
6

C
7

C
8

C
9

C
10

C
11

C
12

C
13

C
14

C
15

C
16

M
C
1

M
C
2

M
C
3

M
C
4

M
C
5

M
C
6

M
C
7

M
C
11

M
C
10

M
C
9

M
C
8

M
C
12

M
C
13

M
C
14

C
16

C
17

C
25

C
24

C
26

C
27

29
30

31
32

33
34

35
36

37
38

39
40

41
42

43
44

45
46

47
48

49
50

51
52

53
54

55

1
2

3
4

5
6

7
8

9
10

11
12

13
14

15
16

17
18

19
20

21
22

23
24

25
26

27
28

FUELLING ONLY

UNLOADING ONLY

NO ENTRY

TURN
LEFT

STOP

TURN
LEFT

TURN
EXIT

STOP

STOP

E3 STOR
ES

THRO
UGH TRAF
FIC

S
O
U
N
D

H
O
R
N

NO PEDESTRIAN
ACCESS

SOUND
HORN

NO PEDESTRIAN
ACCESS

SO
UN
D 
HO
RN

TURN
RIGHT

THROUGH
TRAFFIC

AHE
AD O

NLY

STOP

LEFT

LA
YD
O
W
N
 A
R
EA

LA
YD
O
W
N

AR
EA

UNLOADING
BAY

K1
K2

K3
K4

K5

UN
LO
AD
IN
G 
BA
Y

STOP

N
O
 E
N
TR
Y

SLO
W

10 MPH

SLOW

SLO
W

SLOW

10
 M
PH

SL
O
W

10 M
PH

10MPH

NO PEDESTRIAN ACCESS NO PEDESTRIAN ACCESS

RESERVED

TURN
LEFT

NO ENTRY

STOP

Proposed Secure Fenceline

R
AI
LW
AY
 L
IN
E

C
R
EW
E 
TO
 H
O
LY
H
EA
D

ST
EP
S

ARNCO
BARRIER

ba
rri
er

ba
rri
er

ba
rri
er

ba
rri
er

ba
rri
er

ba
rri
er

ba
rri
er

ba
rri
er

ba
rri
er

ba
rri
er

ba
rri
er

ba
rri
er

ba
rri
er

ba
rri
er

SUNNYBANK ROAD

PY
M
'S
 L
AN
E

Py
m's
 La
ne

Sunnybank Road

ROAD MIDDLEWICH

PY
M
'S
 L
AN
E

PY
M
'S
 L
AN
E

T 
A 
R 
M
 A
 C
   
 F
 O
 O
 T
 P
 A
 T
 H

C R O S S I N G

T 
A 
R 
M
 A
 C
   
 F
 O
 O
 T
 P
 A
 T
 H

T A R M A C    F O O T P A T H

G
AT
E 
AC
CE
SS

TO
 C
AR
 P
AR
K

Re
fu
se

Ve
hi
cle

Pa
rk
in
g

(3
2 
No
.)

SLO
W

SLOW

FOURTH AVENUE

SE
C
O
N
D
 S
TR
EE
T

FIFTH AVENUE

FI
R
ST
 S
TR
EE
T

SE
C
O
N
D
 S
TR
EE
T

TH
IR
D
 S
TR
EE
T

THIRD AVENUE

SECOND AVENUE

FI
R
ST
 S
TR
EE
T

C
P 
H

C
P 
H

TH
IR
D
 S
TR
EE
T

SU
N
N
YB
AN
K 
- 1
81
8 
SP
AC
ES
 +
 3
5 
M
ED
IC
AL
 S
PA
C
ES

AI
R

C
O
N

DI
RE
CT
OR
S P
AR
KIN
G

C
AR
 P
AR
K

F

C R 
O S 
S I N

 G

EN
G
IN
EE
R
IN
G
 C
O
M
PO
U
N
D

19
6 
SP
AC
ES

SU
N
N
YB
AN
K 
2 
- 1
63
5 
SP
AC
ES

PY
M
'S
 L
AN
E 
44
0 
+

28
 M
ED
IC
AL
 S
PA
C
ES

O
M
K

PA
R
KI
N
G

VI
SI
TO
R

SP
AC
ES
 4
7

H
EA
LT
H
 A
N
D

LE
IS
U
R
E 
C
LU
B

O
FF
IC
E

C
AR
 P
R
O
D
U
C
TI
O
N

O
FF
IC
E

C
AR
 T
ES
T

O
FF
IC
ES

O
FF
IC
E

C
AN
TE
EN

ST
O
R
ES

AU
TO
 P
AI
N
T 
SH
O
P

PA
IN
T 
FI
N
IS
H
IN
G
 S
H
O
P

TR
AI
N
IN
G

C
EN
TR
E

LA
U
N
C
H

C
AR
 P
R
O
D
U
C
TI
O
N

WOODSHOP

C
AR
 P
R
O
D
U
C
TI
O
N

M
U
SE
U
M

R
EC
EP
TI
O
N

C
LA
SS
 R
O
O
M
S

PO
ST
 R
O
O
M

C
AN
TE
EN

C
AR
 E
N
G
IN
EE
R
IN
G

CAR ENGINEERING

LA
B 
O
FF
IC
E

ST
O
R
ES

EN
G
IN
E

BU
IL
D

M
AI
N
TE
N
AN
C
E

R
EC
YC
LI
N
G

C
EN
TR
E

O
FF
IC
E

O
FF
IC
E

O
FF
IC
E

ST
O
R
ES

C
AR
 T
ES
T

PE
TR
O
L

PU
M
PS

BO
D
Y 
AS
SE
M
BL
Y

C
O
M
PU
TE
R

R
O
O
M

C
AR
 B
O
N
D

(S
TO
R
ED
 V
EH
IC
LE
S)

C
LA
Y 
M
O
D
EL
IN
G

ST
O
R
ES

M
AC
H
IN
IN
G

C
LA
Y 
M
O
D
EL
IN
G

SH
O
W
R
O
O
M

EN
G
IN
E

BU
IL
D

SM
AL
L 
PA
R
TS
 P
AI
N
T

PA
IN
TE
D
 B
O
D
Y 
ST
O
R
E

EN
G
IN
E 
TE
ST
 B
ED
S

EP
EP

O/H cable l
vl 61.60

O/H cable l
vl 61.62

O/H cable l
vl 75.29

O/H cable l
vl 57.92

O/H cable l
vl 57.68

O/H cable l
vl 66.27

O/H cable l
vl 66.34

O/H cable l
vl 75.31

O/H cable lv
l 68.75

O/H cable l
vl 66.94

O/H cable l
vl 64.84

O/H cable l
vl 64.81

O/H c
able l

vl 65
.83

O/H c
able l

vl 62
.17

O/H c
able l

vl 67
.66

O/H c
able l

vl 64
.08

O/H 
cable
 lvl 6
3.40

O/H 
cable
 lvl 6
5.18

O/H cable l
vl 68.45

O/
H 
cab
le 
lvl
 58
.71

O/
H 
cab
le 
lvl
 60
.33

EP
EP

C
2

S1

T1

S2
C
5

L1

E3

P2P3P4P1
N
2N
1

E1

B4B3

F1

B2

B1
U
4

C
1

U
1
R
1

A2

E5

U
7

W
AY

C
O
VE
R
ED

W
AY

C
O
VE
R
ED

C
O
VE
R
ED

W
AY

TU
N
N
EL

U
3

G
1

M
4

E6
E7

M
6

R
2

U
8

U
6

A3

A6

PE
R
M
IT

O
FF
IC
E

U
10

TA
N
K
2

TA
N
K
1

C
6

A8

H
YD
R
AN
T

AR
EA

B1
1

SALT SHED

U
5

AIR
RECIEVER

BL
O
W
D
O
W
N

VE
SS
EL

X1

C
H
K

C
O
N
TA
IN
ER

C
O
N
TA
IN
ER

A9

U
9

C
3

PK
O

TE
N
T

U1
3

U1
2

U
15

P5

D
1

PLANT

SU
B 
ST
AT
IO
N

CO
NT
AI
NE
R

BU
IL
DI
NG

04

BU
IL
DI
NG

03 BU
IL
DI
NG

02

BU
IL
DI
NG

06

BU
IL
DI
NG

12

Su
b

St
at
io
n

BU
IL
DI
NG

10

BU
IL
DI
NG

09
BU
IL
DI
NG

08
A

BU
IL
DI
NG

08
B

BU
IL
DI
NG

07

Po
lyt
un
ne
l

Po
lyt
un
ne
l

CONTAINER
6.2x2.5m

CONTAINER
6.2x2.5m

U
17

U
16

KI
TC
H
EN

ST
O
R
E

PLANT PLANT

CONTAINER

D
U
R
R

SI
TE
 C
AB
IN

D
U
R
R

SI
TE
 C
AB
IN

D
U
R
R

SI
TE
 C
AB
IN

D
U
R
R

SI
TE
 C
AB
IN

DURR
WASH ROOM

C
O
N
TA
IN
ER

M
7

C
O
N
TA
IN
ER

C
O
N
TA
IN
ER

C
O
N
TA
IN
ER

C
O
N
TA
IN
ER

Cy
cle
s
Cy
cle
s

W
ei
gh
br
id
ge

BICYCLE

STAND

BICYCLE

STAND

BICYCLE

STAND

BICYCLE

STAND

BICYCLE

STAND

BICYCLE

STAND

BICYCLE

STAND

R
AM
P

RA
MP

EX
IN

HE

Stainless Steel
Paint Mix Room

Access Ramp

C
O
M
PR
ESSO

R
U
N
D
ER
 BEN

C
H

EX IN HE

Stainless Steel
Paint Mix Room

Access Ramp

COMPRESSOR
UNDER BENCH

EXINHE

Stainless Steel
Paint Mix Room

Access Ramp

COMPRESSOR
UNDER BENCH

Authorised
Access O

nly
Bond Parking

Authorised
Access O

nly
Bond Parking

M
IR
R
O
R

BA
LL

M
IR
R
O
R

BA
LL

M
IR
R
O
R

BA
LL

M
IR
R
O
R

BA
LL

M
IR
R
O
R

MIRROR

He
ad
qu
ar
te
rs

G
irl
 G
ui
de
s

01 02

K

B

C

D

E

G

J

F

H

31.91 m²
Staircase 2 Lobby

30.96 m²
Visitor's Room

12.71 m²
Corridor

17.84 m²
Female WC

25.71 m²
Male WCs

3.26 m²
Male WC Lobby

3.97 m²
DDA WC

145.68 m²
Canteen

31.42 m²
Staircase 1 Lobby

2.9 m²
WC Lobby

2.68 m²
Unisex WC

2.68 m²
Unisex WC 2

1.33 m²
Cleaners

2.88 m²
Female WC Lobby

65
83

65
83

12
81
4

62
31

81
64

42
98

6750

40
40

1106

1206

56
39

35
96

5880

4654

19
04
9

21
29

1650

01 02

K

B

C

D

E

G

J

F

H

40.25 m²
Staircase 2 Lobby

81.49 m²
Central Office

34.15 m²
Conf. Room 2

33.12 m²
Conf. Room 1

39.64 m²
Staircase 1 Lobby

61.11 m²
Corridor

7824

90
0

13
22
9

10
41
6

43
65

42
77

65
83

65
83

12
81
4

62
31

81
64

42
98

6750

103.51 m²
Training Room

61.11 m²
Corridor

1814

01 02

B

C

D

E

G

J

F

H

6750

65
83

12
81
4

62
31

81
64

42
98

9953

39.64 m²
Staircase Lobby 1

39.43 m²
Staircase Lobby 2

333.01 m²
Plant and Viewing Deck

40
62

9757

33
65
9

9758

41
24

Sheet Name:

Suitability

Scale

Created

Drawn By

Project:

Client:

Level 12, Tower 12, 18-22 Bridge Street, Manchester, M3 3BZ

t +44 (0) 161 242 1140
w www.fletcher-rae.com
e info@fletcher-rae.com

This drawing is the property of Fletcher-Rae (UK) Limited and copyright is 
reserved by them.  The drawing is not to be copied, reproduced or re-
distributed either in whole or in part without the prior written consent of 
Fletcher-Rae (UK) Limited.

The originator shall have no responsibility for any liability, loss, cost, damage 
or expense arising from or relating to any use of this document other than for 
its intended purpose on this project. 

This drawing shall be read in conjunction with all other relevant drawings, 
specifications and associated documentation. Any discrepancies, errors or 
omissions are to be reported to the originator before proceeding with work. 

All dimensions are to be checked on site by the contractor prior to proceeding 
with any work. This drawing shall not be scaled to ascertain any dimensions 
Work to figured dimensions only.

DISCLAIMER
When this drawing is issued in CAD, it is an uncontrolled version issued for 
information only, to enable the recipient to prepare their own documents/ 
drawings for which they are solely responsible.

SOFTWARE INTEROPERABILITY
Fletcher-Rae (UK) Limited prepared this drawing using Autodesk REVIT.

Fletcher-Rae (UK) Limited does not accept liability for any loss or degradation 
of any information held in the drawing resulting from the translation from the 
original file format to any other file format or from the recipients reading of it 
in any other programme.

General Notes:

Drawing No. Rev.

Project No.

Hazard Identification!
Ref Hazard Date

Status

SUITABLE FOR REVIEW AND COMMENTS3

 1 : 100 @ A1

C
:\U
se
rs
\d
.le
ss
er
\D
oc
um
en
ts
\2
30
01
-F
R
A
-V
1-
XX
-M
3-
A
-9
80
1_
B
ui
ld
in
g_
d.
le
ss
er
.rv
t

Bentley Motors Ltd

Integrated Logistics Centre
Crewe

18.04.2023
JDC

Proposed Office GA Plans

23001-FRA-V1-XX-DR-A-PL12

23001

Planning

 1 : 100
20-00_Office GA Plan Level 00 Copy 11  1 : 100

20-00_Office GA Plan Level 01 Copy 12  1 : 100
20-00_Office GA Plan Plant Deck Level Copy 13

Rev Revision Details Drawn Date Chck'd

P
age 177



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the Previous Meeting
	5 22/0872M - LAND BETWEEN JUNCTIONS 7 AND 8 OF THE M56: Erection of a Motorway Service Area (MSA), demolition of all existing buildings except for the retention and conversion of one residential building (existing farmhouse) and the part retention and conversion of the Eastern Barn for MSA operational purposes, including associated access and buildings (Amenity Building, MSA Hotel and Fuel Filling Station including photovoltaics and ancillary structures), Service Yard, parking for all categories of vehicle (including electric vehicle charging), open space, landscaping and planting, drainage, vehicular circulation, pedestrian and cycle links (including diversion of cycle track) and earthworks/enabling works.
	1 - FRONT SHEET 22 0872M
	2 - Site Location
	3 - Indicative Design & Location
	2237-GHA-FF-ZZ-DR-A-(20)4200-Indicative Design and Location of Auxiliary Structures

	4 - Highway Boundary Plan
	2607-PLA-XX-XX-DR-L-0004-Highway Boundary Plan
	1/2607-PLA-XX-XX-DR-L-0007
	Viewport-29


	5 - Prop Site Sections Sheet 1
	2237-GHA-MS-ZZ-DR-A-(20)1100-Proposed Site Sections - Sheet 1

	6- Tree Retention & Rem
	2607-PLA-XX-XX-DR-L-0003-Tree Retention and Removal
	1/2607-PLA-XX-XX-DR-L-0004
	Viewport-5
	Viewport-6
	Viewport-7


	7- Hardworks
	2607-PLA-XX-XX-DR-L-1000-Hardworks
	1/2607-PLA-XX-XX-DR-L-0015
	Viewport-3
	Viewport-4
	Viewport-8


	8- Softworks
	2607-PLA-XX-XX-DR-L-2000-Softworks
	1/2607-PLA-XX-XX-DR-L-0016
	Viewport-9
	Viewport-10
	Viewport-11
	Viewport-28


	9 -  Prop Masterplan
	2237-GHA-ZZ-20-DR-A-(10)00005-Proposed Masterplan

	10 - Cycling Proposals
	Sheets and Views
	M56-BWB-GEN-XX-SK-C-SK018_Yarwoodheath NMU proposals-S2-P02


	11- Amenity Bldg Section AA BB
	2237-GHA-MS-ZZ-DR-A-(20)1300-Amenity Building - GA Section AA & BB

	12 - Amenity Building GA Plan
	2237-GHA-MS-00-DR-A-(20)1100-Amenity Building - L00 GA Plan

	13 - GA Plan Amenity
	2237-GHA-MS-01-DR-A-(20)1101-Amenity Building - L01 GA Plan

	14 - East Barn Elevs
	2237-GHA-MS-ZZ-DR-A-(20)4201-East Barn - Elevations/Plan-CQ

	15 - Fuel Barn East & West Elevs
	2237-GHA-MS-ZZ-DR-A-(20)1201-Amenity Building - East and West Elevation

	16 - Fuel Barn GA Plan
	2237-GHA-FF-00-DR-A-(20)3100-Fuel Barn - L00 GA Plan

	17 - Fuel BarnNorth & South Elevs (1)
	2237-GHA-FF-ZZ-DR-A-(20)3200-Fuel Barn - North and Sounth Elevation

	18 - Fuel BarnNorth & South Elevs (2)
	2237-GHA-FF-ZZ-DR-A-(20)3201-Fuel Barn - West and East Elevations

	19 - Hotel GA Plan
	2237-GHA-HO-00-DR-A-(20)2100 -Hotel - L00 GA Plan

	20 - Hotel North & South
	2237-GHA-HO-ZZ-DR-A-(20)2200-Hotel  - North and South Elevation

	21- Hotel West & East
	2237-GHA-HO-ZZ-DR-A-(20)2201-Hotel  - West and East Elevation

	22 -Long Site Sheet 1
	2607-PLA-XX-XX-DR-L-3000-Long Site sections - Sheet 1
	Viewport-16
	Viewport-17
	Viewport-18
	1/2607-PLA-XX-XX-DR-L-0005


	23 -Long Site Sheet 2
	2607-PLA-XX-XX-DR-L-3001-Long Site sections - Sheet 2
	1/2607-PLA-XX-XX-DR-L-0006
	Viewport-22
	Viewport-23
	Viewport-24
	Viewport-25
	Viewport-26
	Viewport-27


	24  Long Site Sheet 3
	2607-PLA-XX-XX-DR-L-3002-Long Site sections - Sheet 3
	Viewport-30
	1/2607-PLA-XX-XX-DR-L-0008
	Viewport-31
	Viewport-32


	25 - Long Site Sheet 4
	2607-PLA-XX-XX-DR-L-3003-Long Site sections - Sheet 4
	1/2607-PLA-XX-XX-DR-L-0009
	1/2607-PLA-XX-XX-DR-L-3003
	1/2607-PLA-XX-XX-DR-L-3004


	26 - West Barn Elevs
	2237-GHA-MS-ZZ-DR-A-(20)4202-West Barn - Elevations/Plan - Proposed

	27 - Amenity Bldg North & South Elev
	2237-GHA-MS-ZZ-DR-A-(20)1200-Amenity Building - North and South Elevation


	6 23 2225N - BENTLEY MOTORS LIMITED, PYMS LANE, CREWE, CW1 3PL: Construction of a new paint shop on the site of an existing colleague carpark including a four story office annex. Work includes the construction of two bridge links over Sunnybank Road, plant annexes and a roof terrace.
	Key Plans 23 2225N
	FRONT SHEET 23 2225N
	Location Plan
	Proposed Site Plan
	Proposed Elevations
	Sheets
	PL12 - Proposed Elevations


	Proposed GA Plan Level 00
	Sheets
	PL05 - Proposed GA Plan Level 00


	Proposed GA Plan Level 01
	Proposed GA Plan Level 02
	Proposed GA Plan Level 03
	Proposed Office Floor Plans


	7 23 2349N - BENTLEY MOTORS LIMITED, PYMS LANE, CREWE, CW1 3PL: Demolition of an existing temporary industrial warehouse and construction of an Integrated Logistics Centre including a covered logistics route, internal amenity and office annex.
	Key Plans 23 2349N
	FRONT SHEET 23 2349N
	Location Plan
	Proposed Site Plan
	Sheets
	PL05 - Proposed Site Plan


	Proposed Elevations
	Proposed Ground Floor GA Plan
	Proposed First Floor GA Plan
	Proposed Office Floor Plans



